
 
Agenda 

College Station City Council 
Workshop Meeting 

Thursday, June 22, 2006 2:00 PM 
City Hall Council Chambers, 1101 Texas Avenue 

College Station, Texas 
 
1. Presentation, possible action, and discussion on items listed on the consent 

agenda.  
 
2. Presentation, possible action, and discussion on the FY 2007-2011 Financial 

Forecast. 
 

3. Presentation, possible action and discussion regarding annexation policies of the 
City of College Station, in joint session with the Planning & Zoning Commission. 

 
4. Presentation, possible action and discussion on an update regarding the creation of 

historic or neighborhood overlay districts, in joint session with the Planning & 
Zoning Commission. 

 
5. Presentation, possible action and discussion regarding the status of the Dartmouth 

Drive Extension. 
 

6. Presentation, possible action, and discussion on future agenda items: A Council 
Member may inquire about a subject for which notice has not been given.  A 
statement of specific factual information or the recitation of existing policy may 
be given.  Any deliberation shall be limited to a proposal to place the subject on 
an agenda for a subsequent meeting. 
 

7. Council Calendars 
                                 
 June 19 IGC Meeting – TAMU – Noon – 1:30 p.m. 
 June 19 Citizen Fire Academy Graduation – CS Utilities Training 

Room – 6:00 p.m. – 8:00 p.m. 
 June 20 Texas Institute for Genomic Medicine – 5:00 p.m. – 6:30 

p.m. – Raymond Stotzer Pkwy next to Large Animal Clinic 
 June 20 Council Transportation Committee Meeting – Admin Conf. 

Rm. – 5:00 p.m. – 6:00 p.m. 

1



 June 21 Exploring History Lunch/Lecture – 11:30 a.m. – 1:00 p.m. 
– College Station Conference Center 

 June 22 City Council Workshop and Regular Meeting 2:00 p.m. 
 June 22 Health & Safety Expo – Brazos Center – 10:00 a.m. – 4:00 

p.m. 
 June 22 Dedication Ceremony of Book Collection in Memory of 

Mike Patterson – Larry Ringer Library 11 a.m. - noon 
 June 23 SummerFest – Adamson Lagoon – 6:00 p.m. – 8:00 p.m. 
 June 29 - 30 College Station City Council Strategic Planning Retreat – 

Summersmill – Salado, TX 
 June 30 Brazos Family Medicine Residency Graduation – 6:00 p.m. 

– 9:00 p.m. – Pebble Creek Country Club 
 July 4 Office Closed 
 
8. Discussion, review and possible action regarding the following meetings:  

Brazos County Health Dept., Brazos Animal Shelter, Brazos Valley 
Council of Governments, Cemetery Committee, City Center,  Design 
Review Board, Façade Improvement Program Advisory Committee, 
Fraternal Partnership, Historic Preservation Committee, Interfaith 
Dialogue Association, Intergovernmental Committee and School District, 
Joint Relief Funding Review Committee, Library Committee, Making 
Cities Livable Conference,  Metropolitan Planning Organization, Outside 
Agency Funding Review, Parks and Recreation Board, Planning and 
Zoning Commission, Sister City Association, TAMU Student Senate,  
Research Valley Partnership, Regional Transportation Committee for 
Council of Governments, Transportation Committee, Wolf Pen Creek 
Oversight Committee, Wolf Pen Creek TIF Board, Zoning Board of 
Adjustments, (see attached posted notices for subject matters). 

 
9. Executive Session will immediately follow the workshop meeting in the 

Administrative Conference Room. 
 

Consultation with Attorney {Gov’t Code Section 551.071}; possible action  The City Council 
may seek advice from its attorney regarding a pending and contemplated litigation subject or 
settlement offer or attorney-client privileged information.  Litigation is an ongoing process and 
questions may arise as to a litigation tactic or settlement offer, which needs to be discussed with 
the City Council.  Upon occasion the City Council may need information from its attorney as to 
the status of a pending or contemplated litigation subject or settlement offer or attorney-client 
privileged information.  After executive session discussion, any final action or vote taken will be 
in public.  The following subject(s) may be discussed: 
 
a. TCEQ Docket No. 2002-1147-UCR, Applications of Brushy Water Supply and College 

Station (Westside/Highway 60) 
b. TCEQ Docket No. 2003-0544MWD, Application of Nantucket, Ltd. 
c. TXU Lone Star Gas Rate Request. 
d. Cause No. 03-002098-CV-85, Brazos County, College Station v. Wellborn Special Utility 

District 
e. Civil Action No. H-04-4558, U.S. District Court, Southern District of Texas, Houston 

2



Division,  College Station v. U.S. Dept. of Agriculture, etc., and Wellborn Special Utility 
District 

f. Civil Action No. H-04-3876, U.S. District Court, Southern District of Texas, Houston 
Division, JK Development v. College Station 

g. GUD No. 9530 – Gas Cost Prudence Review, Atmos Energy Corporation 
h. GUD No. 9560 – Gas Reliability Infrastructure Program (GRIP) rate increases, Atmos 

Energy Corporation  
i. Cause No. GN-502012, Travis County, TMPA v. PUC (College Station filed Intervention 

7/6/05) 
j. Cause No. 06-000703-CV-85, Patricia Moore, et al. v. Ross Stores, Inc., City of 

College Station, et al. 
k. Contemplated condemnation of certain property located in the vicinity of the 

intersection of State Highway 30 and State Highway 158 in Brazos County for an 
electric utility easement necessary for the Brazos to College Station Switch 
Transmission Line Tie Project. 

 
Economic Incentive Negotiations {Gov’t Code Section 551.087}; possible action 
The City Council may deliberate on commercial or financial information that the City 
Council has received from a business prospect that the City Council seeks to have locate, 
stay or expand in or near the city with which the City Council in conducting economic 
development negotiations may deliberate on an offer of financial or other incentives for a 
business prospect.  After executive session discussion, any final action or vote taken will 
be in public.  The following subject(s) may be discussed: 
 

a. The proposed city convention center and associated privately developed hotel 
 
Personnel {Gov’t Code Section 551.074}; possible action 
The City Council may deliberate the appointment, employment, evaluation, 
reassignment, duties, discipline, or dismissal of a public officer.  After executive session 
discussion, any final action or vote taken will be in public.  The following public 
officer(s) may be discussed: 
 
a.  Council Self-evaluation 
 
10. Final Action on executive session, if necessary.  
 
11. Adjourn.    
 
APPROVED: 
 

_

E-Signed by Glenn Brown
VERIFY authenticity with ApproveIt

______________________________ 
City Manager  

 
Notice is hereby given that a Workshop Meeting of the City Council of the City of 
College Station, Texas will be held on the June 22, 2006 at 2:00 p.m. at the City Hall 

3



Council Chambers, 1101 Texas Avenue, College Station, Texas.  The following subjects 
will be discussed, to wit:  See Agenda 
Posted this 19th  day of June, 2006 at 12:00 p.m. 
 

E-Signed by Connie Hooks
VERIFY authenticity with ApproveIt

____________________________ 
City Secretary 

 
I, the undersigned, do hereby certify that the above Notice of Meeting of the Governing 
Body of the City of College Station, Texas, is a true and correct copy of said Notice and 
that I posted a true and correct copy of said notice on the bulletin board at City Hall, 1101 
Texas Avenue, in College Station, Texas, and the City’s website, www.cstx.gov .  The 
Agenda and Notice are readily accessible to the general public at all times.  Said Notice 
and Agenda were posted on June 19, 2006 at 12:00 p.m. and remained so posted 
continuously for at least 72 hours proceeding the scheduled time of said meeting. 
 
This public notice was removed from the official board at the College Station City Hall 
on the following date and time:  _______________________ by 
___________________________. 
 
    Dated this _____day of _______________, 2006. 
    CITY OF COLLEGE STATION, TEXAS 

By____________________________________ 
 

Subscribed and sworn to before me on this the ______day of _________________, 
___________________Notary Public – Brazos County, Texas   
My commission expires:_________ 
This building is wheelchair accessible.  Handicap parking spaces are available.  Any 
request for sign interpretive service must be made 48 hours before the meeting.  To make 
arrangements call (979) 764-3517 or (TDD) 1-800-735-2989.  Agendas may be viewed 
on www.cstx.gov.  Council meetings are broadcast live on Cable Access Channel 19. 

4

http://www.cstx.gov
http://www.cstx.gov


Agenda 
College Station City Council 

Regular Meeting 
Thursday, June 22, 2006 at 7:00 p.m. 

City Hall Council Chamber, 1101 Texas Avenue 
College Station, Texas 

 
12. Pledge of Allegiance, Invocation, Consider absence requests 

 
Hear Visitors:  Any citizen may address the City Council on any item which does 
not appear on the posted Agenda.  Registration forms are available in the lobby 
and at the desk of the City Secretary.  This form should be completed and 
delivered to the City Secretary by 6:45 p.m.  Please limit remarks to three 
minutes.  A timer alarm will sound after 2 1/2 minutes to signal that you have 
thirty seconds remaining so that you may conclude your remarks.  The City 
Council will receive the information, ask staff to look into the matter, or place the 
issue on a future agenda.  Topics of operational concerns shall be directed to the 
City Manager. 
 

Consent Agenda 
Individuals who wish to address the City Council on a consent or regular agenda item not 
posted as a public hearing shall register with the City Secretary prior to the Mayor’s 
reading of the agenda item.  Registration forms are available in the lobby and at the desk 
of the City Secretary.  The Mayor will recognize individuals who wish to come forward 
to speak for or against the item.  The speaker will please state their name and address for 
the record and provided three minutes.  A timer alarm will sound after 2 1/2 minutes to 
signal thirty seconds remaining so that the speaker may conclude your remarks.     
 
Vision Statement II – Parks and Leisure Services – We will provide a large range of 
recreational and cultural arts opportunities. 
 
13.1 Presentation, possible action, and discussion regarding a resolution approving the 

construction contract (Contract Number 06-222) with Marek Brothers 
Construction, Inc., of College Station in the amount of $1,066,999.00, for the 
construction of the multi-purpose support facilities at the Wolf Pen Creek 
Amphitheater (Project # WP 0501).Bid # 06-99 

 
Vision Statement I - Core Services – We will provide high quality customer focused 
basic city services at a reasonable cost. 
 
 
13.2 Presentation, possible action and discussion on a request for an Oversized 

Participation Agreement to upsize a waterline located in the Shenandoah Phases 
12 and 13 Subdivision in the amount of $7,524.25. 

 

5



13.3 Presentation, possible action, and discussion on an Interlocal Agreement for 
cooperative purchasing activities between the City of College Station and City of 
Round Rock, Texas. 

 
13.4 Presentation, possible action and discussion on a letter agreement with Ingram, 

Wallis & Co., P.C. for Professional Auditing Services.   
 
13.5 Presentation, possible action and discussion on approving the budget of the 

George Bush Presidential Library Foundation; and presentation, discussion and 
possible action on a funding agreement between the City of College Station and 
the George Bush Presidential Library Foundation for FY06 in the amount of 
$50,000. 

 
13.6 Presentation, possible action, and discussion of a resolution authorizing the 

submittal of a Texas Commission on Environmental Quality Regional Solid 
Waste Grant Application in the amount of $25,000 to assist in funding a litter 
abatement education outreach program for the Brazos Valley Solid Waste 
Management Agency in partnership with Keep Brazos Beautiful. 

 
Vision Statement IV – Economic Development – We will provide a strong and 
diverse economic environment. 
 
13.7 Presentation, possible action, and discussion on a resolution to dissolve the 

Façade Improvement Program (FIP) and FIP Advisory Committee as per 
Committee recommendation. 

 
Vision Statement I - Core Services – We will provide high quality customer focused 
basic city services at a reasonable cost. 
 
13.8 Presentation, possible action and discussion on a request for Oversize 

Participation (OP) for a water improvement in the Dove Crossing Subdivision 
Phase 1 in the amount of $14,336.00.   

 
13.9 Presentation, possible action and discussion of a resolution awarding a 

professional services contract to Pledger Kalkomey, Inc. for engineering services 
related to the Annexation Areas 5 and 6 Utilities project in an amount not to 
exceed $97,000.00. 

 
13.10 Presentation, possible action and discussion, on consideration of an ordinance 

amending Chapter 10, “Traffic Code,” Section 4E(3)(b) of the Code of 
Ordinances of the City of College Station prohibiting parking on Holleman Drive 
West beginning at Wellborn Road (FM 2154) and extending to Harvey Mitchell 
Parkway (FM 2818). 

 

6



13.11 Presentation, possible action, and discussion of the approval of minutes from the 
May 25, 2006 Workshop and Regular Meeting and the May 24, 2006 Special 
Meeting. 

 
13.12 Presentation, possible action, and discussion regarding a resolution authorizing 

the City to condemn certain property located in the vicinity of the intersection of 
State Highway 30 and State Highway 158 in Brazos County for an electric utility 
easement necessary for the Brazos to College Station Switch Transmission Line 
Tie Project. 

 
 
Regular Agenda 
 
Individuals who wish to address the City Council on a regular agenda item not posted 
as a public hearing shall register with the City Secretary prior to the Mayor’s reading of 
the agenda item.  The Mayor will recognize you to come forward to speak for or against 
the item.  The speaker will state their name and address for the record and allowed three 
minutes. A timer alarm will sound after 2 1/2 minutes to signal thirty seconds remaining 
so that the speaker may conclude your remarks. 
  
Individuals who wish to address the City Council on an item posted as a public hearing 
shall register with the City Secretary prior to the Mayor’s announcement to open the 
public hearing.   The Mayor will recognize individuals who wish to come forward to 
speak for or against the item.  The speaker will state their name and address for the record 
and allowed three minutes.  A timer alarm will sound after 2 1/2 minutes to signal thirty 
seconds remaining so that the speaker may conclude your remarks.    After a public 
hearing is closed, there shall be no additional public comments.  If Council needs 
additional information from the general public, some limited comments may be allowed 
at the discretion of the Mayor.    
 
If an individual does not wish to address the City Council, but still wishes to be recorded 
in the official minutes as being in support or opposition to an agenda item, the individual 
may complete the registration form provided in the lobby by providing the name, address, 
and comments about a city related subject.  These comments will be referred to the City 
Council and City Manager.   
 
Vision Statement III – Planning and Development – We will provide a well planned 
community. 
 

14.1 Public hearing, presentation, possible action, and discussion regarding an 
ordinance  rezoning, from A-O (Agricultural Open) to A-P (Administrative 
Professional), Harvey Hillsides, Block 1, Lot 31 consisting of 0.69 acres located 
at 3970 Harvey Road, generally located between Pamela Lane and Marcy Lane. 

 

7



14.2 Public Hearing, presentation, possible action and discussion on an ordinance 
amending Chapter 12, City of College Station Code of Ordinances, Article 7 of 
the Unified Development Ordinance, regulating signs. 

 
14.3 Public Hearing, presentation, possible action, and discussion on an ordinance 

amending Chapter 12, City of College Station Code of Ordinances, Section 3.1, 
General Approval Procedures, related to specific notice requirements. 

 
14.4 Public Hearing, presentation, possible action, and discussion regarding an 

ordinance amending Chapter 12, City of College Station Code of Ordinances, 
Article 7 of the Unified Development Ordinance, requiring a traffic impact 
analysis for certain residential developments.   

 
Vision Statement I - Core Services – We will provide high quality customer focused 
basic city services at a reasonable cost. 
 

14.5 Public hearing, presentation, possible action, and discussion regarding a 
resolution denying the proposed rate increase filed by Atmos Energy 
Corporation on or about May 31, 2006.  

 
Vision Statement IV – Economic Development – We will provide a strong and 
diverse economic environment. 
 

14.6 Public hearing, discussion and possible action on an ordinance designating the 
Northgate District in College Station, Texas as Reinvestment Zone Number 16, 
City of College Station, Texas, enumerating the qualifying criteria, adopting a 
preliminary development and financing plan, establishing a board of directors 
for such zone, and other matters relating thereto; providing for a severability 
clause and an open meetings clause; and appointing City's six members to the 
board.  

 
Vision Statement I - Core Services – We will provide high quality customer focused 
basic city services at a reasonable cost. 
 

14.7 Presentation, possible action and discussion to approve an ordinance by the City 
Council of the City of College Station, Texas, issuing $7,375,000 City of 
College Station General Obligation Bonds, Series 2006. 

 
14.8 Presentation, possible action, and discussion to approve an ordinance by the 

City Council of the City of College Station, Texas, issuing $8,325,000 City of 
College Station Certificates of Obligation, Series 2006. 

 
14.9 Presentation, possible action, and discussion to approve an ordinance by the 

City Council of the City of College Station, Texas, issuing $16,950,000 City of 
College Station Utility Revenue Bonds, Series 2006. 

 

8



14.10 Presentation, possible action, and discussion regarding design change order no. 
2 to BRW in the amount of $128,153.00 for the Police Station Addition Project 
GG-0402.  

 
15. The City Council may convene the executive session following the regular 

meeting to discuss matters posted on the executive session agenda for June 22, 
2006. 

 
16. Final action on executive session, if necessary. 

 
17. Adjourn. 

 
If litigation issues arise to the posted subject matter of these Council Meetings an 
executive session will be held. 
 
APPROVED: 
 

__

E-Signed by Glenn Brown
VERIFY authenticity with ApproveIt

______________________________ 
City Manager  
 
Notice is hereby given that a Regular Meeting of the City Council of the City of College 
Station, Texas will be held on the Thursday, June 22, 2006 at 7:00 p.m. at the City Hall 
Council Chambers, 1101 Texas Avenue, College Station, Texas.  The following subjects 
will be discussed, to wit:  See Agenda. 
 
Posted this the 19th  day of June, 2006 at 12:00 p.m. 
 

E-Signed by Connie Hooks
VERIFY authenticity with ApproveIt

________________________________ 
City Secretary 
 
I, the undersigned, do hereby certify that the above Notice of Meeting of the Governing 
Body of the City of College Station, Texas, is a true and correct copy of said Notice and 
that I posted a true and correct copy of said notice on the bulletin board at City Hall, 1101 
Texas Avenue, in College Station, Texas, and the City’s website, www.cstx.gov .  The 
Agenda and Notice are readily accessible to the general public at all times.  Said Notice 
and Agenda were posted on June 19, 2006 at 12:00 p.m. and remained so posted 
continuously for at least 72 hours proceeding the scheduled time of said meeting. 
 
This public notice was removed from the official posting board at the College Station 
City Hall on the following date and time:  __________________________ by 
________________________. 
 

9

http://www.cstx.gov


    Dated this _____day of ________________, 2006. 
    By______________________________________ 
 
Subscribed and sworn to before me on this the _____day of ________________, 2006. 
 
______________________________   
Notary Public – Brazos County, Texas  My commission expires: ___________ 
 
The building is wheelchair accessible.  Handicap parking spaces are available.  Any 
request for sign interpretive service must be made 48 hours before the meeting.  To make 
arrangements call (979) 764-3517 or (TDD) 1-800-735-2989.  Agendas may be viewed 
on www.cstx.gov .  Council meetings are broadcast live on Cable Access Channel 19. 
 
 
 
 

10

http://www.cstx.gov


 

 

June 22, 2006 
Workshop Agenda  
Financial Forecast 

 
To: Glenn Brown, City Manager 
 
From: Jeff Kersten, Chief Financial Officer 
 
 
Agenda Caption: Presentation, possible action, and discussion on the FY 2007-2011 
Financial Forecast 
 
Recommendation(s): Staff recommends Council receive the financial forecast and provide 
any feedback. 
 
Summary: Each year as part of the budget process staff prepares a financial forecast.  The 
forecast is designed to determine the financial impact of policy and funding decisions that 
have been made.  The forecast also is designed to help show the impact of revenue 
assumptions, and economic assumptions. 
 
At the June 8 City Council meeting the budget calendar was reviewed and the review of the 
financial forecast was scheduled for this meeting. 
 
The financial forecast will be prepared for the General Fund, General Debt Service Fund, 
Electric Fund, Water Fund, Wastewater Fund, Sanitation Fund, and Hotel Tax Fund.  
 
Budget & Financial Summary: The financial forecast will be presented at the meeting.   
 
Attachments: A summary report on the financial forecast will be provided prior to the City 
Council Meeting. 
 
 
 

11



June 22, 2006 
Workshop Agenda 

Review of Annexation Policy 
 

 
To:  Glenn Brown, City Manager 
 
From:  Lance Simms, Acting Director of Planning & Development Services 
 
Agenda Caption: Presentation, possible action and discussion regarding annexation 
policies of the City of College Station, in joint session with the Planning & Zoning 
Commission. 
 
Recommendation(s): Following a presentation by staff, consider and discuss annexation 
policies and development trends in joint session with the Planning & Zoning Commission, 
and provide policy direction to staff. Staff perceives there to be several policy directions that 
may be considered, including: 

a. Do nothing at this time 
b. Do nothing pending the outcome and direction arising from the Comprehensive Plan 

update 
c. Direct staff to propose one or more annexation areas that are “exempt” 
d. Direct staff to propose amendments to the 3-year Annexation Plan 
e. Direct staff to propose a combination of the latter two options (c and d above) 

 
Summary: The purpose of this item is to review and assess the City’s existing annexation 
policy and seek direction from the Council with input from the Planning & Zoning 
Commission for future annexation activities. According to A Guide to Urban Planning in 
Texas (2002), “Annexation is the process by which a city extends its municipal services, 
regulations, voting privileges and taxing authority to new territory. Cities annex territory to 
provide urbanizing areas with municipal services and to exercise regulatory authority 
necessary to protect public health and safety. Annexation is also a means of ensuring that 
residents and business outside a city’s corporate limits who benefit from access to the city’s 
facilities and services share the tax burden associated with constructing and maintaining 
those facilities and services. Annexation and the imposition of land use controls may also be 
used as a growth management technique to implement a comprehensive plan.” 

 
Recently the Council amended its policy with regard to the extension of utilities in 
the extra-territorial jurisdiction (ETJ) and therein established an annexation policy 
and program to incorporate affected areas in a manner that sufficiently addresses 
planning and development issues for the extended utility systems. Additional 
information is contained within the Item Background (attached). 
 
Budget & Financial Summary: Not applicable at this time; however, a fiscal impact 
analysis would be made for any area(s) subject to annexation proceedings or included in an 
amendment to the City’s Annexation Plan. 
 
Attachments: 
1. Item Background 
2. Annexation Plan 
3. Map of the College Station City Limits and Extra-territorial Jurisdiction (ETJ) 
4. Map of College Station Existing Water CCN 
5. Map of College Station Proposed Sewer CCN 
6. Summary of ETJ development trends 

12



Annexation Policy Review 
Item Background 
 
Chapter 43 of the Local Government Code requires cities to prepare, adopt and 
maintain an Annexation Plan. Areas included in the plan can be annexed on the third 
anniversary of the adoption or amendment of the plan to that same property. In this 
context, the plan serves to provide a three-year notice to property owners of a city’s 
intent to annex their property. The statute also provides several exceptions to the 
requirement to include land in an annexation plan. Two of these are applicable to 
College Station, as follows: 
1. Areas that contain fewer than 100 tracts on which one or more residential 

dwellings are located on each tract. 
2. Areas where more than 50 percent of the real property owners have petitioned 

for annexation. 
 
Current Policy                                   
College Station does not have a formally adopted policy supporting the annexation of 
additional territory. The City’s statutorily mandated annexation plan provides that 
the City has no plans for annexation, such that the only areas that may be 
considered for annexation are those areas that are exempt from the annexation 
requirements of Chapter 43. A copy of the existing annexation plan is attached.  
 
College Station’s growth trends indicate the need to review our annexation policy. 
Significant development (residential and commercial) is occurring in the 
extraterritorial jurisdiction (ETJ). Regulatory controls, including but not limited to 
zoning, non-residential architectural standards, and fire code and building codes 
should be considered in some areas that are referred to as gateways in and out of 
College Station and that are experiencing significant development pressure. 
Recently, College Station Utilities (CSU) has taken measures toward wastewater 
treatment by applying to extend the City’s sewer certificated area (CCN) into most of 
the existing ETJ.  
 

13



14



15



16



City of College Station ETJ
College Station City Limits³
College Station Present Water CCN Area

17



City of College Station
Proposed Addition

For Wastewater CCN

29 June 2005

¯
2 0 21

Miles

College Station CCN 20126
Proposed College Station
Wastewater CCN Addition

Nantucket, Ltd. CCN 20934

City of College Station ETJ

College Station City Limits

City of College Station
P.O. Box 9960

College Station, TX  77842
Written description of proposed Wastewater CCN Service Area:
1) Northwest side is bounded by the Bryan/College Station ETJ and Brazos River. 
2) Southwest side generally bounded by the Brazos River.
3) Southeast side generally bounded by the College Station Independent School District Boundary.
4) Northeast side is bounded by the Navasota River and the Bryan/College Station ETJ.

Carter Lake CCN 20708

18



Annexation Policy Review 
Development Trends in the Extra-territorial Jurisdiction (ETJ) 
 
 
Population Estimates & Projections 
 
Since the last Census in 2000, the rate of 
population change has been significant in the 
City of College Station and the ETJ. According 
to the projections, the ETJ population is 
anticipated to increase approximately 17% by 
2016. In the City, the population is projected 
to increase almost 55% for the period 2000 – 
2016. These projections do not account for 
any future annexation activity.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Platting Trends 
 
For the last four out of six years, the 
total number of lots platted has 
exceeded 800. A significant 
proportion of these lots are in the 
ETJ. Recently, the Subdivision 
Regulations were amended to 
require fire flows in the ETJ and 
likely contributed to the reduced 
number of lots platted in the ETJ 
last year. 
 
Since 2003, approximately 3% of 
the lots platted were in the ETJ. 
 

 City ETJ Total 
2000 67,890 11,380 79,270 
2001 72,020 11,494 83,514 
2002 75,752 11,609 87,361 
2003 78,309 11,725 90,034 
2004 80,214 11,842 92,056 
2005 81,930 11,960 93,890 
2006 84,035 12,080 96,115 
2007 86,140 12,201 98,341 
2008 88,246 12,323 100,569 
2009 90,351 12,446 102,797 
2010 92,456 12,571 105,027 
2011 94,562 12,696 107,258 
2012 96,667 12,823 109,490 
2013 98,772 12,952 111,724 
2014 100,877 13,081 113,958 
2015 102,983 13,212 116,194 
2016 105,088 13,344 118,432 

4 8 272 7 7 169 0 37 5 64 9 6

1 2 8
9 8 2 4 0 2 5 9

6 24 4

200 0 20 01 20 02 200 3 20 04 20 05

C ity  L o ts E T J  L o ts

19



June 22, 2006 
Workshop Agenda 

Discussion of Neighborhood Preservation Options 
 
 
To:  Glenn Brown, City Manager 
From:  Lance Simms, Acting Director of Planning & Development Services 
 
 
Agenda Caption: Presentation, possible action and discussion on an update regarding 
the creation of historic or neighborhood overlay districts, in joint session with the Planning & 
Zoning Commission. 
 
Recommendation(s): Provide feedback and direction for staff regarding neighborhood 
preservation options. 
 
Summary: This item is a follow-up to the March 23rd Council Workshop regarding Historic 
Preservation. At that meeting, Bratten Thomason from the Texas Historical Commission 
made a presentation regarding the creation of historic districts, the Certified Local 
Government program and a review of basic preservation tools for cities. That item was the 
result of information meetings held during the past year in the Southside and Eastgate 
areas regarding the creation of historic districts.  
 
This follow-up is specifically to provide further information to Council regarding the 
components, requirements and process for establishing historic districts. Staff will also 
present a neighborhood overlay alternative as an option to establishing historic districts. A 
neighborhood overlay could be used to address some of the concerns associated with infill 
development in established neighborhoods - such as building mass, neighborhood character, 
impervious cover and landscape preservation. 
 
Budget & Financial Summary: N/A 
 

20



June 22, 2006 
Workshop Agenda  

Dartmouth Drive Status 
 
To: Glenn Brown, City Manager 
 
From: Mark Smith, Interim Assistant City Manager 
 
 
Agenda Caption:  Presentation, possible action and discussion regarding the status of the 
Dartmouth Drive Extension. 
 
Recommendation(s): N/A 
 
Summary:  Staff will make a brief presentation informing Council of the status and 
projected schedule for the completion of the extension of Dartmouth Drive from Krenek Tap 
Road to Harvey Mitchell Parkway. 
 
 
Budget & Financial Summary:  The project budget is $3.6 million.  This project is funded 
with certificates of obligation and is part of the “interim CIP” approved by Council in 2001. 
 
 
Attachments: 
1.  Location Map 
 
 
 

21



22



 

 

June 22, 2006 
Consent Agenda Item 

Construction Contract for the Multi-purpose Support Facility at Wolf Pen Creek 
Amphitheater 

 
To: Glenn Brown, City Manager 
 
From: Eric Ploeger, Assistant Director of Parks and Recreation            
 
 
Agenda Caption: Bid # 06-99 - Presentation, possible action, and discussion regarding a 
resolution approving the construction contract (Contract Number 06-222) with Marek 
Brothers Construction, Inc., of College Station in the amount of $1,066,999.00, for the 
construction of the multi-purpose support facilities at the Wolf Pen Creek Amphitheater 
(Project # WP 0501). 
 
Recommendation(s):  Staff recommends approval of the resolution and award of the 
construction contract to Marek Brothers Construction, Inc., of College Station, the lowest 
responsible bidder.  
 
Summary:  This project will include two new buildings to support operation of the Wolf Pen 
Creek Amphitheater.  The upper building will be located behind the seating area, adjacent to 
the Colgate parking lot will contain a business office, ticket window, staff break area, 
amphitheater equipment storage, concession facility, concession plaza, service drive, and 
equipment storage area. The lower building will be located near the stage will contain three 
dressing rooms, restrooms, small office, green room, and storage area. The lower building 
is for entertainers use and will provide close access to the stage.  A portion of the adjacent 
hillside commonly used as a "slide" will be terraced to eliminate this hazard and provide 
additional seating.  The recommended contract amount includes the four alternate items:  
  

(1)  Additional fencing to maintain patron/entertainer separation;   
(2)  Additional paving for the Concession Plaza;  
(3)  A trench with cover for sound and lighting control wires; and 
(4)  Additional landscaping for the lower building. 

 
The scope of this project was reviewed and approved by the Wolf Pen Creek Tax Increment 
Finance Board of Directors during their board meeting on September 20, 2005.  City Council 
approved the design contract with Patterson Architects on April 28, 2005. 
 
Budget & Financial Summary:   Four (4) sealed, competitive bids were received and 
opened on June 1, 2006.  Funds are available and budgeted in the Wolf Pen Creek TIF Fund 
in the amount of $1,000,000.  Design fees total $89,700.  Additional funding for this project 
in the amount of $156,699 will come from funds remaining in the Central Park Soccer Field 
Lights Project ($45,699) and the Veterans Park Soccer Field Lights Project ($111,000), 
which were completed under budget in FY 2005 
 
 
Attachments: 
 
1.  Resolution awarding the bid and approving the contract 
2.  Bid Tabulation 
3.  Project Location Map 
4.  Project Site Plan 
 
 

23



 
RESOLUTION NO. ____________ 

 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COLLEGE STATION, 
TEXAS, APPROVING A CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT FOR THE DEVELOPMENT 
OF A MULTI-PURPOSE SUPPORT FACILITY AT WOLF PEN CREEK 
AMPHITHEATER. 
 
WHEREAS, the City of College Station, Texas, solicited bids for the construction of a Multi-
purpose Support Facility at Wolf Pen Creek Amphitheater; and 
 
WHEREAS, the selection of Marek Brothers Construction, Inc., is being recommended as the 
lowest responsible bidder for the construction services related to the Multi-purpose Support Facility 
Project; now, therefore, 
 
BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COLLEGE STATION, 
TEXAS: 
 
PART 1: That the City Council hereby finds that Marek Brothers Construction, Inc., is the 

lowest responsible bidder. 
 
PART 2: That the City Council hereby approves the contract with Marek Brothers 

Construction, Inc. for $1,066,999.00 for the labor, materials, and equipment required 
for the improvements related to the Multi-purpose Support Facility Project.  This 
includes alternates one through four. 

 
PART 3: That the funding for this project shall be as budgeted from the following sources:  

$910,300 in the Wolf Pen Creek TIF Fund and $156,699 in the Parks Capital 
Improvements Projects Fund. 

 
PART 4: That this resolution shall take effect immediately from and after its passage. 
 
ADOPTED this _______ day of ________________________, A.D. 2006 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED: 
 
 
______________________________  ____________________________________ 
CONNIE HOOKS, City Secretary   RON SILVIA, Mayor 
 
 
APPROVED: 

E-Signed by Angela M. DeLuca
VERIFY authenticity with ApproveIt

 
_______________________________ 
City Attorney 

24



 

Multi-Purpose Support Facility at WPCA
BID # 06-99

06/01/06

Marek Brothers JACODY, Inc. Dudley Construction Meridian Commercial 
College Station, TX College Station, TX College Station, TX Houston, TX

Item Item Item Item Item
No. Description Total Total Total Total

BASE BID:

Base

The amount for the complete construction of the Multi-
Purpose Support Facility at Wolf Pen Creek Amphitheater 
including all site, general, plumbing, mechanical, electrical, 
food service equipment, landscaping, and utility construction 
work indicated on the Drawings and Specifications. $1,024,999.00 $1,037,219.00 $1,279,000.00 $1,545,000.00

ALTERNATE BID:
1 Decorative Metal Fencing $18,500.00 $11,467.00 $12,500.00 $16,099.00
2 Additional Plaza Paving $12,700.00 $21,134.00 $28,000.00 $17,042.00
3 Cable Trench $3,800.00 $3,000.00 $3,400.00 $3,500.00
4 Landscaping & Retaining Wall $7,000.00 $7,337.00 $27,500.00 $33,241.00

Base Price $1,024,999.00 $1,037,219.00 $1,279,000.00 $1,545,000.00

Grand Total with Alternates $1,066,999.00 $1,080,157.00 $1,350,400.00 $1,614,882.00
Low Bidder
Award Total

Calendar Days for Completion            210 270 180 310
Certification of Bid                                 Y Y Y Y
Addendum Acknowledged                  Y Y Y Y
Bid Bond Y Y Y Y
Deviations/Conditions                          N N N N

 Page 1 of 1 

25



26



27



 

 

June 22, 2006 
Consent Agenda 

Shenandoah Phases 12 & 13 Oversized Participation Agreement 
 
 
To: Glenn Brown, City Manager 
 
From: Charles McLemore, Acting Director of Public Works  
 
 
 
Agenda Caption: Presentation, possible action and discussion on a request for an 
Oversized Participation Agreement to increase capacity in a waterline located in the 
Shenandoah Phases 12 and 13 Subdivision in the amount of $7,524.25. 
 
 
Recommendation(s): Staff recommends approval. 
 
 
Summary: This oversized participation request is to reimburse the developer of 
Shenandoah Phases 12 and 13 for the construction cost difference between an 8 inch water 
line and a 12 inch water line for a 661 linear feet section along Southern Plantation Drive. 
An increase in capacity requested by the city can be reimbursed to the developer through 
the Oversize Participation policy. Associated with the development of Shenandoah Phases 
12 and 13 Subdivision, the City required the construction of a 12 inch water line.  The 
developer’s engineer demonstrated that an 8 inch water line was adequate for the subject 
subdivision.   
 
 
Budget & Financial Summary: $200,000 is budgeted in FY06 in the Water CIP for 
Oversize Participation and Planning projects. This contract is for $7,524.25. 
 
 
Attachments:  
1. Oversized Participation Agreement 
2. Exhibit A  Vicinity Map  
3. Exhibit B  Utility Location Map 
4. Exhibit C  Engineer’s Estimate and Request Letter 
 
 
 

28



OVERSIZE PARTICIPATION AGREEMENT

This Agreement is entered into this ______ day of ____________________, 200__, by and
between the City of College Station, a Texas home rule municipal corporation (hereinafter
“CITY”), and Ed Froehling Builder, Inc., a Texas Corporation, hereinafter “OWNER”).

WHEREAS, OWNER owns and has developed property within the City of College Station, more
particularly described as Shenandoah Subdivision Phases 12 and 13 (hereinafter “Property”) as
depicted and described on the final plat approved by the Planning and Zoning Commission on
Junde 17, 2004, and July 1, 2004, a vicinity map of which is attached hereto as Exhibit A; and

WHEREAS, CHAPTER 9, CITY OF COLLEGE STATION CODE OF ORDINANCES requires that
OWNER conform to CITY’s standards and master plans for streets and utilities and pay for all
costs of materials and installation of streets, alleys, sidewalks, drainage, and utilities except
where CITY agrees to participate in the cost of oversize of such improvements; and

WHEREAS, the City of College Station Utility Master Plan requires an twelve inch (12”) water
line, as detailed in Exhibit B; and

WHEREAS, OWNER has submitted an oversize cost participation request for water line
improvements constructed that were in excess of the required sizing for the development; and

WHEREAS, the City Engineer has reviewed the data, reports and analysis provided by
OWNER’s engineers and determined that OWNER’s request for utility participation qualifies for
participation funding under the criteria established in CHAPTER 9, SECTION 9, CITY OF COLLEGE

STATION CODE OF ORDINANCES;

NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the recitations above and the promises and
covenants herein expressed, the parties hereby agree as follows:

I.
DEFINITIONS

1.1 Approved Plans means the plans and specifications that meet the requirements of this
Oversize Participation Agreement, the City of College Station Codes and Ordinances and any
other applicable laws, and that have been submitted to, reviewed and approved by the City of
College Station Development Services Department and the City Engineer.

1.2 CITY or College Station means the City of College Station, a Texas home rule
municipal corporation located at 1101 Texas Avenue, College Station, Texas 77840.

1.3 Certificate of Acceptance: A certificate issued by the City Engineer stating that the
construction conforms to the plans, specifications and standards contained in or referred to in
CHAPTER 9 of the CITY OF COLLEGE STATION CODE OF ORDINANCES.

Contract No. __06-085
V:\agenda items\2006\06 22 06\Shenandoah Phases 12 & 13 Oversized Participation\OP Agmt - after completion.docc

29



1.4 Certificate of Completion/Compliance. As defined in Section 1702 of the
INTERNATIONAL BUILDING CODE, 2003 Edition, as adopted and amended by the City Council of
the City of College Station, a certificate stating that work was done in compliance with approved
construction documents/Approved Plans.

1.5 Effective Date. The date on which this Agreement is signed by the last party whose
signing makes the Agreement fully executed.

1.6 Final Completion. The term "Final Completion" means that all the work on the Project
has been completed, all final punch list items have been inspected and satisfactorily completed,
all payments to materialmen and subcontractors have been made, all documentation, and all
closeout documents have been executed and approved by the OWNER, Certificates of
Completion and Acceptance have been issued for the Project, all Reports have been submitted
and Reporting Requirements have been met, and DEVELOPER has fully performed any other
requirements contained herein.

1.7 OWNER means Ed Froehling Builder, a Texas Corporation, whose principal office is
located at 3887 High Lonesome Street, College Station, Texas 77845-9943.

1.8 Property means Shenandoah Subdivision Phases 12 and 13, College Station, Brazos
County, Texas, as depicted and described on the final plat approved by the Planning and Zoning
Commission on June 17, 2004, and July 1, 2004; a vicinity map of which is provided as Exhibit
A attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference.

1.9 Project means the construction of the water line improvements as detailed in Exhibit B
attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference.

II.
OVERSIZE COST PARTICIATION

2.1 CITY agrees to cost participate to oversize the improvements as follows:

1. The construction cost difference between an eight-inch (8”) water line and
a twelve-inch (12”) water line for a 661 linear foot section.

2.2 The total cost of the project is $565,044.28. CITY agrees to cost participate with
OWNER for the actual construction cost not to exceed 1.331621% or $7,524.25 of the specified
improvements, whichever is less. CITY’s participation does not exceed 30% of the Project.
Therefore, this Project was not required to be competitively bid under SECTION 252.002 et seq. of
the TEXAS LOCAL GOVERNMENT CODE as amended.

2.3 The detailed total cost of the improvements is attached hereto and incorporated herein as
Exhibit C.

2.4 OWNER warrants and certifies by the signing of this Agreement that the amount
OWNER has submitted for reimbursement is the actual cost of constructing and installing the
improvements specified in this request as approved by the City Engineer or his delegate. Any

2 of 7
Contract No. __06-085
V:\agenda items\2006\06 22 06\Shenandoah Phases 12 & 13 Oversized Participation\OP Agmt - after completion.doc

30



amount in excess of the actual cost of the improvements is unauthorized and OWNER shall be
liable for the immediate repayment of any excess funds. The City Engineer or his delegate has
certified that each of following applicable terms and conditions have been met for the approval
of CITY’s cost participation to oversize the water line.

(1) the Final Completion of the improvements in accordance with the
Approved Plans;

(2) issuance of Certificates of Completion and Acceptance;
(3) OWNER’s compliance with all CITY Codes, Ordinances and standards

relating to the Property and its subdivision and development;
(4) dedication of the land for the right-of-way either by plat or by general

warranty deed;
(5) a current title report as of the date of land dedication and updated within

sixty (60) days of the date of this Agreement;
(6) lien releases or subordinations from all lenders as required by CITY.

2.5 Oversize Participation Payment. OWNER has submitted the written application for
oversize participation payment after Final Completion.

2.6 CITY will pay oversize participation funds in one payment within thirty (30) days after
CITY’s approval of this Agreement.

2.7 Reports, books and other records. OWNER shall make its books and other records
related to the project available for inspection by CITY. OWNER shall submit to CITY any and
all information or reports requested to verify the expenditures submitted for oversize
participation eligibility including but not limited to bid documents, payment applications,
including any supporting information, cancelled checks, copies of construction and engineering
documents, as determined by the City Engineer in his sole discretion, for the verification of the
cost of the infrastructure detailed in Exhibit C of this Agreement. The submission of these
reports and information shall be the responsibility of the OWNER and shall be certified by
OWNER’s Licensed Professional Engineer at OWNER’s expense and signed by an authorized
official of the entity.

III.
GOVERNMENTAL IMMUNITY, INDEMNIFICATION AND RELEASE

CITY is a political subdivision of the state and enjoys governmental immunity. By entering
into this Agreement, CITY does not consent to suit, waive its governmental immunity, or
the limitations as to damages under the Texas Tort Claims Act.

OWNER agrees to and shall indemnify, hold harmless, and defend CITY and its officers,
agents, and employees from and against any and all claims, losses, damages, causes of
action, suits, and liability of every kind, including all expenses of litigation, court costs,
expert fees and attorney's fees, for injury to or death of any person, or for damage to any
property, or for breach of contract, arising out of or in connection with the work done by
OWNER under this Agreement, regardless of whether such injuries, death, damages or

3 of 7
Contract No. __06-085
V:\agenda items\2006\06 22 06\Shenandoah Phases 12 & 13 Oversized Participation\OP Agmt - after completion.doc

31



breach are caused in whole or in part by the negligence of CITY, any other party
indemnified hereunder, or the OWNER.

OWNER shall indemnify and hold CITY harmless from any claims of suppliers or
subcontractors of OWNER for improvements constructed or caused to be constructed by
OWNER.

OWNER shall indemnify and hold CITY harmless from any and all injuries to or claims of
adjacent property owners resulting from or relating to their performance under this
Agreement.

OWNER assumes full responsibility for the work to be performed hereunder, and releases,
relinquishes and discharges CITY, its officers, agents and employees, from all claims,
demands, and causes of action of every kind and character, including the cost of defense
therefore, for any injury to or death of any persons and any loss of or damage to any
property that is caused by, alleged to be caused by, arising out of, or in connection with,
OWNER’s work to be performed hereunder. This release shall apply whether or not said
claims, demands, and causes of action are covered in whole or in part by insurance and
regardless of whether or not said claims, demands, and causes of action were caused in
whole or in part by the negligence of CITY, any other party released hereunder, or
OWNER.

IV.
PROJECT AND CONSTRUCTION

4.1 Right to Inspect the Work. The City Engineer has inspected the improvements for
compliance with the Approved Plans during construction and has issued Certificates of
Acceptance and Completion. In the event that any of the work or materials furnished is not in
strict accordance with the Approved Plans, OWNER shall correct or cause to be corrected at its
sole cost and expense any defective or nonconforming work.

4.2 Independent Contractor. OWNER shall be solely responsible for selecting,
supervising, and paying the construction contractor(s) or subcontractors and for complying with
all applicable laws, including but not limited to all requirements concerning workers
compensation and construction retainage.

The parties to this Agreement agree and understand that all employees, volunteers, personnel and
materials furnished or used by OWNER in the installation of the specified improvements shall be
the responsibility of OWNER and shall not be deemed employees or agents of CITY for any
purpose.

4.3 Payment for materials and labor. OWNER is solely and exclusively responsible for
compensating any of its contractors, employees, subcontractors, materialmen and/or suppliers of
any type or nature whatsoever and insuring that no claims or liens of any type will be filed
against any property owned by CITY arising out of or incidental to the performance of any
service performed pursuant to this Agreement. In the event a statutory lien notice is sent to
CITY, OWNER shall, where no payment bond covers the work, upon written notice from CITY,

4 of 7
Contract No. __06-085
V:\agenda items\2006\06 22 06\Shenandoah Phases 12 & 13 Oversized Participation\OP Agmt - after completion.doc

32



hold CITY harmless from any losses that may result from the filing or enforcement of any said
lien notice.

4.4 Affidavit of bills paid. OWNER has provided the City Engineer a notarized affidavit
stating that all bills for labor, materials, and incidentals incurred have been paid in full, that any
claims from manufacturers, materialmen, and subcontractors have been released, and that there
are no claims pending of which the OWNER has been notified.

4.5 This Agreement does not alter, amend modify or replace any other requirements
contained in the Code of Ordinances, Unified Development Code, or other applicable law.

V.
GENERAL PROVISIONS

5.1 Amendments. No amendment to this Agreement shall be effective and binding unless
and until it is reduced to writing and signed by duly authorized representatives of both parties.

5.2 Choice of law and Venue. This Agreement has been made under and shall be governed
by the laws of the State of Texas. Performance and all matters related thereto shall be in Brazos
County, Texas, United States of America.

5.3 Authority to enter into Agreement. Each party represents that it has the full power and
authority to enter into and perform this Agreement. The person executing this Agreement on
behalf of each party has been properly authorized and empowered to enter into this Agreement.
The person executing this Agreement on behalf of OWNER represents that he or she is
authorized to sign on behalf of OWNER and agrees to provide proof of such authorization to
CITY upon request.

5.4 Agreement read.  The parties acknowledge that they have read, understand and intend to
be bound by the terms and conditions of this Agreement.

5.5 Notice. All notices and documents required herein shall be sent and provided to the
parties at the addresses and telephone numbers listed below:

___Ed Froegling Builder, Inc.__________ City of College Station
___3887 High Lonesome_______________ City Engineer
___College Station, Texas 77845-9943____ P.O. Box 9960
_______________________ College Station, Texas 77842

With copies to:
City Attorney and City Manager
1101 Texas Avenue
College Station, TX 77842

All notices and documents shall be deemed received when mailed with sufficient postage and
deposited in a regular mailbox of the United States Post Office. The parties may change
addresses upon thirty (30) days’ written notice sent certified mail, return receipt requested.

5 of 7
Contract No. __06-085
V:\agenda items\2006\06 22 06\Shenandoah Phases 12 & 13 Oversized Participation\OP Agmt - after completion.doc

33



34



THE STATE OF TEXAS )
    ) ACKNOWLEDGMENT
COUNTY OF BRAZOS )

Before me, the undersigned authority, on this day personally appeared Ron Silvia as
Mayor of the City of College Station, a Texas home-rule municipal corporation, known to me to
be the person whose name is subscribed to the foregoing instrument, and acknowledged to me
that he executed the same for the purposes and consideration therein expressed.

Given under my hand and seal of office on this the ____ day of ______________, 200__.

____________________________________
Notary Public in and for the State of Texas

7 of 7
Contract No. __06-085
V:\agenda items\2006\06 22 06\Shenandoah Phases 12 & 13 Oversized Participation\OP Agmt - after completion.doc

35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



 

 

June 22, 2006 
Consent Agenda  

Interlocal Agreement with City of Round Rock 
 
To: Glenn Brown, City Manager 
 
From: Jeff Kersten, Chief Financial Officer 
 
 
Agenda Caption: Presentation, possible action, and discussion on an Interlocal 
Agreement for cooperative purchasing activities between the City of College Station and City 
of Round Rock, Texas. 
 
Recommendation(s): Staff recommends approval of the Interlocal Agreement. 
 
Summary: This agreement would authorize the City of College Station and City of Round 
Rock Purchasing Managers to jointly prepare bids and proposals for the purchase of goods 
and services.  It would also allow us to piggyback on each others bids and contracts when in 
our best interest.  At this time, City of Round Rock is specifically interested in exploring 
opportunities to piggyback on our streaming video contract with Granicus and our On Line 
Bidding system purchased through Vision Internet.   
 
Budget & Financial Summary: No expenses will be incurred to approve the Interlocal 
Agreement.  Future savings may be realized through economies of scale in administrative, 
advertising and other purchasing costs.   
 
Attachments: Interlocal Agreement with City of Round Rock 
 
 
 

43



44



45



46



47



48



June 22, 2006 
Consent Agenda 
Audit Services 

 
 
To:  Glenn Brown, City Manager 
 
From:  Jeff Kersten, Chief Financial Officer                        
 
 

Agenda Caption:  Presentation, possible action and discussion on a letter agreement with 
Ingram, Wallis & Co., P.C. for Professional Auditing Services.   

 
Recommendation(s): Staff recommends that Council approve the letter agreement 
for audit services with Ingram, Wallis & Co., P.C. for the fiscal year ending September 30, 
2006, and with the potential for extending the agreement annually for up to two additional 
years.    
  
Summary:  

 
In April 2006 staff solicited proposal for professional auditing services for the fiscal year 
ending September 30, 2006 with the option of renewing the engagement for up to two (2) 
subsequent years.  The audits are to be performed in accordance with generally accepted 
auditing standards, the standards set forth for financial audits in the General Accounting 
Office's (GAO) Government Auditing Standards (1994), the provisions of the federal Single 
Audit Act of 1984 (as amended in 1996), and the provisions of the U.S. Office of 
Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and 
Non-Profit Organizations. 
 
Proposals were received from three accounting firms.  A committee consisting of Dr. James 
Flagg, Professor of Accounting at Texas A&M University, Mayor Ron Silvia, Glenn Brown, 
City Manager, Olivia Burnside, Chief Information Officer, and David Massey, Director of 
College Station Electric Utility, reviewed the proposals.  Ingram, Wallis & Co., P.C. received 
the highest average score based on the evaluation forms completed by the committee 
members.    
 
The contract is for a one-year period and has the option of two one-year renewals.  
 
Budget & Financial Summary: Estimated fee costs for the three (3) years are as 
follows:  
 

City BVSWMA Total
FYE 09/30/06 $64,400 $12,900 $77,300 
FYE 09/30/07 $69,500 $13,900 $83,400 
FYE 09/30/08 $75,000 $15,000 $90,000  

 
Funds are available and budgeted in the General Fund, Fiscal Services Department, 
Accounting Division. 
 
Attachments:   
 
Letter Agreement 

49



Ingrarn, Wallis & CO.,P.C. 
C E K T l F l E D  P U B L I C  A C C O U N T A N T S  

May 5,2006 

Mr. Jeff Kersten 
City of College Station 
1 1 0 1 Texas Avenue 
College Station, TX 77842-2499 

Dear Mr. Kersten: 

We are pleased to confirm our understanding of the services we are to provide for the City of 
College Station, Texas for the years ended September 30, 2006, 2007 and 2008. We will 
audit the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each 
major fund, and the aggregate remaining fbnd information, which collectively comprise the 
entity's basic financial statements of the City of College Station, Texas (the "City") as of and 
for the years ended September 30,2006, 2007 and 2008. The document we submit to you 
will include the following additional information that will be subjected to the auditing 
procedures applied in our audit of the financial statements upon which we will provide an 
opinion in relation to the basic financial statements: 

1. Schedule of expenditures of federal awards. 
2. Combi ig  financial statements. 

The document will also include the following additional information that will not be subject 
to the auditing procedures applied in our audit of the financial statements, and for which our 
auditor's report will disclaim an opinion: 

1. Management's discussion and analysis. 
2. Budgetary comparison information. 
3. Statistical section. 

Audit Objectives 

The objective of our audit is the expression of an opinion as to whether your financial 
statements are fairly presented, in all material respects, in conformity with U.S. generally 
accepted accounting principles and to report on the fairness of the additional information 
referred to in the first paragraph when considered in relation to the financial statements taken 
as a whole. The objective also includes reporting on- 

James D. Ingram, III I Thomas A. Wallis I James D. Ingram, 1V I Richard L. Webb 

Judith W Childs . Jennifer A. Stilln~ar~ . Melissa M. Suehs . Doriaid B. Browning . Diana K. Wagner 

T. 979 .776 .2600  F. 979 .774 .7759  E. iwc@ingram-wallis.com 2100  East Villa Maria, Suite 100  . Bryan, Texas 7 7 8 0 2  

50



Internal control related to the financial statements and compliance with laws, 
regulations, and the provisions of contracts or grant agreements, 
noncompliance with which could have a material effect on the financial 
statements in accordance with Government Auditing Standardr. 

Internal control related to major programs and an opinion (or disclaimer of 
opinion) on compliance with laws, regulations, and the provisions of contracts 
or grant agreements that could have a direct and material effect on each major 
program in accordance with the Single Audit Act Amendments of 1996 and 
OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit 
Organizations. 

The reports on internal control and compliance will each include a statement that the report is 
intended for the information and use of the audit committee, management, specific legislative 
or regulatory bodies, federal awarding agencies, and if applicable, pass-through entities and 
is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. 

Our audit will be conducted in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards; 
the standards for financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States; the Smgle Audit Act Amendments of 1996; and 
the provisions of OMB Circular A-133, and will include tests of accounting records, a 
determination of major program(s) in accordance with Circular A-133, and other procedures 
we consider necessary to enable us to express such an opinion and to render the required 
reports. If our opinion on the financial statements or the Single Audit compliance opinion is 
other than unqualified, we will fully discuss the reasons with you in advance. If, for any 
reason, we are unable to complete the audit or are unable to form or have not formed an 
opinion, we may decline to express an opinion or to issue a report as a result of this 
engagement. 

Management Responsibilities 

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal control and for 
compliance with the provisions of contracts, agreements, and grants. In fulfilling this 
responsibility, e s t b t e s  and judgments by management are required to assess the expected 
benefits and related costs of the controls. The objectives of internal control are to provide 
management with reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that assets are safeguarded against 
loss from unauthorized use or disposition, that transactions are executed in accordance with 
management's authorizations and recorded properly to permit the preparation of financial 
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that federal 
award programs are managed in compliance with applicable laws and regulations and the 
provisions of contracts and grant agreements. 

Management is responsible for making all financial records and related information available 
to us. We understand that you will provide us with such information required for our audit 
and that you are responsible for the accuracy and completeness of that information. We will 
advise you about appropriate accounting principles and their application and will assist in the 
preparation of your financial statements, including the schedule of expenditures of federal 
awards, but the responsibiity for the financial statements remains with you. As part of our 
engagement, we may propose standard, adjusting, or correcting journal entries to your 

51



financial statements. You are responsible for reviewing the entries and understanding the 
nature of any proposed entries and the impact they have on the financial statements. That 
responsibility includes the establishment and maintenance of adequate records and effective 
internal control over financial reporting and compliance, the selection and application of 
accounting principles, and the safeguarding of assets. Management is responsible for 
adjusting the financial statements to correct material misstatements and for codinning to us 
in the representation letter that the effects of any uncorrected misstatements aggregated by us 
during the current engagement and pertaining to the latest period presented are immaterial, 
both individually and in the aggregate, to the financial statements taken as a whole. 

You are responsible for the design and implementation of programs and controls to prevent 
and detect fraud, and for informing us about all known or suspected fiaud or illegal acts 
affecting the government involving (1) management, (2) employees who have significant 
roles in internal control, and (3) others where the fraud or illegal acts could have a material 
effect on the financial statements. You are also responsible for informing us of your 
knowledge of any allegations of fiaud or suspected fraud or illegal acts affecting the 
government received in communications fiom employees, grantors, former employees, 
regulators, or others. In addition, you are responsible for identifying and ensuring that the 
entity complies with applicable laws and regulations and for taking timely and appropriate 
steps to remedy any h u d ,  illegal acts, violations of contracts or grant agreements, or abuse 
that we may report. Additionally, as required by OMB Circular A-133, it is management's 
responsibility to follow up and take corrective action on reported audit findings and to 
prepare a summary schedule of prior audit findings and a corrective action plan. The 
summary schedule of prior audit findings should be available for our review on November 15 
of each year. 

With regard to using the auditor's report, you understand that you must obtain our prior 
written consent to reproduce or use our report in bond offering official statements or other 
documents. 

With regard to the electronic dissemination of audited financial statements, including 
financial statements published electronically on your website, you understand that electronic 
sites are a means to distribute information and, therefore, we are not required to read the 
information contained in these sites or to consider the consistency of other information in the 
electronic site with the original document. 

Audit Procedures-General 

An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements; therefore, our audit will involve judgment about the 
number of transactions to be examined and the areas to be tested. We will plan and perform 
the audit to obtain reasonable rather than absolute assurance about whether the financial 
statements are h e  of material misstatement, whether from (1) errors, (2) fraudulent financial 
reporting, (3) misappropriation of assets, or (4) violations of laws or governmental 
regulations that are attributable to the entity or to acts by management or employees acting 
on behalf of the entity. Because the determination of abuse is subjective, Government 
Auditing Standard! do not expect auditors to provide reasonable assurance of detecting 
abuse. As required by the Single Audit Act Amendments of 1996 and OMB Circular A-133, 
our audit will include test of transactions related to major federal award programs for 

52



compliance with applicable laws and regulations and the provisions of contracts and grant 
agreements. Because an audit is designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute assufance 
and because we will not perform a detailed examination of all transactions, there is a risk that 
material misstatements or noncompliance may exist and not be detected by us. In addition, an 
audit is not designed to detect immaterial misstatements or violations of laws or 
governmental regulations that do not have a direct and material effect on the financial 
statements or major programs. However, we will inform you of any material errors and any 
fraudulent financial reporting or misappropriation of assets that comes to our attention. We 
will also inform you of any violations of laws or governmental regulations that come to our 
attention, unless clearly inconsequential. We will include such matters in the reports required 
for a Single Audit. Our responsibility as auditors is limited to the period covered by our audit 
and does not extend to matters that might arise during any later periods for which we are not 
engaged as auditors. 

Our procedures will include tests of documentary evidence supporting the transactions 
recorded in the accounts, and may include tests of the physical existence of inventories, and 
direct confirmation of receivables and certain other assets and liabilities by correspondence 
with selected individuals, creditors, and financial institutions. We will request written 
representations fiom your attorneys as part of the engagement, and they may bill you for 
responding to this inquiry. At the conclusion of our audit, we will also require certain written 
representations fiom you about the financial statements and related matters. 

Audit Procedure+-Internal Controls 

In planning and performing our audit, we will consider the internal control sufficient to plan 
the audit in order to determine the nature, timing, and extent of our auditing procedures for 
the purpose of expressing our opinions on the City's financial statements and on its 
compliance with requirements applicable to major programs. 

We will obtain an understanding of the design of the relevant controls and whether they have 
been placed in operation, and we will assess control risk Tests of controls may be performed 
to test the effectiveness of certain controls that we consider relevant to preventing and 
detecting emrs and h u d  that are material to the financial statements and to preventing and 
detecting misstatements resulting fiom illegal acts and other noncompliance matters that 
have a direct and material effect on the financial statements. Tests of controls relative to the 
financial statements are required only if control risk is assessed below the maximum level. 
Our tests, if performed, d l  be less in scope than would be necessary to render an opinion on 
internal control and, accordingly, no opinion will be expressed in our report on internal 
control issued pursuant to Government Auditing Standards. 

As required by OMB Circular A-133, we will perform tests of controls over compliance to 
evaluate the effectiveness of the design and operation of controls that we consider relevant to 
preventing or detecting material noncompliance with compliance requirements applicable to 
each major federal award program. However, our tests will be less in scope than would be 
necessary to render an opinion on those controls and, accordiigly, no opinion will be 
expressed in our report on internal control issued pursuant to OMB Circular A- 133. 

An audit is not designed to provide assurance on internal control or to identify reportable 
conditions. However, we will inform the governing body or audit committee of any matters 

53



involving internal control and its operation that we consider to be reportable conditions under 
standards established by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Reportable 
conditions involve matters coming to our attention relating to significant deficiencies in the 
design or o p t i o n  of the internal control that, in our judgment, could adversely affect the 
entity's ability to record; process, s u m m h ,  and report financial data consistent with the 
assertions of management in the financial statements. We will also inform you of any 
nonreportable conditions or other matters involving internal control, if any, as required by 
OMB Circular A-1 33. 

Audit Procedures-Compliance 

Our audit will be conducted in accordance with the standards referred to in the section titled 
Audit Objectives. As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the financial 
statements are free of material misstatement, we will perform tests of the City's compliance 
with applicable laws and regulations and the provisions of contracts and agreements, 
including grant agreements. However, the objective of those procedures will not be to 
provide an opinion on overall compliance and we will not express such an opinion in our 
report on compliance issued pursuant to Government Auditing Standards. 

OMB Circular A-133 requires that we also plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether the auditee has complied with applicable laws and regulations and 
the provisions of contracts and grant agreements applicable to major programs. Our 
procedures will consist of the applicable procedures described in the OMB CircularA-133 
Compliance Supplement for the types of compliance requirements that could have a direct 
and material effect on each of the City's major programs. The purpose of those procedures 
will be to express an opinion on the City's compliance with requirements applicable to each 
of its major programs in our report on compliance issued pursuant to OMB Circular A-133. 

Audit Administration, Fees, and Other 

INDEMNIFICATION 

Ingram, Wallis & Company, P.C. agrees to and shall indemnify and hold harmless and 
defend the City, its officers, agents, and employees from and against any and all claims, 
losses, damages, causes of action, suits and liability of every kind, including all expenses 
of litigation, court costs, and attorney's fees, for injury to or death of any person, for 
damage to any property, or for any breach of contract, arising out of, or in connection 
with the work done by Ingram, Wallis & Company, P.C. under this agreement. In the 
event of personal injury to or death of Ingram, Wallis & Company, P.C.'s employees, 
such indemnity shall apply regardless of whether the claims, losses, damages, causes of 
actions, suits or  liability arise in whole or in part from the negligence of the City. Such 
indemnity shall not apply, however, to liability rising from the personal injury, death, 
or property damage of persons other than Ingram, Wallis & Company, P.C. or its 
employees where such liability is caused by or results from the negligence of the City. 

RELEASE 

Ingram, Wallis & Company, P.C. assumes full responsibility for the work to be 
performed hereunder and hereby releases, relinquishes, and discharges the City, its 

54



officers, agents, and employees from all claims, demands, and causes of action of every 
kind and character, including the cost of defense thereof, for any injury to or death of 
any person (whether employees of either of the parties hereto or other third parties) 
and any loss of or damage to property (whether property of either of the parties, their 
employees, or other third parties) that is caused by or alleged to be caused by, arising 
out of, or in connection with Ingram, Wallis & Company, P.C.'s work to be performed 
hereunder. This release shall apply regardless of whether said claims, demands, and 
causes of action are covered, in whole or in part, by insurance and regardless of 
whether such loss, damage, injury, or death was caused in whole or in part by the 
negligence of the City. 

Ingram, Wallis & Company, P.C. agrees to maintain the types and amounts of insurance 
required in this agreement throughout the term of the agreement. The following insurance 
policies shall be required: 

1. Commercial General Liability 
2. Un-Owned Automobile Liability 
3. Workers' Compensation Insurance 
4. Professional Liability 

For each of these policies, Ingram, Wallis & Company, P.C.'s insurance coverage shall be 
primary insurance with respect to the City, its officials, employees and volunteers. Any 
insurance or self-insurance maintained by the City, its officials, employees, and volunteexs, 
shall be considered in excess of Ingram, Wallis & Company, P.C.'s insurance and shall not 
contribute to it. Certificates of insurance and endorsements shall be fiunished to and 
approved by the City's representative at the time of execution of this agreement. No term or 
provision of the indemnification provided by Ingram, Wallis & Company, P.C. to the City 
pursuant to this agreement shall be construed or interpreted as limiting or otherwise affecting 
the terms of the insurance coverage. 

Ingram, Wallis & Company, P.C. shall include all subcontractors (if any) as additional 
insureds under its policies or shall fiunish separate certificates and endorsements for each 
subcontractor. All coverages for subcontractors shall be subject to a l l  of the requirements 
stated herein. 

General Requirements Applicable to All Policies: 

(a) Only insurance carriers licensed and admitted to do business in the State of 
Texas will be accepted. 

(b) Deductibles shall be listed on the certificate of insurance and are acceptable 
only on a "per occurrence" basis for property damage only. 

(c) "Claims made" policies will not be accepted, except for Professional Liability 
insurance. 

(d) Each kmmnce policy shall be endorsed to state that coverage shall not be 
suspended, voided, canceled, or reduced in coverage or in limits except after 
thirty (30) calendar days prior written notice has been given. 

(e) Upon request, certified copies of all insurance policies shall be furnished to 
the City. 

55



(f) The certificates of insurance shall be prepared and executed by the insurance 
company or its authorized agent. Each certificate shall contain the following 
provisions and warranties: (a) that the insurance company is l i c e d  and 
admitted to do business in the State of Texas; (b) that the insurance policy is 
underwritten on forms provided by the Texas State Board of Insurance or ISO; 
(c) all endorsements and coverages according to the requirements of this 
agreement; (d) the form of notice of cancellation, termination, or change in 
coverage provisions; and (e) original endorsements affecting coverage 
required by this agreement. 

(g) The City of College Station, its officials, employees, and volunteers are to be 
added as "Additional Insureds" to the Commercial (Public) Liability and Non- 
Owned Business Automobile Liability Policies. The coverage shall contain no 
special limitations on the scope of protection afforded to the City, its officials, 
employees, and volunteers. 

Commercial General Liability requirements: 

(a) Coverage shall be written by a carrier with an "A:VIIIW or better rating in 
accordance with the current Best Key Rating Guide. 

(b) Minimum Combined Single Limit of $600,000 per occurrence for bodily 
injury and property damage. 

(c) Coverage shall be at least as broad as Insurance Service's Office Number CG 
00 01. 

(d) No coverage shall be deleted from the standard policy without notification of 
individual exclusions being attached for review and acceptance. 

(e) The coverage shall include but not be limited to: premisedoperations; 
independent contracts, products/completed operations, contractual liability 
(insuring the indemnity provided herein), and where exposures exist, 
"Explosion Collapse and Underground" coverage. 

Business Automobile Liability requirements: 

(a) Coverage shall be written by a carrier with an "A:VIIIn or better rating in 
accordance with the current Best Key Rating Guide. 

(b) Minimum Combined Single Limit of $600,000 per occurrence for bodily 
injury and property damage. 

(c) The coverage shall include non-owned autos, and hired cars. 

Workers' Compensation Insurance requirements: 

(a) Employer's Liability limits of $100,000.00 for each accident is required. 
(b) "Texas Waiver of Our Right to Recover From Others Endorsement, WC 42 03 

04" shall be included in this policy. 
(c) Texas must appear in Item 3A of the Worker's Compensation coverage or 

Item 3C must contain the following: all States except those listed in Item 3A 
and the States of NV, ND, OH, WAY WV, and WY. 

56



Professional Liability requirements: 

(a) Coverage shall be written by a camer with a "A:VIIIU or better rating in 
accordance with the current Best Key Rating Guide. 

(b) Minimum of $500,000 per occurrence and $500,000 aggregate. 
(c) Coverage must be maintained for two (2) years after the termination of this 

agreement. 

We understand that your employees will prepare all cash, accounts receivable, or other 
confirmations we request and will locate any invoices selected by us for testing. 

At the conclusion of the engagement, we will complete the appropriate sections of and sign 
the Data Collection Form that summarizes our audit findings. We will provide copies of our 
reports to the City; however, it is management's responsibility to submit the reporting 
package (including financial statements, schedule of expenditures of federal awards, 
summary schedule of prior audit findings, auditors' reports, and a corrective action plan) 
along with the Data Collection Form to the designated federal clearinghouse and, if 
appropriate, to pass-through entities. The Data Collection Form and the reporting package 
must be submitted within the earlier of 30 days after receipt of the auditors' reports or nine 
months after the end of the audit period, unless a longer period is agreed to in advance by the 
cognizant or oversight agency for audits. At the conclusion of the engagement, we will 
provide information to management as to where the reporting packages should be submitted 
and the number to submit. 

The audit documentation for this engagement is the property of Ingram, Wallis & Company, 
P.C. and constitute confidential information. However, pursuant to authority given by law or 
regulation, we may be requested to make certain audit documentation available to various 
federal and state funding agencies. If requested, access to such audit documentation will be 
provided under the supervision of Ingram, Wallis & Company, P.C. personnel. Furthermore, 
upon request, we may provide copies of selected audit documentation to federal and state 
funding agencies. The federal and state funding agencies may intend, or decide, to distribute 
the copies or information contained therein to others, including other governmental agencies. 

The audit documentation for this engagement will be retained for a minimum of three years 
after the date the auditors' report is issued or for any additional period requested by the 
federal and state funding agencies. If we are aware that a federal awarding agency, pass- 
through entity, or auditee is contesting an audit finding, we will contact the party(ies) 
contesting the audit finding for guidance prior to destroying the audit documentation. 

Our fee for these services is more fully explained in the separate schedule of estimated fees. 
If we elect to terminate our services for nonpayment, our engagement will be deemed to have 
been completed upon written notification of termination, even if we have not completed our 
report. You will be obligated to compensate us for all time expended and to reimburse us for 
all out-of-pocket costs through the date of termination. The fee is based on anticipated 
cooperation fiom your personnel and the assumption that unexpected circumstances will not 
be encountered during the audit. If significant additional time is necessary, we will discuss it 
with you and arrive at a new fee estimate before we incur the additional costs. 

57



Government Auditing Standarb require that we provide you with a copy of our most recent 
external peer review report and any letter of consent, and any subsequent peer review reports 
and letters of consent received during the period of the contract. Our 2005 peer review report 
accompanies this proposal. 

We appreciate the opportunity to be of service to the City and believe this letter accurately 
summarizes the significant terms of our engagement. If you have any questions, please let us 
know. If you agree with the terms of our engagement as described in this letter, please sign 
the enclosed copy and return it to us. 

Sincerely, 

#nq 0 O . y , T w . . a  

U 
James D. Ingram, IV 
Vice-President 

ATTEST: 

STATE OF TEXAS 3 
3 ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 

COUNTY OF BRAZOS 3 

This instrument was acknowledged before me on the 5' day of May, 2006, by James D. 
Ingram, IV, in his capacity as Vice-President of Ingram, Wallis & Company, P.C., a Texas 
Corporation, on behalf of said corporation. 

, ,,,\'~"'"",, 
+.-(t.~y  PO^,, K , ~ I  ' i : ~  R. SCAMBRAY; ~vorary rublic in and for the State of ~ e x g  
'O.. ' ' . .  (3 $pad . i>:orary Public . 

::a: 
Q: g ., 5 14-TE r j ~  TEXAS 2 

W y  Commission * .>s; . . .'.: $'..> 
#,,.cjF ., c,,,,,,... , .  .. . 'ixpires 03/r!:i2008$ 

g~.-vfi+v.>nr,: c :;.:!,. . * *.~8++0RoQ*<t4?2a~;*ggqngy 

58



RESPONSE: 

This letter correctly sets forth the understanding of the City of College Station, Texas. 

CITY OF COLLEGE STATION 

BY: 

Ron Silvia, Mayor Date 

ATTEST: 

Connie Hooks, City Secretary Date 

APPROVED: 

Glenn Brown, City Manager Date 

Date 

Jeff Kersten, Chief Financial Officer Date 

ATEST: 
STATE OF TEXAS 1 

1 ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 
COUNTY OF BRAZOS ) 
This instrument was acknowledged before me on the day of ,2006, 
by Ron Silvia, in his capacity as Mayor of City of College Station, a Texas home-rule 
municipality, on behalf of said municipality. 

Notary Public in and for the State of Texas 

59



 

June 22, 2006 
Consent Agenda 

Budget Approval and Funding Agreement With the George Bush Presidential 
Library Foundation 

 
To: Glenn Brown, City Manager 
 
From: Jeff Kersten, Chief Financial Officer 
 
 
Agenda Caption: Presentation, possible action and discussion on approving the budget of 
the George Bush Presidential Library Foundation; and presentation, discussion and possible 
action on a funding agreement between the City of College Station and the George Bush 
Presidential Library Foundation for FY06 in the amount of $50,000. 
 
Recommendation(s): Staff recommends approval of the George Bush Presidential Library 
Foundation budget and the funding agreement for FY06.   
 
Summary:  As part of the 2005-2006 budget process the City Council approved funding for 
the George Bush Presidential Library Foundation in the amount of $50,000.  The funds will 
be used for promotional and educational programs sponsored by the library.   
 
Budget & Financial Summary:  Per the tax code governing the use of the Hotel Tax 
funds, the governing body must approve the budget of the agency prior to approving the 
funding agreement. The funds for this agreement are budgeted and available in the 2005-
2006 Hotel Tax Fund Budget.   
 
Attachments: 

1. George Bush Presidential Library budget 
2. George Bush Presidential Library Funding Agreement  

 

60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



 

 

June 22, 2006 
Consent Agenda  

Litter Abatement Grant Resolution 
 
To: Glenn Brown, City Manager 
 
From: Charles McLemore, Acting Director of Public Works                        
 
 
Agenda Caption: Presentation, possible action, and discussion of a resolution authorizing 
the submittal of a Texas Commission on Environmental Quality Regional Solid Waste Grant 
Application in the amount of $25,000 to assist in funding a litter abatement education 
outreach program for the Brazos Valley Solid Waste Management Agency in partnership with 
Keep Brazos Beautiful. 
 
 
Recommendation(s): Staff recommends approval of the resolution authorizing the 
submittal of a Texas Commission on Environmental Quality Regional Solid Waste Grant 
Application for a Litter Abatement Education Program as presented to the Inter-
Governmental Committee.  
 
 
Summary: The Texas Commission on Environmental Quality has an annual regional solid 
waste grant program administered through the Brazos Valley Council of Governments for 
environmental education and outreach programs. In May 2006, the Executive Director of 
Keep Brazos Beautiful made a presentation to the Inter-Governmental Committee 
concerning litter problems in the Brazos Valley. Due to the interest by the Committee in 
efforts to abate the litter problems, Keep Brazos Beautiful is applying for a grant from the 
COG in the amount of $25,000 for a litter abatement education outreach program. However, 
Keep Brazos Beautiful requires a municipal partner to qualify for grant funding as the COG 
will only distribute grants to cities and other public entities. The resolution will allow 
BVSWMA to apply for the grant, with Keep Brazos Beautiful as a partner. Keep Brazos 
Beautiful will administer the litter abatement education outreach program. BVSWMA is 
currently using $12,000 annually in litter abatement advertising, and will use these funds to 
promote the litter abatement education outreach program.   
 
 
Budget & Financial Summary: No additional funds will be used for the grant. BVSWMA 
has $12,000 in currently budgeted litter abatement advertising funds that will be used to 
support the litter abatement education outreach program. 
 
 
Attachments: 

1. Resolution 
 
 
 

80



RESOLUTION NO.      
 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF COLLEGE STATION, A TEXAS HOME RULE 
MUNICIPAL CORPORATION AUTHORIZING THE FILING OF A GRANT APPLICATION 
WITH THE BRAZOS VALLEY COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS FOR A REGIONAL SOLID 
WASTE GRANTS PROGRAM GRANT FUNDING A JOINT LITTER ABATEMENT 
EDUCTIONAL OUREACH PROGRAM WITH KEEP BRAZOS BEAUTIFUL, INC.; AND 
AUTHORIZING LAURA TANKERSLEY-GLENN, KEEP BRAZOS BEAUTIFUL, INC. 
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR, TO ACT ON BEHALF OF THE CITY OF COLLEGE STATION 
IN ALL MATTERS RELATED TO THE APPLICATION; AND PLEDGING THAT IF A 
GRANT IS RECEIVED THE CITY OF COLLEGE STATION WILL COMPLY WITH THE 
GRANT REQUIREMENTS. 
 
WHEREAS, the Brazos Valley Council of Governments is directed by the Texas Commission on 
Environmental Quality to administer solid waste grant funds for implementation of the Council 
of Governments’ adopted regional solid waste management plan; and  
 
WHEREAS, the City of College Station in the State of Texas is qualified to apply for grant funds 
under the Request for Applications; and 
 
WHEREAS, the intergovernmental committee, a group of officials from the local school 
districts, city councils, university and commissioners court, has recognized that litter in the 
Brazos Valley is a critical problem that must be addressed ; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Brazos Valley Solid Waste Management Agency (BVSWMA) was created 
under an interlocal agreement between the Cities of Bryan and College Station, Texas, to provide 
environmentally sound solid waste disposal services to the Brazos Valley Region.; and 
 
WHEREAS, BVSWMA has an established annual budget of $12,000 for litter abatement 
educational programs; and 
 
WHEREAS, BVSWMA, in partnership with Keep Brazos Beautiful, Inc. will develop an 
enhanced educational outreach program using possible grant funds and the established litter 
abatement educational program annual budget of $12,000; and 
 
WHEREAS, the overall goal of developing the educational outreach program jointly with Keep 
Brazos Beautiful, Inc. is to promote public education that will help to create a high level of 
public awareness of proper solid waste disposal to avoid the consequences of illegal dumping.  
Through advertising, education and distribution of promotional items, the consequences of 
illegal dumping will be brought to the attention of the community; now, therefore, 
 
BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COLLEGE STATION, 
TEXAS: 
 

81



PART 1: That the City Council hereby approves the filing of a grant application for 
$25,000.00 for the purpose of litter abatement educational outreach in partnership 
with Keep Brazos Beautiful, Inc. 

 
PART 2: That the City Council hereby authorizes Laura Tankersley-Glenn, Keep Brazos 

Beautiful, Inc. Executive Director to act on behalf of the City of College Station 
in all matters related to the application. 

 
PART 3: That the City Council hereby pledges that if the project is funded, the City will comply 

with the grant requirements of the Brazos Valley Council of Governments, Texas 
Commission on Environmental Quality, and the State of Texas. 

 
PART 4: That this resolution shall take effect immediately from and after its passage. 
 
 
ADOPTED this    day of     , A.D. 2006. 
 
 

       
APPROVED 

ATTEST: 
 
              
       RON SILVIA, Mayor 
CONNIE HOOKS, City Secretary 
 
APPROVED: 
 

E-Signed by Angela M. DeLuca
VERIFY authenticity with ApproveIt

 
       
City Attorney 
 
 

82



 

 

June 22, 2006 
Consent Agenda  

Resolution to Dissolve the Façade Improvement Program and Committee 
 
To: Glenn Brown, City Manager 
 
From: Charles Wood, Acting Director of Economic and Community Development                         
 
 
Agenda Caption: Presentation, possible action, and discussion on a resolution to 
dissolve the Façade Improvement Program (FIP) and FIP Advisory Committee as per 
Committee recommendation.  
 
 
Recommendation(s): Staff recommends approval of the Resolution and the FIP 
Advisory Committee’s recommendation to dissolve the FIP Advisory Committee and end the 
FIP Program. 
 
 
Summary:  The FIP Advisory Committee met on April 28, 2006 to discuss 
recommendations for the Façade Improvement Program and Committee.  The FIP Program 
was launched in 1995 to address slum and blight conditions in the Northgate area.  At that 
time, there were many vacant and neglected properties and the area met the definition of a 
slum and blight area, as defined by the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban 
Development.  Federal Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) funds were budgeted 
to match property owner costs in renovating commercial properties in the Northgate 
District.  Six properties were rehabilitated using the program and those efforts helped 
promote redevelopment in the program area.  This area has since experienced 
extensive redevelopment and no longer meets the definition of a slum and 
blighted area.  Consequently, the FIP Advisory Committee recommends ending the 
program and dissolving the committee.  
 
 
Budget & Financial Summary:  There is no budgetary expense related to this action.  
There are no funds budgeted for the FIP Program in Fiscal Year 2005–06. 
 
 
Attachments: 
 

1 FIP Ending Resolution 
2 FIP Recommendation Memorandum 
3 FIP Committee Minutes April 2006 

 

83



RESOLUTION NO.      
 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF COLLEGE STATION, TEXAS, AUTHORIZING THE 
TERMINATION OF THE FAÇADE IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM AND THE 
DISSOLUTION OF THE FAÇADE IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM ADVISORY 
COMMITTEE. 
 
WHEREAS, the Façade Improvement Program was adopted by City Council in October of 1995 
for the purpose of initiating the elimination of slum and blight as well as to stimulate economic 
redevelopment in the Northgate Area by assisting local Northgate merchants with repairs to their 
building facades; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Façade Improvement Program Advisory Committee was adopted by City 
Council in October of 1995 to carry out the goals of the program; and 
  
WHEREAS, the City Council concedes that the Façade Improvement Program and it’s advisory 
committee have accomplished the intended purpose of the elimination of slum and blight as well 
as stimulated economic redevelopment of the Northgate Area; now, therefore, 
 
BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COLLEGE STATION, 
TEXAS: 
 
PART 1: That the City Council hereby authorizes the termination of the Façade Improvement 

Program adopted in October of 1995. 
 
PART 2: That the City Council hereby authorizes the dissolution of the Façade Improvement 

Program Advisory Committee as a result of the termination of the Façade 
Improvement Program. 

 
PART 3: That this resolution shall take effect immediately from and after its passage. 
 
 
ADOPTED this    day of     , A.D. 2006. 
 

      APPROVED 
 
 
              
ATTEST:      RON SILVIA, Mayor 
 
 
      
CONNIE HOOKS, City Secretary 
 
 
 
APPROVED: 
 
 
 

E-Signed by Angela M. DeLuca
VERIFY authenticity with ApproveIt

 
      
City Attorney 

84



 

 Inter-Office                        April 28, 2006 

 MEMORANDUM       

           Façade Improvement Program 
          Advisory Committee 
 
 
 
 

To:  College Station City Council 
 
From:  Façade Improvement Program Advisory Committee 
 
RE: Recommendation to Dissolve FIP Advisory Committee & Program 
 
              
 
 
Having held a Façade Improvement Program (FIP) Advisory Committee meeting on April 28, 
2006 to review program goals, objectives and successes, the Committee has voted and is 
recommending to City Council that the FIP Committee and Program be discontinued. 
 
The FIP Program was launched in 1995 to address slum and blight influences in Northgate by 
encouraging and facilitating the renovations of poorly maintained and vacant commercial 
properties.  There were, at that time, numerous vacant and neglect properties in Northgate and 
the area was designated a Slum and Blight Area as defined by the U.S. Dept. of Housing and 
Urban Development.  That designation allowed the City added flexibility in the use of Community 
Development Block Grant (CDBG) funds to address the area’s blighting influences by assisting 
owners in the renovations of their properties.  The area no longer meets the definition of a Slum 
and Blight Area. 
 
The program facilitated the rehabilitation of six commercial properties in Northgate, thereby, 
helping to spur redevelopment of the Northgate District.  The FIP accomplishments, coupled with 
many other private and public sector improvements to businesses, streets and utilities, have 
transformed Northgate into a vibrant and attractive commercial and residential district.   
 
Based on the program’s goals, because the program is no longer funded, and because the program 
area is no longer eligible for the Slum and Blight designation, the FIP Advisory Committee 
recommends dissolving the committee and ending the program.  Citizen committee members also 
expressed an interest in possible service opportunities on other city committees and applauded and 
encouraged the City’s continued efforts to promote redevelopment of the older retail and 
residential properties of College Station. 
 

85



 
 
 

Facade Improvement Program 
Advisory Committee 

 
    

 

Meeting Minutes 
 

Friday - April 28, 2006 - 8:30 AM 
Community Development Office Conference Room  -  1207 Texas Avenue 

             
 
 
I. Call to order. 
 
 The committee meeting was called to order by the Chairman at 8:40 AM. 
 
II. Presentation, possible action and discussion regarding future committee 

deliberations, actions and/or recommendations.  Consideration will take place 
regarding the need to continue or dissolve the program / committee with a possible 
recommendation to City Council to follow. 

 
 Staff introduced this agenda item and discussion followed regarding the merits of 

continuing and/or ending the FIP Program and Committee.  Afterwards, Rick Lemons 
moved that the Committee recommend to City Council that the FIP Program be ended and 
the FIP Advisory Committee dissolved.  The motion was seconded by Dr. Valerian 
Miranda, and the motion passed unanimously. 

 
III. Adjourn. 
 
 The meeting was adjourned at approximately 9:25 AM. 
 
NOTE:  As the FIP Advisory Committee will not meet again for actual approval of these minutes, 
these minutes are consider the final action of the 2005-06 FIP Advisory Committee.  
 
Minutes prepared by Eric Barton, Staff Liaison to the FIP Advisory Committee 
 
 
The building used was wheelchair accessible.  Handicap parking spaces were 
available.  Requests for sign interpretive service could be made 48 hours before 
the meeting.  Arrangements could be made by calling (979) 764-3517 or (TDD) 1-
800-735-2989.  The agenda could be viewed on www.cstx.gov and were posted at 
City Hall. 

86

http://www.cstx.gov


 

 

June 22, 2006 
Consent Agenda 

Dove Crossing Subdivision Phase 1 Oversize Participation Request 
 
To: Glenn Brown, City Manager 
 
From: Charles McLemore, Acting Director of Public Works                         
 
 
Agenda Caption: Presentation, possible action and discussion on a request for Oversize 
Participation (OP) for a water improvement in the Dove Crossing Subdivision Phase 1 in the 
amount of $14,336.00.   
 
 
Recommendation(s):    Staff recommends approval. 
 
 
Summary:  This oversized participation request is to reimburse Dove Crossing 
Development, LLC for the construction cost difference between an 8 inch water line and a 
12 inch water line for a 728 linear feet section. An increase in capacity requested by the city 
can be reimbursed to the developer through the Oversize Participation policy. Associated 
with the development of Dove Crossing Subdivision, Phase 1, the City required the 
construction of a 12 inch water line.  The developer’s engineer demonstrated that an 8 inch 
water line was adequate for the subject subdivision.  
 
 
Budget & Financial Summary: $200,000 was budgeted in FY05 in the Water CIP for 
Oversize Participation and Planning projects. These funds were not expended in FY05 and 
are available for use in FY06. This contract is for $14,336.00.  
 
 
Attachments: 

1. Oversized Participation Agreement 
2. Exhibit A Vicinity Map 
3. Exhibit B Utility Location 
4. Exhibit C Engineer’s Estimate and Request Letter 

 
 
 
 

87



OVERSIZE PARTICIPATION AGREEMENT 
 
 
This Agreement is entered into this ______ day of ____________________, 200__, by and 
between the City of College Station, a Texas home rule municipal corporation (hereinafter 
“CITY”), and Phi-Ton Investments, L.P., a Texas Limited Partnership, hereinafter “OWNER”). 
 
WHEREAS, OWNER owns and has developed property within the City of College Station, more 
particularly described as Dove Crossing Subdivision Phase 1 (hereinafter “Property”) as depicted 
and described on the final plat approved by the Planning and Zoning Commission on January 20, 
2005, a vicinity map of which is attached hereto as Exhibit A; and 
 
WHEREAS, CHAPTER 9, CITY OF COLLEGE STATION CODE OF ORDINANCES requires that 
OWNER conform to CITY’s standards and master plans for streets and utilities and pay for all 
costs of materials and installation of streets, alleys, sidewalks, drainage, and utilities except 
where CITY agrees to participate in the cost of oversize of such improvements; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of College Station Utility Master Plan requires an twelve inch (12”) water 
line, as detailed in Exhibit B; and  
 
WHEREAS, OWNER has submitted an oversize cost participation request for water line 
improvements constructed that were in excess of the required sizing for the development; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Engineer has reviewed the data, reports and analysis provided by 
OWNER’s engineers and determined that OWNER’s request for utility participation qualifies for 
participation funding under the criteria established in CHAPTER 9, SECTION 9, CITY OF COLLEGE 

STATION CODE OF ORDINANCES;  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the recitations above and the promises and 
covenants herein expressed, the parties hereby agree as follows: 
 

I. 
DEFINITIONS 

 
1.1 Approved Plans means the plans and specifications that meet the requirements of this 
Oversize Participation Agreement, the City of College Station Codes and Ordinances and any 
other applicable laws, and that have been submitted to, reviewed and approved by the City of 
College Station Development Services Department and the City Engineer.   
 
1.2 CITY or College Station means the City of College Station, a Texas home rule 
municipal corporation located at 1101 Texas Avenue, College Station, Texas 77840. 

 
1.3 Certificate of Acceptance:  A certificate issued by the City Engineer stating that the 
construction conforms to the plans, specifications and standards contained in or referred to in 
CHAPTER 9 of the CITY OF COLLEGE STATION CODE OF ORDINANCES. 
  

Contract No. ___06-106 
V:\agenda items\2006\06 22 06\Dove Crossing Phase 1 Oversized Participation\OP Agmt - after completion.docc 

88



1.4 Certificate of Completion/Compliance.  As defined in Section 1702 of the 
INTERNATIONAL BUILDING CODE, 2003 Edition, as adopted and amended by the City Council of 
the City of College Station, a certificate stating that work was done in compliance with approved 
construction documents/Approved Plans. 
 
1.5 Effective Date.  The date on which this Agreement is signed by the last party whose 
signing makes the Agreement fully executed. 

 
1.6 Final Completion.  The term "Final Completion" means that all the work on the Project 
has been completed, all final punch list items have been inspected and satisfactorily completed, 
all payments to materialmen and subcontractors have been made, all documentation, and all 
closeout documents have been executed and approved by the OWNER, Certificates of 
Completion and Acceptance have been issued for the Project, all Reports have been submitted 
and Reporting Requirements have been met, and DEVELOPER has fully performed any other 
requirements contained herein.    
 
1.7 OWNER means Phi-Ton Investments, L.P., a Texas Limited Partnership, whose 
principal office is located at 1401 Sebesta, College Station, Texas 77845. 
 
1.8 Property means Dove Crossing Subdivision Phase 1, College Station, Brazos County, 
Texas, as depicted and described on the final plat approved by the Planning and Zoning 
Commission on January 20, 2005; a vicinity map of which is provided as Exhibit A attached 
hereto and incorporated herein by reference. 
 
1.9 Project means the construction of the water line improvements as detailed in Exhibit B 
attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference. 
 

II. 
OVERSIZE COST PARTICIATION 

 
2.1 CITY agrees to cost participate to oversize the improvements as follows: 
 

1. The construction cost difference between an eight-inch (8”) water line and 
a twelve-inch (12”) water line for a 728 linear foot section. 

 
2.2 The total cost of the project is $246,247.00.  CITY agrees to cost participate with 
OWNER for the actual construction cost not to exceed 5.821797% or $14,336.00 of the specified 
improvements, whichever is less.  CITY’s participation does not exceed 30% of the Project.  
Therefore, this Project was not required to be competitively bid under SECTION 252.002 et seq. of 
the TEXAS LOCAL GOVERNMENT CODE as amended.   
 
2.3 The detailed total cost of the improvements is attached hereto and incorporated herein as 
Exhibit C. 

 
2.4 OWNER warrants and certifies by the signing of this Agreement that the amount 
OWNER has submitted for reimbursement is the actual cost of constructing and installing the 
improvements specified in this request as approved by the City Engineer or his delegate. Any 

2 of 7 
Contract No. ___06-106 
V:\agenda items\2006\06 22 06\Dove Crossing Phase 1 Oversized Participation\OP Agmt - after completion.doc 

89



amount in excess of the actual cost of the improvements is unauthorized and OWNER shall be 
liable for the immediate repayment of any excess funds.  The City Engineer or his delegate has 
certified that each of following applicable terms and conditions have been met for the approval 
of CITY’s cost participation to oversize the water line. 
 
 (1) the Final Completion of the improvements in accordance with the 

Approved Plans;  
 (2) issuance of Certificates of Completion and Acceptance; 
 (3) OWNER’s compliance with all CITY Codes, Ordinances and standards 

 relating to the Property and its subdivision and development; 
 (4) dedication of the land for the right-of-way either by plat or by general 

warranty deed; 
(5) a current title report as of the date of land dedication and updated within 

sixty (60) days of the date of this Agreement; 
(6) lien releases or subordinations from all lenders as required by CITY. 

 
2.5 Oversize Participation Payment.  OWNER has submitted the written application for 
oversize participation payment after Final Completion.   
 
2.6 CITY will pay oversize participation funds in one payment within thirty (30) days after 
CITY’s approval of this Agreement.   

 
2.7 Reports, books and other records.  OWNER shall make its books and other records 
related to the project available for inspection by CITY.  OWNER shall submit to CITY any and 
all information or reports requested to verify the expenditures submitted for oversize 
participation eligibility including but not limited to bid documents, payment applications, 
including any supporting information, cancelled checks, copies of construction and engineering 
documents, as determined by the City Engineer in his sole discretion, for the verification of the 
cost of the infrastructure detailed in Exhibit C of this Agreement.  The submission of these 
reports and information shall be the responsibility of the OWNER and shall be certified by 
OWNER’s Licensed Professional Engineer at OWNER’s expense and signed by an authorized 
official of the entity.   

 
III. 

GOVERNMENTAL IMMUNITY, INDEMNIFICATION AND RELEASE 
 
CITY is a political subdivision of the state and enjoys governmental immunity.  By entering 
into this Agreement, CITY does not consent to suit, waive its governmental immunity, or 
the limitations as to damages under the Texas Tort Claims Act.  
 
OWNER agrees to and shall indemnify, hold harmless, and defend CITY and its officers, 
agents, and employees from and against any and all claims, losses, damages, causes of 
action, suits, and liability of every kind, including all expenses of litigation, court costs, 
expert fees and attorney's fees, for injury to or death of any person, or for damage to any 
property, or for breach of contract, arising out of or in connection with the work done by 
OWNER under this Agreement, regardless of whether such injuries, death, damages or 

3 of 7 
Contract No. ___06-106 
V:\agenda items\2006\06 22 06\Dove Crossing Phase 1 Oversized Participation\OP Agmt - after completion.doc 

90



breach are caused in whole or in part by the negligence of CITY, any other party 
indemnified hereunder, or the OWNER. 
 
OWNER shall indemnify and hold CITY harmless from any claims of suppliers or 
subcontractors of OWNER for improvements constructed or caused to be constructed by 
OWNER. 
 
OWNER shall indemnify and hold CITY harmless from any and all injuries to or claims of 
adjacent property owners resulting from or relating to their performance under this 
Agreement. 
 
OWNER assumes full responsibility for the work to be performed hereunder, and releases, 
relinquishes and discharges CITY, its officers, agents and employees, from all claims, 
demands, and causes of action of every kind and character, including the cost of defense 
therefore, for any injury to or death of any persons and any loss of or damage to any 
property that is caused by, alleged to be caused by, arising out of, or in connection with, 
OWNER’s work to be performed hereunder. This release shall apply whether or not said 
claims, demands, and causes of action are covered in whole or in part by insurance and 
regardless of whether or not said claims, demands, and causes of action were caused in 
whole or in part by the negligence of CITY, any other party released hereunder, or 
OWNER. 
 

IV. 
PROJECT AND CONSTRUCTION 

 
4.1 Right to Inspect the Work.  The City Engineer has inspected the improvements for 
compliance with the Approved Plans during construction and has issued Certificates of 
Acceptance and Completion. In the event that any of the work or materials furnished is not in 
strict accordance with the Approved Plans, OWNER shall correct or cause to be corrected at its 
sole cost and expense any defective or nonconforming work. 
 
4.2 Independent Contractor.  OWNER shall be solely responsible for selecting, 
supervising, and paying the construction contractor(s) or subcontractors and for complying with 
all applicable laws, including but not limited to all requirements concerning workers 
compensation and construction retainage. 
 
The parties to this Agreement agree and understand that all employees, volunteers, personnel and 
materials furnished or used by OWNER in the installation of the specified improvements shall be 
the responsibility of OWNER and shall not be deemed employees or agents of CITY for any 
purpose. 
 
4.3 Payment for materials and labor.  OWNER is solely and exclusively responsible for 
compensating any of its contractors, employees, subcontractors, materialmen and/or suppliers of 
any type or nature whatsoever and insuring that no claims or liens of any type will be filed 
against any property owned by CITY arising out of or incidental to the performance of any 
service performed pursuant to this Agreement.  In the event a statutory lien notice is sent to 
CITY, OWNER shall, where no payment bond covers the work, upon written notice from CITY, 

4 of 7 
Contract No. ___06-106 
V:\agenda items\2006\06 22 06\Dove Crossing Phase 1 Oversized Participation\OP Agmt - after completion.doc 

91



hold CITY harmless from any losses that may result from the filing or enforcement of any said 
lien notice. 
 
4.4 Affidavit of bills paid.  OWNER has provided the City Engineer a notarized affidavit 
stating that all bills for labor, materials, and incidentals incurred have been paid in full, that any 
claims from manufacturers, materialmen, and subcontractors have been released, and that there 
are no claims pending of which the OWNER has been notified. 
 
4.5 This Agreement does not alter, amend modify or replace any other requirements 
contained in the Code of Ordinances, Unified Development Code, or other applicable law. 
 

V.  
GENERAL PROVISIONS 

 
5.1 Amendments.  No amendment to this Agreement shall be effective and binding unless 
and until it is reduced to writing and signed by duly authorized representatives of both parties. 
 
5.2 Choice of law and Venue.  This Agreement has been made under and shall be governed 
by the laws of the State of Texas.  Performance and all matters related thereto shall be in Brazos 
County, Texas, United States of America. 
 
5.3 Authority to enter into Agreement.  Each party represents that it has the full power and 
authority to enter into and perform this Agreement.  The person executing this Agreement on 
behalf of each party has been properly authorized and empowered to enter into this Agreement.  
The person executing this Agreement on behalf of OWNER represents that he or she is 
authorized to sign on behalf of OWNER and agrees to provide proof of such authorization to 
CITY upon request. 
 
5.4 Agreement read.  The parties acknowledge that they have read, understand and intend to 
be bound by the terms and conditions of this Agreement. 
 
5.5 Notice.  All notices and documents required herein shall be sent and provided to the 
parties at the addresses and telephone numbers listed below: 

 
Phi-ton Investments, L.P. City of College Station 
1401 Sebesta City Engineer 
College Station, TX  77845 P.O. Box 9960 
 College Station, Texas 77842  

 
_______________________ With copies to: 
 City Attorney and City Manager 
 1101 Texas Avenue 
 College Station, TX 77842 

 
 All notices and documents shall be deemed received when mailed with sufficient postage and 

deposited in a regular mailbox of the United States Post Office.  The parties may change 
addresses upon thirty (30) days’ written notice sent certified mail, return receipt requested. 
 

5 of 7 
Contract No. ___06-106 
V:\agenda items\2006\06 22 06\Dove Crossing Phase 1 Oversized Participation\OP Agmt - after completion.doc 

92



5.6 Assignment. This Agreement and the rights and obligations contained herein may not be 
assigned by OWNER without the prior written approval of CITY. 

5.7 Default. In the event of a breach of this Agreement by OWNER, CITY may terminate 
this Agreement and exercise any and all legal remedies available to it. 

Executed this day of ,200- 

PHI-TON INVESTMENTS, L.P., 
a Texas Limited Partnership 

CITY OF COLLEGE STATION 

partner 
BY: 

ATTEST: 

Ron Silvia, Mayor 

Connie Hooks, City Secretary 
APPROVED: 

Glenn Brown, City Manager 

- - -- -- -- -- . - - -- - - - - - - - 

Jeff Kersten, Finance and Strategic Planning 
Director 

6 o f 7  
Contract No. 06- 106 
C:Documenrs and Se~tingsbgibbs.CSTX\DesktopWove Crossing Phase 1 Oversized ParticipalionlOP A g m ~  - ajler contplefion.doc 

93



THE STATE OF TEXAS ) 
1 

COUNTY OF BRAZOS ) 
ACKNOWLEDGMENT 

Before me, the undersigned authori on this day personally appe z UQCP.~  of m-; -Tour \& -&.LA Texas \ iu&Jj 

known t8 me to be the person whose name is subscribed to the foregoing instrument, and 
acknowledged to me that he executed the same for the purposes and consideration therein 
expressed. 

Given under my hand and seal of office on this the 

THE STATE OF TEXAS ) 
1 

COUNTY OF BRAZOS ) 
ACKNOWLEDGMENT 

Before me, the undersigned authority, on this day personally appeared Ron Silvia as 
Mayor of the City of College Station, a Texas home-rule municipal corporation, known to me to 
be the person whose name is subscribed to the foregoing instrument, and acknowledged to me 
that he executed the same for the purposes and consideration therein expressed. 

Given under my hand and seal of office on this the - day of ,200-. 

Notary Public in and for the State of Texas 

Contract No. 06- 106 
C:Docwnents andSetingJ\agibbs.CST~eskropWove Crossing Phase I Oversized Pmllcipation\OP Agmi - ajrer compleiion.doc 

94



THE STATE OF TEXAS ) 
1 

COUNTY OF BRAZOS ) 
ACKNOWLEDGMENT 

Before me, the undersigned authority, on this day personally appeared 14 A m y  , 
C .  Tal.05 of 4h i 7 s ; s  3~os/~nrd% Cf , a Texas Lln r ' O d  P h ~ l ~ d r d  k & , 

known to me to be the person whose name 6 subscribed to the foregoing instrumenb, and 
acknowledged to me that he executed the same for the purposes and consideration therein 
expressed. 

Given under my hand and seal of ofice on this the > day of J~rr e , 2004 .  

THE STATE OF TEXAS ) 
1 

COUNTY OF BRAZOS ) 

Notary Public in and for the S%te?fTeGas 

ACKNOWLEDGMENT 

Before me, the undersigned authority, on this day personally appeared Ron Silvia as 
Mayor of the City of College Station, a Texas home-rule municipal corporation, known to me to 
be the person whose name is subscribed to the foregoing instrument, and acknowledged to me 
that he executed the same for the purposes and consideration therein expressed. 

Given under my hand and seal of ofice on this the - day of ,200-. 

Notary Public in and for the State of Texas 

7 o f 7  
Contract No. 06- 1 06 
C:Docwnenu and Settingshgibbs.CSTXU>eskioplDove Crossing Phase I Oversized ParticipationIOP Agmt - qler completion.doc 

95



96



97



Dove Crossing Development, LLC 
3205 Earl Rudder Freeway South 

Collegc Station, TX 77845 
(979) 693-6699 

December 17,2004 

Alan Gibbs, P.E. 
Development Engineer 
C~ty of College Station 
P.O. Box 9960 
College Station, TX 77842 

RE: Dove Crossing Subdivision - Phase 1 - Request for Oversize Participation 

Dear Mr. Gibbs: 

The water supply for the Dove Crossing Subdivision - Phase 1 will be supplied by connecting to 
the existing 12" waterline located along Graham Road. A 12" waterline will be constructed along 
Alexandria until the first street intersection where the waterline branches off in 2 directions in 
addition to continuing along Alexandria Avenue. As determined by the Water Design Report for 
the Subdivision, a copy of which is attached, the waterline continuing along Alexandria Avenue 
can be an 8" line. Thls line will provide adequate fire hydrant flow to the Subdivision. However, 
eventually the Subdivision will connect to Alexandria Avenue and Eagle Avenue at its Southern 
boundary. Each of these streets has 12" diameter waterlines located along them. It has been 
requested by the City Staff that the waterline along Alexandria be constructed as a 12" line so the 
line along the entire length of Alexandria will be 12". 

This letter is a request for oversize participation from the City of College Station for the increase 
in the size of this waterline. This waterline has been designated as waterline W-l and attached is 
the Engineer's Cost Estimate for the line constructed as an 8" line and as a 12" line. The 
increased cost for the oversizing of the water line is $14,336. The total estimated cost for the 
waterline for Phase I is  $246,247, so the City's participation will be less than 30%. Also attached 
are sketches of the proposed waterline . 

Please give Ine a call at (979) 693-6699 if you have any questions. 
A 

Managing Partner 

cc: Joe Schultz, P.E. - Texcon 

98



Item 
No. - 

TEXCON GENERAL CONTRACTORS 17-0ec-04 
ENGINEER'S COST ESTIMATE -WATERLINE W-1 12" & 8" OPTION 

DOVE CROSSING 
COLLEGE STATION. TEXAS 

Oescr~ptton 
Water 
12" Water PVC CC200 (C909) 
8 Wakr PVC CC200 (C909) 
Gate Valves - 12" 
Qte Valves - 8" 
M.J Bends - 8" 
12' M J. Tee 
B"x6" M.J. Tees 
12%" M.J. Cross 
1Tx8" M.J Reducer 
B"w6" M.J. Reducer 
Fire Hydrant Assembly wl Extension 
2" Blow off Assembly 
Cut 12" M.J. Tee into Existing 12" Waterline 

Estimated Unit 
Quantity Price 

180 LF 540.00 
728 LF $28.00 
2 €A $1.500.00 
3 €A $700.00 
5 €A $300.00 
1 €A $650.00 
4 €A $350.00 
1 EA 5650.00 
1 EA %500.00 
1 € A  $250 00 
1 f A 52.500 00 
1 €A $450.00 
1 f A $2.500.00 

Subtotal 

Estimated 
Cost 

Total Water $43,084 
TOTAL CONSTRUCT1ON 

99



TEXCON GENERAL CONTRACTORS 7- OK-04 
ENGINEER'S COST ESTIMATE -WATERLINE W-1 32" OPTION 

DOVE CROSSING 
COLLEGE STATION. TEXAS 

Description 
Water 
IT Water PVC CL200 (C909) 
Gate Vatves - 12" 
M.J. Bends - 12- 
1 2  M.J. Tee 
12"x6" M.J. Tees 
12.~8" M.J. Cross 
1 Tx8' M J. Reducer 
r x 6 "  M.J. Reducer 
Fire HNrant Assembly wl Exlension 
4' Blow off Assembly 
Air Release Valve 
Cut 12" M.J. Tee mto Existing 12" Waterhe 

Est~rnated 
Quaniiiy 

Unit 
Price -- 

$40.00 
$1.500 00 
$500.00 
$650.00 
$600.00 
$650.00 
%500.00 
$250.00 

%2,500.00 
$650.00 

$1 .ooo.oo 
$2,500.00 
Subtotal 

Eslirnated 

Total Water $57,420 
TOTAL CONSTRUCTION 1 557,420 1 

100



1te.m 
No. 

TEXCON GENERAL CONTRACTORS 
ENGINEER'S COST ESTIMATE -WATERLINE PHASE 1 

DOVE CROSSING 
COLLEGE STATION. TEXAS 

Description 
Water 
12" Water PVC CL200 (C9091 - Structural 
8" Water PVC CL200 (CW9) - Structural 
6 Water W C  CL200 (C909) - Structural 
3" Water W C  CL200 (C909) - Structural 
Gale Valves - 12" 
Gate Valws - 8" 
Gate Valves - 6" 
M.J. Bends - 12" 
M.J. Bends - 8" 
M.J Bends - C 
M.J. Bends - 3" 
12" M.J. Tee 
l2-x6" M. J. Tees 
8"x6" M.J. Tees 
8" M.J. Tees 
6" M.J. Tees 
1Tx8" M.J. Cross 
12"x8" M.J. Reducer 
8" M.J. Cross 
8"x6  M.J. Reducer 
Vx3' M.J. Reducer 
Fire Hydrant Assembly wl Extension 
4" Blow off Assembly 
2" Blow off Assembly 
1" B h  off Assembly 
Air Release Valve 
Water Services - 1" Short 
Water Serv~ces - 1" Long 
Water Services - 1 5' Short 
Water Services - 1 5' Long 
Cut 12' M.J. Tee into Existing 12" Waterline 

Estimated 
Quantity 

Unil 
Price 

%40.00 
$28.00 
$24.00 
$21 .oo 

$1.500.00 
$700.00 
$600.00 
$500.00 
%300.00 
$250.00 
51 75.00 
5650.00 
$600 W 
1350.W 
$400.00 
$300.00 
$650.00 
$500.00 
$450.00 
$250.00 
$250.00 

$2,500.013 
$650.00 
$450.00 
$350.00 

$1 .aOo.oo 
Z450.00 
$650.00 
$55O.U0 
$750.00 

$2,500.00 
Subtolal 

Total Water $246.247 
TOTAL CONSTRUCTION 

101



June 22, 2006 
Consent Agenda 

Design of Utilities Serving Annexation Areas 5 and 6 
 
To: Glenn Brown, City Manager 
 
From: Charles McLemore, Acting Director of Public Works 
 
 
Agenda Caption:  Presentation, possible action and discussion of a resolution awarding a 
professional services contract to Pledger Kalkomey, Inc. for engineering services related to 
the Annexation Areas 5 and 6 Utilities project in an amount not to exceed $97,000.00. 
 
Recommendation(s): Staff recommends approval of the resolution awarding a 
professional services contract to Pledger Kalkomey, Inc. 
 
Summary:  Annexation Areas 5 and 6, generally east of Rock Prairie Road in the Greens 
Prairie Road area, are shown in the annexation plan to require the extension of water and 
sewer lines from nearby, existing utilities. The City recently installed a water main along 
Rock Prairie Road and Greens Prairie Road. This line will be extended to serve a portion of 
Area 6 in which the City currently holds the Certificate of Convenience and Necessity (CCN) 
for water service. Areas 5 and 6 will require the construction of a lift station to provide 
sanitary sewer service. The wastewater will be lifted along Greens Prairie and then gravity 
flow to the south to the main trunk line. The exact location for the lift station that best 
serves these areas is yet to be determined. The City has been working with Pledger 
Kalkomey in regard to water and sewer service to the area west of Harvey Mitchell Parkway 
along Raymond Stotzer Blvd.  Seeing the addition of numerous lift stations from the CIP 
Program and private development, the Water Services Department is anxious to have new 
lift stations meet a uniform standard and thereby be less costly to own and maintain.      
 
Budget & Financial Summary:  Funds for the design of this project are available in the 
Water Fund and the Wastewater Fund.   
 
Attachments: 

1. Resolution 
2. Location map 

 
 
 

102



RESOLUTION NO.      
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COLLEGE STATION, 
TEXAS, SELECTING A PROFESSIONAL CONTRACTOR, APPROVING A 
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES CONTRACT AND AUTHORIZING THE EXPENDITURE 
OF FUNDS FOR THE ANNEXATION AREAS 5 AND 6 UTILITIES PROJECT. 

 
WHEREAS, it is in the best interest of the City to use a consultant on the Annexation Areas 5 and 
6 Utilities Project who has previously consulted with the City and other Texas cities concerning 
sewer lift stations, sanitary sewer systems and wastewater treatment issues; and. 
 
WHEREAS, the selection of Pledger Kalkomey, Inc., is being recommended as the most highly 
qualified provider of the engineering design services for this Project; now, therefore, 
 
BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of College Station, Texas: 
 
PART 1: That the City Council hereby finds that Pledger Kalkomey, Inc., is the most 

highly qualified provider of the services for the Annexation Areas 5 and 6 
Utilities Project on the basis of demonstrated competence and qualifications. 

 
PART 2: That the City Council hereby approves the contract with Pledger Kalkomey, 

Inc. for an amount not to exceed $97,000.00 for the engineering design, 
design guideline and construction administration services related to the 
Annexation Areas 5 and 6 Utilities Project. 

 
PART 3: That the funding for this Project shall be as budgeted from the following 

budget items: 
• Wastewater Fund (SWOC), Rock Prairie South of Carters Lake, in the 

amount of $20,250.00 and Greens Prairie Road Corridor East in the 
amount of $26,250.00 

• Water Fund (WTWOC)Rock Prairie South of Carters Lake , in the 
amount of $20,250.00 and Greens Prairie Road Corridor East in the 
amount of $20,250.00 

• Oversize Participation and Planning (Design Guideline) in the amount of 
$10,000.00 

 
PART 4: That this resolution shall take effect immediately from and after its passage. 
 
ADOPTED this 22nd day of June, A.D. 2006. 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED: 
 
             
CONNIE HOOKS, City Secretary   RON SILVIA, Mayor 
APPROVED: 

E-Signed by Angela M. DeLuca
VERIFY authenticity with ApproveIt

 
__________________ 
City Attorney 

103



END  OF  MAP  COVERAGE

END  OF  MAP  COVERAGE

16
78

16
50

16
16

15
70

15
22

4

3

2

1

B
LO

C
K

 1

6102

5703

6004

5900

5702

5800
5904

OUTSIDE CITY LIMITS

7610

1110

11
0

9

1111

7604

7606

7608

4744
4742 4746

8

7

6 22 23 24

BL OC K 15

21

PARK

B.V.S.W.M.A. LANDFILL

PEBBLE
CREEK

5

7600

17
01

17
47

7

6

5

B
LO

C
K

 1

6301

7006

6904
7103

7005

6903
7003

7804

78
01

7805

7807

OUTSIDE CITY LIMITS

OUTSIDE CITY LIMITS

OUTSIDE CITY LIMITS

13502

14501

RD E

GREENS P
RAIR

I E

BR
A

D
LE

Y
 R

D

ROCK PRAIRI E RD

ROCK PRAIRI E RD

CO LLEGE STATION CITY  LIMITS

H
A

R
R

IS
 D

R

CARTER LAKE

1

BLOCK 9

SECTION 6
2

BLOCK 10
LAKE

CARTER 

SECTION 5

12

13

ROCK PRAIRI E RD

CO LLEGE STATION CITY  LIMITS

Tu
rk

 R
an

ch
 R

oa
d 

(6
0' 

ac
ce

ss
 e

as
em

en
t)

END  OF  MAP  COVERAGE

OUTSIDE CITY LIMITS

CARTER LAKE

END  OF  MAP  COVERAGE

END  OF  MAP  COVERAGE

OUTSIDE CITY LIMITS

OUTSIDE CITY LIMITS

OUTSIDE CITY LIMITS

OUTSIDE CITY LIMITS

END  OF  MAP  COVERAGE

OUTSIDE CITY LIMITS

END  OF  MAP  COVERAGE

CO
LLEGE STATION CITY  LIMITS

CO
LL

EG
E

 S
TA

TI
O

N
 C

IT
Y

 L
IM

IT
S

C
O

L
L

E
G

E
 S

T
A

T
IO

N
 C

IT
Y

 L
IM

IT
S

CO
LLEGE STATION CITY  LIMITS

CO
LL

EG
E

 S
TA

TI
O

N
 C

IT
Y

 L
IM

IT
S

C
O

L
L

E
G

E
 S

T
A

T
IO

N
 C

IT
Y

 L
IM

IT
S

CO
LL

EG
E

 S
TA

TI
O

N
 C

IT
Y

 L
IM

IT
S

CO
LL

EG
E

 S
TA

TI
O

N
 C

IT
Y

 L
IM

IT
S

RD E

GREENS P
RAIR

I E

G
R

E
E

N
S

 P
R

A
IR

I E
 R

D
 E

G
R

E
E

N
S

 P
R

A
IR

I E
 R

D
 E

G
R

E
E

N
S

 P
R

A
IR

I E
 R

D
 E

G
R

E
E

N
S

 P
R

A
IR

I E
 R

D
 E

RD E

GREENS P
RAIR

I E

END  OF  MAP  COVERAGE

OUTSIDE CITY LIMITS

OUTSIDE CITY LIMITS

END  OF  MAP  COVERAGE

0 0.5 10.25 Miles

³

Annexation Areas 5 and 6
Utilities Project

Area 5

Area 6

Rock Prairie Road
Greens Prairie Road

Carters Creek

104



 

 

June 22, 2006 
Consent Agenda 

Holleman Drive West Parking Restrictions 
 
To: Glenn Brown, City Manager 
 
From: Charles McLemore, Acting Director of Public Works                         
 
 
Agenda Caption: Presentation, possible action and discussion, on consideration of an 
ordinance amending Chapter 10, “Traffic Code,” Section 4E(3)(b) of the Code of Ordinances 
of the City of College Station prohibiting parking on Holleman Drive West beginning at 
Wellborn Road (FM 2154) and extending to Harvey Mitchell Parkway (FM 2818). 
 
 
Recommendation(s):     Staff recommends approval of the ordinance amendment. 
 
 
Summary:  By removing the parking on both sides of Holleman Drive West, beginning at 
Wellborn Road (FM 2154) and extending to Harvey Mitchell Parkway (FM 2818), the safety 
and mobility for motorists and bicycles traveling in the area will improve. With this parking 
restriction, bike lanes can be striped along Holleman Drive West in accordance with the Bike 
Master Plan. The bike lanes will improve connectivity for bicyclists traveling from the 
residential areas along Holleman Drive to Texas A&M University.  TxDOT is working on plans 
to construct a grade-separation between Wellborn Road, George Bush Drive and the railroad 
that will improve pedestrian and bicycle safety through the intersection in addition to 
improving vehicular mobility and safety. Additionally, the parking removal will allow the 
intersections of Holleman Drive West with Marion Pugh Drive and Jones Butler Road to be 
striped with one through lane in each direction and one left turn lane. This lane 
configuration will remove the left turning traffic from the through traffic and improve 
operations of the roadway. 
 
Residents in the affected area were notified of the proposed parking removal by door 
hangers (Attachment #3). 
 
 
Budget & Financial Summary:  The “no parking” signs are planned operation and 
maintenance expenses accounted for in the Public Works Traffic Operation budget. 
 
 
Attachments: 
1. Ordinance 
2. Location Map 
3. Public Notification 
 
 

105



O/group/legal/ordinance/amendmentform.doc 

ORDINANCE NO. __________ 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 10, “TRAFFIC CODE”, OF THE CODE OF 
ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF COLLEGE STATION, TEXAS, BY AMENDING 
CERTAIN SECTIONS AS SET OUT BELOW; PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; 
DECLARING A PENALTY; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COLLEGE STATION, 
TEXAS: 
 
PART 1: That Chapter 10, “Traffic Code”, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of 

College Station, Texas, be amended as set out in Exhibit “A”, attached hereto and 
made a part of this ordinance for all purposes. 

 
PART 2: That if any provisions of any section of this ordinance shall be held to be void or 

unconstitutional, such holding shall in no way effect the validity of the remaining 
provisions or sections of this ordinance, which shall remain in full force and 
effect. 

 
PART 3: That any person, firm, or corporation violating any of the provisions of this 

chapter shall be deemed liable for a civil offense and/or guilty of a Class C 
misdemeanor, and, upon a finding of liability thereof, shall be punished by a civil 
penalty of not less than Twenty-Five Dollars ($25.00) nor more than Two 
Thousand Dollars ($2,000.00), or upon conviction thereof, shall be punished by a 
fine of not less than Twenty-five Dollars ($25.00) nor more than Five Hundred 
Dollars ($500.00).  Said Ordinance becomes effective January 1, 2002, and at 
least ten (10) days after its publication in the newspaper, as provided by Section 
34 of the Charter of the City of College Station. 

 
PASSED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this ______ day of  _______________, 2006. 

 
     APPROVED: 

 
 

   ____________________________________ 
    RON SILVIA, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Connie Hooks, City Secretary 
 
APPROVED: 

E-Signed by Angela M. DeLuca
VERIFY authenticity with ApproveIt

 
_______________________________ 
City Attorney 
 

106



ORDINANCE NO.__________________  Page 2 
 
 

p:\group\agen-cal\for legal review\in review\06-22-06\no parking - holleman drive west\ordinance.doc 
6/9/06 

EXHIBIT “A” 
  
 

That Chapter 10, “Traffic Code”, Section 4, “Administrative Adjudication of Parking 
Violations”, Subsection E “Parking Regulations for Certain Described Areas, (3)(b), “No 
Parking Anytime”, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of College Station, Texas, is hereby 
amended, by adding paragraph (xxxix) as set out hereafter to read as follows: 
 

“On both sides of Holleman Drive West, extending from Wellborn Road (FM 2154) to 
Harvey Mitchell Parkway (FM 2818).” 

 

107



Luth
er

 S
tre

et
 W

Jones Butler Road

Holle
man Driv

e

FM 2818

No Parking Zone
on Holleman Dr. WestÊ 0 400 800

Feet

No Parking Zone

108



 

 

NOTICE 
 
Holleman Drive 
West Parking 
Restriction                    
 
 
On June 22, 2006 an ordinance will go before 
the College Station City Council prohibiting 
parking on both sides for Holleman Drive West 
between Wellborn Road (FM 2154) and Harvey 
Mitchell Parkway (FM 2818).  With this parking 
restriction, bike lanes can be striped along 
Holleman Drive West in 
accordance with the Bike 
Master Plan.  The bike lanes 
will improve connectivity for 
bicyclists traveling from the 
residential areas along 
Holleman Drive to Texas A&M University.  
Additionally, this parking removal will allow 
the intersections of Holleman Drive West with 
Marion Pugh Drive and Jones Butler Road to be 
striped with one through lane in each 
direction and one left turn lane.  This lane 
configuration will remove the left turning 
traffic from the through traffic and improve 
operations of the roadway. 
 
The parking restrictions on both sides of 
Holleman Drive West will improve safety and 
mobility for motorists and bicycles traveling in 
the area. 

 
Public Works Department 

Engineering 
(979) 764-3691 
www.cstx.gov 

 

109

http://www.cstx.gov


 

________________________________________________________________________ 
Draft Minutes 

City Council Workshop and Regular Meeting 
Thursday, May 25, 2006 at 1:30 p.m. 

City Hall Council Chambers, 1101 Texas Avenue 
College Station, Texas 

 
COUNCIL MEMBERS PRESENT:  Mayor Silvia, Council members, Happ, White, 
Gay, McIlhaney, Scotti, Ruesink   
 
STAFF PRESENT:  City Manager Brown, City Attorney Cargill Jr., City Secretary 
Hooks, Assistant City Secretary Casares, Management Team  
 
Mayor Silvia called the workshop meeting to order at 1:31 p.m. 
 
Workshop Agenda Item No. 1 -- Presentation of service awards.  Swearing in of 
elected officials from the May 13, 2006 College Station General Election and 
presentation of Certificates of Election.   
 
Municipal Court Judge Ed Spillane presented the oaths of office to each council member 
recently elected to office:  Council member Place 4, Lynn McIlhaney and Council 
member Place 6, David Ruesink.   Mayor Silvia presented each elected official with a 
Certificate of Election. 
 
A reception followed for elected officials and guests attending the ceremony. 
 
Workshop Agenda Item No. 2 -- Presentation, possible action, and discussion on 
items listed on the consent agenda.  
 
13.06 - Presentation, possible action, and discussion regarding a resolution awarding the 
Annual Contract for Janitorial Services to Professional Floor and Janitorial Services for 
all City offices for an annual expenditure of $190,613.28. 
 
Assistant Director of Public Works Charles McLemore described the current janitorial 
service and the re-bidding process. 
 
13.16 - Presentation, possible action and discussion on a request for an Oversized 
Participation Agreement to upsize a waterline and street improvements for the 
Waterwood Condominiums in the total amount of $27,101.00. 

110



City Council Meeting 5/25/2006  Page 2 

 
At the Council's request, Assistant Director of Public Works Charles McLemore 
described the proposed project. 
 
13.19 - Presentation, possible action, and discussion to approve a resolution by the City 
Council of the City of College Station, Texas, directing publication of notice of intention 
to issue certificates of obligation, series 2006; and providing an effective date.   
 
Council member McIlhaney noted that she would abstain from voting on this item.  
Director of Finance and Strategic Planning described projects related to the issue for 
certificates of obligation, series 2006. 
 
Workshop Agenda Item No. 3 -- Presentation, possible action, and discussion 
regarding giving a local preference in bid/contract awards in accordance with Local 
Government Code 271.0951. 
 
Purchasing Manager Cheryl Turney reminded the City Council of the statutory provisions 
governing the award of bids, exceptions, statutory requirements, definitions, and 
advantages and disadvantages.  The local impact for implementing a local preference 
policy would vary depending on the guidelines established by the City Council.  Ms. 
Turney proposed the following recommendations: 
 
Ø Apply to all local business 
Ø Apply to all goods and services that is competitively bid by City staff 
Ø Exclude construction contracts 
Ø Incorporate local preference language in fiscal policies found in the budget and 

Purchasing Manual 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Happ left the workshop meeting at 2:52 p.m. 
 
City Council directed staff to bring forward any local preference bids on a case by case 
basis, if an award might be economic benefit to the City.   
 
Workshop Agenda Item No. 4 -- Presentation, possible action, and discussion on an 
overlay zoning district for the property located at the intersection of Greens Prairie 
Road (SH 40) and State Highway 6 South. 
 
Acting Director of Planning and Development Services Lance Simms noted that staff's  
intent was to apply the overlay to the area of planned commercial development 
concentrated at the intersection of Greens Prairie (SH 40) and Highway 6 South 
intersection.  The City’s Comprehensive Land Use Plan designates more than 300 acres 
of land as Regional Retail in this area.  Mr. Simms pointed out that property owners were 
generally opposed to additional development regulations and questioned what the City 
desired beyond the Non-Residential Architectural Standards currently in effect.   
 

111



City Council Meeting 5/25/2006  Page 3 

After a brief discussion, the consensus of the City Council was to direct staff to apply 
existing Overlay Zoning District that address signage, building/parking setbacks and auto 
repair facilities for the property located at the intersection of Greens Prairie Road and 
State Highway 6 South. 
 
Workshop Agenda Item No. 5 -- Presentation, possible action, and discussion 
regarding City office space needs and develop a site plan for the remaining city 
owned property on Krenek Tap Road. 
 
Assistant City Manager Works Mark Smith illustrated the city’s office space needs and 
proposed a development of a site plan for the remaining city owned property on Krenek 
Tap Road.   Staff recommended the following proposals: 
 
Ø Build a new City Hall in a single phase 
Ø Work out a site development plan 
Ø Implement plans to meet operational space needs until new facilities are available 
 

Council directed staff to move forward on a site development plan, implement a plan to 
meet immediate space needs, and the completion of the 2nd floor of the Municipal Court 
Building.  Council members expressed a desire to construct a new City Hall in the future 
as one project, rather than a phased approach.    
 
Council recessed at 4:01 p.m. for a short break and reconvened the workshop meeting at 
4:15 p.m. 
 
Workshop Agenda Item No. 6 -- Presentation, possible action, and discussion on 
future agenda items: A Council Member may inquire about a subject for which 
notice has not been given.  A statement of specific factual information or the 
recitation of existing policy may be given.  Any deliberation shall be limited to a 
proposal to place the subject on an agenda for a subsequent meeting. 
 
Council member Scotti requested an executive session agenda item under economic 
development regarding a laboratory venture. 
 
Council member Ruesink requested an agenda item regarding an overview of the 
anticipated traffic impacts of the development of vacant property in the Sebesta area. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Happ returned to the workshop meeting at 4:15 p.m. 
 
Workshop Agenda Item No. 7 – Council Calendars 
 
May 18-22 Making Cities Livable Conference, Santa Fe – La Fonda Hotel 
May 23 Collaborative Partnership Announcement, Annenberg Presidential Conference 

Center – 4:00 p.m. – 5:30 p.m. 
May 24 Special Meeting - Canvass of Election,  Noon, Council Chambers 
May 25 City Council Workshop and Regular Meeting, 1:30 p.m. 

112



City Council Meeting 5/25/2006  Page 4 

May 26 Interdisciplinary Life Sciences Building Groundbreaking, TAMU 
May 29 Office Closed 
May 31 International Faith Dialogue Student Association BBQ Luncheon – Central 

Park Pavilion – Noon – 1:30 p.m. 
June 2   TML Open Govt. Workshop – Austin – 8 a.m. – 5 p.m. 
June 4   B/CS Summer Grand Slam Tennis Tournament Banquet – The Zone  
June 6   Community Impact Award Luncheon – Briarcrest Country Club 
June 8   City Council Workshop and Regular Meeting 3:00 p.m. 
June 14 Newman 10 Business Performance Awards Luncheon Hilton Bluebonnet 

Room – 11:30 a.m. – 1:00 p.m. 
June19  IGC Meeting – TAMU – Noon – 1:30 p.m. 
June 20 Council Transportation Committee Meeting, Admin Conf. Rm 
June 22 City Council Workshop and Regular Meeting 3:00 p.m. 
June 29-30 College Station City Council Retreat 
 
Council reviewed their upcoming meetings and events. 
 
Workshop Agenda Item No. 8 -- Discussion, review and possible action regarding 
the following meetings:  Brazos County Health Dept., Brazos Animal Shelter, 
Brazos Valley Council of Governments, Cemetery Committee, City Center,  Design 
Review Board, Façade Improvement Program Advisory Committee, Fraternal 
Partnership, Historic Preservation Committee, Interfaith Dialogue Association, 
Intergovernmental Committee and School District, Joint Relief Funding Review 
Committee, Library Committee, Making Cities Livable Conference,  Metropolitan 
Planning Organization, Outside Agency Funding Review, Parks and Recreation 
Board, Planning and Zoning Commission, Sister City Association, TAMU Student 
Senate,  Research Valley Partnership, Transportation Committee, Wolf Pen Creek 
Oversight Committee, Wolf Pen Creek TIF Board, Zoning Board of Adjustments. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Happ presented highlights of the Intergovernmental Committee and 
Transportation Committee Meetings. 
 
Council member Gay conveyed comments about the Council Transportation Committee 
and School of Rural/Public Health meetings. 
 
Council member Scotti expressed comments about the Research Valley Partnership 
Committee meeting. 
 
Mayor Silvia reported on issues at the recent meeting of the Brazos Valley Council of 
Governments.   
 
Workshop Agenda Item No. 9 -- Executive Session 
 
At 4:55 p.m., Mayor Silvia announced in open session that the City Council would 
convene into executive session pursuant to Sections 551.071, 551.074, and 551.087 of the 
open meeting act, to seek the advice of our attorney with respect to pending and 

113



City Council Meeting 5/25/2006  Page 5 

contemplated litigation, to consider the evaluation of a public officer, and economic 
development negotiations. 
 
Consultation with Attorney {Gov’t Code Section 551.071}: 
 
TCEQ Docket No. 2002-1147-UCR, Applications of Brushy Water Supply and College Station 
(Westside/Highway 60) 
TCEQ Docket No. 2003-0544MWD, Application of Nantucket, Ltd. 
TXU Lone Star Gas Rate Request. 
Cause No. 03-002098-CV-85, Brazos County, College Station v. Wellborn Special Utility District 
Civil Action No. H-04-4558, U.S. District Court, Southern District of Texas, Houston Division, 
College Station v. U.S. Dept. of Agriculture, etc., and Wellborn Special Utility District 
Civil Action No. H-04-3876, U.S. District Court, Southern District of Texas, Houston Division 
JK Development v. College Station 
GUD No. 9530 Gas Cost Prudence Review, Atmos Energy Corporation 
GUD No. 9560 Gas Reliability Infrastructure Program (GRIP) rate increases, Atmos Energy 
Corporation  
Cause No. GN-502012, Travis County, TMPA v. PUC (College Station filed Intervention 7/6/05) 
 
Competitive Matter {Gov’t Code Section 551.086}; possible action 
The City Council may deliberate, vote, or take final action on a competitive matter in closed 
session.  The City Council must make a good faith determination, by majority vote of the City 
Council, that the matter is a Competitive Matter.  A “Competitive Matter” is a utility-related 
matter that the City Council determines is related to the City of College Station’s Electric Utility 
Competitive Activity, including commercial information, which if disclosed would give 
advantage to competitors or prospective competitors.  The following is a general representation of 
the subject(s) to be considered as a competitive matter. 
 
Discuss power supply contract for electric utility 
 
Economic Incentive Negotiations {Gov’t Code Section 551.087}; possible action 
The City Council may deliberate on commercial or financial information that the City Council 
has received from a business prospect that the City Council seeks to have locate, stay or expand 
in or near the city with which the City Council in conducting economic development negotiations 
may deliberate on an offer of financial or other incentives for a business prospect.  After 
executive session discussion, any final action or vote taken will be in public.  The following 
subject(s) may be discussed: 

 
The proposed city convention center and associated privately developed hotel 

 Gameday/Café Eccell 
 Mixed Use redevelopment project – Church Avenue 
 Radakor, LLC – Mixed Use redevelopment projects in Northgate 

 
Personnel {Gov’t Code Section 551.074}; possible action 
The City Council may deliberate the appointment, employment, evaluation, 
reassignment, duties, discipline, or dismissal of a public officer.  After executive session 
discussion, any final action or vote taken will be in public.  The following public 
officer(s) may be discussed: 
 
City Manager evaluation 

114



City Council Meeting 5/25/2006  Page 6 

 
Workshop Agenda Item No. 10 -- Final Action on executive session, if necessary.  
 
Council returned from executive session at 6:55 p.m.  No action was taken. 
 
Regular Meeting 
 
Mayor Silvia called the regular meeting to order at 7:05 p.m.  He led the audience in the 
Pledge of Allegiance.  Program Coordinator of Texas A&M International Students Kim 
Fox introduced Mr. Mohsin Reza and Ms. Anindita Ahmed from Bangladesh.  Mr. Reza 
and Ms Ahmed presented a map with the location of Bangladesh.  They also described 
the culture and heritage. 
 
Hear Visitors 
 
Council did not receive any public comment. 
 
Consent Agenda 
 
13.1 Approved by common consent Ordinance No. 2890 modifying Chapter 10, 

“Traffic Code,” Section 2.D of the Code of Ordinances of the City of College 
Station by updating the Traffic Control Device Inventory – Schedule III to add 
STOP signs at various intersections. 

 
13.2 Approved by common consent Ordinance No. 2891 amending Chapter 10, 

“Traffic Code,” Section 2.C of the Code of Ordinances of the City of College 
Station by updating the Traffic Control Device Inventory – Schedule II to include 
the installation of a four-way stop at the intersection of Jones-Butler Road and 
Dowling Road. 

 
13.3 Approved by common consent a participation agreement providing for the City to 

reimburse Smiling Mallard Development $78,846.32 for the construction of an 
oversized sewer line. 

 
13.4 Approved by common consent an interlocal agreement with Brazos County for 

providing an Internet based law library service on a computer in the Larry J. 
Ringer Library. 

 
13.5 Approved by common consent Resolution No. 5-25-2006-13.05 approving the 

construction contract (Contract No. 06-207) with Brazos Valley Services in the 
amount of $151,535.00 for the construction of the Central Park Lane Extension 
Project (ST-0509). 

 
13.6 Approved by common consent Resolution No. 5-25-2006-13.06 awarding the 

Annual Contract for Janitorial services to Professional Floor and Janitorial 
Services for all City offices for an annual expenditure of $190,613.28. 

 

115



City Council Meeting 5/25/2006  Page 7 

13.7 Approved by common consent Resolution No. 5-25-2006-13.07 approving a 
professional services contract with CSC Engineering & Environmental 
Consultants, Inc. in the amount of $81,000.00 for the supplemental engineering 
and environmental services at the Rock Prairie Road Landfill.    

 
13.8 Approved by common consent the renewal of the purchasing agreement for liquid 

chlorine from DXI Industries not to exceed $51,300.00. 
 
13.9 Approved by common consent the renewal of an annual purchasing agreement for 

dewatering chemical (polymer) with Fort Bend Services, Inc. for $112,820.00. 
 
13.10 Approved by common consent Resolution No. 5-25-2006-13.10 approving a five 

(5) year agreement with Texas Commercial Waste for the lease of slant-top, front-
end loading refuse containers for an annual estimated expenditure of $165,420. 

 
13.11 Approved by common consent the rejection of Bid No. 05-06 for printing 

letterhead, envelopes, and business cards. 
 
13.12 Approved by common consent Resolution No. 5-25-2006-13.12 declaring 

intention to reimburse expenditures from the issuance of debt. 
 
13.13 Approved by common consent Ordinance No. 2892 amending Chapter 4, Section 

1, Subsection C (1) of the code of ordinances relating to the duration of itinerant 
vendors' permits.  

 
13.14 Approved by common consent a renewal agreement with Badger Meter, Inc. for 

the annual purchase of water meters to be maintained in inventory, Bid No. 04-44, 
for an annual expenditure of $101,603.00.  

 
13.15 Approved by common consent the annual renewal agreement(s) for Temporary 

Employment Services with Human Resource Connection in the amount of 
$79,000 and Willstaff Worldwide in the amount of $25,000. 

 
13.16 Approved by common consent an Oversized Participation Agreement to upsize a 

waterline and street improvements for the Waterwood Condominiums in the total 
amount of $27,101.00. 

 
13.17 Approved by common consent a request for Oversize Participation (OP) for a 

street and water line improvement in the Westfield Village Subdivision Phases 4 
& 5 in the combined total of $27,723.00. 

 
13.18 Approved by common consent a request for Oversize Participation (OP) for a 

water and sanitary line improvement in the Castlegate Subdivision Phase 6 in the 
combined total of $23,198.00.  

 

116



City Council Meeting 5/25/2006  Page 8 

13.19 Presentation, possible action, and discussion to approve a resolution by the City 
Council of the City of College Station, Texas, directing publication of notice of 
intention to issue certificates of obligation, series 2006; and providing an effective 
date.  Council member White moved to approve Resolution No. 5-25-2006-13.19 
approving publication of notice of intention to issue certificates of obligation, 
series 2006, and providing an effective date.  Mayor Pro Tem Happ seconded the 
motion which carried by a vote of 6-0-1. 

 
FOR:  Silvia, Happ, White, Gay, Scotti, Ruesink 
AGSENT:  None 
ABSTAINED:  McIlhaney 
 
13.20 Approved by common consent Ordinance No. 2893 denying the proposal by 

Atmos Energy Corporation to implement interim (GRIP) Gas Reliability 
Infrastructure Program rate adjustments for gas utility investment in 2005. 

 
13.21 Approved by common consent the second reading of an ordinance amending the 

cable television franchise ordinance (Ordinance No. 2682) pertaining to the 
assignment of the franchise from Cox Southwest Holdings, L.P. to Cebridge 
Acquisition, L.P. 

 
13.22 Approved by common consent the City Manager’s Severance Agreement.   
 
13.23 Approved by common consent Ordinance No. 2894 naming State Highway 40 

and the renaming of Greens Prairie Road to William D. Fitch Parkway. 
 
13.24 Approved by common consent the Termination of an Economic Development 

Agreement with VPI Communications, Inc. (Cabletime). 
 
13.25 Approved by common consent naming the youth baseball field #3 at Southwood 

Athletic Park “Gary Marske Filed”. 
 
13.26 Approved by common consent the minutes for College Station City Council 

Workshop and Regular Meeting on March 23, 2006, April 13, 2006, April 27, 
2006, and May 4, 2006. 

 
Regular Agenda 
 
Regular Agenda Item No. 14.1 -- Public hearing, presentation, possible action, and 
discussion on an ordinance amending Chapter 12, Article 7.4 of the Unified 
Development Ordinance regulating signs. 
 
Acting Director of Planning and Development Lance Simms presented a brief overview 
of the proposed ordinance amendment and described the following changes: 
 
Ø Non-Commercial & political signs 

117



City Council Meeting 5/25/2006  Page 9 

Ø Sign removal 
Ø Community spirit signs 
Ø Signage for neighborhood groups 

 
The Planning and Zoning Commission and staff recommended approval of this item. 
 
Mayor Silvia opened the public hearing. 
 
The following citizens addressed the city council regarding signage for special events. 
 
Bill Trainer, 8505 Amethyst Court 
Kenneth Shanek, 1007 Krenek Tap Road 
Kip Gilts, 9210 Riverstone Court 
 
Mayor Silvia closed the public hearing. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Happ moved to approve an ordinance amending Chapter 12, Article 7.4 
of the Unified Development Ordinance regulating signs by adding a $200.00 permit fee 
for businesses and waive the permit fee for non-profits.  Council member White seconded 
the motion. 
 
Council member Scotti moved to amend the motion by adding language for churches that 
meet at a temporary location; one permit per year and the signage displayed on the day of 
the event.  Council member Ruesink seconded the motion, which carried unanimously,  
7-0. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Happ moved to approve an ordinance amending Chapter 12, Article 7.4 
of the Unified Development Ordinance regulating signs adding a $200.00 permit fee for 
business and waive the permit fee for non-profits.  Council member White seconded the 
motion, which failed by a vote of 0-7. 
 
FOR:  None 
AGAINST:  Silvia, Happ, White, Gay, McIlhaney, Scotti, Ruesink 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Happ moved to amend the motion directing staff to draft an ordinance 
with the following stipulations and bring forward on a future agenda: 
 
Ø For church that meets at a temporary location: one permit per year and signage 

can only be displayed on the day of the service. 
Ø Adding a $200.00 permit fee for business  
Ø Waive the permit fee for non-profits. 
Ø Banners must be mounted on a permanent structure 
Ø A time period for which banners can be displayed 

 
Council member White seconded the motion, which carried unanimously, 7-0. 
 

118



City Council Meeting 5/25/2006  Page 10 

FOR:  Silvia, Happ, White, Gay, McIlhaney, Scotti, Ruesink 
AGAINST:  None 
 
Regular Agenda Item No. 14.2 -- Public hearing, presentation, possible action and 
discussion on an amendment to the Comprehensive Land Use Plan for 
approximately 1.4 acres from Floodplain to Retail Regional for the area generally 
located southwest of the intersection of future Decatur Drive and future Arrington 
Road. 
 
Staff Planner Lindsay Boyer presented a staff report and pointed out that the Planning 
and Zoning Commission and staff recommended approval of this item. 
 
Mayor Silvia opened the public hearing. 
 
Chuck Ellison, 2902 Camille Drive, spoke in favor of the amendment to the 
Comprehensive Land Use Plan. 
 
Mayor Silvia closed the public hearing. 
 
Council member Scotti moved to approve Ordinance No. 2895 amending the 
Comprehensive Land Use Plan for approximately 1.4 acres from Floodplain to Retail 
Regional for the area generally located southwest of the intersection of future Decatur 
Drive and Future Arrington Road.  Mayor Pro Tem Happ seconded the motion, which 
carried unanimously, 7-0. 
 
FOR:  Silvia, Happ, White, Gay, McIlhaney, Scotti, Ruesink 
AGAINST:  None 
 
Regular Agenda Item No. 14.3 -- Public hearing, presentation, possible action, and 
discussion on an ordinance rezoning Spring Creek consisting of one lot on 28.01 
acres located at 4300 SH 6 South in the general vicinity of the future intersection of 
Decatur Drive and Arrington Drive, southwest of the existing intersection of 
Alexandria Avenue and Decatur Drive from R-4, Multi-family, A-O, Agricultural 
Open, and R-1, Single Family to R-1, Single Family Residential, A-P, Administrative 
Professional, and C-1, General Commercial. 
 
Staff Planner Lindsay Boyer presented a staff report and pointed out that the Planning 
and Zoning Commission and staff recommended approval of this item. 
 
Mayor Silvia opened the public hearing. 
 
Chuck Ellison, 2902 Camille Drive, spoke in favor of the rezoning. 
 
Mayor Silvia closed the public hearing. 
 

119



City Council Meeting 5/25/2006  Page 11 

Council member Gay moved to approve Ordinance No. 2896 rezoning Spring Creek 
consisting of one lot on 28.01 acres located at 4300 SH 6 South in the general vicinity of 
the future intersection of Decatur Drive and Arrington Drive, southwest of the existing 
intersection of Alexandria Avenue and Decatur Drive from R-4, Multi-family, A-O, 
Agricultural Open, and R-1, Single Family to R-1, Single Family Residential, A-P, 
Administrative Professional, and C-1, General Commercial.  Council member White 
seconded the motion, which carried unanimously, 7-0. 
 
FOR:  Silvia, Happ, White, Gay, McIlhaney, Scotti, Ruesink 
AGAINST:  None 
 
Regular Agenda Item No. 14.4 -- Public hearing, presentation, possible action, and 
discussion on an ordinance rezoning consisting of one lot on 3.67 acres located at the 
southeast corner of William D. Fitch Parkway (SH 40) and Barron Road from A-O 
Agricultural-Open to C-3 Light Commercial. 
 
Senior Planner Trey Fletcher presented a brief overview of the proposed rezoning.  The 
Planning and Zoning Commission and staff recommended approval. 
 
Mayor Silvia opened the public hearing. 
 
The following citizen addressed the City Council regarding the rezoning. 
 
Bill Trainer, 8505 Amethyst Court 
 
Mayor Silvia closed the public hearing. 
 
Council member Gay moved to approve Ordinance No. 2897 rezoning one lot on 3.67 
acres located at the southeast corner of William D. Fitch Parkway (SW 40) and Barron 
Road from A-O Agricultural-Open to C-3 Light Commercial.  Council member White 
seconded the motion which carried unanimously, 7-0.   
 
FOR:  Silvia, Happ, White, Gay, McIlhaney, Scotti, Ruesink 
AGAINST:  None 
 
Regular Agenda Item No. 14.5 -- Public hearing, presentation, possible action, and 
discussion on a Conditional Use Permit - Use & Site for a Verizon Wireless 
telecommunications tower located at 1500 Harvey Road in the general vicinity of 
Post Oak Mall. 
 
Senior Planner Trey Fletcher described the Conditional Use Permit noting that it fulfills 
all requirements.  The Planning and Zoning Commission and staff recommended 
approval of the Conditional Use Permit for use and site for a Verizon Wireless 
telecommunications tower. 
 
Mayor Silvia opened the public hearing. 

120



City Council Meeting 5/25/2006  Page 12 

 
Shep Poland, 3500 East Alabama Road, Wharton, Texas spoke in favor of the conditional 
use permit and offered to answer any questions of the City Council. 
 
Mayor Silvia closed the public hearing. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Happ moved to approve Ordinance No. 2898 approving a conditional 
use permit – use & site for a Verizon Stealth Wireless Telecommunications Tower 
located at 1500 Harvey Road in the general vicinity of Post Oak Mall.  Council member 
White seconded the motion which carried unanimously, 7-0. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Happ amended his motion to include maintenance of the flag and 
surrounding area.  Council member White seconded the motion which carried 
unanimously, 7-0.   
 
FOR:  Silvia, Happ, White, Gay, McIlhaney, Scotti, Ruesink 
AGAINST:  None 
 
Council recessed for a short break at 8:58 p.m. and reconvened the regular meeting at 
9:09 p.m. 
 
Regular Agenda Item No. 14.6 -- Presentation, possible action, and discussion on 1) 
acceptance of a landowners' petition for the designation of Reinvestment Zone #16 
in the Northgate District as provided for under Chapter 311, Tax Code; and 2) a 
Resolution calling for a public hearing for the creation of Tax Increment 
Reinvestment Zone #16 as a tax increment financing zone. 
 
Acting Director of Community and Economic Development Charles Wood conveyed 
factors regarding the designation of Reinvestment Zone 16 in the Northgate District and a 
resolution calling for a public hearing for the creation of Tax Increment Reinvestment 
Zone #16 as a tax increment financing zone. 
 
Council member Gay moved to approve the acceptance of a landowners’ petition for the 
designation of Reinvestment Zone #16 in the Northgate District as provided for under 
Chapter 311, Tax Code and Resolution No. 5-25-2006-14.6 calling for a public hearing 
for the creation of Tax Increment Reinvestment Zone #16 as a tax increment financing 
zone.  Council member Scotti seconded the motion which carried unanimously, 7-0. 
FOR:  Silvia, Happ, White, Gay, McIlhaney, Scotti, Ruesink 
AGAINST:  None 
 
Regular Agenda Item No. 14.7 -- Presentation, possible action, and discussion 
regarding a possible appointment to the board of Directors for the Brazos Valley 
Veterans Memorial, Inc. 
 
This item was removed from the regular agenda by staff. 
 

121



City Council Meeting 5/25/2006  Page 13 

Regular Agenda Item No. 15 -- The City Council may convene the executive session 
following the regular meeting to discuss matters posted on the executive session 
agenda for May 25, 2006. 
 
At 9:27 p.m., Mayor Silvia announced in open session that the City Council would 
convene into executive session pursuant to Sections 551.071 and 551.087 of the open 
meeting act, to seek the advice of our attorney with respect to pending and contemplated 
litigation, and economic development negotiations. 
 
Regular Agenda Item No. 16 -- Final action on executive session, if necessary. 
 
Council returned to open session at 10:15 pm.   No action was taken.   
 
Regular Agenda Item No. 17 – Adjourn. 
 
Hearing no objections, the meeting adjourned at 10:15  p.m. on Thursday, May 25, 2006. 
 
PASSED and APPROVED ON ___________day of ______________, 2006 
 
     
     APPROVED:   
 
     ___________________________ 
     Mayor Ron Silvia 
 
ATTEST: 
 
________________________________ 
City Secretary Connie Hooks 
 
 

122



 

 

________________________________________________________________________ 
Draft Minutes 

City Council Special Meeting 
Wednesday, May 24, 2006at 12:00 p.m. 

City Hall Council Chambers, 1101 Texas Avenue 
College Station, Texas 

 
COUNCIL MEMBERS PRESENT:  Mayor Silvia, Council members, White, Gay, 
Lancaster, Happ 
 
COUNCIL MEMBERS ABSENT:  Council members Berry, Scotti 
 
STAFF PRESENT:  City Manager Brown, City Attorney Cargill Jr., City Secretary 
Hooks, Assistant City Secretary Casares 
 
Mayor Silvia called the special meeting to order at 12:05 p.m. 
 
Special Agenda Item No. 1 – Presentation, possible action, discussion on a resolution 
to canvass the results of General and Special Election held on May 13, 2006. 
Kay Parker, Central Counting Judge for the May 13, 2006 election, citied the resolution 
declaring the results official. 
 
Council member Lancaster moved to approve Resolution No. 5-24-2006-01 as presented.  
Council member White seconded the motion, which carried unanimously, 5-0. 
 
FOR:  Silvia, Happ, White, Gay, Lancaster 
AGAINST:  None 
ABSENT:  Berry, Scotti 
 
Special Agenda Item No. 2 – Adjourn. 
Hearing no objections, the meeting adjourned at p.m.12:17 p.m. on Wednesday, May 24, 
2006. 
      APPROVED: 
      _______________________ 
      Mayor Ron Silvia 
ATTEST:   
______________________________ 
City Secretary Connie Hooks 
 

123



 

 

June 22, 2006 
Consent Agenda  

Resolution Requesting the Approval for Condemnation of Property for the Brazos 
to College Station Switch Station Transmission Line Tie Project 

 
To: Glenn Brown, City Manager 
 
From: David Massey, Director of College Station Utilities Electric Department                         
 
 
Agenda Caption:  Presentation, possible action, and discussion regarding a resolution 
authorizing the City to condemn certain property located in the vicinity of the intersection of 
State Highway 30 and State Highway 158 in Brazos County for an electric utility easement 
necessary for the Brazos to College Station Switch Transmission Line Tie Project. 
 
 
Recommendation(s):  Staff recommends approval of the resolution. 
 
 
Summary:  This easement is needed to complete the route for the Brazos to College 
Station Switch Station Transmission Line Tie Project.  This project will provide needed 
transmission capacity for the community. 
  
Staff has been negotiating with Canyon Creek Partners, Ltd., who are the owners of the 
property.  Approval of this resolution will authorize staff to proceed with condemnation of 
the property. 
 
 
Budget & Financial Summary:  Funds are budgeted and available in the College Station 
Utilities Electric Department Capital Improvement Project Budget.  
 
 
Attachments: 
 Needs Resolution 
 Exhibit A 
 Location Map 
 
 
 

124



 
RESOLUTION NO.  _________________________ 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COLLEGE STATION, TEXAS 
RELATING TO:  (1) THE AUTHORITY OF THE CITY TO INITIATE, COMPLETE, AND 
ACQUIRE THROUGH CONDEMNATION AN EXCLUSIVE, PERMANENT PUBLIC 
UTILITY EASEMENT REGARDING 2.80 ACRES OF LAND, MORE OR LESS, IN BRAZOS 
COUNTY, TEXAS, A PART OF THE MARIA KEGANS LEAGUE, ABSTRACT NO. 28; (2) 
A DECLARATION THAT A PUBLIC NECESSITY EXISTS FOR THE CITY TO ACQUIRE 
SAID EASEMENT THROUGH CONDEMNATION IN ORDER TO ACCOMPLISH AN 
AUTHORIZED AND DECLARED PUBLIC USE AND PURPOSE; (3) THE RATIFICATION 
OF ALL PRIOR CITY ACTS AND RESOLUTIONS; AND (4) THE ESTABLISHMENT OF 
AN EFFECTIVE DATE AND COMPLIANCE WITH THE OPEN MEETING STATUTES.  
 
WHEREAS, the City of College Station, Texas (“City”) is a home rule municipality which is 
duly incorporated and chartered under the constitution and laws of the State of Texas; and  
 
WHEREAS, the City owns, operates, constructs, repairs, and maintains a municipal electric 
utility system (“electric utility system”) as a public service, in order to provide electric power 
service to the public and the City, now and in the future; and  
 
WHEREAS, the City’s ownership, operation, construction, repair, and maintenance of the 
electric utility system is a benefit to the public, because the system currently provides, and will 
provide in the future, an important source of electric power to the public and the City.  Therefore, 
the electric utility system, including the City’s ownership, operation, construction, repair, and 
maintenance of the system, now and in the future, are hereby declared to be worthwhile public 
uses and purposes; and  
 
WHEREAS, the City, through a condemnation proceeding, may exercise the power of eminent 
domain to acquire property, inside or outside the municipality, in order to efficiently carry out 
the ownership, operation, construction, repair, and maintenance of its electric utility system 
pursuant to the following, non-exclusive authority which is hereby incorporated by reference:  
Chapters 251 and 402 of the Texas Local Government Code; Chapter 21 of the Texas Property 
Code; and articles I and II of the City Charter; and  
 
WHEREAS, the City is engaged in the following project regarding the improvement and 
expansion of its electric utility system:  the Brazos Tie Transmission Line Project (“project”).  
This project has been the subject of review and approval by the Electric Reliability Council of 
Texas (“ERCOT”).  This ERCOT approved project will benefit the public, the City, and the 
entire Bryan-College Station area because its completion and operation will enhance and 
improve the sources of electric power available to the community at large.  Therefore, this 
ERCOT approved project, which includes the acquisition of the exclusive, public utility 
easement and right of way herein described, is hereby declared to be a worthwhile public use and 
purpose; and 
 

125



RESOLUTION NO. _______________________      Page 2 
 
 

C:\DOCUME~1\Cskelton\LOCALS~1\Temp\Condemnation Resolution.doc 2 

WHEREAS, the City determines that the best interests and needs of the public, including the 
health, safety, and welfare of the public, require that the City’s electric utility system should be 
improved and expanded by the City’s acquisition through a condemnation proceeding of an 
exclusive, permanent public utility easement and right of way (“permanent public utility 
easement”) regarding the project, on, in, over, ABOVE, along, under, across, and through a 
certain tract or parcel of land, being and situated in Brazos County, Texas, containing 2.80 acres, 
more or less, a part of the Maria Kegans League, Abstract No. 28, therein (“subject property”), in 
exchange for the payment of reasonable, adequate, and just compensation by the City to the 
owner or owners thereof, said subject property being more particularly described by metes and 
bounds and survey plat in Exhibit A, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference; and  
 
WHEREAS, pursuant the authority stated herein, the City intends and seeks to acquire the 
permanent public utility easement regarding the subject property for the following, declared 
public use and purpose regarding the project:  (a) the construction, installation, inspection, 
placement and removal of electric power lines and related electric utility infrastructure, facilities, 
and improvements by the City, on, in, above, under, and below the ground, in order to improve, 
expand, and maintain the transmission and distribution of electricity within the City’s electric 
utility system, now and in the future, for the benefit of the public and the City, as described 
herein; and (b) the permanent ownership, operation, construction, repair, inspection, placement, 
removal, and maintenance of the electric utility system at the location of said easement on the 
subject property, including all utility infrastructure, facilities, or improvements placed on, in, 
above, under, and below the ground, in order to improve, expand, and maintain the transmission 
and distribution of electricity within the City’s electric utility system, now and in the future, for 
the benefit of the public and the City, as described herein; and  
 
WHEREAS, pursuant to the project, a public necessity exists for the City to acquire through a 
condemnation proceeding the permanent public utility easement regarding the subject property 
for the public uses and purposes described herein, and  
 
WHEREAS, pursuant to the project, the City’s acquisition of the permanent public utility 
easement through a condemnation proceeding is necessary to accomplish, achieve, and advance 
the public uses and purposes described herein; and  
 
WHEREAS, upon acquisition of the permanent public utility easement, the City shall allow the 
owner of the subject property to use all or any part of the easement acquired for any purpose that 
does not damage, destroy, injure, or interfere with the City’s efficient, safe, or convenient use of 
the easement acquired, as described herein, including the specific use limitations of said owner 
as described herein;  now, therefore, 
 
BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COLLEGE STATION, 
TEXAS:   
 

126



RESOLUTION NO. _______________________      Page 3 
 
 

C:\DOCUME~1\Cskelton\LOCALS~1\Temp\Condemnation Resolution.doc 3 

PART 1: Singular nouns and pronouns shall include the plural, and the masculine gender 
shall include the feminine gender, where necessary for a correct meaning of this 
resolution.  

 
PART 2: All prior resolutions or orders regarding the project, the permanent public utility 

easement, and the subject property are hereby supplemented and incorporated by 
reference.   

 
PART 3: All prior acts of the City, including the acts of its elected officials, officers, 

employees, agents, or attorneys, regarding the project, the permanent public utility 
easement, and the subject property are hereby authorized, ratified, approved, 
confirmed, and validated. 

 
PART 4: All statements made in the caption, preamble, and preliminary recitals of, and the 

documents attached to, this resolution, are true, correct, and incorporated by 
reference.   

 
PART 5: The best interests and needs of the public, including the health, safety, and 

welfare of the public, pursuant to the utility project described above, require that 
the electric utility system of the City be improved and expanded by the City’s 
acquisition of the permanent public utility easement regarding the subject 
property, as described herein.  

 
PART 6: The permanent public utility easement regarding the subject property, pursuant to 

the project and as described herein, is sought and shall be acquired by the City for 
the following public uses and purposes: 

 
a.  the construction, installation, inspection, placement and removal of 

electric power lines and related electric utility infrastructure, facilities, and 
improvements by the City, on, in, above, under, across, through, and 
below the ground, including but not limited to electric transmission lines, 
connecting lines, access facilities, poles, pole grounding, assembly, and 
foundation structures and equipment, insulator structures and equipment, 
wires, attachment structures and equipment, cross-arm assembly structures 
and equipment, and communication lines specifically related thereto, in 
order to improve, expand, and maintain the transmission and distribution 
of electricity within the City’s electric utility system, now and in the 
future, for the benefit of the public and the City;   

 
b.  the permanent ownership, operation, construction, repair, inspection, 

placement, removal, and maintenance of the electric utility system at the 
location of said easement on the subject property, including all utility 
infrastructure, facilities, or improvements placed on, in, above, under, 

127



RESOLUTION NO. _______________________      Page 4 
 
 

C:\DOCUME~1\Cskelton\LOCALS~1\Temp\Condemnation Resolution.doc 4 

across, through, and below the ground, as described herein, in order to 
improve, expand, and maintain the transmission and distribution of 
electricity within the City’s electric utility system, now and in the future, 
for the benefit of the public and the City; and  

 
c.  any other public use and purpose described in this resolution.  

 
PART 7: All public uses and purposes described in this resolution are hereby declared to be 

worthwhile, convenient, and necessary to justify and support the acquisition of the 
permanent public utility easement by the City through a condemnation 
proceeding.    

 
PART 8: Regarding the permanent public utility easement and subject property described in 

this resolution, and pursuant to the project, the City hereby declares the following:  
 

a.  The City made a bona fide, good faith offer to purchase said easement 
from the owner of the subject property.  Said offer was rejected or not 
accepted by the owner.  Thus, the City and said owner are unable to agree 
on the issue of damages or compensation.  Therefore, a public necessity 
and convenience exists for the City to acquire said easement through a 
condemnation proceeding for the public uses and purposes stated in this 
resolution.   

 
b.  The City’s acquisition of said easement through a condemnation 

proceeding is necessary and convenient to accomplish, achieve, and 
advance the public uses and purposes stated in this resolution.  

 
PART 9: Pursuant to the project, the City’s elected officials, officers, employees, agents, 

representatives, and attorneys are hereby authorized to engage in the following 
conduct regarding the permanent public utility easement and the subject property:   

 
a.  Said representatives shall have the authority to lay-out or map the exact 

location of the land needed regarding the subject property.   
 
b.  Said representatives shall have the authority to hire, engage, or direct such 

City staff, engineers, surveyors, appraisers, title companies, architects, 
attorneys, or other persons or entities needed to obtain or complete: the 
mapping or design of the necessary utility infrastructure, facilities, or 
improvements on the subject property; the establishment and acquisition 
of the necessary title to the subject property, including the initiation and 
completion of all administrative and adjudicative phases of a 
condemnation proceeding; and the construction, operation, inspection, 

128



RESOLUTION NO. _______________________      Page 5 
 
 

C:\DOCUME~1\Cskelton\LOCALS~1\Temp\Condemnation Resolution.doc 5 

removal and maintenance of the necessary utility infrastructure, facilities, 
or improvements on the subject property.   

 
c.  Said representatives shall have the authority, with the consent of the 

property owner or through a court order, to enter upon property for the 
purpose of:  surveying and establishing title; determining reasonable, 
adequate, and just compensation; conducting tests; or negotiating with the 
owner for the purchase for the City of all required property interests and 
title regarding the subject property.   

 
d. Said representatives shall continue to have the authority to determine 

reasonable, adequate, and just compensation for said easement, and to 
negotiate with the property owner for the purpose of acquiring for the City 
all required property interests and title regarding the subject property.   
 

e. Said representatives shall have the authority to initiate and complete all 
administrative and adjudicative phases of a condemnation proceeding 
against the property owner, in order to acquire through condemnation all 
required property interests and title regarding the subject property.   
 

f. Said representatives shall have the authority to initiate and complete all 
other actions deemed necessary and appropriate to obtain the 
accomplishment of the public uses and purposes described herein.   

 
PART 10: Upon acquisition of the permanent public utility easement, the City shall allow the 

owner of the subject property to use all or any part of the easement acquired for 
any purpose that does not damage, destroy, injure, or interfere with the City’s 
efficient, safe, or convenient use of the easement acquired.  Said owner shall not 
be allowed to lay-out, dedicate, construct, maintain, or use any house, building, 
structure, obstruction, or reservoir, or to permit same to be accomplished, on, 
over, or within said easement, except as provided herein.  However, said owner 
shall be allowed to lay-out, dedicate, construct, maintain, or use roads, streets, 
alleys, and driveways, on, over, or within said easement, provided that said use 
does not change the grade over the land of said easement without the prior written 
consent of the City.  

 
PART 11: Upon acquisition of the permanent public utility easement on the subject property, 

the City shall have the right and authority to construct, operate and maintain said 
easement, and all utility infrastructure, facilities, or improvements on, in, above, 
below, or under the subject property, in order to do what is necessary for the full 
use and enjoyment of the rights acquired by the City, including but not limited to:  
the right to select the exact location for the placement or removal of said utility 
infrastructure, facilities, or improvements; the right of ingress and egress on, in, 

129



RESOLUTION NO. _______________________      Page 6 
 
 

C:\DOCUME~1\Cskelton\LOCALS~1\Temp\Condemnation Resolution.doc 6 

above, below, under, across, and through the subject property for the purposes 
described in this resolution; the right to trim, cut, or remove trees, brush, and 
shrubbery, and the right to remove any possible hazard (including houses, 
buildings, structures, or obstructions), on, over, above, or under said easement, 
which, in the sole judgment of the City, may endanger or interfere with the 
efficient, safe, or convenient use by the City of the easement on the subject 
property for the purposes described in this resolution.   

 
PART 12: This resolution and order shall take effect immediately from and after its passage.  

This resolution was passed at a public meeting in compliance with the Texas 
Open Meetings Act.   

 
ADOPTED this  the _______ day of June, 2006.   
 
       APPROVED: 
 
 
       ___________________________________ 
       RON SILVIA, Mayor 
 

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Connie Hooks, City Secretary 
 
 
APPROVED: 
 

E-Signed by Carla A. Robinson
VERIFY authenticity with ApproveIt  

_________________________________ 
City Attorney 

130



131



132



133



134



June 22, 2006 
Regular Agenda 

Harvey Hillsides Rezoning 
 

 
To:  Glenn Brown, City Manager 
 
From:  Lance Simms, Acting Director of Planning & Development Services 
 
 
Agenda Caption: Public hearing, presentation, possible action, and discussion regarding 
an ordinance  rezoning, from A-O (Agricultural Open) to A-P (Administrative Professional), 
Harvey Hillsides, Block 1, Lot 31 consisting of 0.69 acres located at 3970 Harvey Road, 
generally located between Pamela Lane and Marcy Lane. 
 
 
Recommendation(s): The Planning & Zoning Commission recommended approval of 
this request by a vote of 3-2 on June 1, 2006. Staff recommends denial of the rezoning 
request. 
 
 
Summary: The purpose of this request is to establish A-P (Administrative-Professional) 
zoning for this 0.69-acre lot. According to the application, the proposed use is an office 
building. The subject lot is 150’ (wide) x 200’ (deep), is currently vacant, and abuts the City 
limits to the south. Both parcels flanking the subject lot are developed with single-family 
residential structures. Buffer requirements per Section 7.6 of the Unified Development 
Ordinance will apply to all three interior lot lines should this rezoning be approved. 
 
 
Budget & Financial Summary: N/A 
 
 
Attachments: 
1. Small Area Map and Aerial Map 
2. Item Background 
3. Infrastructure and Facilities 
4. Zoning Summaries for A-O and A-P 
5. Ordinance 
 
 

135



 

136



 

137



Item Background 
 
Comprehensive Plan Considerations:  
The Land Use Plan denotes this area as Planned Development. Prior to the 
Mixed-Use Opportunities Study (2003), this area was shown as Mixed Use. In 
2001, the 30/60 Area Amendment was adopted. This was one in a series of small 
area plans that were completed to provide additional direction beyond the 
Comprehensive Plan and to integrate changed conditions since the adoption of 
the Comprehensive Plan in 1997. 
 
The subject lot falls into Sub-Area 7A of the 30/60 Area Amendment. Therein, 
“rezoning proposals for changing the residences fronting Harvey Road in this 
area to a commercial use may be expected in the future. Zoning changes should 
not be made on a lot by lot basis. Such conversions should be addressed 
through the consolidation of property. Non-residential zones should be limited to 
lower intensity uses. The relatively small lots in this area abut other residential 
lots. The lot sizes and limited natural buffers in the area limit the ability to mitigate 
land use conflicts and impacts. The PDD approach should be used to provide for 
any land use changes through consolidation of property.” 
 
The Planned Development designation on the Land Use Plan is best 
implemented through either the Planned Development District (PDD) or the 
Planned Mixed-Use District (P-MUD). However, this rezoning request does not 
integrate the property flanking it which is of different ownership. Optimally, the 
PDD would be best, consolidating the adjacent properties for rezoning and 
defining a specific list of permitted uses and properly managing the access and 
land use conflicts that may result. 
 
The property fronts Harvey Road (SH 30) which is a Major Arterial on the 
Thoroughfare Plan. While TxDOT is developing plans to widen FM 60, there are 
no plans to widen Harvey Road at this time. 
 
Staff’s recommendation of denial is based on recommendations within the 30/60 
Area Amendment, the need to consolidate access points, and concerns 
associated with the incremental development of small lots adjacent to existing 
residential uses. 
 
Item Background: This area was annexed in 1980, and was zoned A-O 
Agricultural Open at that time. It is platted as Harvey Hillsides, Block 1, Lot 31. 
The southwest corner of Harvey Road and Pamela Lane was rezoned to a 
combination of A-P Administrative-Professional and R-1 Single-family Residential 
in 2002. Thus far, no non-residential development of this corner has occurred. 
Development in the area includes Crescent Pointe, located along Copperfield 
Drive, north of Harvey Road. Within this development a mix of uses is proposed 
that includes general commercial, office and multi-family uses. Immediately north 

138



of the subject lot is land that was previously proposed for large duplex residential 
development, but the plans have expired. 
 
Related Advisory Board Recommendations: N/A 
 
NOTIFICATION: 
 

Legal Notice Publication(s): The Eagle; 05-16-2006 and 06-07-2006 
 
Advertised Commission Hearing Dates(s):  06-01-2006 
 
Advertised Council Hearing Dates:  06-22-2006 
 
Number of Notices Mailed to Property Owners within 200’:  9 
 
Response Received:  Four calls have been received of general inquiry 
nature. The Harvey Hillsides HOA was notified as a courtesy.  

 
 

139



INFRASTRUCTURE AND FACILITIES 
 
Water:   A 12-inch water line exists on the north side of Harvey Road. A 
12-inch line extends across Harvey at Pamela, and an 8-inch line 
extends across Harvey at Marcy Lane. 
  
Sewer:   An 8-inch line exists on the south side of Harvey Road. 
  
Streets:  Harvey Road (SH 30) is a Major Arterial on the City’s 
Thoroughfare Plan. It is maintained by TxDOT. Access to this lot requires 
permits through TxDOT. A Minor Collector thoroughfare is shown on the 
Thoroughfare Plan to extend from Harvey Road at Pamela Lane to the 
north and connect to another unnamed Minor Collector and FM 158, 
which is a Major Arterial. Both Pamela Lane and Marcy Lane are dead-
end streets. 
  
Off-site Easements:        None known at this time.        
 
Drainage:      Carters Creek drainage basin. 
 
Floodplain:    No regulatory floodplain exists on this parcel. 
 
Oversize request:  None known at this time. 
 
Impact Fees:   N/A 

 
 

140



Existing: 
 
A-O, Agricultural-Open:  
 
PURPOSE: This district includes lands within 
the corporate limits of the City, which are not 
subdivided and are relatively undeveloped.  This 
district is designed to be applied to land which is 
used for agricultural, very low-intensity residential, 
or open space uses, but which is projected in the 
Comprehensive Plan for conversion to more intensive 
urban uses at such time as community services are 
available and community needs for such uses are 
present.  As such, it is a reserved area in which the 
future growth of the City can occur.   
 
USES: 
• *Manufactured Home 
• Single-Family Detached 
• Educational Facility, Outdoor Instruction 
• *Governmental Facilities 
• Parks 
• *Places of Worship 
• Agricultural Use, Barn or Stable for Private 

Stock 
• Agricultural Use, Farm or Pasturage 
• Agricultural Use, Farm Product Processing 
• *Animal Care Facility, Outdoor 
• *Commercial Garden/Greenhouse/Landscape 

Maintenance 
• Country Club 
• Gold Course or Driving Range 
• *Utility 
• *Wireless Telecommunication Facilities – 

Intermediate 
• (C)Wireless Telecommunication Facilities – 

Major 
• Wireless Telecommunication Facilities – 

Unregulated 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Proposed: 
 
A-P Administrative Professional: 
 
PURPOSE: This district will accommodate 
selected commercial businesses that provide a service 
rather than sell products, either retail or wholesale.  
The uses allowed have relatively low traffic 
generation and require limited location identification. 
 
USES: 
§ Educational Facility, Indoor Instruction 
§ Educational Facility, Primary & Secondary 
§ Educational Facility, Tutoring 
§ Educational Facility, Vocational/Trade 
§ Governmental Facilities 
§ Health Care, Medical Clinics 
§ Parks 
§ Places of Worship 
§ Animal Care Facility, Indoor 
§ Art Studio/Gallery 
§ Day Care, Commercial 
§ *Dry Cleaners & Laundry 
§ Offices 
§ (C)Parking as a Primary Use 
§ Personal Service Shop 
§ Printing/Copy Shop 
§ Radio/TV Station/Studios 
§ *Utility 
§ *Wireless Telecommunication Facilities – 

Intermediate 
§ (C)Wireless Telecommunication Facilities – 

Major 
§ Wireless Telecommunication Facilities – 

Unregulated 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

141



ORDINANCE NO. 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 12, "UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE," 
SECTION 4.2, "OFFICIAL ZONING MAP," OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE 
CITY OF COLLEGE STATION, TEXAS, BY CHANGING THE ZONING DISTRICT 
BOUNDARIES AFFECTING CERTAIN PROPERTIES AS DESCRIBED BELOW; 
DECLARING A PENALTY; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COLLEGE STATION, 
TEXAS: 

PART 1:  That Chapter 12, "Unified Development Ordinance," Section 4.2, "Official Zoning 
Map," of the Code of Ordinances of the City of College Station, Texas, be amended 
as set out in Exhibit "A", attached hereto and made a part of this ordinance for all 
purposes. 

PART 2: That any person, firm, or corporation violating any of the provisions of this chapter 
shall be deemed guilty of a misdemeanor, and upon conviction thereof shall be 
punishable by a fine of not less than Twenty-five Dollars ($25.00) nor more than Two 
Thousand Dollars ($2,000.00). Each day such violation shall continue or be 
permitted to continue, shall be deemed a separate offense. Said Ordinance, being a 
penal ordinance, becomes effective ten (10) days after its date of passage by the City 
Council, as provided by Section 34 of the Charter of the City of College Station. 

PASSED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this day of ,2006. 

APPROVED: 

RON SILVIA, Mayor 
ATTEST: 

Connie Hooks, City Secretary 

APPROVED: 

142



ORDINANCE NO. - Page 2 

EXHIBIT "A" 

That Chapter 12, "Unified Development Ordinance," Section 4.2, "Official Zoning Map," of the 
Code of Ordinances of the City of College Station, Texas, is hereby amended as follows: 

The following property is rezoned from A-0, Agricultural-Open to A-P, Administrative 
Professional : 

Lot Thirty-one (3 I), Block One (I), Harvey Hillsides, Brazos County, according to the Master 
plat thereof recorded in Volume 264, Page 484 of the Deed Records of Brazos County, Texas, 
and plat of Block 1 in Volume 263, Page 485 of the Deed Records of Brazos County, Texas and 
shown graphically in the attached Exhibit "B". 

143



ORDINANCE NO. - Page 3 
144



June 22, 2006 
Regular Agenda  
Sign Ordinance 

 
 
To:  Glenn Brown, City Manager 
 
From:  Lance Simms, Acting Director of Planning & Development Services 
 
Agenda Caption: Public Hearing, presentation, possible action, and discussion on an 
ordinance amending Chapter 12, City of College Station Code of Ordinances, Article 7 of the 
Unified Development Ordinance, regulating signs. 
 
Recommendation: The Planning and Zoning Commission unanimously recommended 
approval of this item at their meeting on May 4, 2006. Staff also recommends approval. 
 
Summary: This item is being brought before the Council as part of the annual update to 
the Unified Development Ordinance. This ordinance incorporates direction received by staff 
at the December 14, 2005, Joint City Council / P&Z Commission meeting regarding 
community spirit signs and signage for neighborhood groups. It also includes language 
designed to respond to direction received from Council in May 2006 concerning banner 
regulations. Following is a summary of proposed changes by category: 

 
Non-commercial and political signs: Language was added to section 7.5 Q 
limiting the size of non-commercial signage to 50 square feet, clarifying that signs 
may not be placed in any public Right of Way and providing a time limit for political 
signs. The proposed changes will allow non-commercial signs related to an event to 
be placed up to 90 days prior to the event and require sign removal within 10 days 
after the event.  
 
Sign removal: Language was added to Section 7.5 X, requiring signs to be removed 
if the associated building is demolished. A number of sites have redeveloped in the 
City while maintaining their grandfathered freestanding sign status by not removing 
the existing sign. This provision will require sites that are completely demolished to 
remove any freestanding signs. When new signage is installed, it will be required to 
comply with the provisions of the Unified Development Ordinance. 
 
Community Spirit Signs:  Community spirit signs were relocated to Section 7.5 E 
and language was added that provides for on-premise as well as off-premise 
community spirit signs. 
  
Signage for neighborhood groups: Provisions have been made in Section 7.5 E to 
allow for neighborhood event signage. Neighborhood event signs must remain in 
good repair and the name of the association must be featured on the sign so that 
Code Enforcement may contact the association or group about any problems with the 
sign. These signs may be placed up to 14 days prior to the event, and are to be 
removed 24 hours after the event. 
 
Banners: A new Section (7.5 J) has been added that addresses the use of banners. 
Commercial banners may be displayed for a 14-day period provided a permit is 
obtained from the City.  The permit fee of $200.00 is waived for non-profit 
associations or organizations.  

 
 

145



 
Budget & Financial Summary: N/A 
 
Attachments:  

1. 4 May P&Z Minutes  
2. Ordinance 

 

146



 

P&Z Regular Meeting Minutes May 4, 2006 Page 1 of 5 

 
 
 
 

 

MINUTES  
Regular Meeting  

Planning and Zoning Commission  
Thursday, May 4, 2006, at 7:00 p.m.  

Council Chambers,  
College Station City Hall  

1101 Texas Avenue  
College Station, Texas  

 
COMMISSIONERS PRESENT: Acting Chairman John Nichols, Ken Reynolds, 
Harold Strong, Dennis Christiansen, Bill Davis and Marsha Sanford. 
  
COMMISSIONERS ABSENT: Chairman Scott Shafer. 
  
CITY COUNCIL MEMBERS PRESENT: None. 
 
STAFF MEMBERS PRESENT:  Staff Planners Lindsay Boyer, Jennifer Reeves and 
Crissy Hartl, Senior Planners Jennifer Prochazka and Trey Fletcher, Senior Assistant city 
Engineer Alan Gibbs, Graduate Civil Engineers Josh Norton and Carol Cotter, 
Transportation Planner Ken Fogle, Acting Director Lance Simms, Staff Assistant Jessica 
Kramer, Assistant City Attorney Carla Robinson and Action Center Representative Bryan 
Cook. 
 
1. Call meeting to order. 
  
 Acting Chairman John Nichols called the meeting to order at 7:03 p.m. 
 
2. Hear Citizens.  
  
 No one spoke during the item. 
 
3. Consent Agenda. 

  
3.1 Presentation, possible action, and discussion on a Master Plan for 

Greens Prairie Center, consisting of 89.71 acres located at 1649 Greens 
Prairie Road in the general vicinity of the east corner of State Highway 
40 and Arrington Road.  Case #06-500063 (TF/CC) 

  
3.2 Consideration, discussion and possible action on meeting minutes.    

        
* April 6, 2006 ~ Workshop Meeting Minutes            
* April 6, 2006 ~ Regular Meeting Minutes            
* April 20, 2006 ~ Workshop Meeting Minutes            
* April 20, 2006 ~ Regular Meeting Minutes 

  
Commissioner Davis motioned to approve the consent agenda.   
Commissioner Strong seconded the motion, motion passed (6-0). 

147



 

P&Z Regular Meeting Minutes May 4, 2006 Page 2 of 5 

 
Regular Agenda  
 
 
4. 

Consideration, discussion, and possible action on items removed from the Consent 
Agenda by Commission action.  

  
 No items were removed from the consent agenda. 
 
5. Presentation, possible action, and discussion on a variance from Section 8-K.1 

(Lots) of the Subdivision Regulations for Lakeside Village Subdivision, and 
presentation, possible action, and discussion on a Preliminary Plat consisting of 56 
lots on 13.79 acres generally located along the proposed extension of Eagle 
Avenue and west of Longmire Drive.  Case #06-500012 (TF/CC)  

  
 Trey Fletcher, Senior Planner, presented the variance and Preliminary Plat.   
 

Commissioner Davis motioned to approve the variance as outlined in the 
Preliminary Plat.  Commissioner Christiansen seconded the motion, motion 
passed (6-0). 

 
Commissioner Davis motioned to approve the Preliminary Plat.  
Commissioner Sanford seconded the motion, motion passed (6-0). 

 
6. Public hearing, presentation, possible action, and discussion on a Replat consisting 

of Lots 14-18 and the remainder of Lots 1-5 of the Frank Visoski Subdivision 
located at 102 University Drive East.  Case #06-500062 (JR/CC)  

  
 Jennifer Reeves, Staff Planner, presented the Replat and recommended approval. 
 
 No one spoke during the public hearing. 
 

Commissioner Christiansen motioned to approve the Replat as presented.  
Commissioner Strong seconded the motion, motion passed (6-0). 

   
7. Public hearing, presentation, possible action, and discussion on a Preliminary Plat 

for North Forest Business Park, which includes a Replat of Lot 1 Block 1 North 
Forest Subdivision consisting of 5 lots on 5.22 acres located at 2801 Earl Rudder 
Fwy., just south of North Forest Parkway.  Case #06-500064 (JR/JN)  

  
Jennifer Reeves, Staff Planner, presented the Preliminary Plat and recommended 
approval as submitted. 

 
Joe Schultz, 2900 Longmire, Suite K, College Station, Texas.  Mr. Schultz, 
Engineer for the project, came forward to answer any questions of the 
Commission.  The Commissioners did not have questions at this time. 

 
Commissioner Sanford motioned to approve the Preliminary Plat which 
included a Replat.  Commissioner Strong seconded the motion, motion 
passed (6-0). 

148



 

P&Z Regular Meeting Minutes May 4, 2006 Page 3 of 5 

 
8. Public hearing, presentation, possible action, and discussion on a Replat of Lot 1, 

Block 1 Jordan Subdivision and a portion of Block 4 Harvey Hillsides to create Lot 
1R, Block 1 Jordan Subdivision, 2.78 acres located at 3910 Harvey Road.  Case 
#06-500067 (JP/CC)  
 

  Jennifer Prochazka, Senior Planner, presented the Replat. 
 
No one spoke at the public hearing. 

 
Commissioner Christiansen motioned to approve the Replat.  Commissioner 
Reynolds seconded the motion, motion passed (6-0). 
 

9. Public hearing, presentation, possible action, and discussion on a Conditional Use 
Permit - Use & Site for a Verizon Wireless telecommunications tower located at 
1500 Harvey Rd in the general vicinity of Post Oak Mall.  Case #06-500050 (TF)  

  
Trey Fletcher, Senior Planner, presented the Conditional Use Permit.  He stated 
that it met all requirements and recommended approval. 

 
Shep Poland, 3500 E. Alabama Road, Wharton, Texas.  Mr. Poland was called by 
the Commission to give any additional information regarding the Conditional Use 
Permit and answered some of their questions. 

 
Commissioner Davis motioned to approve the Conditional Use Permit.  
Commissioner Strong seconded the motion, motion passed (6-0). 
 

10. Public hearing, presentation, possible action, and discussion on an amendment to 
the Unified Development Ordinance, Sections 7.4, Signs. (LB)  

  
Lindsay Boyer, Staff Planner, presented the amendment for Section 7.4, Signs of 
the Unified Development Ordinance. 

 
Haywood Sherik, 1007 Krenek Tap Road, College Station, Texas spoke in 
opposition of the amendment to section 7.4 Signs to the Unified Development 
Ordinance. 

 
Commissioner Christiansen motioned to recommend approval to the City 
Council the amendment to the Unified Development Ordinance regarding 
Section 7.4, Signs.  Commissioner Reynolds Seconded the motion, motion 
passed (6-0). 
 

11. Public hearing, presentation, possible action, and discussion on an amendment to 
the Unified Development Ordinance, Sections 7.2.K, Alternative Parking Plans. 
(KF)  

  
Ken Fogle, Transportation Planner, presented the amendment for Alternative 
Parking Plans. 
 

149



 

P&Z Regular Meeting Minutes May 4, 2006 Page 4 of 5 

No one spoke at the public hearing. 
 
Commissioner Reynolds motioned to recommend approval to the City 
Council of the item as stated.  Commissioner Davis seconded the motion, 
motion passed (6-0). 
 

12. Public hearing, presentation, possible action, and discussion on an amendment to 
the Unified Development Ordinance, Sections 7.2.J, Drive-Through Facility 
Queuing Requirements.  (KF)  

  
Ken Fogle, Transportation Planner, presented the amendment of Drive-Through 
Facility Queing Requirements. 
 
No one spoke at the public hearing. 
 
Commissioner Davis motioned to recommend approval of the amendment to 
the City Council.  Commissioner Christiansen seconded the motion, motion 
passed (6-0). 
 

13. Public hearing, presentation, possible action, and discussion on an amendment to 
the Unified Development Ordinance, Section 5.7 Design District Dimensional 
Standards, related to the required front yard setback.  (JP)  

  
Jennifer Prochazka, Senior Planner, presented the amendment of Design District 
Dimensional Standards. 
 
Veronica Morgan, 511 University Drive, College Station, Texas.  Ms. Morgan 
spoke in favor of the amendment. 
 
Commissioner Davis motioned to recommend approval of the item to City 
Council.  Commissioner Strong seconded the motion, motion passed (6-0). 
 

14. Public hearing, presentation, possible action, and discussion on an amendment to 
the Unified Development Ordinance, Section 6.3 to address Wireless Transmission 
Facilities (WTF).  (TF)  

  
Trey Fletcher, Senior Planner, presented the amendment for Wireless 
Transmission Facilities. 
 
No one spoke at the public hearing. 
 
Commissioner Davis motioned to recommend approval of the item to City 
Council.  Commissioner Christiansen seconded the motion, motion passed (6-
0). 
 

15. Public hearing, presentation, possible action, and discussion on an amendment to 
the Unified Development Ordinance, Section 6.4 Accessory Structures to address 
Portable Storage Structures.  (TF)  

  

150



 

P&Z Regular Meeting Minutes May 4, 2006 Page 5 of 5 

Trey Fletcher, Senior Planner, presented the amendment Accessory Structures to 
address Portable Storage Structures. 

 
 No one spoke at the public hearing. 
 

Commissioner Reynolds motioned to recommend approval of the 
amendment to City Council.  Commissioner Sanford seconded the motion, 
motion passed (6-0). 

 
16. Public hearing, presentation, possible action, and discussion on an amendment to 

the Unified Development Ordinance, Section 6.4 Accessory Structures to address 
Farmers’ Markets.  (TF)  

  
Trey Fletcher, Senior Planner, presented the amendment to address Farmers’ 
Markets. 
 
No one spoke at the public hearing. 
 
Commissioner Davis motioned to recommend approval of the amendment to 
City Council.  Commissioner Strong seconded the motion, motion passed (6-
0). 

 
17. Adjourn. 

  
Commissioner Davis motioned to adjourn.  Commissioner Sanford seconded 
the motion, motion passed (6-0). 

 
Approved: 
 

 
______________________________________ 
Scott Shafer, Chairman 
Planning and Zoning Commission 

Attest:  
  
 
______________________________________ 
Lisa Lindgren, Staff Assistant 
Planning and Development Services 

151



ORDINANCE NO. ___________ 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 12, “UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE, ARTICLE 
7, “GENERAL DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS,” OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE CITY 
OF COLLEGE STATION, TEXAS, BY AMENDING CERTAIN SECTIONS AS SET OUT BELOW; 
PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; DECLARING A PENALTY; AND PROVIDING AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COLLEGE STATION, TEXAS: 
 
PART 1: That Chapter 12, “Unified Development Ordinance,” Article 7, “General Development 

Standards,” of the Code of Ordinances of the City of College Station, Texas, be amended 
as set out in Exhibit “A”, attached hereto and made a part of this ordinance for all purposes. 

 
PART 2: That if any provisions of any section of this ordinance shall be held to be void or 

unconstitutional, such holding shall in no way effect the validity of the remaining provi-
sions or sections of this ordinance, which shall remain in full force and effect. 

 
PART 3: That any person, firm, or corporation violating any of the provisions of this chapter shall 

be deemed guilty of a misdemeanor, and upon conviction thereof shall be punishable by a 
fine of not less than Twenty-five Dollars ($25.00) nor more than Two Thousand Dollars 
($2,000.00).  Each day such violation shall continue or be permitted to continue, shall be 
deemed a separate offense.  Said Ordinance, being a penal ordinance, becomes effective 
ten (10) days after its date of passage by the City Council, as provided by Section 34 of 
the Charter of the City of College Station. 

 
PASSED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this 22nd day of June, 2006. 

 
      APPROVED: 

 
 

    ____________________________________ 
    RON SILVIA, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Connie Hooks, City Secretary 
 
 
APPROVED: 
 

E-Signed by Carla A. Robinson
VERIFY authenticity with ApproveIt  

_______________________________ 
City Attorney 

152



ORDINANCE NO. _______________            Page 2 
 
 
 

 
EXHIBIT “A” 

 
 

I. 
 

That Chapter 12, “Unified Development Ordinance,” of the Code of Ordinances of the City of College 
Station, Texas, is hereby amended by adding a new Article 7.4 as set out hereafter to read as follows:  
 
 
“7.4 Traffic Impact Analysis 

A. General 
This section establishes requirements and procedures pertaining to traffic impact analysis 
(TIA) for developments. These requirements are to inform the applicant of the City's 
expectations, expedite the City staff's review process of TIA reports, provide standard 
criteria for evaluating development proposals, and establish equitable mitigation and cost 
sharing policies. 
 
The TIA is to develop public/private partnerships to coordinate land use and 
transportation facility development. Both the City of College Station and the land 
developer share in the responsibility to consider all reasonable solutions to identified 
transportation problems. 

B. Purpose 
The goal of the TIA is to look at a specific development of known size and use and to 
determine the effect of that use on the existing roadway system. It uses existing traffic 
volumes and assumes the existing roadway configuration to be used for analysis. This 
process should ensure that the roadway system is adequate to accommodate the proposed 
use and may recommend mitigation measures necessary to ensure efficient traffic flow 
around the proposed site (as based on intersection and roadway levels of service). 

1. Objective 
A TIA is to define the immediate impacts of the proposed development and any 
necessary transportation improvements (public or private) required to ensure a 
satisfactory level of service on all affected thoroughfares. A TIA is designed to 
mitigate traffic impacts by optimizing roadway capacity, access design, and 
traffic control. A TIA may be used to deny a commercial site plan or residential 
plat where it has been determined that transportation facilities are not adequate to 
handle the increased traffic caused by the development. Specific improvements 
to the existing roadways consistent with the Thoroughfare Plan may be needed to 
gain approval of site plan or plat proposals. 

2. Definitions 

a. Trip Generation Rates - The City's criteria for trip generation for various 
categories of land use and density shall be those set forth in the latest 
edition of the trip generation informational report published by the 
Institute of Transportation Engineers (ITE) unless the proposed use does 
not have a corresponding rate in the TRIP GENERATION MANUAL.  If 
alternative trip generation rates are proposed, they must be based on a 
general study of local conditions and shall be adopted for City-wide use. 

153



ORDINANCE NO. _______________            Page 3 
 
 

b. Design Year - The design year is the point in time upon which 
assumptions pertaining to land use, population, employment, and 
transportation facilities are based. All TIAs shall use a design year based 
on the expected date of project occupancy. 

c. Base Volumes - Base volumes shall be based on current traffic counts 
adjusted to the expected date of project occupancy. When available, all 
base data shall be supplied by the City Traffic Engineer. In all cases 
when ground counts are needed and are not available, the developer or 
his agent shall be required to collect such data. 

d. Level of Service (LOS) - Level of service is a measure of the level of 
congestion experienced on roadways. The desirable minimum level of 
service of the City of College Station is Level of Service D (less than 25 
second of stopped delay per vehicle), as defined by the HIGHWAY 
CAPACITY MANUAL. in the peak hour. Level of service shall be 
measured for both link and intersection operations. 

3. Applicability 

a. Single Family and Duplex Residential Developments 
A TIA will be required for single family and duplex residential 
preliminary plats submitted for approval that generate 5,000 trips or 
more per day. 
 
It is the responsibility of the applicant to demonstrate that a TIA is not 
required for a single-family and duplex residential preliminary plat, as 
defined in Section 6-B.1 of the SUBDIVISION REGULATIONS. In cases 
where a TIA is required, the preliminary plat application will be 
considered incomplete until the TIA is submitted. 
 

b. Multi-Family Developments 
A TIA will be required for multi-family residential site plans submitted 
for approval that either have a floor area ratio (FAR) of 0.75 or greater 
and more than 100 units or generate 5,000 trips or more per day.  
 
It is the responsibility of the applicant to demonstrate that a TIA is not 
required for a multi-family residential site plan application, as defined in 
Section 3.5 Site Plan Review. In cases where a TIA is required, the site 
plan application will be considered incomplete until the TIA is 
submitted. 

 
c. Non-Residential Developments 

A TIA will be required for non-residential site plans submitted for 
approval that generate 5,000 trips or more per day at build out. A TIA 
may be required for non-residential site plans submitted for approval that 
generate less that 5,000 trips per day, where the peaking characteristics 
could have a detrimental impact on the transportation system as 
determined by the Administrator. 
 
It is the responsibility of the applicant to demonstrate that a TIA is not 
required for a non-residential site plan application, as defined in Section 
3.5. In cases where a TIA is required, the site plan application will be 
considered incomplete until the TIA is submitted. 

 

154



ORDINANCE NO. _______________            Page 4 
 
 

d. Comprehensive Plan Amendments 
 A TIA may be required with a comprehensive plan amendment 

application where the proposed land use changes would generate more 
trips than the existing land use(s). The Administrator will make this 
determination at the time of the pre-application conference. 

C. Methodology 
 

All TIAs shall be performed by a professional traffic engineer qualified to perform such 
studies. Requirements for mitigating negative traffic impacts shall apply to all cases.  
 
A pre-submission consultation with the Administrator is required. Details of the required 
analysis and the study area will be determined at this meeting. In certain instances, traffic 
from other approved but not built developments may have to be accounted for in traffic 
assignments. Staff may also require specific assumptions, such as the percentage of heavy 
vehicles using the roadway, to be altered to match local conditions.  

 
The following procedures shall be followed in preparing traffic impact studies submitted 
to the City: 

D. Content 
 
1. Study Area - A map(s) shall be included delineating the TIA study area and all 

existing and planned streets therein. The study area will be defined in the pre-
submission consultation meeting with the Administrator. 

 
2. Existing Zoning and Development - Describe existing zoning including land area 

(gross and net) by zoning classification, square footages, numbers of hotel rooms, 
dwelling units, etc. Also, describe any existing development on-site and how it 
will be affected by development proposals. 

 
3. Thoroughfare Network - Describe existing thoroughfares, signals and signal 

phasing, and traffic volumes within the study area. 
 
4. Proposed Development - Describe the proposed development including land area 

(gross and net), square footage, number of hotel rooms, dwelling units, etc., and 
the development phasing plan if applicable. Also describe roadway conditions as 
expected by date of occupancy. Indicate roadway and intersection capacities at 
study date. 

 
5. Impact Determination - Determine the level of service for all thoroughfares and 

intersections in the study area. The analysis shall contain the following minimum 
information: 
a. Proposed Trip Generation - Calculate total trip generation by use 

(assuming full development and occupancy) and report any reductions 
for passer-by, mixed use, etc. Show trip generation by use in tabular 
form with land use trip generation rates and trips generated. 

b. Trip Distribution and Assignment - Trips generated by the proposed 
development are to be added to the base volumes projected for the design 
year. Peak hour volumes must be calculated. Distribution assumptions 
and assignment calculations must be provided. 

c. Level of Service Analysis - Show in tabular form, 24 hour and peak hour 
V/C ratios for links and intersections within the study area. This analysis 
should be done for the following traffic conditions: existing traffic, 

155



ORDINANCE NO. _______________            Page 5 
 
 

background traffic, background plus project traffic (at up to three phases 
if applicable). Analyze all points of ingress and egress, median breaks, 
and turn lanes associated with the proposed site. 

d. Plan Review – Review the site plan or preliminary plat for sight distance 
issues and site circulation issues. 

e. Conclusions - Provide a summary of points of conflict and congestion. 
Identify all thoroughfare links or intersections exceeding a Level of 
Service D and the percent increase in total traffic produced by the 
proposed site plan. Identify any operational problems (e.g., drives, 
median openings, sight distance, and signalization) within the study area. 

f. Mitigation - Traffic levels exceeding Level of Service D, as defined by 
the HIGHWAY CAPACITY MANUAL (HCM), where the development is 
contributing 5% or more of the total trips shall be mitigated to 
predevelopment levels. Problems demonstrated by the TIA can be 
corrected by: 
 
1) Access management requirements in addition to those provided 

in Article 7.3 and the CITY OF COLLEGE STATION ENGINEERING 
DESIGN GUIDELINES relating to driveway and median opening 
spacing. 

2) Modifying density or intensity of use (e.g., reduction in square 
footage or percentage of commercial use). 

3) Phasing construction until additional roadway capacity becomes 
available. 

4) On-site improvements including access controls, site circulation 
adjustments, and enhancements for pedestrians, bicyclists and 
transit users. 

5) Off-site improvements including the construction of auxiliary 
lanes (i.e., deceleration and acceleration lanes) and additional 
lanes where the surrounding thoroughfares are not fully 
developed or intersection improvements, including signalization, 
where the surrounding area is approaching full development.  

g. Costs of Mitigation - Mitigation improvements which are attributable to 
the proposed development shall be funded at the developer’s expense. 
Any other improvements shown which are consistent with the 
Thoroughfare Plan may be repaid by the City in accordance with its cost 
sharing policies.” 

156



ORDINANCE NO. _______________            Page 6 
 
 

II. 
 
That Chapter 12, “Unified Development Ordinance,” of the Code of Ordinances of the City of College 
Station, Texas, is hereby amended by renumbering the current Article 7.4 “Signs” to Article 7.5 “Signs” 
as set out hereafter to read as follows: 
 
“7.5 Signs 

 
A. Purpose 
 

The purpose of this Section is to establish clear and unambiguous regulations pertaining 
to signs in the City of College Station and to promote an attractive community, foster 
traffic safety, and enhance the effective communication and exchange of ideas and 
commercial information. 

 
B. Applicability 
 

The City Council recognizes that signs are necessary for visual communication for public 
convenience, and that businesses and other activities have the right to identify themselves 
by using signs that are incidental to the use on the premises where the signs are located.  
The Council herein seeks to provide a reasonable balance between the right of a person to 
identify his or her business or activity, and the rights of the public to be protected against 
visual discord and safety hazards that result from the unrestricted proliferation, location, 
and construction of signs.  This Section will insure that signs are compatible with 
adjacent land uses and with the total visual environment of the community, in accordance 
with the City's Comprehensive Plan. 

1. The City Council finds that the rights of residents of this City to fully exercise 
their rights of free speech by the use of signs containing non-commercial 
messages are subject to minimum regulation regarding structural safety and 
setbacks for purposes of traffic protection.  The City Council seeks herein to 
provide for the reasonably prompt removal and disposal of such signs after they 
have served their purpose, and yet to avoid any interference with First 
Amendment freedoms, especially as to persons who are of limited financial 
means. 

2. The City Council finds that instances may occur in the application of this Section 
where strict enforcement would deprive a person of the reasonable use of a sign, 
or the reasonable utilization of a sign in connection with other related property 
rights, and herein provides for such persons to have the right to seek variances 
from the requirements of this UDO for good cause.  The City Council finds that it 
is imperative that enforcement officials apply this Section as it is written, in the 
interest of equality and fair and impartial application to all persons, and that the 
procedures to appeal a denial of a sign permit to the ZBA shall remain the sole 
administrative means to obtain any exception to the terms hereof. 

3. The regulations of this Section shall apply for developments within the zoning 
districts listed in Section 7.5.C Summary of Permitted Signs.  These regulations 
only apply to special districts within the City of College Station so far as is stated 
in the following Sections of this UDO: 

 

a. Wolf Pen Creek District (WPC), Section 5.6.A. 

b. Northgate Districts (NG-1, NG-2, NG-3), Section 5.6.B. 

157



ORDINANCE NO. _______________            Page 7 
 
 

c. Corridor Overlay District (OV), Section 5.8.A. 

d. Krenek Overlay District (KO), Section 5.8.B. 
 

C. Summary of Permitted Signs 
 

The following signs are permitted in the relevant zoning districts of the City: 
 

  

  A
-O

 

  A
-O

R
 

  R
-1

B
 

  R
-1

 

  R
-2

 

  R
-3

 

  R
-4

 

  R
-6

 

  R
-7

 

  A
-P

 

  C
-1

 

  C
-2

 

C
-3

 

  R
&

D
 

M
-1

 

  M
-2

 

Apartment/Condominium/ 
Manufactured Home 

Park/Identification Signs 
            X X X               

 Area Identification/ 
Subdivision Signs 

X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X 

 Attached Signs             X X X X X X X X X X 

 Development Signs X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X 

 Directional Traffic 
Control Signs 

                  X X X X X X X 

 Freestanding Signs                     X X     X X 

 Home Occupation Signs X X X X X X X X X               

 Low Profile Signs                   X X X X X X X 

 Non-Commercial Signs X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X 

 Real Estate, Finance, and 
Construction Signs 

X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X 

 Roof Signs                     X X     X X 
 
D. Prohibited Signs 
 

The following signs shall be prohibited in the City of College Station: 
 
1. Portable and trailer signs, and temporary freestanding signs. 
2. Signs painted on rooftops. 
3. Inflated signs, pennants, wind driven devises (excluding flags), tethered balloons, 

and/or any gas filled objects for advertisement, decoration, or otherwise, except 
as permitted in Section 7.5.O, Grand Opening Signs and Section 7.5.T, Special 
Event Signs. 

4. Vehicle signs except as permitted in Section 7.5.U, Vehicle Signs. 
5. Flags containing copy or logo, excluding the flags of any country, state, city, or 

school, are prohibited in residential zones and on any residentially-developed 
property (except when flags are used as subdivision signs).   

6. Signs and displays with flashing, blinking, or traveling lights, or erratic or other 
moving parts, including electronic message boards that change more than once 
per 24-hour period, either internal or external to the premise, and oriented and 
visible to vehicular traffic, provided that time and temperature signs are 
permissible if the maximum area and setback requirements of this Section are 

158



ORDINANCE NO. _______________            Page 8 
 
 

met and if the commercial information or content of such signs is restricted to no 
more than eight square feet. 

7. Signs containing manual changeable copy or electronic reader boards which are 
greater than 30 percent of the allowable sign area. 

8. Any signs that are intended to or designed to resemble traffic signs or signals and 
bear such words as "stop", "slow", "caution", "danger", "warning", or other 
words, and that are erected for purposes other than actual traffic control or 
warning to the public. 

9. Any sign located within the site triangle in any district as stated in Article 7.1.C, 
Visibility at Intersections in all Districts.  This does not include traffic control or 
directional signs. 

10. Any sign that emits sound, odor, or visible matter. 
11.  Off-premise signs, including commercial and non-commercial billboards. 
 

E. Exempt Signs 
 
The following signs are exempt from the requirements of this UDO: 
 
1. Signs that are not easily identified from beyond the boundaries of the lot or 

parcel on which they are located or from any public thoroughfare or traveled 
right-of-way, as determined by the Administrator.  Such signs are not exempt 
from the safety regulations contained herein and in City Building and Electrical 
Codes. 

2. Official notices posted by government officials in the performance of their 
duties: government signs controlling traffic, regulating public conduct, 
identifying streets, or warning of danger.  Bulletin boards or identification signs 
accessory to government buildings or other buildings are subject to the 
provisions of this UDO. 

3. Temporary signs erected by private property owners for the purpose of warning 
of a dangerous defect, condition, or other hazard to the public. 

4. Non-commercial signs on private property or works of art that in no way identify 
or advertise a product or business, or by their location and placement impede 
traffic safety, except as stated in Section 7.5.R. Non-Commercial and Political 
Signs. 

5. Temporary decorations or displays, if they are clearly incidental to and are 
customarily and commonly associated with any national, local, or religious 
celebration. 

6. Temporary or permanent signs erected by public utilities or construction 
companies to warn of the location of pipelines, electrical conduits, or other 
dangers or conditions in public rights-of-way. 

7. Non-Commercial Signs carried by a person and not set or affixed to the ground, 
that in no way identify or advertise a product or business, or by their location and 
placement impede traffic safety. 

8. Commercial Signs carried by a person and not set on or affixed to the ground, 
provided that the sign is temporary, on-premise, and not used by the person on 
the premises for more than three (3) consecutive days, more than four (4) times 
per calendar year. 

9. Outdoor advertising display signs for sponsors of charitable events held on public 
properties.  These signs may be displayed for the duration of the event or not 
more than three days with approval of the City Manager; and 

10. Flags used as political symbols. 
11. Special District Identification Signs, as defined by Article 11.2 Terms, that in no 

way advertise a product or a business, or by their location and placement impede 

159



ORDINANCE NO. _______________            Page 9 
 
 

traffic safety.  Special District Identification Signs must be approved by the 
appropriate Board or Committee.   

12. On-premise and/or off-premise signs where there has been a resolution adopted 
by the City of College Station City Council or an executed contract with the City 
of College Station and the display of the sign are for designated locations, a 
specified time period, and: 
a. Promotes a positive image of the City of College Station for the 

attraction of business or tourism; 
b. Depicts an accomplishment of an individual or group; or 
c. Creates a positive community spirit. 

13. Temporary signs erected for a neighborhood event sponsored by a neighborhood 
group that is registered with the City of College Station, provided that the 
signage is: 
a. Located within the perimeter of the neighborhood,  
b. Provides the name of the association sponsoring the event on the sign, 
c. In good repair, 
d. Allowed up to fourteen (14) days in advance; and 
e. Removed within twenty-four (24) hours of the event. 
 

F. Sign Standards 
 

The following table summarizes the sign standards for the City of College Station: 

160



ORDINANCE NO. _______________            Page 10 
 
 

 

Sign Type 
Maximum 

Area (s.f.)** 
Maximum Height 

(ft.) 

Setback 
from  

ROW (ft.) Number Allowed 
 Apartment/Condominium/Manufactured   
 Home Park Identification Signs 100 10 10 1/frontage 

 

 Area Identification Signs 16 4 10 1/10-50 acre 
subdivision or phase 

 Attached Signs Varies, see 
7.5.I below 

Not to exceed 1 
foot from top of 

wall, marquee, or 
parapet to which it 

is attached 

--- 

Any number allowed if 
within the total allowed 

square footage of 
attached signs 

 Commercial Banners 36 

Not to exceed the 
top of structure to 

which it is 
attached 

10          1/premises 

 Development Signs 
   Residential / Collector Street 
   Arterial Street 
   Freeway 
   (As designated on Thoroughfare Plan) 

 
35 
65 

200 
 

15 10 1/premises 

 Directional Traffic Control Signs 3 4 4 1/curb cut 

 Freestanding Signs Varies, see 7.5.M below 10 
1/building plot where 
lot exceeds 75 feet of 

frontage 
 Home Occupation Signs 

2 
Not to exceed top 
of wall to which it 

is attached 
--- 1/dwelling unit 

 Low Profile Signs (In lieu of permitted 
 Freestanding Sign) 60 4 10 1/150 feet of frontage * 

 Real Estate, Finance, and Construction  
 Signs 
   Up to 150-foot frontage 
   Greater than 150-foot frontage 

 
16 
32 

 
8 
8 

 
10 
10 

1/frontage  
(Real Estate) 

1/property (Finance) 
3/property 

(Construction) 

 Roof Signs 

Determined by 
frontage. Same 
as freestanding 
Max. 100 s.f. 

10 feet above 
structural roof --- 1/building plot in place 

of a freestanding sign 

 Subdivision Signs 150 15 10 
1/primary subdivision 

entrance.  Not to 
exceed 2 signs. 

 
*     Except as provided for in Section 7.5.N.10, Freestanding Commercial Signs. 
**  The area of a sign is the area enclosed by the minimum imaginary rectangle or vertical and horizontal lines that 

fully contains all extremities (as shown in the illustration below), exclusive of supports. 

161



ORDINANCE NO. _______________            Page 11 
 
 
 

 
G. Area Identification and Subdivision Signs 
 

1. Area Identification Signs shall be permitted upon private property in any zone to 
identify multiple-lot subdivisions of 10 to 50 acres in size and subject to the 
requirements set forth in Section 7.5.F, Sign Standards above.  Area 
Identification Signs may also be used within a large subdivision to identify 
distinct areas within that subdivision, subject to the requirements in Section 
7.5.F, Sign Standards above. 

2. Subdivision Signs shall be permitted upon private property in any zone to 
identify subdivisions of greater than 50 acres, subject to the requirements set 
forth in Section 7.5.F, Sign Standards above. 

3. Both Area Identification and Subdivision Signs must be located on the premises 
as identified by a preliminary or master preliminary plat of the subdivision.  
Subdivision Signs will be permitted only at major intersections on the perimeter 
of the subdivision (intersection of two collector or larger streets).  At each 
intersection either one or two Subdivision Signs may be permitted so long as the 
total area of the signs does not exceed 150 square feet.  Flags may be utilized in 
place of a Subdivision Identification Sign, but the overall height shall not exceed 
20 feet and 25 square feet in area in a residential zone and 35 feet in height and 
100 square feet in area in industrial or commercial districts. 

4. Subdivision markers of no more that one square foot in area and used in 
conjunction with a subdivision or area identification sign are permitted attached 
to architectural elements within the subdivision. 

5. Indirect lighting is permissible but no optical effects, moving parts, or 
alternating, erratic, or flashing lights shall be permitted.  Landscaping valued at 
250 points shall be installed around each Subdivision Sign.  Adequate 
arrangements for permanent maintenance of all signs and any landscaping in 
conjunction with such signs shall be made, which may be through an owners 
association if one exists or is created for this purpose. 

162



ORDINANCE NO. _______________            Page 12 
 
 
 

6. All signs shall be setback as shown in Section 7.5.F, Sign Standards above except 
in areas where a Private Improvement in Public Right-of-way permit has been 
issued. 

 
H. Apartment/Condominium/Manufactured Home Park Identification Signs 
 

1. One Apartment/Condominium/Manufactured Home Park Identification Sign may 
be located at a primary entrance on each frontage to a public road. 

2. The maximum area allowed for each frontage may be divided among two signs if 
those signs are single sided and mounted at a single entrance. 

3. An Apartment/Condominium/Manufactured Home Park Identification Sign may 
be either an attached sign or a freestanding monument sign.  It shall be placed 
upon the private property of a particular multi-family project in the appropriate 
zone as established in Section 7.5.C, Summary of Permitted Signs subject to the 
requirements set forth in Section 7.5.F, Sign Standards above. 

4. The Apartment/Condominium/Manufactured Home Park Identification Sign shall 
list the name and may list the facilities available and have leasing or sales 
information incorporated as a part of the sign. 

5. An apartment or condominium project must have a minimum of 24 dwelling 
units to qualify for an identification sign. 

6. Indirect lighting is permissible, but no optical effects, moving parts, or 
alternating, erratic, or flashing lights or devices shall be permitted. 

7. Any manufactured home parks existing at the time of this UDO that are non-
conforming may still utilize an identification sign meeting the provisions of this 
Section and Section 7.5.F, Sign Standards above. 

 
I. Attached Signs 
 

1. Attached Signs are commercial signs under this Section.   
2. Attached Signs on any commercial building or tenant lease space shall not 

exceed a total of two and a half (2.5) square feet per linear foot of all public entry 
façades, with a maximum of 500 square feet of attached signage allowed for any 
one tenant.  Multi-story businesses will be allowed 100 square feet of additional 
attached signage. 

3. The division of allowable building signage amongst building tenants shall be the 
sole responsibility of the owner or property manager, and not the City of College 
Station. 

4. Signs attached to features such as gasoline pumps, automatic teller machines, 
mail/package drop boxes, or similar on-site features, if identifiable from the 
right-of-way, as determined by the Administrator, shall count as part of the 
allowable sign area of the attached signs for the site.  Information contained on 
such features pertaining to federal and state requirements, and operation/safety 
instructions are not counted.  All other signage on such features shall count 
towards the allowable attached sign area. 

5. Architectural elements, which are not part of the sign or logo and in no way 
identify the specific business tenant, shall not be considered attached signage.     

163



ORDINANCE NO. _______________            Page 13 
 
 

6. An attached sign: 
a. Shall advertise only the name of, uses of, or goods or services available 

within the building or tenant lease space to which the sign is attached;  
b. Shall be parallel to the face of the building;  
c. Shall not be cantilevered away from the structure; 
d. Shall not extend more than one foot from any exterior building face, 

mansard, awning, or canopy;   
e. Shall not obstruct any window, door, stairway, or other opening intended 

for ingress or for needed ventilation or light; and 
f. Shall not be attached to any tree or public utility pole. 
 

J. Commercial Banners 
 

1. A commercial banner: 
a. Shall be in good repair; 
b. Shall have the permit number conspicuously posted in the lower right 

hand corner of the banner;  
c. Shall be allowed in addition to the signage provided for in Section 7.5 I, 

Attached Signage;  
d. Shall advertise only the name of, uses of, or goods or services available 

within the building or tenant lease space to which the sign is attached; 
e. Shall be mounted parallel to the face of a building or permanent 

structure; 
f. Shall not be located within public road right-of-way of the State of Texas 

or the City of College Station; 
g.  Shall not obstruct any window, door, stairway, or other opening 

intended for ingress or for needed ventilation or light; and 
h. Except for J. 2. below, shall be allowed for a maximum 14-day period 

per permit. 
2. An annual banner permit may be allowed for Places of Worship meeting in 

public spaces on a temporary basis. Banners allowed by this subsection shall only 
be displayed on the day of the worship service.  

3. The applicant shall pay an application fee of $200.00 upon submission of a 
banner permit application to the City. The application fee is waived for a non-
profit association or organization. This fee shall not apply to banners associated 
with special events as provided for in Section 7.5 U, Special Event Signs.  

  
K. Development Sign 

 
1. A Development Sign may be placed only on private property subject to the 

requirements in Section 7.5.F, Sign Standards above. 
2. A Development Sign for a building project shall be removed if the project has not 

received a Building Permit at the end of twelve months.  The Administrator may 
renew the sign permit for one additional twelve-month period upon request.  
Once a Building Permit for the project is received, the sign may stay in place 
until 75 percent of the project is leased or a permanent sign is installed, 
whichever comes first. 

3. A Development Sign for a proposed subdivision shall be removed if a 
Preliminary or Final Plat has not been approved by the end of twelve months.  
The Administrator may renew the Sign Permit for one additional twelve-month 
period upon request.  Once a plat has been approved, the Sign Permit is valid as 
long as a Preliminary Plat is in effect, or in the absence of a valid Preliminary 
Plat, for 24 months from the date of approval of a Final Plat. 

 
L. Directional Traffic Control Sign 

164



ORDINANCE NO. _______________            Page 14 
 
 

 
1. Directional Traffic Control Signs may be utilized as traffic control devices in off-

street parking areas subject to the requirements set forth in Section 7.5.F, Sign 
Standards above.   

2. For multiple lots sharing an access easement to public right-of-way, there shall 
be only one directional sign located at the curb cut.   

3. Logo or copy shall be less than 50% of the sign area.   
4. No Directional Traffic Control Sign shall be permitted within or upon the right-

of-way of any public street unless its construction, design, and location have been 
approved by the City Traffic Engineer. 

 
M. Flags 
 

1. One freestanding corporate flag per premise, not to exceed 35 feet in height or 
100 square feet in area, is allowed in multi-family, commercial, and industrial 
districts. 

2. Flags used solely for decoration and not containing any copy or logo and located 
only in multi-family, commercial, and industrial districts or developments are 
allowed without a permit.  In multi-family developments, such flags will be 
restricted to 16 square feet in area.  In all permitted zoning districts such flags 
will be restricted to 30 feet in height, and the number shall be restricted to no 
more than 6 flags per building plot. 

3. Flags containing commercial copy or logo, excluding the flags of any country, 
state, city, school, or church are prohibited in residential zones and on any 
residentially developed property (except when flags are used as Subdivision 
Signs). 

 
N. Freestanding Commercial Signs 
 

1. Any development with over 75 linear feet of frontage will be allowed one 
Freestanding Commercial Sign.  All Freestanding Commercial Signs shall meet 
the following standards: 

a. Allowable Area 
 

  Allowable Area For Freestanding Signs 
Frontage (Feet) Maximum Area (s.f.) 

0-75 Low Profile only 
76-100 50 

101-150 75 
151-200 100 
201-250 125 
251-300 150 
301-350 175 
351-400 200 
401-450 225 
451-500 250 
501-550 275 

551-600+ 300 
 
b. Area 

For the purposes of this Section, area shall be considered the area in 
square feet of a single-face sign, or one side of a double-face sign, or half 
the sides of a multi-face sign. 

165



ORDINANCE NO. _______________            Page 15 
 
 

 
c. Frontage 

1) For the purposes of this Section, frontage shall be considered the 
number of feet fronting on a public street to which a sign is 
oriented.  

2) On corner lots, the frontage street shall be the greater street as 
classified on the thoroughfare plan.  Where the two streets are 
classified the same, the applicant may choose the frontage street. 

 
d. Allowable Height 

1) The allowable height of a Freestanding Commercial Sign is 
determined by measuring the distance from the closest point of 
the sign to the curb or pavement edge and dividing this distance 
by two.  No Freestanding Commercial Sign shall exceed 35 feet 
in height. 

2) For the purposes of this Section, height of a sign shall be 
measured from the elevation of the curb or pavement edge. 

3) For the purposes of this Section, the distance from curb shall be 
measured in feet from the back of curb or pavement edge to the 
nearest part of the sign. 

2. Freestanding Commercial Signs are allowed only on developed commercial 
property established in the appropriate zones as set forth in Section 7.5.C, 
Summary of Permitted Signs.  One freestanding sign shall be allowed in the A-P 
zone only when the premise has a minimum of two acres, subject to the 
requirements set forth in Section 7.4.F, Sign Standards.  One Low Profile Sign 
shall be allowed in the A-P zone when the premise has less than two acres 
subject to the requirements set forth in Section 7.5.F, Sign Standards, above.  

3. A premise with less than 75 feet of frontage shall be allowed to use one Low 
Profile Sign. 

4. A premise with more than 75 feet of frontage shall be allowed to use standards 
for one Freestanding Commercial Sign located in Section 7.5.F, Sign Standards, 
rather than one Low Profile Sign. 

5. A premise with more than 150 feet of frontage shall be allowed to use one 
Freestanding Commercial Sign or any number of Low Profile Signs as long as 
there is a minimum separation between signs of 150 feet. 
In lieu of one Low Profile Sign every 150 feet, hospital uses may have one low 
profile sign located at each driveway.   

6. Premises with less than 75 feet of frontage may be combined in order to utilize 
signage corresponding to the resulting frontage as described in the preceding two 
paragraphs. 

7. No more than one Freestanding Commercial Sign shall be allowed on any 
premises except when the site meets one of the following sets of criteria: 
 
a. The building plot, as recognized on an approved Plat or Site Plan, must 

be 25 acres or more in area with at least 1,000 feet of continuous 
unsubdivided frontage on any major arterial street or higher (as classified 
on the Thoroughfare Plan) toward which one additional Freestanding 
Commercial Sign may be displayed (see diagram below); or 

166



ORDINANCE NO. _______________            Page 16 
 
 

m
aj

o
r 

ar
te

ri
al

property line

10
00

'

25 Acre Minimum

SIGN

SIGN

st
re

et

 
 

b. The Building Plot, as recognized on an approved Plat or Site Plan, must 
be 15 acres or more in area with at least 600 feet of continuous 
unsubdivided frontage on any major arterial street or higher (as classified 
on the Thoroughfare Plan) and the site must have additional frontage on 
a street classified as a minor arterial or greater on the Thoroughfare Plan, 
toward which the additional Freestanding Commercial Sign may be 
displayed. 

 

         

minor arterial or greater

m
in

o
r 

ar
te

ri
al

 o
r 

g
re

at
er

property line

60
0'

15 Acre Minimum

SIGN

SIGN

street

st
re

et

  
 

167



ORDINANCE NO. _______________            Page 17 
 
 

8. Any sign where two or more panels have separate supports extending to them 
shall be considered to be more than one Freestanding Commercial Sign, even 
where only one main support extends to the ground. 

9. Sites with limited or no street frontage, due to a proliferation of pad sites, that are 
not contained within the building plot, as defined by the Administrator, and are 
fronting along a street classified as a collector or greater on the Thoroughfare 
Plan, will be allowed the area of the sign to be less than or equal to the square of 
one-sixth of the distance from the closest portion of the sign to the curb or 
pavement edge, with the maximum area not to exceed 200 square feet. 

10. Any site defined as a single building plot, and containing one or more pad sites, 
shall be permitted to erect a Freestanding Commercial Sign in accordance with 
Section 7.5.N, Freestanding Commercial Signs, and to the standards of Section 
7.5.N.1.a, Allowable Area, with the maximum area not to exceed 200 square feet.  
In addition, each pad site will be permitted to erect one Low Profile Sign per pad 
site according to the restrictions of 7.5.F, Sign Standards. 

 
O. Fuel Price Signs 

 
Facilities with fuel sales will be allowed one additional sign for the purposes of fuel 
pricing, either freestanding or attached, per premises. 
 
1. The area of the fuel price sign shall not exceed 16 square feet. 
2. Fuel pricing may be incorporated into the allowable square footage of a 

Freestanding Commercial Sign or Attached Sign.   
3. This sign shall follow the setback requirements for a Freestanding Commercial 

Sign and shall not be located within the right-of-way. 
 

P. Grand Opening Signs  
 

1. Flags, commercial banners, and balloons, which advertise a business's grand 
opening, may be displayed for one consecutive 14-day period, selected by the 
business owner, within 60 days of the granting of the initial Certificate of 
Occupancy, a change in the use, or of a change in the name of the business. A 
permit is required. 

2. A commercial banner associated with a grand opening:  
a. Shall advertise only the name of, uses of, or goods or services available 

within the building, or tenant lease space, to which the sign is attached;  
b. Shall be mounted parallel to the face of the building;  
c. Shall not be cantilevered away from the structure; 
d. Shall not extend more than one foot from any exterior building face, 

mansard, awning, or canopy;   
e. Shall not obstruct any window, door, stairway, or other opening intended 

for ingress or for needed ventilation or light; and 
f. Shall not be attached to any tree, fence, or public utility pole. 

 
Q. Home Occupation Signs 

 
1. A person having a legal home occupation may have one sign on the building or 

porch of a residence. 
2. The sign may contain only the name and occupation of the resident. 
3. It shall be attached directly to the face of the building or porch. 
4. It shall not exceed two square feet in area, shall not be illuminated in any way, 

and shall not project more than 12 inches beyond the building. 
5. No display of merchandise or other forms of commercial communication shall be 

allowed within a residential area, unless same are in existence prior to the 

168



ORDINANCE NO. _______________            Page 18 
 
 

adoption of this UDO in connection with a use that is presently.   A person 
having a legal home occupation may have one sign on the building or porch of a 
residence. 

6. Such a non-conforming sign may be maintained until the non-conforming use of 
the building ceases, subject to the requirements for maintenance herein.  
Discontinuance of the use of such a sign for more than three months shall prevent 
future use, even if the non-conforming use of the premises is continuous 

 
R. Non-Commercial and Political Signs 
 

This Section does not regulate the size, content, or location of non-commercial signs 
except as follows: 
 
1. No commercial message shall be shown on any non-commercial sign. 
2. No non-commercial sign: 

a. May be greater than fifty square feet (50 sq.ft.) in size; 
b. Be located within public road right-of-way of the State of Texas or the 

City of College Station; 
c. May be located off the premises of the property owner who is displaying 

the sign; and 
d. May be located within any sight distance triangle as defined in Section 

7.1.C, Visibility at Intersections in All Districts, or where determined by 
the Administrator as a location that would hinder intersection visibility.  
This provision is necessary to avoid clutter, proliferation, and dangerous 
distraction to drivers caused by close proximity of such signs to 
automobile traffic, to avoid damage to automobiles which may leave the 
paved surface intentionally or by accident, and to avoid the necessity for 
pedestrians to step into the roadway to bypass such signs.  No regulatory 
alternative exists to accomplish this police power obligation. 

3. In the event that any non-commercial sign is located in a public right-of-way of 
the State, the City shall remove it. 

4. All non-commercial signs addressing a particular event are allowed up to ninety 
(90) days prior to the event and shall be removed within ten (10) days after. 

S. Real Estate/Finance/Construction Signs 
 

1. One Real Estate Sign not exceeding 16 square feet in total area (exclusive of 
stakes and posts) may be erected at any time while a property is offered for sale 
or lease to the public.  Properties with a minimum of 150 feet of frontage shall be 
allowed one Real Estate Sign not exceeding 32 square feet in total area.  
Properties with a minimum of two acres and frontage on two streets shall be 
allowed one real estate sign on each frontage street with the area of the sign to be 
determined by the amount of frontage as stated above. 

2. One Finance Sign and three Construction Signs (for a total of four signs), not 
exceeding 16 square feet in total area each (exclusive of stakes and posts) may be 
erected once a building permit has been issued on a property.  Properties with a 
minimum of ten acres and 1,000 feet of frontage shall be allowed one Finance 
Sign and three Construction Signs not exceeding 32 square feet in total area each. 

3. Real Estate, Finance, and Construction Signs may be either attached or 
freestanding and only those visible from the street are limited in number. 

4. All such signs shall be maintained by the persons in control of the premises so as 
to remain erect and in good repair.  Such signs shall be removed by the property 

169



ORDINANCE NO. _______________            Page 19 
 
 

owner or other person in control of the premises if they are damaged, broken, or 
incapable of remaining erect. 

5. Such signs must be removed by the owner or person in control of the premises 
when either the property has sold or been leased and/or when performance under 
the construction contract or subcontract (in the case of Construction Signs) has 
been completed.  In all cases, Financing and Construction Signs shall be removed 
prior to issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy. 

 
T. Roof Signs 

 
1. Signs mounted to the structural roof shall be regulated as Freestanding 

Commercial Signs.   
2. Painted or applied roof signs are prohibited. 

 
U. Special Event Signs 
 

1. Signs, including commercial banners and balloons, advertising or announcing a 
Special Event, as defined in Chapter 4, Section 4.B of the Code of Ordinances, 
are permitted as a part of the Special Event License and shall be limited to the 
property holding the event. 

2. The Special Event Signage is allowed up to 14 days prior to the event and must 
be removed within 24 hours of the end of the event. 

 
V. Vehicle Signs 
 

1. Signs that are displayed on motor vehicles that are being operated or stored in the 
normal course of a business, such as signs indicating the name or the type of 
business, excluding all banners, that are located on moving vans, delivery trucks, 
trailers or other commercial vehicles are permitted; but only if the primary 
purpose of such vehicles is not for the display of the signs thereon, and only if 
such vehicles are parked or stored in areas appropriate to their use as commercial 
or delivery vehicles, such as service areas or locations close to the business 
building away from public traffic areas.   

2. Signs or advertisements permanently attached to non-commercial vehicles, 
excluding all banners, are permitted. 

 
W. Signs for Conditional Uses 
 

1. Signs for Conditional Uses shall comply with the regulations for the zoning 
district in which the Conditional Use is permitted. 

2. Signs for Conditional Uses in residential or agricultural zoning districts shall 
comply with Section 7.4.F Sign Standards, “Low Profile Signs.” 

 
X. Signs for Permitted Non-residential uses in Residential or Agricultural Districts    
 

Signs for non-residential permitted uses in residential or agricultural zoning districts shall 
comply with Section 7.4.F Sign Standards, “Low Profile Signs.” 

 
Y. Abandoned, Damaged, or Unsafe Signs 
 

1. The provisions of this Section shall apply when in conflict with the provisions of 
the Building Code; but where the provisions of both ordinances are consistent, 
the enforcement of either shall be permissible and remedies or penalties 
cumulative. 

170



ORDINANCE NO. _______________            Page 20 
 
 

2. Non-conforming signs that have become deteriorated or damaged to an extent 
that the cost of the reconstruction or restoration of such signs is in excess of 50 
percent of its replacement value exclusive of foundations, will be required to be 
removed or brought into full compliance with the current sign regulations. 

3. All abandoned signs and their supports shall be removed within 60 days from the 
date of abandonment.  All damaged signs shall be repaired or removed within 60 
days.  The Administrator shall have authority to grant a 30-day time extension 
where he determines there is a reasonable necessity for same.  

4. Discontinuance of use or removal of any non-conforming sign or any sign in 
connection with a non-conforming use shall create a presumption of intent to 
abandon said sign.  A non-conforming sign that is damaged and not repaired 
within 60 days shall be presumed to be abandoned. 

 
5. When a building is demolished, the associated signs and sign structures shall also 

be removed. 
 

Z. Signs in the Extraterritorial Jurisdiction  
 
All off-premise and portable signs shall be prohibited within the Extraterritorial 
Jurisdiction of the City of College Station.”

171



ORDINANCE NO. _______________            Page 21 
 
 

 
 

III. 
 
 

That Chapter 12, “Unified Development Ordinance,” of the Code of Ordinances of the City of College 
Station, Texas, is hereby amended by renumbering the current Article 7.5 through Article 7.11 to Article 
7.6 through Article 7.12. 

172



June 22, 2006 
Regular Agenda  

Specific Notice Requirements Ordinance 
 

 
To:  Glenn Brown, City Manager 
 
From:  Lance Simms, Acting Director of Planning & Development Services 
 
Agenda Caption: Public Hearing, presentation, possible action, and discussion on an 
ordinance amending Chapter 12, City of College Station Code of Ordinances, Section 3.1, 
General Approval Procedures, related to specific notice requirements. 
 
Recommendation: The Planning and Zoning Commission unanimously recommended 
approval of this item at their meeting on June 1, 2006. Staff also recommends approval. 
 
Summary: This ordinance amends Section 3.1 of the Unified Development Code to make 
notice requirements consistent with the Texas Local Government Code. The proposed 
language will make the timing of both published and mailed notices consistent regardless of 
the application type. Currently, some application types only require ten days for the mailed 
notice but 15 days for the published notice. The purpose of amending this section is to 
mitigate these differences and result in notice requirements that are easier to administer. 
 
Budget & Financial Summary: N/A 
 
Attachments:  

1. Ordinance 
 

173



O/group/legal/ordinance/amendmentform.doc 

ORDINANCE NO. _____ 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 12, “UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE,” 
SECTION 3.1, “GENERAL APPROVAL PROCEDURES,” OF THE CODE OF 
ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF COLLEGE STATION, TEXAS, BY AMENDING 
CERTAIN SECTIONS AS SET OUT BELOW; PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; 
DECLARING A PENALTY; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COLLEGE STATION, 
TEXAS: 
 
PART 1: That Chapter 12, “Unified Development Ordinance,” Section 3.1, “General 

Approval Procedures,” of the Code of Ordinances of the City of College Station, 
Texas, be amended as set out in Exhibit “A”, attached hereto and made a part of 
this ordinance for all purposes. 

 
PART 2: That if any provisions of any section of this ordinance shall be held to be void or 

unconstitutional, such holding shall in no way effect the validity of the remaining 
provisions or sections of this ordinance, which shall remain in full force and effect. 

 
PART 3: That any person, firm, or corporation violating any of the provisions of this chapter 

shall be deemed guilty of a misdemeanor, and upon conviction thereof shall be 
punishable by a fine of not less than Twenty-five Dollars ($25.00) nor more than 
Two Thousand Dollars ($2,000.00).  Each day such violation shall continue or be 
permitted to continue, shall be deemed a separate offense.  Said Ordinance, being a 
penal ordinance, becomes effective ten (10) days after its date of passage by the 
City Council, as provided by Section 34 of the Charter of the City of College 
Station. 

 
PASSED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this _______ day of ______________________, 2006. 

 
      APPROVED: 

 
 

    ____________________________________ 
    RON SILVIA, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Connie Hooks, City Secretary 
 
APPROVED: 

E-Signed by Angela M. DeLuca
VERIFY authenticity with ApproveIt

 
_______________________________ 
City Attorney 

174



ORDINANCE NO.__________________  Page 2 
 
 

cu\c:\docume~1\dcody\locals~1\temp\ordinance.doc 
6/13/06 

 
EXHIBIT “A” 

  
 

That Chapter 12, “Unified Development Ordinance,” Section 3.1, “General Approval 
Procedures,” of the Code of Ordinances of the City of College Station, Texas, is hereby amended 
by amending Section 3.1.F.2 to read as follows: 
 

“2. Specific Notice Requirements 

a.    Published Notice 

A Public Hearing Notice shall be placed by the Administrator at least once in the official 
newspaper of the City before the 15th day before the date of the hearing, for the purpose of 
notifying the public of the time and place of such public hearing and the substance of the 
public hearing agenda items that may be considered or reviewed.  

b.    Mailed Notice 

A notice of public hearing shall be sent to owners of record of real property, as indicated by 
the most recently approved municipal tax roll, within 200 feet of the parcel under 
consideration.  The notice may be served by its deposit in the municipality, properly 
addressed with postage paid, in U.S. mail before the 15th day before the date of the hearing, 

c. Content of Notice 

A published or mailed notice shall provide at least the following specific information: 

1) The general location of land that is the subject of the application;  

2) The substance of the application, including the magnitude of proposed development and 
the current zoning district;  

3) The time, date, and location of the public hearing; and 

4) A phone number to contact the City.” 
 
 
 
 

175



 

 

June 22, 2006 
Regular Agenda  

Traffic Impact Analysis 
 
To: Glenn Brown, City Manager 
 
From: Lance Simms, Acting Director of Planning and Development Services 
 
 
Agenda Caption: Public Hearing, presentation, possible action, and discussion regarding 
an ordinance amending Chapter 12, City of College Station Code of Ordinances, Article 7 of 
the Unified Development Ordinance, requiring a traffic impact analysis for certain residential 
developments.   
 
 
Recommendation(s): The Planning and Zoning Commission heard this item at their May 
18, 2006 meeting and recommended approval. Staff also recommends amending the Unified 
Development Ordinance requirement for traffic impact analysis to be applicable to all 
developments generating more than 5,000 trips per day. 
 
 
Summary: When the Non-Residential Architecture standards were adopted in 2004, the 
traffic impact analysis (TIA) requirement was included in these standards. Therefore, 
residential developments are exempt from this requirement. At that time, it was staff’s 
intent to include residential developments under the TIA requirement as part of a future 
UDO amendment. 
 
The requirement that was adopted for non-residential developments generally requires that 
a TIA be conducted when a development is anticipated to generate more than 5,000 trips 
per day. The proposed amendment extends this requirement to residential developments. 
Based on typical residential trip generation rates, a 500 unit single-family residential 
development would generate 5,000 trips per day. Examples of existing residential 
developments that would meet these criteria include Castlegate, Edelweiss Estates, 
Edelweiss Gartens, Emerald Forest, Pebble Creek, Shenandoah, and Woodcreek. 
 
For residential developments, the traffic peaks are concentrated around the 8:00 a.m. and 
5:00 p.m. commute times, and for large residential developments, mobility during these 
times can be greatly improved if traffic mitigation is planned with the development. Typical 
mitigation alternatives for a residential development may include adjusting street locations, 
providing an adequate number of connections to the greater thoroughfare system, and 
providing auxiliary lanes (right- or left- turn lanes) where heavy turning volumes are 
expected. 
 
 
 
Budget & Financial Summary:  N/A 
 
 
Attachments: 

1. P&Z Minutes from 18 May 2006 
2. Ordinance 

 
 
 

176



P&Z Regular Meeting Minutes May 18, 2006 Page 1 of 5 

 
 
 
 

 

MINUTES  
Regular Meeting  

Planning and Zoning Commission  
Thursday, May 18, 2006, at 7:00 p.m.  

Council Chambers, College Station City Hall  
1101 Texas Avenue  

College Station, Texas  

 
 
COMMISSIONERS PRESENT: Acting Chairman John Nichols, Dennis Christiansen, Harold 
Strong, and Marsha Sanford. 
  
COMMISSIONERS ABSENT: Chairman Scott Shafer, Bill Davis, Ken Reynolds 
  
CITY COUNCIL MEMBERS PRESENT: Chris Scotti. 
 
STAFF MEMBERS PRESENT:  Staff Planners Lindsay Boyer and Crissy Hartl, Senior 
Planners Jennifer Prochazka and Trey Fletcher, Planning Administrator Molly Hitchcock, Senior 
Assistant City Engineer Alan Gibbs, Graduate Civil Engineers Josh Norton and Carol Cotter, 
Transportation Planner Ken Fogle, Acting Director Lance Simms, Staff Assistant Lisa Lindgren, 
Micro Computer Specialist Dan Merkel, Assistant City Attorney Carla Robinson and Action 
Center Representative Bryan Cook.. 
 
 
1. Call meeting to order. 
 
 Acting Chairman John Nichols called the meeting to order at 7:10 p.m. 
 
2. Hear Citizens. 
 

Anne Hazen, 1309 Wilshire Court, College Station, Texas.  Ms. Hazen spoke to the 
Commission regarding the upcoming meeting on June 1, 2006.  She stated that the 
citizens did obtain a super majority petition that would require 5 out of the 7 
Commissioners to vote for any change to the Comprehensive Plan for the 
Atkinson/Shoup item to be heard.  She expressed the importance of the meeting to the 
residents of that area and asked that the Commissioners make every effort possible to 
attend the meeting so it can be discussed with all the members of the Commission and the 
decision be made by all of the members of the Commission.  She also stated that if all 
seven Commissioners could not attend, then the meeting should not be heard and should 
be moved to another time. 
 

3. Consent Agenda. 
 

3.1 Presentation, possible action, and discussion on a Preliminary Plat for Plazas at 
Rock Prairie consisting of 4 lots on 3.5923 acres located at 3975 SH 6 S in the 
general vicinity of Rock Prairie Road and the State Highway 6 East-Bypass. Case 
#06-500074 (CH/CC) 

177



P&Z Regular Meeting Minutes May 18, 2006 Page 2 of 5 

 
3.2 Presentation, possible action and discussion on a Preliminary Plat for Carter's 

Crossing consisting of 72 lots on approximately 47.7 acres located at 2075 North 
Forest Pkwy.  Case #06-500078 (JR/JN) 

 
Commissioner Strong asked that item 3.1 be moved to the regular agenda. 
 
Commissioner Christiansen motioned to approve item 3.2 of the Consent Agenda.  
Commissioner Sanford seconded the motion, motion passed (4-0). 
 

Regular Agenda.  
 
4. Consideration, discussion and possible action on a request for an absence from a meeting. 
 

v Bill Davis ~ May 18, 2006, Workshop & Regular Meeting 
 

Commissioner Sanford motioned to approve the absence request.  Commissioner 
Christiansen seconded the motion, motion passed (4-0). 

 
5. Consideration, discussion, and possible action on items removed from the Consent 

Agenda by Commission action. 
 
3.1 Presentation, possible action, and discussion on a Preliminary Plat for Plazas at 

Rock Prairie consisting of 4 lots on 3.5923 acres located at 3975 SH 6 S in the 
general vicinity of Rock Prairie Road and the State Highway 6 East-Bypass. Case 
#06-500074 (CH/CC) 

 
Crissy Hartl, Staff Planner, presented the Preliminary Plat and stated that it was in 
compliance with all the Subdivision Regulations. 
 
Although this item was not scheduled for a public hearing, Acting Chairman John 
Nichols extended a courtesy to a citizen that wished to speak regarding the item. 
 
Trish Klein, 9214 Brookwater Circle, College Station, Texas.  She spoke of concerns 
regarding traffic in the area. 
 
Commissioner Strong motioned to approve the Preliminary Plat.  Commissioner 
Christiansen seconded the motion, motion passed (4-0). 
 

6. Presentation, possible action, and discussion on a variance from Section 8-K.1 (Lots) of 
the Subdivision Regulations for North Forest Estates, and presentation, possible action, 
and discussion on a Preliminary Plat consisting of 28 lots on 9.86 acres located at 2050 
North Forest Parkway between the North Forest and Emerald Forest subdivisions.  Case 
#06-500079 (TF/JN) 
 
Trey Fletcher, Senior Planner, presented the variance and the Preliminary Plat and 
recommended approval of the Preliminary Plat upon approval of the variance. 

178



P&Z Regular Meeting Minutes May 18, 2006 Page 3 of 5 

 
Commissioner Christiansen motioned to approve the variance as requested.  
Commissioner Strong seconded the motion, motion passed (4-0). 
 
Commissioner Sanford motioned to approve the Preliminary Plat as presented by 
staff with the condition that Engineering Comments #2 be met.  Commissioner 
Strong seconded the motion, motion passed (4-0). 
 

7. Public hearing, presentation, possible action, and discussion on a Final Plat of 
Shenandoah Phase 19 (which includes a Replat of Lot 1, Block 11 and Lot 17, Block 8 of 
Shenandoah Phase 1).  This plat consists of 57 residential lots and an HOA common area 
on 19.486 acres, generally located near the southeast intersection of Southern Plantation 
Drive and Decatur Drive.  Case #05-500046 (JP/CC) 
 
Jennifer Prochazka, Senior Planner, presented the Final Plat stating that it was in 
compliance with all the Subdivision Regulations and that approximately 30 to 35 phone 
calls were received and all were in favor of the Final Plat. 
 
Mike McClure, Engineer, 1008 Woodcreek Drive, College Station, Texas.  Mr. McClure 
gave background information regarding the project and answered general questions from 
the Commission. 
 
Ben Kirby, Vice-President, Southern Plantation Homeowners Association, 3816 Stoney 
Creek Lane, College Station, Texas.  Mr. Kirby asked questions regarding limitations 
regarding the size of homes, participation by the owners in the HOA, and access to get to 
the common area for the HOA. 
 
Mike McClure was called back to speak by the Commission.  Mr. McClure and Ms. 
Prochazka clarified the concerns of Mr. Kirby informing him that the city does not 
regulate housing size that all property owners within the plat with be HOA members, and 
that there are multiple points of access through existing right-of-ways to the common 
area. 
 
Commissioner Sanford motioned to approve the Final Plat which included a Replat.  
Commissioner Christiansen seconded the motion, motion passed (4-0). 
 

8. Public hearing, presentation, possible action, and discussion on a Final Plat of South 
Hampton Phase 2 and a portion of South Hampton Phase 4 (includes a Replat of Lot 1RA 
and Lot 2RA of Nantucket Subdivision Phase 2), together consisting of 22 lots on 8.204 
acres, generally located at the southwest corner of State Highway 6 West Frontage Road 
and Nantucket Drive.  Case #06-500081 (JP/CC) 
 
Jennifer Prochazka, Senior Planner, presented the Final Plat and Replat. 
 

 No one spoke during the public hearing. 
 
Commissioner Strong motioned to approve the Final Plat and Replat as presented.  
Commissioner Christiansen seconded the motion, motion passed (4-0). 
 

179



P&Z Regular Meeting Minutes May 18, 2006 Page 4 of 5 

9. Public hearing, presentation, possible action, and discussion on an amendment to the 
Unified Development Ordinance, Section 7.4, Traffic Impact Analysis.  Case #05-
500023 (KF) 
 
Ken Fogle, Transportation Planner, presented the amendment to Section 7.4 of the 
Unified Development Ordinance. 
 
Steve Arden, 311 Cecelia Loop, College Station, Texas.  Mr. Arden spoke in reference to 
the importance and need for long range planning and to address the issues in Mr. Fogle’s 
presentation in a more positive way. 
 
Ben Kirby, 3816 Stoney Creek Lane, College Station, Texas.  Mr. Kirby asked questions 
in general pertaining to the requirements for a Traffic Impact Analysis Study. 
 
Commissioner Christiansen motioned to recommend approval of the amendment as 
presented to the City Council.  Commissioner Strong seconded the motion, motion 
passed (4-0). 
 

10. Public hearing, presentation, possible action, and discussion on an amendment to the 
Unified Development Ordinance, Section 5.5.C Planned Development District (PDD).  
Case #05-500023 (TF) 
 
Trey Fletcher, Senior Planner, presented the amendment to Section 5.5.C of the Unified 
Development Ordinance. 
 
No one spoke at the public hearing. 
 
Commissioner Sanford motioned to approve the amendment as presented and 
recommend to City Council.  Commissioner Strong seconded the motion, motion 
passed (4-0). 
 

11. Public hearing, presentation, possible action, and discussion on Section 7.3 of the Unified 
Development Ordinance, Access Management & Circulation, related to residential 
driveway standards.  Case #05-500023 (JP) 

 
Jennifer Prochazka, Senior Planner, gave a presentation on Section 7.3 of the Unified 
Development Ordinance. 

 
No one spoke at the public hearing. 
 
Commissioner Strong made a motion that staff retain the current (10” to 28” 
driveway standards) Section 7.3 of the Unified Development Ordinance as presented 
by staff.  Commissioner Christiansen seconded the motion, motion failed (2-2).  
Commissioners Strong and Christiansen were in favor of the recommendation; 
Commissioners Sanford and Nichols were in opposition of the recommendation. 

180



P&Z Regular Meeting Minutes May 18, 2006 Page 5 of 5 

 
12. Adjourn. 

 
Commissioner Strong motioned to adjourn.  Commissioner Sanford seconded the 
motion, motion passed (4-0). 
 
 
Approved: 

 
 

______________________________________ 
Scott Shafer, Chairman 
Planning and Zoning Commission 
 
 
Attest: 
 
 
______________________________________ 
Lisa Lindgren, Staff Assistant 
Planning and Development Services 

 

 

 

181



ORDINANCE NO. ___________ 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 12, “UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE, 
ARTICLE 7, “GENERAL DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS,” OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF 
THE CITY OF COLLEGE STATION, TEXAS, BY AMENDING CERTAIN SECTIONS AS SET OUT 
BELOW; PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; DECLARING A PENALTY; AND 
PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COLLEGE STATION, TEXAS: 
 
PART 1: That Chapter 12, “Unified Development Ordinance,” Article 7, “General Development 

Standards,” of the Code of Ordinances of the City of College Station, Texas, be amended 
as set out in Exhibit “A”, attached hereto and made a part of this ordinance for all 
purposes. 

 
PART 2: That if any provisions of any section of this ordinance shall be held to be void or 

unconstitutional, such holding shall in no way effect the validity of the remaining provi-
sions or sections of this ordinance, which shall remain in full force and effect. 

 
PART 3: That any person, firm, or corporation violating any of the provisions of this chapter shall 

be deemed guilty of a misdemeanor, and upon conviction thereof shall be punishable by a 
fine of not less than Twenty-five Dollars ($25.00) nor more than Two Thousand Dollars 
($2,000.00).  Each day such violation shall continue or be permitted to continue, shall be 
deemed a separate offense.  Said Ordinance, being a penal ordinance, becomes effective 
ten (10) days after its date of passage by the City Council, as provided by Section 34 of 
the Charter of the City of College Station. 

 
PASSED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this 22nd day of June, 2006. 

 
      APPROVED: 

 
 

    ____________________________________ 
    RON SILVIA, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Connie Hooks, City Secretary 
 
 
APPROVED: 
 

E-Signed by Carla A. Robinson
VERIFY authenticity with ApproveIt  

_______________________________ 
City Attorney 

182



ORDINANCE NO. _______________            Page 2 
 
 
 

 
EXHIBIT “A” 

 
 

I. 
 

That Chapter 12, “Unified Development Ordinance,” of the Code of Ordinances of the City of College 
Station, Texas, is hereby amended by adding a new Article 7.4 as set out hereafter to read as follows:  
 
 
“7.4 Traffic Impact Analysis 

A. General 
This section establishes requirements and procedures pertaining to traffic impact analysis 
(TIA) for developments. These requirements are to inform the applicant of the City's 
expectations, expedite the City staff's review process of TIA reports, provide standard 
criteria for evaluating development proposals, and establish equitable mitigation and cost 
sharing policies. 
 
The TIA is to develop public/private partnerships to coordinate land use and 
transportation facility development. Both the City of College Station and the land 
developer share in the responsibility to consider all reasonable solutions to identified 
transportation problems. 

B. Purpose 
The goal of the TIA is to look at a specific development of known size and use and to 
determine the effect of that use on the existing roadway system. It uses existing traffic 
volumes and assumes the existing roadway configuration to be used for analysis. This 
process should ensure that the roadway system is adequate to accommodate the proposed 
use and may recommend mitigation measures necessary to ensure efficient traffic flow 
around the proposed site (as based on intersection and roadway levels of service). 

1. Objective 
A TIA is to define the immediate impacts of the proposed development and any 
necessary transportation improvements (public or private) required to ensure a 
satisfactory level of service on all affected thoroughfares. A TIA is designed to 
mitigate traffic impacts by optimizing roadway capacity, access design, and 
traffic control. A TIA may be used to deny a commercial site plan or residential 
plat where it has been determined that transportation facilities are not adequate to 
handle the increased traffic caused by the development. Specific improvements 
to the existing roadways consistent with the Thoroughfare Plan may be needed to 
gain approval of site plan or plat proposals. 

2. Definitions 

a. Trip Generation Rates - The City's criteria for trip generation for various 
categories of land use and density shall be those set forth in the latest 
edition of the trip generation informational report published by the 
Institute of Transportation Engineers (ITE) unless the proposed use does 
not have a corresponding rate in the TRIP GENERATION MANUAL.  If 
alternative trip generation rates are proposed, they must be based on a 
general study of local conditions and shall be adopted for City-wide use. 

183



ORDINANCE NO. _______________            Page 3 
 
 

b. Design Year - The design year is the point in time upon which 
assumptions pertaining to land use, population, employment, and 
transportation facilities are based. All TIAs shall use a design year based 
on the expected date of project occupancy. 

c. Base Volumes - Base volumes shall be based on current traffic counts 
adjusted to the expected date of project occupancy. When available, all 
base data shall be supplied by the City Traffic Engineer. In all cases 
when ground counts are needed and are not available, the developer or 
his agent shall be required to collect such data. 

d. Level of Service (LOS) - Level of service is a measure of the level of 
congestion experienced on roadways. The desirable minimum level of 
service of the City of College Station is Level of Service D (less than 25 
second of stopped delay per vehicle), as defined by the HIGHWAY 
CAPACITY MANUAL. in the peak hour. Level of service shall be 
measured for both link and intersection operations. 

3. Applicability 

a. Single Family and Duplex Residential Developments 
A TIA will be required for single family and duplex residential 
preliminary plats submitted for approval that generate 5,000 trips or 
more per day. 
 
It is the responsibility of the applicant to demonstrate that a TIA is not 
required for a single-family and duplex residential preliminary plat, as 
defined in Section 6-B.1 of the SUBDIVISION REGULATIONS. In cases 
where a TIA is required, the preliminary plat application will be 
considered incomplete until the TIA is submitted. 
 

b. Multi-Family Developments 
A TIA will be required for multi-family residential site plans submitted 
for approval that either have a floor area ratio (FAR) of 0.75 or greater 
and more than 100 units or generate 5,000 trips or more per day.  
 
It is the responsibility of the applicant to demonstrate that a TIA is not 
required for a multi-family residential site plan application, as defined in 
Section 3.5 Site Plan Review. In cases where a TIA is required, the site 
plan application will be considered incomplete until the TIA is 
submitted. 

 
c. Non-Residential Developments 

A TIA will be required for non-residential site plans submitted for 
approval that generate 5,000 trips or more per day at build out. A TIA 
may be required for non-residential site plans submitted for approval that 
generate less that 5,000 trips per day, where the peaking characteristics 
could have a detrimental impact on the transportation system as 
determined by the Administrator. 
 
It is the responsibility of the applicant to demonstrate that a TIA is not 
required for a non-residential site plan application, as defined in Section 
3.5. In cases where a TIA is required, the site plan application will be 
considered incomplete until the TIA is submitted. 

 

184



ORDINANCE NO. _______________            Page 4 
 
 

d. Comprehensive Plan Amendments 
 A TIA may be required with a comprehensive plan amendment 

application where the proposed land use changes would generate more 
trips than the existing land use(s). The Administrator will make this 
determination at the time of the pre-application conference. 

C. Methodology 
 

All TIAs shall be performed by a professional traffic engineer qualified to perform such 
studies. Requirements for mitigating negative traffic impacts shall apply to all cases.  
 
A pre-submission consultation with the Administrator is required. Details of the required 
analysis and the study area will be determined at this meeting. In certain instances, traffic 
from other approved but not built developments may have to be accounted for in traffic 
assignments. Staff may also require specific assumptions, such as the percentage of heavy 
vehicles using the roadway, to be altered to match local conditions.  

 
The following procedures shall be followed in preparing traffic impact studies submitted 
to the City: 

D. Content 
 
1. Study Area - A map(s) shall be included delineating the TIA study area and all 

existing and planned streets therein. The study area will be defined in the pre-
submission consultation meeting with the Administrator. 

 
2. Existing Zoning and Development - Describe existing zoning including land area 

(gross and net) by zoning classification, square footages, numbers of hotel rooms, 
dwelling units, etc. Also, describe any existing development on-site and how it 
will be affected by development proposals. 

 
3. Thoroughfare Network - Describe existing thoroughfares, signals and signal 

phasing, and traffic volumes within the study area. 
 
4. Proposed Development - Describe the proposed development including land area 

(gross and net), square footage, number of hotel rooms, dwelling units, etc., and 
the development phasing plan if applicable. Also describe roadway conditions as 
expected by date of occupancy. Indicate roadway and intersection capacities at 
study date. 

 
5. Impact Determination - Determine the level of service for all thoroughfares and 

intersections in the study area. The analysis shall contain the following minimum 
information: 
a. Proposed Trip Generation - Calculate total trip generation by use 

(assuming full development and occupancy) and report any reductions 
for passer-by, mixed use, etc. Show trip generation by use in tabular 
form with land use trip generation rates and trips generated. 

b. Trip Distribution and Assignment - Trips generated by the proposed 
development are to be added to the base volumes projected for the design 
year. Peak hour volumes must be calculated. Distribution assumptions 
and assignment calculations must be provided. 

c. Level of Service Analysis - Show in tabular form, 24 hour and peak hour 
V/C ratios for links and intersections within the study area. This analysis 
should be done for the following traffic conditions: existing traffic, 

185



ORDINANCE NO. _______________            Page 5 
 
 

background traffic, background plus project traffic (at up to three phases 
if applicable). Analyze all points of ingress and egress, median breaks, 
and turn lanes associated with the proposed site. 

d. Plan Review – Review the site plan or preliminary plat for sight distance 
issues and site circulation issues. 

e. Conclusions - Provide a summary of points of conflict and congestion. 
Identify all thoroughfare links or intersections exceeding a Level of 
Service D and the percent increase in total traffic produced by the 
proposed site plan. Identify any operational problems (e.g., drives, 
median openings, sight distance, and signalization) within the study area. 

f. Mitigation - Traffic levels exceeding Level of Service D, as defined by 
the HIGHWAY CAPACITY MANUAL (HCM), where the development is 
contributing 5% or more of the total trips shall be mitigated to 
predevelopment levels. Problems demonstrated by the TIA can be 
corrected by: 
 
1) Access management requirements in addition to those provided 

in Article 7.3 and the CITY OF COLLEGE STATION ENGINEERING 
DESIGN GUIDELINES relating to driveway and median opening 
spacing. 

2) Modifying density or intensity of use (e.g., reduction in square 
footage or percentage of commercial use). 

3) Phasing construction until additional roadway capacity becomes 
available. 

4) On-site improvements including access controls, site circulation 
adjustments, and enhancements for pedestrians, bicyclists and 
transit users. 

5) Off-site improvements including the construction of auxiliary 
lanes (i.e., deceleration and acceleration lanes) and additional 
lanes where the surrounding thoroughfares are not fully 
developed or intersection improvements, including signalization, 
where the surrounding area is approaching full development.  

g. Costs of Mitigation - Mitigation improvements which are attributable to 
the proposed development shall be funded at the developer’s expense. 
Any other improvements shown which are consistent with the 
Thoroughfare Plan may be repaid by the City in accordance with its cost 
sharing policies.” 

186



ORDINANCE NO. _______________            Page 6 
 
 

II. 
 
That Chapter 12, “Unified Development Ordinance,” of the Code of Ordinances of the City of College 
Station, Texas, is hereby amended by renumbering the current Article 7.4 “Signs” to Article 7.5 “Signs” 
as set out hereafter to read as follows: 
 
“7.5 Signs 

 
A. Purpose 
 

The purpose of this Section is to establish clear and unambiguous regulations pertaining 
to signs in the City of College Station and to promote an attractive community, foster 
traffic safety, and enhance the effective communication and exchange of ideas and 
commercial information. 

 
B. Applicability 
 

The City Council recognizes that signs are necessary for visual communication for public 
convenience, and that businesses and other activities have the right to identify themselves 
by using signs that are incidental to the use on the premises where the signs are located.  
The Council herein seeks to provide a reasonable balance between the right of a person to 
identify his or her business or activity, and the rights of the public to be protected against 
visual discord and safety hazards that result from the unrestricted proliferation, location, 
and construction of signs.  This Section will insure that signs are compatible with 
adjacent land uses and with the total visual environment of the community, in accordance 
with the City's Comprehensive Plan. 

1. The City Council finds that the rights of residents of this City to fully exercise 
their rights of free speech by the use of signs containing non-commercial 
messages are subject to minimum regulation regarding structural safety and 
setbacks for purposes of traffic protection.  The City Council seeks herein to 
provide for the reasonably prompt removal and disposal of such signs after they 
have served their purpose, and yet to avoid any interference with First 
Amendment freedoms, especially as to persons who are of limited financial 
means. 

2. The City Council finds that instances may occur in the application of this Section 
where strict enforcement would deprive a person of the reasonable use of a sign, 
or the reasonable utilization of a sign in connection with other related property 
rights, and herein provides for such persons to have the right to seek variances 
from the requirements of this UDO for good cause.  The City Council finds that it 
is imperative that enforcement officials apply this Section as it is written, in the 
interest of equality and fair and impartial application to all persons, and that the 
procedures to appeal a denial of a sign permit to the ZBA shall remain the sole 
administrative means to obtain any exception to the terms hereof. 

3. The regulations of this Section shall apply for developments within the zoning 
districts listed in Section 7.5.C Summary of Permitted Signs.  These regulations 
only apply to special districts within the City of College Station so far as is stated 
in the following Sections of this UDO: 

 

a. Wolf Pen Creek District (WPC), Section 5.6.A. 

b. Northgate Districts (NG-1, NG-2, NG-3), Section 5.6.B. 

187



ORDINANCE NO. _______________            Page 7 
 
 

c. Corridor Overlay District (OV), Section 5.8.A. 

d. Krenek Overlay District (KO), Section 5.8.B. 
 

C. Summary of Permitted Signs 
 

The following signs are permitted in the relevant zoning districts of the City: 
 

  

  A
-O

 

  A
-O

R
 

  R
-1

B
 

  R
-1

 

  R
-2

 

  R
-3

 

  R
-4

 

  R
-6

 

  R
-7

 

  A
-P

 

  C
-1

 

  C
-2

 

C
-3

 

  R
&

D
 

M
-1

 

  M
-2

 

Apartment/Condominium/ 
Manufactured Home 

Park/Identification Signs 
            X X X               

 Area Identification/ 
Subdivision Signs 

X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X 

 Attached Signs             X X X X X X X X X X 

 Development Signs X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X 

 Directional Traffic 
Control Signs 

                  X X X X X X X 

 Freestanding Signs                     X X     X X 

 Home Occupation Signs X X X X X X X X X               

 Low Profile Signs                   X X X X X X X 

 Non-Commercial Signs X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X 

 Real Estate, Finance, and 
Construction Signs 

X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X 

 Roof Signs                     X X     X X 
 
D. Prohibited Signs 
 

The following signs shall be prohibited in the City of College Station: 
 
1. Portable and trailer signs, and temporary freestanding signs. 
2. Signs painted on rooftops. 
3. Inflated signs, pennants, wind driven devises (excluding flags), tethered balloons, 

and/or any gas filled objects for advertisement, decoration, or otherwise, except 
as permitted in Section 7.5.O, Grand Opening Signs and Section 7.5.T, Special 
Event Signs. 

4. Vehicle signs except as permitted in Section 7.5.U, Vehicle Signs. 
5. Flags containing copy or logo, excluding the flags of any country, state, city, or 

school, are prohibited in residential zones and on any residentially-developed 
property (except when flags are used as subdivision signs).   

6. Signs and displays with flashing, blinking, or traveling lights, or erratic or other 
moving parts, including electronic message boards that change more than once 
per 24-hour period, either internal or external to the premise, and oriented and 
visible to vehicular traffic, provided that time and temperature signs are 
permissible if the maximum area and setback requirements of this Section are 

188



ORDINANCE NO. _______________            Page 8 
 
 

met and if the commercial information or content of such signs is restricted to no 
more than eight square feet. 

7. Signs containing manual changeable copy or electronic reader boards which are 
greater than 30 percent of the allowable sign area. 

8. Any signs that are intended to or designed to resemble traffic signs or signals and 
bear such words as "stop", "slow", "caution", "danger", "warning", or other 
words, and that are erected for purposes other than actual traffic control or 
warning to the public. 

9. Any sign located within the site triangle in any district as stated in Article 7.1.C, 
Visibility at Intersections in all Districts.  This does not include traffic control or 
directional signs. 

10. Any sign that emits sound, odor, or visible matter. 
11.  Off-premise signs, including commercial and non-commercial billboards. 
 

E. Exempt Signs 
 
The following signs are exempt from the requirements of this UDO: 
 
1. Signs that are not easily identified from beyond the boundaries of the lot or 

parcel on which they are located or from any public thoroughfare or traveled 
right-of-way, as determined by the Administrator.  Such signs are not exempt 
from the safety regulations contained herein and in City Building and Electrical 
Codes. 

2. Official notices posted by government officials in the performance of their 
duties: government signs controlling traffic, regulating public conduct, 
identifying streets, or warning of danger.  Bulletin boards or identification signs 
accessory to government buildings or other buildings are subject to the 
provisions of this UDO. 

3. Temporary signs erected by private property owners for the purpose of warning 
of a dangerous defect, condition, or other hazard to the public. 

4. Non-commercial signs on private property or works of art that in no way identify 
or advertise a product or business, or by their location and placement impede 
traffic safety, except as stated in Section 7.5.R. Non-Commercial and Political 
Signs. 

5. Temporary decorations or displays, if they are clearly incidental to and are 
customarily and commonly associated with any national, local, or religious 
celebration. 

6. Temporary or permanent signs erected by public utilities or construction 
companies to warn of the location of pipelines, electrical conduits, or other 
dangers or conditions in public rights-of-way. 

7. Non-Commercial Signs carried by a person and not set or affixed to the ground, 
that in no way identify or advertise a product or business, or by their location and 
placement impede traffic safety. 

8. Commercial Signs carried by a person and not set on or affixed to the ground, 
provided that the sign is temporary, on-premise, and not used by the person on 
the premises for more than three (3) consecutive days, more than four (4) times 
per calendar year. 

9. Outdoor advertising display signs for sponsors of charitable events held on public 
properties.  These signs may be displayed for the duration of the event or not 
more than three days with approval of the City Manager; and 

10. Flags used as political symbols. 
11. Special District Identification Signs, as defined by Article 11.2 Terms, that in no 

way advertise a product or a business, or by their location and placement impede 

189



ORDINANCE NO. _______________            Page 9 
 
 

traffic safety.  Special District Identification Signs must be approved by the 
appropriate Board or Committee.   

12. On-premise and/or off-premise signs where there has been a resolution adopted 
by the City of College Station City Council or an executed contract with the City 
of College Station and the display of the sign are for designated locations, a 
specified time period, and: 
a. Promotes a positive image of the City of College Station for the 

attraction of business or tourism; 
b. Depicts an accomplishment of an individual or group; or 
c. Creates a positive community spirit. 

13. Temporary signs erected for a neighborhood event sponsored by a neighborhood 
group that is registered with the City of College Station, provided that the 
signage is: 
a. Located within the perimeter of the neighborhood,  
b. Provides the name of the association sponsoring the event on the sign, 
c. In good repair, 
d. Allowed up to fourteen (14) days in advance; and 
e. Removed within twenty-four (24) hours of the event. 
 

F. Sign Standards 
 

The following table summarizes the sign standards for the City of College Station: 

190



ORDINANCE NO. _______________            Page 10 
 
 

 

Sign Type 
Maximum 

Area (s.f.)** 
Maximum Height 

(ft.) 

Setback 
from  

ROW (ft.) Number Allowed 
 Apartment/Condominium/Manufactured   
 Home Park Identification Signs 100 10 10 1/frontage 

 

 Area Identification Signs 16 4 10 1/10-50 acre 
subdivision or phase 

 Attached Signs Varies, see 
7.5.I below 

Not to exceed 1 
foot from top of 

wall, marquee, or 
parapet to which it 

is attached 

--- 

Any number allowed if 
within the total allowed 

square footage of 
attached signs 

 Commercial Banners 36 

Not to exceed the 
top of structure to 

which it is 
attached 

10          1/premises 

 Development Signs 
   Residential / Collector Street 
   Arterial Street 
   Freeway 
   (As designated on Thoroughfare Plan) 

 
35 
65 

200 
 

15 10 1/premises 

 Directional Traffic Control Signs 3 4 4 1/curb cut 

 Freestanding Signs Varies, see 7.5.M below 10 
1/building plot where 
lot exceeds 75 feet of 

frontage 
 Home Occupation Signs 

2 
Not to exceed top 
of wall to which it 

is attached 
--- 1/dwelling unit 

 Low Profile Signs (In lieu of permitted 
 Freestanding Sign) 60 4 10 1/150 feet of frontage * 

 Real Estate, Finance, and Construction  
 Signs 
   Up to 150-foot frontage 
   Greater than 150-foot frontage 

 
16 
32 

 
8 
8 

 
10 
10 

1/frontage  
(Real Estate) 

1/property (Finance) 
3/property 

(Construction) 

 Roof Signs 

Determined by 
frontage. Same 
as freestanding 
Max. 100 s.f. 

10 feet above 
structural roof --- 1/building plot in place 

of a freestanding sign 

 Subdivision Signs 150 15 10 
1/primary subdivision 

entrance.  Not to 
exceed 2 signs. 

 
*     Except as provided for in Section 7.5.N.10, Freestanding Commercial Signs. 
**  The area of a sign is the area enclosed by the minimum imaginary rectangle or vertical and horizontal lines that 

fully contains all extremities (as shown in the illustration below), exclusive of supports. 

191



ORDINANCE NO. _______________            Page 11 
 
 
 

 
G. Area Identification and Subdivision Signs 
 

1. Area Identification Signs shall be permitted upon private property in any zone to 
identify multiple-lot subdivisions of 10 to 50 acres in size and subject to the 
requirements set forth in Section 7.5.F, Sign Standards above.  Area 
Identification Signs may also be used within a large subdivision to identify 
distinct areas within that subdivision, subject to the requirements in Section 
7.5.F, Sign Standards above. 

2. Subdivision Signs shall be permitted upon private property in any zone to 
identify subdivisions of greater than 50 acres, subject to the requirements set 
forth in Section 7.5.F, Sign Standards above. 

3. Both Area Identification and Subdivision Signs must be located on the premises 
as identified by a preliminary or master preliminary plat of the subdivision.  
Subdivision Signs will be permitted only at major intersections on the perimeter 
of the subdivision (intersection of two collector or larger streets).  At each 
intersection either one or two Subdivision Signs may be permitted so long as the 
total area of the signs does not exceed 150 square feet.  Flags may be utilized in 
place of a Subdivision Identification Sign, but the overall height shall not exceed 
20 feet and 25 square feet in area in a residential zone and 35 feet in height and 
100 square feet in area in industrial or commercial districts. 

4. Subdivision markers of no more that one square foot in area and used in 
conjunction with a subdivision or area identification sign are permitted attached 
to architectural elements within the subdivision. 

5. Indirect lighting is permissible but no optical effects, moving parts, or 
alternating, erratic, or flashing lights shall be permitted.  Landscaping valued at 
250 points shall be installed around each Subdivision Sign.  Adequate 
arrangements for permanent maintenance of all signs and any landscaping in 
conjunction with such signs shall be made, which may be through an owners 
association if one exists or is created for this purpose. 

192



ORDINANCE NO. _______________            Page 12 
 
 
 

6. All signs shall be setback as shown in Section 7.5.F, Sign Standards above except 
in areas where a Private Improvement in Public Right-of-way permit has been 
issued. 

 
H. Apartment/Condominium/Manufactured Home Park Identification Signs 
 

1. One Apartment/Condominium/Manufactured Home Park Identification Sign may 
be located at a primary entrance on each frontage to a public road. 

2. The maximum area allowed for each frontage may be divided among two signs if 
those signs are single sided and mounted at a single entrance. 

3. An Apartment/Condominium/Manufactured Home Park Identification Sign may 
be either an attached sign or a freestanding monument sign.  It shall be placed 
upon the private property of a particular multi-family project in the appropriate 
zone as established in Section 7.5.C, Summary of Permitted Signs subject to the 
requirements set forth in Section 7.5.F, Sign Standards above. 

4. The Apartment/Condominium/Manufactured Home Park Identification Sign shall 
list the name and may list the facilities available and have leasing or sales 
information incorporated as a part of the sign. 

5. An apartment or condominium project must have a minimum of 24 dwelling 
units to qualify for an identification sign. 

6. Indirect lighting is permissible, but no optical effects, moving parts, or 
alternating, erratic, or flashing lights or devices shall be permitted. 

7. Any manufactured home parks existing at the time of this UDO that are non-
conforming may still utilize an identification sign meeting the provisions of this 
Section and Section 7.5.F, Sign Standards above. 

 
I. Attached Signs 
 

1. Attached Signs are commercial signs under this Section.   
2. Attached Signs on any commercial building or tenant lease space shall not 

exceed a total of two and a half (2.5) square feet per linear foot of all public entry 
façades, with a maximum of 500 square feet of attached signage allowed for any 
one tenant.  Multi-story businesses will be allowed 100 square feet of additional 
attached signage. 

3. The division of allowable building signage amongst building tenants shall be the 
sole responsibility of the owner or property manager, and not the City of College 
Station. 

4. Signs attached to features such as gasoline pumps, automatic teller machines, 
mail/package drop boxes, or similar on-site features, if identifiable from the 
right-of-way, as determined by the Administrator, shall count as part of the 
allowable sign area of the attached signs for the site.  Information contained on 
such features pertaining to federal and state requirements, and operation/safety 
instructions are not counted.  All other signage on such features shall count 
towards the allowable attached sign area. 

5. Architectural elements, which are not part of the sign or logo and in no way 
identify the specific business tenant, shall not be considered attached signage.     

193



ORDINANCE NO. _______________            Page 13 
 
 

6. An attached sign: 
a. Shall advertise only the name of, uses of, or goods or services available 

within the building or tenant lease space to which the sign is attached;  
b. Shall be parallel to the face of the building;  
c. Shall not be cantilevered away from the structure; 
d. Shall not extend more than one foot from any exterior building face, 

mansard, awning, or canopy;   
e. Shall not obstruct any window, door, stairway, or other opening intended 

for ingress or for needed ventilation or light; and 
f. Shall not be attached to any tree or public utility pole. 
 

J. Commercial Banners 
 

1. A commercial banner: 
a. Shall be in good repair; 
b. Shall have the permit number conspicuously posted in the lower right 

hand corner of the banner;  
c. Shall be allowed in addition to the signage provided for in Section 7.5 I, 

Attached Signage;  
d. Shall advertise only the name of, uses of, or goods or services available 

within the building or tenant lease space to which the sign is attached; 
e. Shall be mounted parallel to the face of a building or permanent 

structure; 
f. Shall not be located within public road right-of-way of the State of Texas 

or the City of College Station; 
g.  Shall not obstruct any window, door, stairway, or other opening 

intended for ingress or for needed ventilation or light; and 
h. Except for J. 2. below, shall be allowed for a maximum 14-day period 

per permit. 
2. An annual banner permit may be allowed for Places of Worship meeting in 

public spaces on a temporary basis. Banners allowed by this subsection shall only 
be displayed on the day of the worship service.  

3. The applicant shall pay an application fee of $200.00 upon submission of a 
banner permit application to the City. The application fee is waived for a non-
profit association or organization. This fee shall not apply to banners associated 
with special events as provided for in Section 7.5 U, Special Event Signs.  

  
K. Development Sign 

 
1. A Development Sign may be placed only on private property subject to the 

requirements in Section 7.5.F, Sign Standards above. 
2. A Development Sign for a building project shall be removed if the project has not 

received a Building Permit at the end of twelve months.  The Administrator may 
renew the sign permit for one additional twelve-month period upon request.  
Once a Building Permit for the project is received, the sign may stay in place 
until 75 percent of the project is leased or a permanent sign is installed, 
whichever comes first. 

3. A Development Sign for a proposed subdivision shall be removed if a 
Preliminary or Final Plat has not been approved by the end of twelve months.  
The Administrator may renew the Sign Permit for one additional twelve-month 
period upon request.  Once a plat has been approved, the Sign Permit is valid as 
long as a Preliminary Plat is in effect, or in the absence of a valid Preliminary 
Plat, for 24 months from the date of approval of a Final Plat. 

 
L. Directional Traffic Control Sign 

194



ORDINANCE NO. _______________            Page 14 
 
 

 
1. Directional Traffic Control Signs may be utilized as traffic control devices in off-

street parking areas subject to the requirements set forth in Section 7.5.F, Sign 
Standards above.   

2. For multiple lots sharing an access easement to public right-of-way, there shall 
be only one directional sign located at the curb cut.   

3. Logo or copy shall be less than 50% of the sign area.   
4. No Directional Traffic Control Sign shall be permitted within or upon the right-

of-way of any public street unless its construction, design, and location have been 
approved by the City Traffic Engineer. 

 
M. Flags 
 

1. One freestanding corporate flag per premise, not to exceed 35 feet in height or 
100 square feet in area, is allowed in multi-family, commercial, and industrial 
districts. 

2. Flags used solely for decoration and not containing any copy or logo and located 
only in multi-family, commercial, and industrial districts or developments are 
allowed without a permit.  In multi-family developments, such flags will be 
restricted to 16 square feet in area.  In all permitted zoning districts such flags 
will be restricted to 30 feet in height, and the number shall be restricted to no 
more than 6 flags per building plot. 

3. Flags containing commercial copy or logo, excluding the flags of any country, 
state, city, school, or church are prohibited in residential zones and on any 
residentially developed property (except when flags are used as Subdivision 
Signs). 

 
N. Freestanding Commercial Signs 
 

1. Any development with over 75 linear feet of frontage will be allowed one 
Freestanding Commercial Sign.  All Freestanding Commercial Signs shall meet 
the following standards: 

a. Allowable Area 
 

  Allowable Area For Freestanding Signs 
Frontage (Feet) Maximum Area (s.f.) 

0-75 Low Profile only 
76-100 50 

101-150 75 
151-200 100 
201-250 125 
251-300 150 
301-350 175 
351-400 200 
401-450 225 
451-500 250 
501-550 275 

551-600+ 300 
 
b. Area 

For the purposes of this Section, area shall be considered the area in 
square feet of a single-face sign, or one side of a double-face sign, or half 
the sides of a multi-face sign. 

195



ORDINANCE NO. _______________            Page 15 
 
 

 
c. Frontage 

1) For the purposes of this Section, frontage shall be considered the 
number of feet fronting on a public street to which a sign is 
oriented.  

2) On corner lots, the frontage street shall be the greater street as 
classified on the thoroughfare plan.  Where the two streets are 
classified the same, the applicant may choose the frontage street. 

 
d. Allowable Height 

1) The allowable height of a Freestanding Commercial Sign is 
determined by measuring the distance from the closest point of 
the sign to the curb or pavement edge and dividing this distance 
by two.  No Freestanding Commercial Sign shall exceed 35 feet 
in height. 

2) For the purposes of this Section, height of a sign shall be 
measured from the elevation of the curb or pavement edge. 

3) For the purposes of this Section, the distance from curb shall be 
measured in feet from the back of curb or pavement edge to the 
nearest part of the sign. 

2. Freestanding Commercial Signs are allowed only on developed commercial 
property established in the appropriate zones as set forth in Section 7.5.C, 
Summary of Permitted Signs.  One freestanding sign shall be allowed in the A-P 
zone only when the premise has a minimum of two acres, subject to the 
requirements set forth in Section 7.4.F, Sign Standards.  One Low Profile Sign 
shall be allowed in the A-P zone when the premise has less than two acres 
subject to the requirements set forth in Section 7.5.F, Sign Standards, above.  

3. A premise with less than 75 feet of frontage shall be allowed to use one Low 
Profile Sign. 

4. A premise with more than 75 feet of frontage shall be allowed to use standards 
for one Freestanding Commercial Sign located in Section 7.5.F, Sign Standards, 
rather than one Low Profile Sign. 

5. A premise with more than 150 feet of frontage shall be allowed to use one 
Freestanding Commercial Sign or any number of Low Profile Signs as long as 
there is a minimum separation between signs of 150 feet. 
In lieu of one Low Profile Sign every 150 feet, hospital uses may have one low 
profile sign located at each driveway.   

6. Premises with less than 75 feet of frontage may be combined in order to utilize 
signage corresponding to the resulting frontage as described in the preceding two 
paragraphs. 

7. No more than one Freestanding Commercial Sign shall be allowed on any 
premises except when the site meets one of the following sets of criteria: 
 
a. The building plot, as recognized on an approved Plat or Site Plan, must 

be 25 acres or more in area with at least 1,000 feet of continuous 
unsubdivided frontage on any major arterial street or higher (as classified 
on the Thoroughfare Plan) toward which one additional Freestanding 
Commercial Sign may be displayed (see diagram below); or 

196



ORDINANCE NO. _______________            Page 16 
 
 

m
aj

o
r 

ar
te

ri
al

property line

10
00

'

25 Acre Minimum

SIGN

SIGN

st
re

et

 
 

b. The Building Plot, as recognized on an approved Plat or Site Plan, must 
be 15 acres or more in area with at least 600 feet of continuous 
unsubdivided frontage on any major arterial street or higher (as classified 
on the Thoroughfare Plan) and the site must have additional frontage on 
a street classified as a minor arterial or greater on the Thoroughfare Plan, 
toward which the additional Freestanding Commercial Sign may be 
displayed. 

 

         

minor arterial or greater

m
in

o
r 

ar
te

ri
al

 o
r 

g
re

at
er

property line

60
0'

15 Acre Minimum

SIGN

SIGN

street

st
re

et

  
 

197



ORDINANCE NO. _______________            Page 17 
 
 

8. Any sign where two or more panels have separate supports extending to them 
shall be considered to be more than one Freestanding Commercial Sign, even 
where only one main support extends to the ground. 

9. Sites with limited or no street frontage, due to a proliferation of pad sites, that are 
not contained within the building plot, as defined by the Administrator, and are 
fronting along a street classified as a collector or greater on the Thoroughfare 
Plan, will be allowed the area of the sign to be less than or equal to the square of 
one-sixth of the distance from the closest portion of the sign to the curb or 
pavement edge, with the maximum area not to exceed 200 square feet. 

10. Any site defined as a single building plot, and containing one or more pad sites, 
shall be permitted to erect a Freestanding Commercial Sign in accordance with 
Section 7.5.N, Freestanding Commercial Signs, and to the standards of Section 
7.5.N.1.a, Allowable Area, with the maximum area not to exceed 200 square feet.  
In addition, each pad site will be permitted to erect one Low Profile Sign per pad 
site according to the restrictions of 7.5.F, Sign Standards. 

 
O. Fuel Price Signs 

 
Facilities with fuel sales will be allowed one additional sign for the purposes of fuel 
pricing, either freestanding or attached, per premises. 
 
1. The area of the fuel price sign shall not exceed 16 square feet. 
2. Fuel pricing may be incorporated into the allowable square footage of a 

Freestanding Commercial Sign or Attached Sign.   
3. This sign shall follow the setback requirements for a Freestanding Commercial 

Sign and shall not be located within the right-of-way. 
 

P. Grand Opening Signs  
 

1. Flags, commercial banners, and balloons, which advertise a business's grand 
opening, may be displayed for one consecutive 14-day period, selected by the 
business owner, within 60 days of the granting of the initial Certificate of 
Occupancy, a change in the use, or of a change in the name of the business. A 
permit is required. 

2. A commercial banner associated with a grand opening:  
a. Shall advertise only the name of, uses of, or goods or services available 

within the building, or tenant lease space, to which the sign is attached;  
b. Shall be mounted parallel to the face of the building;  
c. Shall not be cantilevered away from the structure; 
d. Shall not extend more than one foot from any exterior building face, 

mansard, awning, or canopy;   
e. Shall not obstruct any window, door, stairway, or other opening intended 

for ingress or for needed ventilation or light; and 
f. Shall not be attached to any tree, fence, or public utility pole. 

 
Q. Home Occupation Signs 

 
1. A person having a legal home occupation may have one sign on the building or 

porch of a residence. 
2. The sign may contain only the name and occupation of the resident. 
3. It shall be attached directly to the face of the building or porch. 
4. It shall not exceed two square feet in area, shall not be illuminated in any way, 

and shall not project more than 12 inches beyond the building. 
5. No display of merchandise or other forms of commercial communication shall be 

allowed within a residential area, unless same are in existence prior to the 

198



ORDINANCE NO. _______________            Page 18 
 
 

adoption of this UDO in connection with a use that is presently.   A person 
having a legal home occupation may have one sign on the building or porch of a 
residence. 

6. Such a non-conforming sign may be maintained until the non-conforming use of 
the building ceases, subject to the requirements for maintenance herein.  
Discontinuance of the use of such a sign for more than three months shall prevent 
future use, even if the non-conforming use of the premises is continuous 

 
R. Non-Commercial and Political Signs 
 

This Section does not regulate the size, content, or location of non-commercial signs 
except as follows: 
 
1. No commercial message shall be shown on any non-commercial sign. 
2. No non-commercial sign: 

a. May be greater than fifty square feet (50 sq.ft.) in size; 
b. Be located within public road right-of-way of the State of Texas or the 

City of College Station; 
c. May be located off the premises of the property owner who is displaying 

the sign; and 
d. May be located within any sight distance triangle as defined in Section 

7.1.C, Visibility at Intersections in All Districts, or where determined by 
the Administrator as a location that would hinder intersection visibility.  
This provision is necessary to avoid clutter, proliferation, and dangerous 
distraction to drivers caused by close proximity of such signs to 
automobile traffic, to avoid damage to automobiles which may leave the 
paved surface intentionally or by accident, and to avoid the necessity for 
pedestrians to step into the roadway to bypass such signs.  No regulatory 
alternative exists to accomplish this police power obligation. 

3. In the event that any non-commercial sign is located in a public right-of-way of 
the State, the City shall remove it. 

4. All non-commercial signs addressing a particular event are allowed up to ninety 
(90) days prior to the event and shall be removed within ten (10) days after. 

S. Real Estate/Finance/Construction Signs 
 

1. One Real Estate Sign not exceeding 16 square feet in total area (exclusive of 
stakes and posts) may be erected at any time while a property is offered for sale 
or lease to the public.  Properties with a minimum of 150 feet of frontage shall be 
allowed one Real Estate Sign not exceeding 32 square feet in total area.  
Properties with a minimum of two acres and frontage on two streets shall be 
allowed one real estate sign on each frontage street with the area of the sign to be 
determined by the amount of frontage as stated above. 

2. One Finance Sign and three Construction Signs (for a total of four signs), not 
exceeding 16 square feet in total area each (exclusive of stakes and posts) may be 
erected once a building permit has been issued on a property.  Properties with a 
minimum of ten acres and 1,000 feet of frontage shall be allowed one Finance 
Sign and three Construction Signs not exceeding 32 square feet in total area each. 

3. Real Estate, Finance, and Construction Signs may be either attached or 
freestanding and only those visible from the street are limited in number. 

4. All such signs shall be maintained by the persons in control of the premises so as 
to remain erect and in good repair.  Such signs shall be removed by the property 

199



ORDINANCE NO. _______________            Page 19 
 
 

owner or other person in control of the premises if they are damaged, broken, or 
incapable of remaining erect. 

5. Such signs must be removed by the owner or person in control of the premises 
when either the property has sold or been leased and/or when performance under 
the construction contract or subcontract (in the case of Construction Signs) has 
been completed.  In all cases, Financing and Construction Signs shall be removed 
prior to issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy. 

 
T. Roof Signs 

 
1. Signs mounted to the structural roof shall be regulated as Freestanding 

Commercial Signs.   
2. Painted or applied roof signs are prohibited. 

 
U. Special Event Signs 
 

1. Signs, including commercial banners and balloons, advertising or announcing a 
Special Event, as defined in Chapter 4, Section 4.B of the Code of Ordinances, 
are permitted as a part of the Special Event License and shall be limited to the 
property holding the event. 

2. The Special Event Signage is allowed up to 14 days prior to the event and must 
be removed within 24 hours of the end of the event. 

 
V. Vehicle Signs 
 

1. Signs that are displayed on motor vehicles that are being operated or stored in the 
normal course of a business, such as signs indicating the name or the type of 
business, excluding all banners, that are located on moving vans, delivery trucks, 
trailers or other commercial vehicles are permitted; but only if the primary 
purpose of such vehicles is not for the display of the signs thereon, and only if 
such vehicles are parked or stored in areas appropriate to their use as commercial 
or delivery vehicles, such as service areas or locations close to the business 
building away from public traffic areas.   

2. Signs or advertisements permanently attached to non-commercial vehicles, 
excluding all banners, are permitted. 

 
W. Signs for Conditional Uses 
 

1. Signs for Conditional Uses shall comply with the regulations for the zoning 
district in which the Conditional Use is permitted. 

2. Signs for Conditional Uses in residential or agricultural zoning districts shall 
comply with Section 7.4.F Sign Standards, “Low Profile Signs.” 

 
X. Signs for Permitted Non-residential uses in Residential or Agricultural Districts    
 

Signs for non-residential permitted uses in residential or agricultural zoning districts shall 
comply with Section 7.4.F Sign Standards, “Low Profile Signs.” 

 
Y. Abandoned, Damaged, or Unsafe Signs 
 

1. The provisions of this Section shall apply when in conflict with the provisions of 
the Building Code; but where the provisions of both ordinances are consistent, 
the enforcement of either shall be permissible and remedies or penalties 
cumulative. 

200



ORDINANCE NO. _______________            Page 20 
 
 

2. Non-conforming signs that have become deteriorated or damaged to an extent 
that the cost of the reconstruction or restoration of such signs is in excess of 50 
percent of its replacement value exclusive of foundations, will be required to be 
removed or brought into full compliance with the current sign regulations. 

3. All abandoned signs and their supports shall be removed within 60 days from the 
date of abandonment.  All damaged signs shall be repaired or removed within 60 
days.  The Administrator shall have authority to grant a 30-day time extension 
where he determines there is a reasonable necessity for same.  

4. Discontinuance of use or removal of any non-conforming sign or any sign in 
connection with a non-conforming use shall create a presumption of intent to 
abandon said sign.  A non-conforming sign that is damaged and not repaired 
within 60 days shall be presumed to be abandoned. 

 
5. When a building is demolished, the associated signs and sign structures shall also 

be removed. 
 

Z. Signs in the Extraterritorial Jurisdiction  
 
All off-premise and portable signs shall be prohibited within the Extraterritorial 
Jurisdiction of the City of College Station.”

201



ORDINANCE NO. _______________            Page 21 
 
 

 
 

III. 
 
 

That Chapter 12, “Unified Development Ordinance,” of the Code of Ordinances of the City of College 
Station, Texas, is hereby amended by renumbering the current Article 7.5 through Article 7.11 to Article 
7.6 through Article 7.12. 

202



 

 

June 22, 2006 
Regular 

Resolution Denying Gas Rate Increase 
 
To: Glenn Brown, City Manager 
 
From: Olivia Burnside, Chief Information Officer 
 
 
Agenda Caption:   Public hearing, presentation, possible action, and discussion regarding a 
resolution denying the proposed rate increase filed by Atmos Energy Corporation on or 
about May 31, 2006.  
 
 
Recommendation(s):   Staff recommends approval of the resolution denying the gas rate 
increase. 
 
 
Summary:   Municipalities have original jurisdiction over gas utility rates within their cities.  
Municipalities have authority under the Gas Utility Regulatory Act ("GURA") to initiate a 
proceeding to determine whether the existing rates being charged by a gas utility are 
unreasonable or in violation of the law.  On November 10, 2005 the City Council approved a 
resolution exercising that authority and requiring Atmos Mid-Tex Division to file a rate filing 
package with the City of College Station in order for the City to determine whether Atmos' 
rates are excessive.   
 
Similar rate cases were requested by other members of the Atmos City Steering Committee 
("ACSC").  This action was taken because Atmos is presently charging the rates approved 
by the Railroad Commission in GUD No. 9400 that are based upon TXU gas' cost of service, 
not Atmos' costs.  Since acquiring the TXU Gas assets, Atmos has made numerous public 
statements that it has reduced its operating expenses and that it is making higher than 
expected revenues from its Texas system.  These requests resulted in the proposed rate 
filing by the Company on or about May 31, 2006.   
 
According to information provided by the Company, this filing will increase the Company’s 
revenues by $61 million annually, or 3.6%.  The average residential bill will increase 5.36%, 
or by approximately $4.02 per month.  Commercial customers will see their average bill 
increase by 5.25%, or by approximately $17.16 per month.   
 
Budget & Financial Summary:   Texas Utilities Code § 103.022 provides that costs 
incurred by the City of College Station I ratemaking activities are to be reimbursed by the 
regulated utility and ACSC's rate case expenses incurred in this proceeding are reasonable 
and should be reimbursed by the Company.  The savings enjoyed by Atmos' customers 
should more than offset the rate case expenses passed on to them. 
 
 
Attachments: 
Resolution 
 
 

203



RESOLUTION NO. _____________ 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF COLLEGE STATION, TEXAS DENYING ATMOS 
ENERGY CORP., MID-TEX DIVISION’S STATEMENT OF INTENT TO INCREASE 
THE GAS UTILITY RATES IN THIS MUNICIPALITY; SUPPORTING THE 
REDUCTION OF EXISTING NATURAL GAS DISTRIBUTION RATES CURRENTLY 
CHARGED BY ATMOS MID-TEX WITHIN THE CITY; ORDERING ATMOS MID-
TEX TO REIMBURSE THE CITY FOR ITS REASONABLE COSTS INCURRED IN 
RATEMAKING PROCEEDINGS OR APPEALS OF SAID PROCEEDINGS; 
AUTHORIZING THE ATMOS CITIES STEERING COMMITTEE TO ACT ON 
BEHALF OF CITY AND INTERVENE IN ANY PROCEEDINGS BEFORE 
ADMINISTRATIVE OR JUDICIAL BODIES; REQUIRING DELIVERY OF THIS 
RESOLUTION TO THE COMPANY AND LEGAL COUNSEL; AND FINDING THAT 
THE MEETING AT WHICH THIS RESOLUTION IS ADOPTED IS OPEN TO THE 
PUBLIC AS REQUIRED BY LAW. 

WHEREAS, the City of College Station, Texas (“City”) is a regulatory authority under the Gas 
Utility Regulatory Act (“GURA”) and has original jurisdiction over the gas utility rates of Atmos 
Energy Corp., Mid-Tex Division (the “Company”); and 
 
WHEREAS, the City, along with 87 other Atmos Cities Steering Committee (“ACSC”) cities, 
exercised its authority under §§ 103.001 and 104.151, GURA, to initiate a proceeding to 
determine whether the existing rates of the Company were unreasonable or in any way in 
violation of any provision of law and ordered the Company to show cause regarding the 
reasonableness of its existing natural gas distribution rates within the City; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Company filed its rate filing package with the City in response to the City’s 
order on or about December 31, 2005, and the City’s representatives obtained additional 
information from the Company through written requests for information; and  
 
WHEREAS, the City’s consultants and representatives, through cooperative efforts and under 
the direction of the ACSC, reviewed the information and recommended that the City reduce the 
rates charged by the Company within the City; and 
 
WHEREAS, by its own action pursuant to GURA § 104.151(a) or by procedural agreement with 
the Company, the City reduced the current natural gas rates charged by the Company within the 
City effective May 31, 2006; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Company has bonded in its existing rates with the Railroad Commission as part 
of its appeal of rates set by ACSC cities; and 
 
WHEREAS, as part of its appeal of city rate actions taken by ACSC members, the Company 
filed a Statement of Intent to Increase the Gas Utility Rates within the City effective July 5, 
2006; and 
 

204



RESOLUTION NO. __________________       Page 2 
 
 
WHEREAS, the Company’s request is unreasonable based upon the information already 
reviewed by the City in response to its action initiating the show cause action; now, therefore, 
 
BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COLLEGE STATION, 
TEXAS: 
 
SECTION 1: That the Statement of Intent to Increase Gas Utility Rates filed by the Company 

on or about May 31, 2006, and effective July 5, 2006, is hereby denied. 
 
SECTION 2: That the reduction to current rates previously adopted by the City pursuant to 

ordinance or agreement with the Company is just and reasonable. 
 
SECTION 3: That the City is authorized to intervene in any appeal of the City’s action filed 

at the Railroad Commission of Texas and to otherwise participate in any 
litigation associated with the Company’s rates charged in the City, in 
conjunction with the ACSC. 

 
SECTION 4: That the Company shall promptly reimburse ACSC for ratemaking costs 

associated with the City’s activities related to the show cause proceeding and/or 
the denial of the Statement of Intent including appeals to the Railroad 
Commission or Courts, in accordance with GURA § 103.022. 

 
SECTION 5: That a copy of this Resolution shall be sent to the Company, care of Richard T. 

Reis, at Atmos Energy Corporation, 5420 LBJ Freeway, Suite 1800, Dallas, 
Texas 75240, and to Geoffrey Gay, legal counsel to ACSC, at Lloyd Gosselink, 
P.O. Box 1725, Austin, Texas 78767-1725. 

 
SECTION 6: That it is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 

Resolution is adopted is open to the public as required by law and that public 
notice of the time, place and purpose of said meeting was given as required. 

ADOPTED this the 22nd day of June, 2006. 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED: 
 
_______________________________  ____________________________________ 
Connie Hooks, City Secretary   RON SILVIA, Mayor 
 
APPROVED: 

E-Signed by Harvey Cargill
VERIFY authenticity with ApproveIt

 
_______________________________ 
City Attorney 

205



 

June 22, 2006 
Regular Agenda  

Public Hearing and Ordinance for Creation of TIRZ #16 
 
 
To: Glenn Brown, City Manager 
 
From: Jeff Kersten, Chief Financial Officer 
 
Agenda Caption: Public hearing, discussion and possible action on an ordinance 
designating the Northgate District in College Station, Texas as Reinvestment Zone Number 
16, City of College Station, Texas, enumerating the qualifying criteria, adopting a 
preliminary development and financing plan, establishing a board of directors for such zone, 
and other matters relating thereto; providing for a severability clause and an open meetings 
clause; and appointing City's six members to the board.  
 
Recommendation(s):  Hold public hearing, receive citizen input, and approve ordinance. 
 
Summary:  The City of College Station City Council has received a petition requesting that 
the City designate an area of property as a reinvestment zone as directed by the Tax 
Increment Financing Act, Chapter 311, Texas Tax Code.  The petition has been executed by 
at least 50 percent of property owners with appraised value according to the 2005 Brazos 
County Appraisal roll. 
 
The proposed reinvestment zone includes the Northgate area with Wellborn St. and South 
College Main serving as district boundaries. The passage of this resolution includes 
description of the tentative plans for the development of the proposed zone and an estimate 
of the general impact of the proposed zone on property values and tax revenues.  
Development plans include a proposed conference center and hotel and various additional 
improvements to the Northgate district. 
 
Budgetary and Financial Summary: Creating the TIF will result in the incremental 
property tax revenues in the district being used for improvements in the district through the 
life of the TIF. 
 
Attachments:   
1. Ordinance  
2. Exhibits 
3. TIF Board applicants 

206



ORDINANCE NO. ______ 
 
 
AN ORDINANCE DESIGNATING THE NORTHGATE DISTRICT IN COLLEGE STATION, 
TEXAS, AS REINVESTMENT ZONE NO. 16, CITY OF COLLEGE STATION, TEXAS, 
ENUMERATING THE QUALIFYING CRITERIA, ADOPTING A PRELIMINARY 
DEVELOPMENT AND FINANCING PLAN, ESTABLISHING A BOARD OF DIRECTORS FOR 
SUCH ZONE, AND OTHER MATTERS RELATING THERETO; PROVIDING FOR A 
SEVERABILITY CLAUSE AND AN OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 
 
WHEREAS, on November 4, 1997, the voters of the City of College Station passed a referendum 
authorizing the City of College Station to proceed with the construction of a conference center; 
 
WHEREAS, on January 12, 2006, the College Station City Council directed staff to meet with designated 
representatives from Brazos County and the College Station Independent School District and this meeting 
took place to discuss the implementation of Reinvestment Zone No. 16; 
 
WHEREAS, on January 13, 2006 the City of College Station sent notice to the governing bodies of the 
Brazos County taxing unit and of the College Station Independent School District of its intent to consider 
the implementation of a tax increment financing district and a reinvestment zone in the area of the 
Northgate District; and requested that the sixty (60) days notice requirement be waived; 
 
WHEREAS, on January 24, 2006 the County Commissioners approved the request to waive the sixty 
(60) days notice requirement; 
 
WHEREAS, on January 17, 2006 the College Station Independent School District Board of Trustees 
approved the request to waive the sixty (60) days notice requirement; 
 
WHEREAS, on May 25, 2006, the City of College Station City Council  requested the public hearing be 
held on June 22, 2006 to establish Reinvestment Zone No. 16; 
 
WHEREAS, on June 6, 2006, City staff made a formal presentation to the Brazos County 
Commissioners Court and on January 17, 2006 City staff made a formal presentation to the College 
Station Independent School District concerning the reinvestment zone.  The presentation included a 
description of the proposed boundaries of the zone, the tentative plans for the development or 
redevelopment of the zone, and an estimate of the general impact of the proposed zone on property values 
and tax revenues; 
 
WHEREAS, on June 12th, 2006, notice of a public hearing to be held on June 22, 2006 was published in 
the Bryan-College Station Eagle, a copy of the notice is attached hereto as Exhibit "A"; 
 
WHEREAS, a public hearing was held before the College Station City Council on the 22nd day of June, 
2006, at 7:00 p.m. at the regular meeting of the Council; 
 
WHEREAS, upon such public hearing being convened, there was presented proof and evidence that 
notice of such hearing had been published and had been mailed as described above; 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council at such hearing invited any interested person to appear and contend for or 
against the creation of the reinvestment zone, the boundaries of the proposed reinvestment zone, whether 

207



all or part of the territory, which is described by boundary survey attached hereto as Exhibit "B" and 
depicted in the diagram attached hereto as Exhibit "C", should be included in such proposed 
reinvestment zone, the concept of tax increment financing; 
 
WHEREAS, all owners of property located within the proposed reinvestment zone and all other taxing 
units and other interested persons were given the opportunity at such public hearing to protest the creation 
of the proposed reinvestment zone or the inclusion of their property in such reinvestment zone; 
 
WHEREAS, the City staff presented the preliminary financing and development plans for the proposed 
reinvestment zone attached hereto as Exhibit "D"; and 
 
WHEREAS, the proponents of the reinvestment zone offered evidence, both oral and documentary, in 
favor of the foregoing matters related to the creation of the reinvestment zone; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of College Station, Texas, 
that: 
 
The facts and recitations contained in the preamble of this ordinance are hereby found and declared to be 
true and correct. 
 

II. 
 
The City, after conducting such hearing and having heard such evidence and testimony and considering 
the preliminary project and financing plan, has made the following findings and determination based upon 
the evidence and testimony presented to it: 
 
A. That the public hearing on adoption of the reinvestment zone has been properly called, held and 

conducted, and that notice of such hearing has been published as required by law and mailed to 
all taxing units overlapping the territory inside the proposed reinvestment zone. 

 
B. That the City has jurisdiction to hold and conduct this public hearing on the creation of the 

proposed reinvestment zone pursuant to the TAX INCREMENT FINANCING ACT. 
 
C. That creation of the proposed zone with boundaries as described in Exhibits "B” and “C" will 

result in benefits to the City, its residents and property owners, and to the property, residents and 
property owners in the reinvestment zone. 

 
D. That the reinvestment zone as described in Exhibit "B” and “C” meets the criteria for the 

creation of a reinvestment zone as set forth in the TAX INCREMENT FINANCING ACT (V.T.C.A. 
TAX CODE §311.005 [VERNON 2002 AND VERNON SUPP. 2005]) in that: 

 
(1) It is a contiguous geographic area located wholly within the corporate limits of the City. 
 
(2) That the area is predominantly underproductive and underdeveloped and substantially 

impairs or arrests the sound growth of the municipality. 
 
(3) That development of the area would not occur in the foreseeable future solely through 

private investment. 
 

208



(4) The total appraised value of all taxable real property in the zone according to the most 
recent appraisal rolls of the City, together with the total appraised value of the taxable real 
property and all other taxing existing reinvestment zones within the City, according to the 
most recent appraisal rolls of the City, does not exceed fifteen percent (15%) of the current 
total appraised value of the taxable real property in the City. 

 
(5) Improvements in the reinvestment zone will enhance significantly the value of all taxable 

real property in the reinvestment zone. 
 

(6) That a preliminary project plan and a financing plan have been developed and are attached 
hereto as Exhibit "D".  Such preliminary project and financing plans will be the basis for 
the master plan for the final financing and development plans for the reinvestment zone and 
shall assist the staff and board of directors in implementing a successful reinvestment zone. 

 
(7) In October through December, 2005 various property owners petitioned the City Council 

of College Station that the area described in Exhibits "B” and “C” be designated as a 
reinvestment zone.  A copy of the petitions are attached hereto as Exhibit "E" and 
incorporated herein for all purposes.  Such property owners represent more than fifty 
percent (50%) of the appraised value of the property in the proposed reinvestment zone.  
Therefore, Reinvestment Zone No. 16 is hereby established by owner petition pursuant to 

SECTION 311.005 (A) (5) OF THE TAX INCREMENT FINANCING ACT. 
 

(8)     That the following Council Members were present and considered the ordinance 
 on June 22, 2006. 
 
  Ron Silvia 
  John Happ 
  Ben White 
  Ron Gay 
  Lynn McIlhaney   
  Chris Scotti 
  David Ruesink 
 
That the City hereby creates a reinvestment zone over the area described by the boundary survey in 
Exhibit "B" attached hereto and such reinvestment zone shall be based on the preliminary project and 
financing plans.  This zone shall hereafter be identified as Reinvestment Zone No. 16, City of College 
Station, Texas (the "Zone”). 
 
 

IV. 
 
The Board of Directors for the Zone shall consist of nine (9) member directors.  The City Council of the 
City of College Station shall appoint six (6) members who shall meet the eligibility requirements as set 
forth in the Act to serve on the Board of Directors. The Brazos County Commissioners Court shall each 
appoint one (1) member who shall meet the eligibility requirements as set forth in the Act to serve as a 
member of the Board of Directors.  The member of the state Senate in whose district the zone is located 
or his designee is also a member of the board.  The member of the state House of representatives in whose 
district the zone is located or his designee is also a member of the board.  The Brazos County 
Commissioners Court member, the member of the state senate or his designee, the member of the state 

209



house of representatives or his designee, and three (3) members appointed by the City of College Station, 
shall serve an initial two (2) year term while the other three (3) appointed by the City of College Station 
shall serve initial one (1) year terms.  All subsequent appointments will be made for two (2) staggered 
terms or until a successor director may be appointed thereafter.  The City Council shall designate one (1) 
member to serve as Chairman of the Board of Directors for the year ending December 31, 2007, and each 
year thereafter, and authorizes the Board to elect from its members a Vice-Chairman and other officers as 
it sees fit.  The Board shall retain all powers provided it in the Act. 
 
The Board of Directors shall make recommendations to the City Council concerning the administration of 
the Zone and shall prepare and cause to be prepared and adopt a Project Plan based upon the preliminary 
Financing and Project Plans for the Zone and must submit such plans to the City Council for its review 
and approval.  The City hereby delegates to the Board of Directors all powers necessary to prepare and 
implement such Project Plan, subject to approval by the City Council, including the power to direct the 
staff and employ consultants to assist in the preparation of the Project Plan and in the issuance of 
certificates of obligations. 
 

V. 
 
That operation of the Zone shall commence immediately following the passage of this ordinance, and that 
termination of the operation of the Zone shall occur upon the collection of the levies of September, 2037 
(due in FY 2037-2038), or at a time designated by subsequent ordinance or at such time subsequent to the 
issuance of certificates of obligation as all project costs and certificates of obligation, and the interest 
thereon, have been paid in full. 
 

VI. 
 
That the tax increment base for the Zone is the total appraised value of all taxable real property in the 
reinvestment zone as of January 1, 2006. 
 

VII. 
 
That there is hereby created and established a Tax Increment Fund for the Zone which may be divided 
into such sub-accounts as may be authorized by subsequent ordinances into which all tax increments are 
to be deposited.  The Tax Increment Fund and any sub-accounts are to be maintained at the depository 
bank of the City and shall be secured in the manner prescribed by law for Texas cities.  The tax 
increments shall equal the amount of property taxes levied for a year on the captured and appraised value, 
that is, the amount by which the current appraised value of all taxable real property located in the Zone 
exceeds its tax increment base less any other funds which are to be allocated from the tax increments 
pursuant to the Act.  All revenues from the sale of any tax increment finance bonds and notes hereafter 
issued by the City may be deposited into such fund or sub-account from which money will be disbursed to 
pay project costs for the Zone or to satisfy the claims of holders of tax increment bonds or notes issued 
for the Zone. 
 

210



VIII. 
 
That if any section, paragraph, clause, or provision of this ordinance shall for any reason be held to be 
invalid or unenforceable, the invalidity or unenforceability of such section, paragraph, clause or provision 
shall not affect any of the remaining provisions of this ordinance. 
 

IX. 
 
That it is hereby found, determined and declared that a sufficient written notice of the date, hour, place 
and subject of the meeting of the City Council of the City of College Station at which this ordinance was 
adopted was posted at a place convenient and readily accessible at all times to the general public at the 
City Hall of the City of College Station for the time required by law preceding this meeting, as required 
by the Open Meetings Act, and that this meeting has been open to the public as required by law, at all 
times during which this ordinance and the subject matter hereon has been presented, discussed, considered 
and finally acted upon.  The City Council of the City of College Station further ratifies, approves and 
confirms such written notice and the contents and posting thereof. 
 

X. 
 
That the contents of the notice of public hearing, which hearing was held before the City Council of the 
City of College Station on June 22, 2006, and the publication of said notice, is hereby ratified, approved 
and confirmed. 
 

PASSED, ADOPTED and APPROVED on this the 22nd day of June, 2006. 

 
 
ATTEST:     CITY OF COLLEGE STATION 
 
________________________________  ________________________________ 
Connie Hooks, City Secretary   Ron Silvia, Mayor 
 
 
APPROVED: 

E-Signed by Carla A. Robinson
VERIFY authenticity with ApproveIt  

_______________________________ 
City Attorney 

 

211



EXHIBIT “A” 
NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 

212



 
 
 
LEGAL NOTICE 
 
DATE TO BE PUBLISHED:  June 12, 2006     ONLY 
 
BILL TO: ATTN:  MR. JEFF KERSTEN 
  P.O. BOX 9960 
  COLLEGE STATION, TX 77842 
 
            
             

 
NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 

 
The College Station City Council will hold a public hearing to consider an ordinance 
designating approximately 141 acres respectively in the J.E. Scott League, College 
Station, Brazos County, Texas; and generally known as the Northgate District bounded 
by Wellborn Road, University Drive, South College Avenue, and the northern city limits 
of College Station, as Reinvestment Zone Number Sixteen (16), City of College Station, 
Texas, for a Tax Increment Financing District as provided in the Tax Increment 
Financing Act.  The purpose of this Zone is to promote redevelopment and to fund a 
publicly owned convention center and associated improvements.  This public hearing will 
discuss the creation and purpose of the zone, its benefits to the municipality and other 
taxing entities, the boundaries of the zone, and other matters related thereto.  At the 
hearing any interested person may speak for or against the creation of the zone, the 
inclusion of their property in the zone, its boundaries, purpose, or the concept of tax 
increment financing. 
 
The hearing will be held in the City Council Chamber at College Station City Hall, 
located at 1101 Texas Avenue, College Station, Texas at 7:00 p.m. on Thursday, June 22, 
2006. 
 
Any request for sign interpretative services must be made 48 hours before the meeting.  
To make arrangements call (979) 764-3547 or (TDD) 1-800-735-2989. 
 
For additional information, please call Jeff Kersten, Director of Budget and Finance, City 
of College Station Department of Economic Development, at (979) 764-3745. 
 

 

213



EXHIBIT “B” 
METES AND BOUNDS

214



EXHIBIT "B" 

30eOd,Inc. . 
a n  B m  

21 67 post oak Chle . 
College Station, Tetxaa 7'7845 

(409) 690-3338 

North Gate T& Increment Finance District . ,. 
J.E. Scott League ' ' 

College ~ktion, Texas 
August 26; 2005 

All that certain ttact or parcel of land lying and, being situated in the 18. Scott LBagua In College 
Stdim B m s  County, Texas, Wing all of the W.C. Boyett S u ~ ~ a n  8CCOrding .t&plat of mrd 
in Volume 100. Page 440 of the Deed ReM>rds of BPeaos Cou~~ty, Ta~8,6, all of th.e Taubcr .wtion . 

irocovhg to plat of recond in Volum.e.133, 182 of the Dsed ~ecor;ia of  rams. ~6~n9 , '~kxge ,  
all of the Smnd Revision of Osk 'Semi& Addition aooarding to plat of re'oord V o h e  152; pago 
237 of the Deed Recmb of Brazes Cuunty, dl of% Ramparts aQdition accadhg to plat of 
m d  in Volume 477, Pwe 145 of the Decd.Recorda of Braias CoWy, Txae, al l  9f ;plat tract 
'-dewxibed in ''Exli'b'i B", ',bit C" and '%&%it D" in deed to John C&l Culpepper IlI mol-ded 
in Volume 1190, Page 466 of the 06cid  Rscords of- CoWlty, ~ q ' t h a t  tract..convcyed ti, 
IhnchimRealty In- Carp. by iZbed recow involume 318, Pb:531-of ihe Deed- af 
Brazes &mty, Twras, ffEat tmt -eyed to Don D.. Dabbs by deed mmd+l in Vdh~1M'464, Bege 
395 of the Daad Recoda of Brarns Cow, Texas, tbat tract conveyed to MB Development Company 

. 

by deed mrded  in Vohxne 1302, Pfige 4 of .the Official Rtcords of Brazes Coununty, Texas, Qat ttact 
my&tp Community:Savb@i mdfpim Associatianby ~ ~ r d e d i p V o l ~  198, Pagk 541 of 
them Reco:rds of Bma% County, Texas, that tract.ccmIeyed to C o b  stat on.^^ Babk.by deed 
d d  in ~olirnie 189. Page 403 of tfie Dead Records of B m  County,. Texas, 'and that tract 
mvayed to ML. Cashion by dspd rtcorded in ~olume:202. P& 323 of the Deed &ewrds of Brazos 
County, Texas, snd being more particularly deacrr'bed as 'few: . 

, Beginning at the most westerly corner of the said W.C. Boye# Subdivision in the north- Line of 
Wellborn h a d  (FM 2134)' which point is on the northwest 'city limits he of.the City (rf allege 
Statioa Texas, 

. . rZI& N 43O 13' 2gW B - 137336 feet along the e w e s t  h e  of the W.C. Bbyett l&ybi& and 
& m b e e s t  city limits line of,the City of College M a n ,  at 248.70 faet pass a I" .iron bar m 
conaatc found at the north md df F i  StmG to @ mst noaherly wrnw of the said W.C. B o w  
subdij.sim, 

Thkw N M0 47' 3P' B 1 546.89 f&t conthing do& fhe northwest city limits lido of the Cily of 
College Station to a ?4" ifoh rod found at the most tmrtbm1y comer of the said Tsubes Addition in &e 
eoufhwat line NNagle Straet; . . 

215



North Oak Boundary 
Page 2 of 2 

Thence S 46O 05' 21" E - 59.79 feet along the southwest line of Nagle Stxmt which is the line 
between the City of College Station and the City of Bryan, to an extension of the cdnta-he of Inlow 
Boylevard; 

Thence along thti centmljne of hlow Boulevard, which is the line betwe& the City of College Station 
and the City of Bryan, as follows: 

N 36" 59' 20" E - 185.51 feet; . .. 
N 28' 06' 20" E - 672.34' f ~ t ;  
N 20° 30' 05" E - 374.89 feet to the northeast line of the said Oak Tenkc Addition which is 

the southwest right-of-way line of College Avenue (Highway 308); 

T21mce S 48' 01' 45" E - 2053.18'feet dong tha southweat' line of College Avenue, at 1154.94' pass 
a 518" iron rod found at the mod eastesly coma of Oak Terrace Addtion which is the most no*erly 
comer of the said Culpepper 4.96 acre tract, to the northwest right-of-way line of Uaiversity Drive 
(aur 60); 

Thence dong the northwest right-of-way line of ~ n i v k i t y  Drive as follows: 
5' 

S 5 O  05' 42" W - 100.00 feet; 
S 17" 19' 29" E - 47.38 h t ;  
S 42" 13' 35" W - 1051.99 feet to the most southerly corner of Block 7 of the said Tau& 

Additon in the d a s t  line ofNagfe.Strc6C; .' ' 
S 24" 22' 05" W - 5253 faet mss Nagle Street; 
S 41° 25' 18" W - 544.59 feet to the most easterly corner of the said W.C. Boyett Subdivision; 
S 41° 45' 21" W - 801.8Q feet; 
N 43O 54' 14" W - 11.00 fekt; 
S 41' 45' 21" W - 381.06 feet; 
S 51' 23' 21" W - 7132 W, 
S 67' 29' 04" W - 37.68 f e t  to a concrete right-of-way monamept fow& 
N 88" 59' 15" W - 189.54 feet to a bnaete.ri&ht-of-waymonumat fiuad; 
N 400 33' 25" W - 18.92 feet to a c o b &  xight-f-way monment found; 
S 77' 01' 00" W - 50.36 fist to a oan& tight*f-waym&eat.found; 
N 88O 34' 24'' W - 178.3 1 feet to a 35" iron d hund beside a con- right-of-way ma&er at 

the istcx8aFtion of the University Drive' nortb ri&t+f-way and the nortbw.right-of-way line of 
W e b  Road; 

Thence N 40' 21' 34" W - 1587.92 feet along thenortheast right-of-way line of ~ell$om ~ o a d  &the 
Point of BegMng and containing 14.1.94 aaw of land mom or less 

Bearings are Texas State Plane, Central Zone, NAP-83 datum, 
as detmniued. by GPS observations Using Cirty of College 
Station GPS monwnent no. 110 and USC!&GS monument 
Texas A8cM 1935 from a pound survey made ki 1996. 

216



217



EXHIBIT “C” 
TIF BOUNDARY MAP 

 

218



University Dr

T
ex

as
 A

ve

W
el

lb
o

rn
 R

d

University Dr E

F & B Rd

A
g

ro
n

o
m

y 
R

d

N
im

it
z 

S
t

F
ro

n
t S

t

Polo Rd

Cooner St

Live Oak St

A
ve

n
u

e 
A

S
o

u
th

 C
o

lle
g

e 
M

ai
n

N
ag

le
 S

t.

B
o

ye
tt

C
o

lle
g

e 
M

ai
n

Legend

City Limit

TIF Border

TIF District Boundaries

Texas A&M University

219



EXHIBIT “D” 
PROJECT AND FINANCIAL PLAN 

 

220



________________________________________________________________ 

Attachment 2 

 
TAX INCREMENT 
REINVESTMENT  

ZONE #16 
 
 
 
 

Northgate District 
 
 
 
 

PRELIMINARY PROJECT PLAN 
 

PRELIMINARY FINANCE PLAN 
 
 
 
 

January 13, 2006 

________________________________________________________________ 
Preliminary Financing Plan for Northgate TIF Zone, January 13, 2006 Page 1 

221



________________________________________________________________ 

Contents 
 
  Page 
 
Section 1:  Objectives: A Convention Center and Redevelopment of  
 Northgate 5 
 
Section 1: Project Description 5 
 
Section 2:  What Is Tax Increment Financing? 6 
 
Section 3:  Reinvestment Zone Description 7 
 
Section 4:  Development with Tax Increment Financing 8 
 
Section 5:  Paying for Public Improvements in the Zone 10 
 
Section 6:  Revenue Benefits for Taxing Units 13 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Exhibits 
 
   
 
Exhibit A:  Real Property Tax Flow with Tax Increment Financing  
  
Exhibit B:  Northgate TIF Zone 

  
Exhibit C:  Existing Uses and Conditions  
  
Exhibit D:  Proposed Improvements/ Anticipated Key Development Site Map 

  
Exhibit E:  Convention Center Development Concept 
    
Exhibit F:  Aerial of TIF Zone and Existing Conditions 

  
 

________________________________________________________________ 
Preliminary Financing Plan for Northgate TIF Zone, January 13, 2006 Page 2 

222



________________________________________________________________ 

Schedules 
 

   
 

Schedule 1:  Certified 2005 Brazos Appraisal District Real Property 
Appraisals in the Proposed Northgate TIF Zone  

 
Schedule 2:  Estimated Annual Expenditures of TIF Project Cost  
 Principal  
 
Schedule 3:  Anticipated Development in Northgate TIF Zone, 20  
 Years  
 
Schedule 4-City:  Estimated Annual Appraisals and City Real Property  
 Tax from the TIF Zone  
 
Schedule 4-County: Estimated Annual Appraisals and Brazos County Real Property 

Tax from the TIF Zone  
 
Schedule 4-ISD: Estimated Annual Appraisals and College Station ISD  
 Real Property Tax from the TIF Zone  
 
Schedule 5:  TIF Fund Sources and Uses of Cash (Debt Service Schedule)  
 
Schedule 6:  Estimated City Hotel Occupancy Tax  
 
Schedule 7:  Estimated Business Personal Property Tax from New 

Development in the TIF Zone  
 
Schedule 8:  Estimated Sales Tax from New Development in the TIF Zone  
 
Schedule 9-City:  Summary of Estimated City Taxes from Northgate TIF Zone, 30 

Years  
 
Schedule 9-County:  Summary of Estimated County Taxes from Northgate  
 TIF Zone, 30 Years  
 
Schedule 9-ISD: Summary of Estimated School Taxes from Northgate  
 TIF Zone, 30 Years   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

________________________________________________________________ 
Preliminary Financing Plan for Northgate TIF Zone, January 13, 2006 Page 3 

223



________________________________________________________________ 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Disclaimer 
 
Neither this report nor its conclusion may be referred to or included in any product or 
part of any offering made in connection with private syndication of equity, sales of 
bonds, sales of securities or sale of participation interests to the public without express 
written consent of Stein Planning and Management.   
 
This Preliminary Finance and Project Plan is subject to revision until final adoption by 
Ordinance by the City Council of the City of College Station. 

________________________________________________________________ 
Preliminary Financing Plan for Northgate TIF Zone, January 13, 2006 Page 4 

224



________________________________________________________________ 

Section 1: 
Objectives: A Convention Center and 

Redevelopment of Northgate 
 
 
The proposed Northgate tax increment financing reinvestment zone is a tool to 
facilitate development of a convention center in the Northgate area of College 
Station.  The convention center is a stimulus to development of hotels, retail 
stores and services, offices, condominiums and apartments in its vicinity.  These 
new developments will add value and tax revenue to College Station, Brazos 
County and the College Station ISD.  Northgate will become a more desirable 
neighborhood.   
 
To accomplish these objectives, the City of College Station proposes designation 
of a tax increment reinvestment zone, subject to the Tax Increment Financing 
Act, Chapter 311 of the Texas Property Tax Code.  The zone will be formed 
pursuant to a voluntary petition by property owners in accord with Tax Code 
Section 311.005(a)(5).  The legal name of the zone is to be “Reinvestment Zone 
Number Sixteen (#16), City of College Station.”  In this plan document, the zone 
is referred to as the “Northgate TIF zone” or simply the “TIF zone.”   
 
 

Project Description 
 
The public improvements will include a convention center with the following: 
 

 Approximately 43,000 s.f. of gross leasable area including a 12,750 s.f. 
grand ballroom, a 20,000 s.f. exhibit hall, a 5,500 s.f. junior ballroom, and 
5,000 s.f. of divisible meeting space. 

 
 Shared space and back of the house space including kitchen, employee 

areas, administrative offices, laundry room, housekeeping, mechanical 
room, lobby, outdoor reception area, employee area, restrooms, parking 
garage, site hardscape, site landscape, signage, and utilities. 

 
 

________________________________________________________________ 
Preliminary Financing Plan for Northgate TIF Zone, January 13, 2006 Page 5 

225



________________________________________________________________ 

Section 2: 
What is Tax Increment Financing? 

 
 
College Station and Brazos County are not strangers to tax increment financing. 
Tax increment financing (“TIF”) is a tool local governments of Texas have used 
since 1986 to finance public improvements within defined areas that have unique 
challenges and opportunities for economic development.  Municipal authority to 
designate a TIF zone comes from Chapter 311 of the Texas Property Tax Code.   
 
A municipality makes public improvements in an area eligible for TIF by 
designating a reinvestment zone.  Tax dollars generated by increased real 
property appraisals, new development and/or sales tax within the zone flow to a 
tax increment fund (“TIF fund”) for all or part of a term specified by the municipal 
governing body.  Cash flow to the TIF fund is then disbursed according to a TIF 
project and financing plan approved by a TIF Board and the City Council, as 
prescribed by statute and the ordinance designating the TIF zone.  With few 
exceptions, the TIF fund may be used only for public improvements within the 
TIF zone.   
 
Exhibit A shows how tax from designated sources in a TIF zone flows to a taxing 
jurisdiction and to a TIF fund.  Exhibit A assumes that tax generation in the zone 
increases soon after the TIF zone has been designated.     
 

 
Exhibit A: 

Real Property Tax Flow with Tax Increment Financing 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Tax $ 

Base year Fund dissolves

Taxes retained by taxing jurisdictions 

Taxes to tax increment fund

  
Inclusion of property in a TIF zone does not change any tax rate for the property.  
Tax rates in the zone are the same as tax rates outside the zone, given a 
common set of taxing jurisdictions.     

________________________________________________________________ 
Preliminary Financing Plan for Northgate TIF Zone, January 13, 2006 Page 6 

226



________________________________________________________________ 

Section 3: 
Reinvestment Zone Description 

 
 
Exhibit B is a map of the Northgate TIF zone.  The zone is immediately north of 
Texas A & M University’s main campus in College Station.  Boundaries are 
University Drive, Wellborn Road, the Bryan city limit and South College Avenue.  
Zone boundaries that follow public streets or highways shall be construed to 
include all such public rights-of-way.   
 
There are 83.12 taxable acres in the proposed zone, excluding right-of-way.  
Including fully-exempt accounts, but not rights-of way, the zone contains 115.55 
acres.  The total acreage in the Zone 141.94 acres. 
 
Schedule 1 is an attempt to identify real property accounts within the proposed 
zone boundaries, according to current Brazos Appraisal District records isolated 
by Stein Planning and Management.  Inclusion of property within the zone 
boundaries, not inclusion in Schedule 1, shall determine properties in the zone.  
The 2005 appraised value of taxable accounts in Schedule 1 is $70,815,864.  
After allowances for various exemptions or abatements, values of the real 
property accounts in the zone liable for taxation in 2005 are, according to the 
Brazos Appraisal District: 
 
 City of College Station:  $70,701,743 
 Brazos County: $70,672,233 
 College Station ISD: $70,551,743 
 
These values differ slightly because different taxing units may have different 
exemption policies and different tax abatements.  These amounts liable for 
taxation are the bases for estimating 2006 “base values” of real property in the 
zone.  Actual base values will be the values of real property on the certified tax 
roll for 2006 and liable for taxation by respective taxing units.   
 
Exhibit C maps existing uses and conditions in the zone.  The zone contains a 
mix of apartment, condominium, institutional, retail and residential uses and 
vacant land.    Exhibit F provides an aerial map of the zone. 
 
Much of the area is substantially deteriorated.  The site of the planned hotel and 
convention center is currently a vacant lot and a deteriorated shopping center 
that contains significant vacant space.  Most properties in the zone are also in 
deteriorated condition.   Terrain in this area is generally flat.  One regulatory 
floodplain exists in the area.   Conditions in the zone substantially impair the 
sound growth of the city and retard the provision of housing and other 
development.  The proposed zone thus meets this statutory test for designation 
of a reinvestment zone.   
 
 

________________________________________________________________ 
Preliminary Financing Plan for Northgate TIF Zone, January 13, 2006 Page 7 

227



________________________________________________________________ 

Section 4: 
Development with Tax Increment Financing 

 
 
Exhibit D is a map locating key development sites anticipated in the zone within 
immediate years, given the stimulus of a tax increment financing program.  
Identity of these sites is not intended to preclude or discourage redevelopment at 
additional sites in the zone.   
 
The public improvement to be accomplished with tax increment financing is the 
convention center on part of site 3, Exhibit D.  This will be a facility with 
approximately 43,000 gross leasable square feet of floor area, conveniently 
accessible to a full-service hotel also to be built on site 3 and a second hotel to 
be built on site 4. A conceptual Site is shown in Exhibit E.  The convention 
center is not expected to be a taxable property, but the adjacent hotels and other 
anticipated developments will be fully taxable. 
 
Schedule 2 is a cost estimate for the convention center.  It allocates 
expenditures to years in which dollars are likely to be spent.  The TIF fund is 
created to pay these project costs for convention center construction.  Cost 
components will be detailed and adjusted after designation of the TIF zone, but 
total project costs before finance charges are expected to remain at 
approximately $25,000,000.   
 
The key development sites are quantified as to site size, estimated floor area, 
estimated appraised value and estimated completion year by Schedule 3.  
Schedule 3 includes redevelopment in the Northgate zone at other sites not 
specifically identified on Exhibit D.  Over a twenty-year period, Schedule 3 
anticipates 1,513,000 gross square feet of new floor area construction, an 
average of 75,650 square feet annually.  If constructed and absorbed today, the 
new development would have an estimated appraisal value for tax purposes of 
$141 million, including land.  Net new appraisal value would be roughly $130 
million.  Actual construction costs and sale prices will probably exceed 
appraisals.   
 
The Schedule 4 series (4-City, 4-County and 4-ISD) adds a time dimension to 
the appraisal assumptions of Schedule 3.  These schedules estimate annual 
taxable real property values for the Northgate TIF zone through 2035.  Each 
schedule also estimates annual “captured appraised values” (taxable appraised 
value growth since base year 2006) in the Northgate zone.  Annual taxable 
appraisals and captured appraised values will be slightly different for each taxing 
unit because each taxing unit may have different policies for exemptions and tax 
abatements.   
 
Each Schedule 4 also estimates annual real property tax increments from the 
Northgate zone and annual reinvestments in the TIF fund.  Note that the City of 
College Station reinvests tax increments generated by the Northgate zone for 

________________________________________________________________ 
Preliminary Financing Plan for Northgate TIF Zone, January 13, 2006 Page 8 

228



________________________________________________________________ 

twenty-one years (fiscal year 2008 through fiscal year 2028).  Brazos County is 
asked to reinvest the O&M (Operations and Maintenance) portion of its tax 
increments generated by the Northgate zone for twenty years (fiscal year 2009 
through fiscal year 2028).  The College Station ISD is not asked to participate in 
the TIF fund because the Texas formula for funding education treats 
reinvestments in TIF funds as local funds available for education, thereby 
reducing State aid for education, even though the investments in the TIF fund 
would not remain available to the ISD.     
 
The improvements recommended in this plan are compatible with the uses 
reflected in the Comprehensive Plan for the City of College Station.  The 
Comprehensive Plan was originally adopted in 1997.  A subsequent area study, 
the “Northgate Redevelopment Implementation Plan,” called for an "east-end 
anchor" for Northgate near the site identified for the full-service hotel and 
convention center.  The plan also called for dense mixed-use development.  The 
plan was reviewed and approved by the College Station City Council in 2003. 
 
No zoning changes are necessary for implementation of Schedule 3 
development.  Existing zoning calls for dense mixed-use development.  The 
planning and zoning concept for Northgate includes office, commercial, retail, 
restaurant and multi-family uses, both condominium and rental.   
 
No residents will be displaced by the convention center or related hotels in 
Northgate.  If and when any residents are required to relocate due to private 
development in Northgate, the landowner or developer will be responsible for due 
respect of the rights of tenants.   
  
  
 
 

________________________________________________________________ 
Preliminary Financing Plan for Northgate TIF Zone, January 13, 2006 Page 9 

229



________________________________________________________________ 

Section 5: 
Paying for Public Improvements in the Zone 

 
 
College Station proposes four streams of revenue to ultimately pay for the 
convention center at Northgate: 
 

(1) Real property tax increments from the City; 
(2) Real property tax increments from the County; 
(3) Cash contributions from the City; 
(4) Hotel occupancy tax from hotels in the Northgate zone and parts of the 

hotel occupancy tax from outside the zone. 
 
Each of these cash sources is represented by a separate line on Schedule 5, 
“TIF Fund Sources and Uses of Cash (Debt Service Schedule).”   
 
No City or County property taxes on the value of the Northgate zone for 2006 are 
ever directed to the TIF fund.  Real property taxes related to added value pay for 
the convention center.   
 
The Schedule 5 City tax increments are imported from Schedule 4-City, which 
assumes City participation with 100% of real property tax increments from 
Northgate for twenty-one specified years.  Brazos County tax increments are 
imported from Schedule 4-County.  County participation is assumed with 100% 
of only the O&M (operations and maintenance) part of the County tax rate for a 
term of twenty specified years.  Tax rates for the City and County are subject to 
change and the contributions pledged by the City and County to the Fund shall 
change as the tax rates change; however, the City shall always commit 100% of 
its tax rate and the County shall always commit 100% of its O&M tax rate.   
 
Cash contributions from the City are identified in Schedule 5.  These 
contributions are separate from the real property tax increments.  The principal 
amount of these contributions may be recovered by the City after all other 
financial obligations of the TIF fund have been satisfied.  Recovery shall be 
subordinate to all other debt service payments.   
 
Hotel occupancy tax for convention center construction is primarily the 
incremental hotel tax generated by new hotels in the Northgate TIF zone.  These 
amounts are estimated in Schedule 6.  Hotel occupancy tax for convention 
center construction shall also include hotel occupancy tax from outside the zone 
that is due to increased room sales stimulated by the convention center.  These 
figures shall be the fixed annual dollar amounts from Schedule 6, estimated for 
College Station by a previous and independent study.  A third stream of hotel 
occupancy tax for convention center construction shall be the payments from 
Schedule 5 in FY 2008-2009 and FY 2009-2010 from the balance of hotel 
occupancy tax revenue.   
 

________________________________________________________________ 
Preliminary Financing Plan for Northgate TIF Zone, January 13, 2006 Page 10 

230



________________________________________________________________ 

If cash contributions from the City or hotel occupancy tax revenue may not be 
blended with cash in the TIF fund for any reason, cash from these sources may 
be held in separate funds until applied to payments for the convention center.  
For simplicity, this plan treats all cash to pay for the convention center as flowing 
to and from the Northgate TIF fund.   
 
The convention center may experience annual operating cost deficits.  In 1997, 
Coopers and Lybrand conducted a feasibility analysis for the marketability of a 
convention center in this area. The conclusion indicated a market for a multi-
purpose meeting facility.  This original analysis estimated that the facility would 
carry an operating deficit of approximately $57,000 in year one decreasing to 
$37,000 by year five. In March 2000, PriceWaterhouseCoopers updated the 
feasibility analysis.  The PWC review and findings indicated, "We have no reason 
to believe that the estimates of financial operations would vary materially from 
the estimates presented in the 1997 report.”  The City retained C. H. Johnson 
and Associates to perform an additional feasibility and operational evaluation.  
Johnson concluded that the initial year’s operating deficit would be $413,000, 
year 2 deficit would be $352,000, and subsequent annual deficits would level out 
at around $220,000.  Any potential annual operating deficits of the convention 
center should be covered by existing revenue from hotel occupancy tax in 
College Station, currently expected to be $1,000,000 to $1,300,000 annually.  
Total hotel occupancy tax revenue is likely to be sufficient to cover potential 
operating deficits and the Schedule 5 anticipated payments for convention 
center construction in FY 2008-2009 and FY 2009-2010.   
 
Cash flow to the TIF fund depends on early construction of the convention center 
itself to stimulate development and tax generation. Consequently, the City will 
issue certificates of obligation, borrowing money at a municipal interest rate in 
exchange for a debt to be repaid by the TIF fund, including all identified sources 
from Schedule 5.   
 
In the event cash flow to the TIF fund is insufficient to make timely debt service 
payments, hotel occupancy tax and the City general fund will serve as back-up 
cash sources for certificate debt service, in that order.  Unscheduled payments 
by the City general fund and hotel occupancy tax fund shall be reimbursed by the 
TIF fund as early as possible and shall be senior to all other obligations of the 
TIF fund except scheduled payments for debt service on certificates of obligation.    
 
Schedule 5 shows proceeds of $25,000,000 from the issue of municipal 
certificates in FY 2006-2007.  Proceeds will be invested until drawn for hard and 
soft costs of convention center site acquisition and construction or to pay debt 
service on related certificates of obligation.   
 
This plan anticipates that the reinvestment zone will be designated by the City 
Council in calendar year 2006, thus making appraised values as of January 1, 
2006 the base values for the zone.  (Base values may differ slightly for each 
taxing unit.)  The term of the TIF zone and TIF fund will end with collection of the 
levies of September, 2036 (due in FY 2036-2037).   That term may be ended at 

________________________________________________________________ 
Preliminary Financing Plan for Northgate TIF Zone, January 13, 2006 Page 11 

231



________________________________________________________________ 

an earlier date, at the discretion of the City Council, if all TIF fund obligations 
have been satisfied by such earlier date.  Note that although the term of the zone 
is thirty years, commitments of City tax increments are for only twenty-one 
specified years; County tax increments for twenty specified years.   
 
The tax increment fund may have a residual balance of cash after all its financial 
obligations have been met.  A residual cash balance is indicated in FY 2027-
2028 in Schedule 5.  Any residual balance after all TIF fund financial obligations 
have been fully satisfied will be refunded to participating taxing jurisdictions on a 
pro rata basis.   
 

________________________________________________________________ 
Preliminary Financing Plan for Northgate TIF Zone, January 13, 2006 Page 12 

232



________________________________________________________________ 

Section 6: 
Revenue Benefits for Taxing Units 

 
 
All real property tax revenue on the 2006 base value of the Northgate zone, all 
business personal property tax (including growth increments) and all local sales 
tax (including growth increments) will be earned and retained for normal uses by 
the City and Brazos County.  Real property taxes on value added since 2006 will 
flow to general funds after FY 2026-2027.  Schedule 7 estimates annual 
business personal property taxes from Northgate.  Schedule 8 estimates City 
and County sales taxes from Northgate.  Although 2005 legislation permits sales 
tax increments to flow to a TIF zone, this plan does not propose any sales tax for 
the TIF zone.  Municipal hotel tax generated by hotels in the zone and other hotel 
occupancy tax will become available for purposes other than convention center 
construction after FY 2026-2027.   
 
The final schedules in this plan (Schedules 9-City, 9-County and 9-ISD)  
summarize and compare estimated annual taxes from the Northgate TIF zone 
that respective taxing units will reinvest in the TIF fund and retain for other uses 
over the analysis period of thirty years.  Tax revenues from Northgate and taxes 
retained from Northgate for general purposes will never drop below 2006 levels 
unless appraised values and sales drop below 2006 levels. The estimated taxes 
retained for general uses exceed the reinvestments of estimated new taxes in the 
convention center in every year.   
 
Redevelopment of Northgate will bring qualitative benefits of a new, revitalized 
mixed-use neighborhood according to the City’s comprehensive plan.  It will also 
bring jobs during and after the construction phases.   
 
 
 
 
 
 

________________________________________________________________ 
Preliminary Financing Plan for Northgate TIF Zone, January 13, 2006 Page 13 

233



________________________________________________________________ 

  
Exhibit A 

________________________________________________________________ 
Preliminary Financing Plan for Northgate TIF Zone, January 13, 2006 Page 14 

234



________________________________________________________________ 

 
Exhibit B 

________________________________________________________________ 
Preliminary Financing Plan for Northgate TIF Zone, January 13, 2006 Page 15 

235



city
 lim

it

Wellborn Road

Uni
vers

ity D
rive

South College Street

Exhibit B:
Northgate TIF Zone

236



________________________________________________________________ 

 
Exhibit C 

________________________________________________________________ 
Preliminary Financing Plan for Northgate TIF Zone, January 13, 2006 Page 16 

237



Existing Uses and Conditions

city
 lim

it

Unive
rsity

 Drive

South College Street

Wellborn Road

Exhibit C:

TIF zone boundary

Residential
Multi-family
Vacant
Tax-exempt institutional
Commercial
Utilities

238



________________________________________________________________ 

 
Exhibit D 

________________________________________________________________ 
Preliminary Financing Plan for Northgate TIF Zone, January 13, 2006 Page 17 

239



Tradition Dorm

C
hu

rc
h 

A
ve

.

Boyett

College Main

P
ar

ki
ng

 
G

ar
ag

e

Wellborn

First Street

Site 3 
Hotel, restaurant 
& possible retail

South college

T
ex

as
 A

 &
 M

 U
ni

ve
rs

ity

Nagle
S

ite
 1

S
ite

 4

S
ite

 2

T
IR

Z
 B

o
u

n
d

ar
y

T
IR

Z
 B

o
u

n
d

ar
y

TIRZ Boundary

TIRZ Boundary

C
ul

pe
pp

er

S
ite

 5

U
ni

ve
rs

ity
 D

riv
e

S
ite

 6

F

Legend

CS-Parcels

0 180 360 540 72090

Feet

Exhibit D:
Anticipated Development Map 

240



________________________________________________________________ 

 
Exhibit E: 

Convention Center Development Concept 

________________________________________________________________ 
Preliminary Financing Plan for Northgate TIF Zone, January 13, 2006 Page 18 

241



242



________________________________________________________________ 

________________________________________________________________ 
Preliminary Financing Plan for Northgate TIF Zone, January 13, 2006 Page 19 

243



________________________________________________________________ 

________________________________________________________________ 
Preliminary Financing Plan for Northgate TIF Zone, January 13, 2006 Page 20 

244



________________________________________________________________ 

 
Exhibit F: 

Site Plan for Early Development Project in Northgate 

________________________________________________________________ 
Preliminary Financing Plan for Northgate TIF Zone, January 13, 2006 Page 21 

245



Proposed TIF
Location

W
ellborn Road

South College
Univ

er
sit

y D
riv

e

Texas A & M
University

´

Northgate TIF Aerial & 
Existing Conditions

Exhibit F 246



________________________________________________________________ 

 

________________________________________________________________ 
Preliminary Financing Plan for Northgate TIF Zone, January 13, 2006 Page 22 

247



Schedule 1 : 

Certified 2005 Brazos Appraisal District Real Property Appraisals 
in the Proposed Northgate TIF Zone 

Accounts are arranged by ID number, taxable sites first.. Some sites are grouped according to possible redevelopment sites. 

Property ID Record Owner Land Improvements Total Land SF LandILSF Impr. SF Impr./lSF 
R18594 COLLEGE STATION, CITY OF $464,400 $110,080 $574,480 54,000 $8.60 5,062 $22 

SZABUNIEWICZ, CHARLES H 
SZABUNIEWICZ, MICHAEL 
SZABUNIEWICZ, IZABELLA M 
DP UNLIMITED INC 
GOSS, JAY B & CATHY E 
SOBHANI, DAVID & MlTRA 
SOBHANI, DAVID & MlTRA 
SOBHANI, DAVID & MITRA 
BIG DOG TRUST 
GALLEGOS, ADALBERTO M 

R85400 City of College Station exempt for 2005 27,000 
Site 1 $1,002,900 $123,460 $1,126,360 148,500 

R38611 CULPEPPER FAMILY L.P. $1,328,140 $1,328,140 132.814 $10.00 
Site 3 $1,328,140 $0 $1,328,140 132,814 

BENNING, RICHARD B 
THOMAS, GLENN D 
BENNING, RICHARD B 
BENNING, RICHARD B 
SZABUNIEWICZ, IZABELlA M 
SZABUNIEWICZ, CHARLES H 
SZABUNIEWICZ, CHARLES H 
VESSALI, PARVIZ & CHANTAL 
VESSALI, PARVIZ & CHANTAL 
VESSALI, PARVIZ & CHANTAL 
VlGllANT ENTERPRISES LLC 
SAHARA REALTY GROUP LTD 
SAHARA REALTY GROUP LTD 
NELSON RENTALS INC 
BIG DOG TRUST 
MITCHELL. NORMA SUE BOYETT 

R18622 
Site 5 

DIXIE CHICKEN INC $1601490 
$1,243,090 

CULPEPPER, JOHN C, Ill 
CULPEPPER FAMILY L.P. 
CULPEPPER FAMILY L.P. 
CULPEPPER FAMILY L.P. 
CULPEPPER, JOHN C, Ill 
CULPEPPER, JOHN C, Ill 
CULPEPPER, JOHN C, Ill 
CULPEPPER FAMILY L.P. R13591 

Site 6 

ClTlCORP NORTH AMERICA INC 
FIRST AMERICAN BANK SSB 
FIRST AMERICAN BANK SSB 
GUARANTY FEDERAL BANK FSB 
AUSTACO II REAL ESTATE 
MCDONALD'S CORP (420109) 
KALLISON RANCH OF VIRGINIA LIMIT1 
LOUPOT'S TOO L.P. 
CJB PROPERTIES INC 
MITCHELL, WILLIAM TURNER & RALPI 
MITCHELL, WILLIAM T & R HOWARD 
MITCHELL, WILLIAM TURNER & RALPI 
RANEY, JOHN N & ELIZABETH H 
VANCE, LOUISE B 
VANCE, LOUISE B 
MITCHELL, NORMA SUE BOYETT 
BOYETT, DEBRA L 

248



Schedule 1: 

Certified 2005 Brazos Appraisal District Real Property Appraisals 
in the Proposed Northgate TIF Zone 

Accounts are arranged by ID number, taxable sites first.. Some sites are grouped according to possible redevelopment sites. 

Property ID Record Owner Land Improvements Total Land SF LandlLSF Impr. SF Impr.llSF 
R18491 BOYETT, WILLIAM C, Sr. $54,600 $97,460 $152,060 4,200 $13.00 3,264 $30 

BOYETT, WILLIAM C, Sr. 
DP UNLIMITED INC 
LINDLEY, DORIS JEAN 
BOYETT, BANKSTON PARTNERSHIP 
RIG RUNNER'S INC 
RIG RUNNER'S INC 
BWB2 LP 
SHELTON FAMILY PARTNERSHIP LTC 
HORNAK, BRUCE DOUGLAS 
HOLICK, JOHNNIE 
NICHOLS, JOE W MARITAL TRUST 
400 UNIVERSITY DRIVE, LLC 
CROSS STREET I L.P. 
WESTERHEIM, DANIEL 
BIG DOG TRUST 
PARULIAN, OSCAR & SWANY W 
NELSON, HOWARD C 
MIZE, DALE E & KAREN H 
COOLEY, BILL J & FRANCES 
PITNER, H M 
PITNER, H M 
PITNER, H M 
ROMAIN, PIERRE-WES & KATE 
ROMAIN, PIERRE-WES & KATE 
ROMAIN, PIERRE-WES & KATE 
NELSON RENTALS INC 
NELSON RENTALS INC 
RADAKOR LLC 
OPERSTENY, MICHAEL J 
PITNER, MARJORIE N 
301 CHURCH AVENUE L.P. 
BENNING, RICHARD B & ENERGY ALC 
FORREST, ROBERT J 
FORREST, ROBERT 
DDBV LTD 
SCHWAB, JOHN 
HARPER, MOREY MITCHELL 
HARPER, MOREY MITCHELL 
DIXIE CHICKEN INC 
BOYETT, WILLIAM C, Sr. 
BOYETT, GEORGE H 
BOYETT, GEORGE H 
M MOORE PROPERTIES LTD 
BIG DOG TRUST 
BOYETT, GEORGE H 
DIXIE CHICKEN INC 
MITCHELL, NORMA SUE BOYETT 
DP UNLIMITED INC 
WORTHAM. C F 
JUAN-HIJO INVESTMENTS LTD 
WORTHAM, C E 
DP UNLIMITED INC 
DP UNLIMITED INC 
DULANEY, CHRISTINE J 
DULANEY, CHRISTINE J 
DULANEY, CHRISTINE J 
DULANEY, CHRISTINE J 
DULANEY, CHRISTINE J 
MOORE, WILLIAM TYLER JR TTEE 
M MOORE PROPERTIES LTD 
M MOORE PROPERTIES LTD 
M MOORE PROPERTIES LTD 

$101,570 $160,720 
$17,440 

$36,100 $53,590 
$357,930 $585,430 
$226,260 $382,870 

$176,180 
$303,580 $370,660 
$383,490 $485,300 
$120,170 $150,770 

$95,860 $1 15,060 
$131,590 $183,790 
$410,050 $678,550 

$2,811,130 $3,258,130 
$5,510 $54,510 

$47,000 
$2,540 $51,740 
$3,040 $104,240 
$1,670 $47,670 

$76,890 $168,890 
$2,720 $42,320 
$2,720 $42,320 
$2,720 $40,320 
$2,270 $62,270 
$3,880 $64,280 
$3,880 $65,160 
$5,480 $66,760 
$6,660 $67,060 
$5,450 $65,450 

$59,200 
$1,900 $60,900 

$14,248,090 $15,929,160 
$268,640 $441,670 
$117,640 $193,180 
$514,290 $61 1,790 
$202,800 $31 7,360 

$69,210 $95,430 
$7,500 $30,580 

$18,030 $31,810 
$279,020 $363,020 
$1 10,700 $156,620 
$326,260 $399,470 

$24,540 
$1 78,800 $454,040 

$3,180 
$1,430 

$263,520 
$100,820 $159,220 

$31,500 - 
$29,490 $67,120 
$36,810 $90,810 

$54,000 
$1,400 $55,400 

$54,000 
$4,650 $58,650 
$5,860 $59,860 
$4,930 $58,930 
$4,930 $58,930 

$54,000 
$12,150 $66,150 

$4,340 $58,340 
$3,990 $57,990 

'age 2 of 7 

249



Schedule 1 : 

Certified 2005 Brazos Appraisal District Real Property Appraisals 
in the Proposed Northgate TIF Zone 

Accounts are arranged by ID number, taxable sites first.. Some sites are grouped according to possible redevelopment sites. 

Property ID Record Owner 
R18633 M MOORE PROPERTIES LTD 

M MOORE PROPERTIES LTD 
M MOORE PROPERTIES LTD 
BOYETT, GEORGE H 
BOYETT, GEORGE H 
BRADFORD, JAMES C &JUDITH 
BRADFORD, JAMES C &JUDITH 
BOYETT, GEORGE H 
BOYETT, GEORGE H 
BOYETT, GEORGE H 
BOYETT, GEORGE H 
OLSHEWSKY, STEVEN J 
BOYETT, WILLIAM C, Sr. 
BOYETT, WILLIAM C, Sr. 
MASUD, SHARIF M & SHAHNAZ 
KAKWAN, IMRAN J 
MASUD, SHARIF M & SHAHNAZ 
MITCHELL, NORMA SUE BOYETT 
DP UNLIMITED INC 
SPRUCE STREET PROPERTIES LTD 
MITCHELL, NORMA SUE BOYETT 
SPRUCE STREET PROPERTIES LTD 
ISLAM-FARIDI, M NURUL & AFSANA 
POSTON, GLADYS BOYETT 
BOYETT, ORAN 
MOTT, KAREN RENE 
BOYETT, WILLIAM C, Sr. 
BOYETT, WILLIAM C, Sr. 
BOYETT, ORAN PARKER 
BOYETT, ORAN PARKER 
NELSON, HOWARD C 
HENDERSON LUCY 
HENDERSON LUCY 
HENDERSON LUCY 
MOORE, SANDRA L 
O'NEILL, PAUL &JENNIFER 
VALENTA, SUE ANN HODGSON 
DP UNLIMITED INC 
S I R DESIGN & CONSTRUCTION INC 
NELSON, HOWARD C ETAL 
SZABUNIEWICZ, C H INDV & A S  TRUS 
SZABUNIEWICZ, C H INDV & A S  TRUS 
HENDERSON LUCY 
HENDERSON LUCY 
HENDERSON LUCY 
MITCHELL, NORMA SUE BOYETT 
ABDULLAH, JAHANGIR & HlROMl NAG 
SPRUCE STREET PROPERTIES LTD 
SPRUCE STREET PROPERTIES LTD 
SPRUCE STREET PROPERTIFS I TD 
SPRUCE STREET PROPERTIES LTD 
HARPER, WILLIAM P & PEGGY 
POSTON, GLADYS BOYETT 
TAMPLEN, BRIAN & ADDlE SPICER 
MCCASLIN, PATRICK D &JEANETTE 
FOSS 1984 TRUST 
FERRELL, STUART DOUGLAS 
CHONG, MONG-HWA C 
FU, HONG & ZHEN TAO FENG 
BOYETT, DEBRA L 
MASUD, SHARIF M & SHAHNAZ 
HE, LINGYU & QlANG "JOHN" FU 
FU, JOHN QlANG & LINGYU HE 

Land Improvements 
$54,000 $3,990 
$54,000 $4,340 
$54,000 $4,340 
$54,000 $3,160 
$54,000 $3,160 
$51,200 $15,140 
$50,820 $14,930 
$50,060 $36,810 
$49,300 $38,080 
$47,760 $37,620 
$47,760 $37,620 
$46,990 $43,030 
$46,220 $37,620 
$46,180 $37,620 
$46,870 $36,910 
$47,560 $37,620 
$48,250 $3,720 
$48,940 $37,620 
$37,920 $32,950 
$36,000 $36,410 
$36,000 $31,670 
$37,920 $36,410 
$48,940 $40,510 
$48,250 $37,620 
$47,500 $37,620 
$46,870 $3,670 
$46,180 $37,620 
$46,270 $37,620 

$118,920 $83,410 
$123,720 $78,610 
$102.400 $59,520 

$67,500 $1 76,500 
$53,230 $176,500 
$51,830 $176,500 
$50,500 $4,930 
$49,100 $30,810 
$76,990 $48,303 

$1 34,340 $65,000 
$133,360 

$75,270 $6,210 
$49,100 $1 30 
$50,500 $1 30 
$51,830 $176,500 
$53,230 $176,500 
$67,500 $1 76,500 
$45,000 $93,060 
$90,000 $39,950 
$27,000 $36,410 
$41,400 $36,410 - 
$30,240 $36,410 
$53,820 $5,040 
$78,240 $116,120 
$32,270 $10,320 
$23,730 $10,270 
$22,470 $10,320 
$21,210 $10,320 
$20,390 $10,320 
$93,480 $5,320 
$53,760 $58,760 
$58,800 $3,420 
$55,350 
$36,000 

Page 3 of 7 

Total I 
$57,990 

Impr. SF Imp1 

250



Schedule 1: 

Certified 2005 Brazos Appraisal District Real Property Appraisals 
in the Proposed Northgate TIF Zone 

Accounts are arranged by ID number, taxable sites first.. Some sites are grouped according to possible redevelopment sites. 

Property ID Record Owner 
R18697 JOHNSON, CLARENCE B, 111 
R18699 CARGILL, JANlE 
R18700 CARGILL, JANlE A & THOMAS H 
R18701 CARGILL, JANlE A & THOMAS H 
R18702 NEELLEY, A G ESTATE 
R18703 BOND, MRS R J ESTATE 
R18704 PITNER, MARJORIE N 
R18705 LEE, HELEN 
R18706 LEE, HELEN 
R18707 NELSON RENTALS INC 
R18708 FU, JOHN QlANG & LINGYU HE 
R18711 HARRIS, CHARLES E, Jr. 
R18714 RICHARDSON, ROBERT M 
R18716 SZABUNIEWICZ, CHARLES H 
R18717 SZABUNIEWICZ, CHARLES H 
R18718 RASMUSSEN, GLEN L 
R18719 FRATILA, NICOLAE 
R18720 WILCOX, ROBERT H 
R18722 NELSON RENTALS INC 
R18723 NELSON RENTALS INC 
R18724 PARULIAN, OSCAR & SWANY W 
R18725 PARULIAN, OSCAR & SWANY W 
R18726 PARULIAN, OSCAR & SWANY W 
R18727 MASUD, SHARIF M & SHAHNAZ 
R18728 MICHIE, DOUGLAS CHARLES 
R18729 VESSALI, PARVIZ & CHANTAL 
R18730 MARTIN, ALFRED A 
R18731 OKONSKI, CHARLENE 
R18732 MIZE, DALE E & KAREN H 
R18733 HE, LINGYU & QlANG "JOHN" FU 
R23936 PIERING, DAVID A, Jr. 
R23937 OSBORNE, JENNY L 
R23938 OSBORNE, JENNY L 
R23939 PIERING, DAVID A, Jr. 
R33923 AGGlE INNS LTD 
R33924 AGGlE INNS LTD 
R33925 AGGlE INNS LTD 
R33926 AGGlE INNS LTD 
R33927 AGGlE INNS LTD 
R33928 AGGlE INNS LTD 
R33929 AGGlE INNS LTD 
R33930 AGGlE INNS LTD 
R33931 AGGlE INNS LTD 
R33932 AGGlE INNS LTD 
R33933 AGGlE INNS LTD 
R33934 AGGlE INNS LTD 
R33935 AGGlE INNS LTD 
R33936 AGGIE INNS LTD 
R33937 AGGIE INNS LTD 

R33939 PUBLIC ENTERPRISE 
R33940 AGGlE INNS LTD 
R33941 AGGlE INNS LTD 
R33942 AGGlE INNS LTD 
R33943 AGGlE INNS LTD 
R33944 AGGlE INNS LTD 
R33945 AGGlE INNS LTD 
R33946 AGGlE INNS LTD 
R33947 AGGIE INNS LTD 
R33948 AGGlE INNS LTD 
R33949 AGGlE INNS LTD 
R33950 MOORE, CANDICE DOLLISON 
R34106 KALKAN, FERCAN ENGlN & FATMA A1 

Land Improvements 
$1 58,200 $6,360 
$39,150 
$64,130 $5,640 
$33,870 
$70,240 $3,670 
$71,690 

$100,270 
$67,070 $4,110 

$1 17,020 $3,140 
$55,980 $2,030 

$170,310 $400,290 
$164,760 $9,650 
$78,780 $2,000 
$42,000 $320 
$42,000 $210 
$21,020 $2,740 
$38,000 $89,940 
$42,000 $4,500 
$46,000 $26,640 

$104,000 $11,140 
$95,360 $16,370 
$63,550 
$78,980 
$47,300 $3,840 
$22,650 

$153,380 $2,370 
$115,340 $11,180 
$63,160 $2,740 
$49,400 $3,300 
$91,370 
$6,000 $29,540 
$6,000 $29,540 
$6,000 $29,540 
$6,000 $29,540 

$30,250 $4,130 
$30,250 $4,130 
$30,250 $4,130 
$30,250 $4,130 
$30,250 $4,130 
$30,250 $4,130 
$30,250 $4,130 
$30,250 $4,130 
$30,250 $4,130 
$30,250 $4,130 
$30,250 $4,130 
$30,250 $4,130 
$30,250 $4,130 
$30,250 $4,130 
$30,250 $4,130 - 
$30,250 $4,130 
$30,250 $4,130 
$30,250 $4,130 
$30,250 $4,130 
$30,250 $4,130 
$30,250 $4,130 
$30,250 $4,130 
$30,250 $4,130 
$42,820 $5,490 
$42,820 $5,490 
$42,820 $5,490 
$42,820 $5,490 
$12,720 $12,720 

Page 4 of 7 

Total Land SF LandlLSF Impr. SF Impr.llSF 
$164,560 32,500 $4.87 

$39,150 8,700 $4.50 

251



Schedule 1: 

Certified 2005 Brazos Appraisal District Real Property Appraisals 
in the Proposed Northgate TIF Zone 

Accounts are arranged by ID number, taxable sites first.. Some sites are grouped according to possible redevelopment sites. 

Property ID Record Owner 
R34107 KALKAN, FERCAN ENGlN & FATMA AL 

KALKAN, FERCAN ENGlN & FATMA AL 
KALKAN, FERCAN ENGlN & FATMA AL 
KALKAN, FERCAN ENGlN & FATMA AL 
KALKAN, FERCAN ENGlN & FATMA AL 
KALKAN, FERCAN ENGlN & FATMA AL 
KALKAN, FERCAN ENGlN & FATMAAL 
KALKAN, FERCAN ENGlN & FATMAAL 
KALKAN, FERCAN ENGlN & FATMAAL 
KALKAN, FERCAN ENGlN & FATMA AL 
KALKAN, FERCAN ENGlN & FATMA AL 
KALKAN, FERCAN ENGlN & FATMAAL 
KALKAN, FERCAN ENGlN & FATMA AL 
KALKAN, FERCAN ENGlN & FATMA AL 
KALKAN, FERCAN ENGlN & FATMA AL 
KALKAN, FERCAN ENGlN & FATMA AL 
KALKAN, FERCAN ENGlN & FATMA AL 
KALKAN, FERCAN ENGlN & FATMAAL 
KALKAN, FERCAN ENGlN & FATMA AL 
KALKAN, FERCAN ENGlN & FATMAAL 
KALKAN, FERCAN ENGlN & FATMAAL 
KALKAN, FERCAN ENGlN & FATMA AL 
KALKAN, FERCAN ENGlN & FATMAAL 
KALKAN, FERCAN ENGlN & FATMAAL 
KALKAN, FERCAN ENGlN & FATMA AL 
KALKAN, FERCAN ENGlN & FATMA AL 
KALKAN, FERCAN ENGlN & FATMA AL 
KALKAN, FERCAN ENGlN & FATMA AL 
KALKAN, FERCAN ENGlN & FATMA AL 
KALKAN, FERCAN ENGlN & FATMA AL 
KALKAN, FERCAN ENGlN & FATMA AL 
KALKAN, FERCAN ENGlN & FATMA AL 
KALKAN, FERCAN ENGlN & FATMAAL 
KALKAN, FERCAN ENGlN & FATMAAL 
KALKAN, FERCAN ENGlN & FATMA AL 
KALKAN, FERCAN ENGlN & FATMAAL 
URSO, STEVEN P & OLGA E 
KALKAN, FERCAN ENGlN & FATMAAL 
KALKAN, FERCAN ENGlN & FATMA AL 
KALKAN, FERCAN ENGlN & FATMAAL 
KALKAN, FERCAN ENGlN & FATMA AL 
KALKAN, FERCAN ENGlN & FATMA AL 
KALKAN, FERCAN ENGlN & FATMA AL 
KALKAN, FERCAN ENGlN & FATMA AL 
KALKAN, FERCAN ENGlN & FATMA AL 
KALKAN, FERCAN ENGlN & FATMA AL 
KALKAN, FERCAN ENGlN & FATMA AL 
KALKAN, FERCAN ENGlN & FATMAAL 
KALKAN, FERCAN ENGlN & FATMAAL 

KALKAN, FERCAN ENGlN & FATMA AL 
KALKAN, FERCAN ENGlN & FATMA AL 
KALKAN, FERCAN ENGlN & FATMA AL 
HARRIS, JUNE B 
BRAVO ClNCO L.L.C. 
M S S ,  SUE BURSEY 
GREGG, LEILA MOEHLMAN 
CULPEPPER FAMILY L.P. 
LELAND, WILLIAM P & TWYLA R 
CULPEPPER FAMILY L.P. 
CULPEPPER FAMILY L.P. 
DUYKA, ANN A 
VITULLI. JAMES SR & BARBARA 

Land Improvements 
$12,720 $1 2,720 
$8,480 $9,800 
$8,480 $9,800 
$8,480 $9,800 
$8,480 $9,800 
$8,480 $9,800 
$8,480 $9,800 
$8,480 $9,800 
$8,480 $9,800 
$8,480 $9,800 
$8,480 $9,800 
$8,480 $9,800 
$8,480 $9,800 
$8,480 $9,800 
$8,480 $9,800 
$8,480 $9,800 
$8,480 $9,800 
$8,480 $9,800 
$8,480 $9,800 

$1 2,720 $1 2,720 
$12,720 $12,720 
$8,480 $9,800 
$8,480 $9,800 
$8,480 $9,800 
$8,480 $9,800 
$8,480 $9,800 
$8,480 $9,800 
$8,480 $9,800 
$8,480 $9,800 
$8,480 $9,800 
$8,480 $9,800 
$8,480 $9,800 
$8,480 $9,800 
$8,480 $9,800 
$8,480 $9,800 
$8,480 $9,800 
$8,480 $9,800 
$8,480 $9,800 
$8,480 $9,800 

$12,720 $12,720 
$12,720 $12,720 
$12,720 $12,720 
$12,720 $12,720 
$12,720 $12,720 
$12,720 $12,720 
$12,720 $12,720 
$12,720 $12,720 
$12,720 $1 2,720 
$12,720 $1 2,720 

$12,720 $12,720 
$12,720 $12,720 
$67,080 $2,770 
$54,750 $3,810 
$53,040 $3,720 
$54,650 $4,860 
$57,120 $2,560 
$61,890 $5,650 
$51,080 $3,020 
$49,140 $2,740 
$49,140 $4,420 
$49,140 $4,760 

Page 5 of 7 

Total 
$25,440 

Land SF LandILSF Impr. SF Impr./lSF 
1,060 $12.00 952 $13 

707 $1 1.99 

252



Schedule 1: 

Certified 2005 Brazos Appraisal District Real Property Appraisals 
in the Proposed Northgate TIF Zone 

Accounts are arranged by ID number, taxable sites first.. Some sites are grouped according to possible redevelopment sites. 

Property ID Record Owner Land Improvements Total Land SF LandlLSF Impr. SF Impr.llSF 
R35665 STERLE, MARK EDWARD $50,940 $4,080 $55,020 8,490 $6.00 

ERTAS, ATllA 
PRAYTOR, LINDA 
CULPEPPER FAMILY L.P. 
CULPEPPER FAMILY L.P. 
CULPEPPER FAMILY L.P. 
ALTENHOF, JEANETTE 
SIMPSON, RUSSELL B 
CULPEPPER FAMILY L.P. 
CULPEPPER FAMILY L.P. 
CULPEPPER FAMILY L.P. 
CULPEPPER FAMILY L.P. 
CULPEPPER FAMILY L.P. 
CULPEPPER FAMILY L.P. 
CULPEPPER FAMILY L.P. 
CULPEPPER FAMILY L.P. 
HEIMAN, MARK 
HEIMAN, MARK S & JANET 
MCHARGUE, MELISSA K & JEFF R 
ANDERSON, THOMAS L 
SCHLOSSER, ERIK KAVANAUGH 
HEIMAN, MARK S & JANET 
STEVENS, GEORGE ROBERT 
ENAX, MICHAEL W & MARSHA C 
FOGLE, JOHNNIE & DEBORAH 
HEIMAN, MARK S & JANET 
HEIMAN, MARK S & JANET 
DENSON, AL H & BARBARA B 
PEDROTTI FAMILY PROPERTIES LTD 
BOYETT, GEORGE H &THE GEORGE 
HEIMAN, MARK S &JANET 
HEIMAN, MARK S & JANET 
HEIMAN, MARK S & JANET 
HEIMAN, MARK S & JANET 
HEIMAN, MARK S & JANET 
HEIMAN, MARK S & JANET 
HEIMAN, MARK S & JANET 
HEIMAN, MARK S & JANET 
HEIMAN, MARK S & JANET 
HEIMAN, MARK S & JANET 
HEIMAN, MARK S & JANET 
HEIMAN, MARK S & JANET 
HEIMAN, MARK S & JANET 
HEIMAN, MARK S & JANET 
HEIMAN, MARK S & JANET 
HEIMAN, MARK S & JANET 
MCHARGUE. MELISSA K & JEFF R 
HEIMAN, MARK S & JANET 
BOYETT, WILLIAM C, Jr. 
POSTON, GI A n V S  RnyFTT 
DALE, LUClA K 
HEIMAN, MARK S & JANET 
HEIMAN, MARK S & JANET 
HEIMAN, MARK S & JANET 
HEIMAN, MARK S & JANET 
MCHARGUE, MELISSA K & JEFF R 
TONNER, BARRY & BECKY 
MCHARGUE, MELISSA K &JEFF R 
JUMP, WILLIAM JAMES & MARGARET 
FOGLE, JOHNNIE & DEBORAH 
ROSE, ROBERT ANDREW 
MUNSON. RICHARD EARL & DIANE St 
STEWART, ROBERT & STEPHANIE 

$4,120 
$4,700 
$2,550 
$2,810 
$2,770 
$4,190 
$9,300 
$2,450 
$2,110 
$2,750 
$2,710 
$2,110 
$2,380 
$2,450 
$1,300 

$55,026 
$16,313 
$22,683 
$44,556 
$44,556 
$16,313 
$27,683 
$44,556 
$44,556 
$16,313 
$16,313 
$44,556 
$44,556 
$55,026 
$55,026 
$16,313 
$16,313 
$31.346 
$31,346 
$16,313 
$16,313 
$31.346 
$31,346 
$55,026 
$29,576 
$29,576 
$30,208 
$30,208 
$30,208 
$30,206 
$30,640 
$22,080 
$30,640 
49 

i i z r  
$22,080 
$22,080 
$22,080 
$22,080 
$30,640 
$30,640 
$30,640 
$45,320 
$45,320 
$45,675 
$45,675 
$45,675 

Page 6 of 7 

253



Schedule 1: 

Certified 2005 Brazos Appraisal District Real Property Appraisals 
in the Proposed Northgate TIF Zone 

Accounts are arranged by ID number, taxable sites first.. Some sites are grouped according to possible redevelopment sites. 

Property ID Record Owner 
R38661 HEIMAN, MARK S B JANET 

HEIMAN, MARK S 8 JANET 
HEIMAN, MARK S 8 JANET 
HEIMAN, MARK S 8 JANET 
HEIMAN, MARK S 8 JANET 
HEIMAN, MARK S 8 JANET 
HEIMAN, MARK S 8 JANET 
K O B  LLC 
COOLEY, BlLL J 8 FRANCES 
AGGlE INNS II LTD 
AYMOND, GREGORY M REV 
AGGlE INNS II LTD 
SZABUNIEWICZ, MICHAEL 8. IZABELL, 
SZABUNIEWICZ, CHARLES H 
SZABUNIEWICZ, CHARLES H 
SZABUNIEWICZ, CHARLES H 
NORTH AMERICAN ISLAMIC TRUST 
RIVERA, HECTOR 
WHITT, DAVID 8 PAUL 
AGGlE INNS LTD 
FRENCH QUARTER APARTMENTS LLI 
WHITT. DAVID 8 PAUL 
NELSON, HOWARD C ETAL 
NELSON FAMILY TRUST BARDIN H 8.1 
WYATT, TED N 
WYATT, TED N 
GREATERTEXASFEDERAL 
COOLEY, BlLL J 8 FRANCES 
SKIBELL PROPERTIES, L.C. 
BICS PROPERTIES INC 
POSTON, GLADYS ETAL 
VERIZON COMMUNICATIONS, INC 
WALSTON. JlMMlE 

Land 
$18,120 

R93959 BOYETT SR, W C $148,500 
All taxable accounts $34,026,300 

Improvements 
$32,985 

Total 
$51,105 

Fully-exepmpt accounts: 
R18498 COLLEGE STATION, ClTY OF 
R18504 BAPTIST GENERAL CONVENTIONflEXAS 
R18520 ABM UNITED METHODIST CHURCH 
R18521 ABM UNITED METHODIST CHURCH 
R18522 ALM UNITED METHODIST CHURCH 
R18523 ABM UNITED METHODIST CHURCH 
R18524 ABM UNITED METHODIST CHURCH 
R18525 ABM UNITED METHODIST CHURCH 
R18530 TEXAS ABM ASSOCIATION OF 
R18551 UNIVERSITY LUTHERAN CHURCH 
R18558 COLLEGE STATION, ClTY OF 
R18587 CHRISTIAN SCIENCE SOCIETY 
R35614 TFXAS ABM UNlV SYSTFM. THF 
R35691 ST MARY'S CATHOLIC CHURCH 
R38612 ST MARY'S CATHOLIC CHURCH 
R44942 ABM UNITED METHODIST CHURCH 
R44952 NORTH AMERICAN ISLAMIC TRUST 
R44958 ST MARY'S CATHOLIC CHURCH 
R44968 TEXAS ANNUAL CONFERENCE OF THE UNITED 
R44969 TEXAS ANNUAL CONFERENCE OF THE UNITED 
R44971 ST MARY'S CATHOLIC CHURCH 
R85400 COLLEGE STATION, ClTY OF 

Land SF LandILSF Impr. SF Impr./lSF 
2,265 $8.00 1,202 $27 
1,254 $8.00 728 $30 

83.12 acres 

R107885 COLLEGE STATION, CITY OF $0 40,293 
1.412.664 . . 

or 32.43 acres 

Page 7 of 7 

254



Schedule 2: 

Estimated Annual Expenditures for TIF Project Cost Principal 

Assumptions: 
Project cost principal and related financial and administrative fees are paid or reimbursed by the TIF fund. 
Line items. amounts and timing are subject to change in future project and financin lans. 

Cost estimates after 2006 are adjusted for inflation at an annual rate o t  

Fiscal Years Ended September 30, 
Total 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 201 1 2012 Sum 

Site acquisition a d preparation $2,000,000 t $0 $2,000,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $2,000,000 

Infrastructure $2,500,000 $0 $2,000,000 $500,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $2,500,000 

Parking $3,000,000 $0 $3,000,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $3,000,000 

Landscaping $1,000,000 $0 $200,000 $800,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,000,000 

Furniture, fixtures and equipment $2,500,000 $0 $500,000 $2,000,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $2,500,000 

Contingencies $1,000,000 $0 $1,000,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,000,000 

Total for principal $25,000,000 $1,000,000 $1 6,200,000 $7,800,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $25,000,000 

255



Site Concept and Components 

1 Gameday Centers 
condos 
ground floor retail 

2 Mixed use project 
residential 
retail 

Schedule 3: 

Anticipated Development in Northgate TIF Zone, 20 Years 
Construction costs, values and appraised values are not necessarily the same. 

3 Hotel (floor area and taxable val e exclude 
tax-exempt convention cente ) 2009 225,000 132,814 1.69 $12 $1,593,768 $1 10 $24,750,000 $26,343,768 $1,328,140 $25,015,628 t 

Less Net Addition 

4 First and Boyett joint venture 
residential 
office 
ground floor retail 

Assumed 
Complete Estimated Floor 

5 General retail, College @ Univer ity 2010 120,000 470,659 0.25 $12 $5,647,908 $70 $8,400,000 $14,047,908 $5,027,550 $9,020,358 I 

Estimated Appraisals at Completion (2005 Dollars) I Taxable Net to Roll. 
Land I Improvements I 2005 Appraisal Pre-completion 

6 ChurchlNagle site 
Residential 
Retail 

Before Floor Area Area per Total Appraisal Increase Inflation @ 
per Total Jan. 1. (SF) Land SF Ratio SF Total SF Real of Site (2005 ~ol lars) ]  3.00% 1 

A Hotel 

B General development 

C General development 

D General development 

E General development 

All projects 

*Appraisal estimate is from City of ege Station 

256



Program 
Year 

1 

29 
Total 

Schedule 4-City: 

Estimated Annual Appraisals and 
City Real Property Tax from the TIF Zone 

ns: 
'alue taxable by City for 2005 is from Brazos Appraisal District. This figure makes allowance for partial exemptions and abatements. 
'ax rate is for 2005. Actual rate will vary annually. 
istimated tax adjustment rate is an annual average. Appraisals may remain static one or two years, then rise in a third year. 
'axes are shown with the year levied. Receipts will lag appraisal dates by approximately 13 months. 

(b) (c) (d ) (e) (0 (9) (h) (0 0) 
Estimated 

BAD Appraisal 
of Taxable Anticipated 

Real Property Net Addition 
in Zone for New 

Carried Forward Development Total Percentage 
From Past Year; Added to Roll Estimated Real Property of Real 

ippraised Annual This Year Taxable Captured Tax Property Tax Real Property Real 

257



Schedule 4-County: 

Estimated Annual Appraisals and 
Brazos County Real Property Tax from the TIF Zone 

Assumpti ns: 
alue taxable by County for 2005 is from Brazos Appraisal District. This figure makes allowance for partial exemptions and abatements. 
ounty participates with "Maintenance and Operations" part of tax rate, 82.24% of total County tax rate in 2005. 
ax rate is for 2005. Actual total rate and "O&MU rate (therefore percentage of tax to TIF fund) will vary annually. 
stimated tax adjustment rate is an annual average. Appraisals may remain static one or two years, then rise in a third year. 
axes are shown with the year levied. Receipts will lag appraisal dates by approximately 13 months. i 

Program 

(b) (c) (d) (e) (0 (9) (h) (0 
Estimated 

BAD Appraisal 
of Taxable Anticipated 

Real Property Net Addition 
in Zone for 

Carried Forward Development Total Percentage 
From Past Year; Added to Roll Estimated Real Property of Real 

ppraised Annual This Year Taxable Captured Tax Property Tax Real Property Real 

258



Schedule 4-ISD: 

Estimated Annual Appraisals and 
College Station ISD Real Property Tax from the TIF Zone 

Assumption : 
V lue taxable by ISD for 2005 is from Brazos Appraisal District. This figure makes allowance for partial exemptions and abatements. 
Ta rate is for 2005. Actual rate will vary annually. 
Es imated tax adjustment rate is an annual average. Appraisals may remain static one or two years, then rise in a third year. 
Ta es are shown with the year levied. Receipts will lag appraisal dates by approximately 13 months. 1 

Total Percentage 
Estimated Real Property of Real 
Taxable Captured Tax Property Tax Real Property 

$73,402,033 $1,439.256 $24,108 0% $0 
$122,662,065 $50,699,307 $849,213 0% $0 
$168,349.845 $96,387,067 $1,614,483 0% $0 
$198,436,968 $126,474,191 $2,118,443 0% $0 
$202,405,708 $130,442,930 $2,184.919 0% $0 
$206,453,822 $134,491,044 $2,252,725 0% $0 
$210,582,898 $138,620,121 $2,321,887 0% $0 
$222,571,005 $150,608,227 $2,522.688 0% $0 
$227,022,425 $1 55,059,647 $2,597,249 0% $0 
$231,562,873 $1 59,600,095 $2,673,302 0% $0 
$244,697,666 $1 72,728,888 $2,893,209 0% $0 
$249,585,499 $177,622,721 $2,975,181 0% $0 
$254,577,209 $182,614,431 $3,058,792 0% $0 
$268,954,239 $196,991,461 $3,299.607 0% $0 
$274,333,324 $202,370,546 $3,389.707 0% $0 
$279,819,990 $207,857,212 $3,481,608 0% $0 
$295,562,891 $223,600,113 $3,745,302 0% $0 
$301,474,149 $229,511,371 $3,844,315 0% $0 
$307,503,632 $235,540,854 $3,945,309 0% $0 
$31 3,653,704 $241,690,926 $4,048,323 0% $0 
$319,926,778 $247,964.001 $4,153,397 0% $0 
$326,325.314 $254,362,536 $4,260,572 0% $0 
$332,651,820 $260,889,042 $4,369,891 0% $0 
$339,508,857 $267,546,079 $4,481,397 0% $0 
$346,299,034 $274,336,256 $4,595,132 0% $0 
$353,225,014 $261,262,237 $4,711,142 0% $0 
$360,289,515 $288,326,737 $4,829,473 0% $0 
$367.495.305 $295.532.527 $4.950.170 0% $0 

Real 
Property Tax 

Retained 
$1,181,742 

259



Schedule 5: 

TIF Fund Sources and Uses of Cash (Debt Service Schedule) 
Assumptions: 
Annual TIF fund receipts from taxes and expenditures for TIF project cost principal are from separate schedules. 
Tax receipts are entered for the year received, not the year of appraisal. 
Receipts and expenditures, except debt service on certificates, occur at mid-year. 

level payments each September and March. 

Recovery of City cash contributions for the convention center (except tax increments) is subordinate to all other project costs. 

SOURCES 
$6.338 $222.800 $423,566 $555,783 $573,236 $591,038 $609,197 

Fiscal year beginn 
and ended 

ng October 1, 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 201 0 201 1 201 2 201 3 
September 30, 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 201 1 2012 201 3 2014 

CASH BALANCE AFTER DEBT SE VICE 
Cash before earned in erest this year $100,000 $7,883,016 $557,385 $164,177 $941,237 $570,597 $318,101 $147,918 i $25,731 

Earned interest on cash ba ance this year $0 $2,000 $1 57,660 $1 1,148 $3,284 $1 8.825 $1 1,412 $6,362 $2,958 
Balance after arned interest $100,000 $7,885,016 $715,045 $175,325 $944,520 $589,421 $329,513 $154,280 $28,689 

USES 
Project costs, except 

City TIF 
Public improvemer 

Total fees and 
Net cash available befo-e 

Debt coverage ratio from listed so 8.75 1.27 1.08 1.46 1.28 1.16 1.07 1.01 

debt service 
management fee $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

t expenditures $1,000,000 $16,200,000 $7,800,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 
improvements $1,000,000 $16,200,000 $7,800,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

debt service $100,000 $8,900,000 $2,591,353 $2,198,146 $2,975,205 $2,604,565 $2,352,069 $2.1 81,886 $2,059,699 

Reimbursement of cash contributions from City $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Page 1 of 3 

260



Fiscal year beginn 
and ended : 

SOURCES 
From City 

From County 
Annual real property tax inc~ 

Cash contrib~ 
Hotel occupancy tax from 7 . - 

Other hotel 
Annual recei~ts bc 

PIUS city Certifi 
Total rl 

Plus cash carried from end c 
Total cash available f i  

USES 
Project costs, excer 

City TIF m 
Public improve me^ 

Total fees and 
Net cash available befa 

Debt service on certificate! 

CASH BALANCE AFTER DEBT SE 
Cash before earned in 

Earned interest on cash ba 
Balance after 1 

Debt coverage ratio from listed so 

Reimbursement of cash contributi 

Schedule 5: 

F Fund Sources and Uses of Cash (Debt Service Schedule) 

g October I ,  2014 201 5 201 6 201 7 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 
ptember 30, 2015 201 6 201 7 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 

IX increments $661,888 $681,463 $701,430 $759,134 $780,655 $802,605 $865,795 $889,449 $913,575 
IX increments $576,007 $593,040 $610,414 $660,630 $679,355 $698,456 $753,445 $774,028 $795.021 
nent receipts $1.237.894 $1,274,503 $1,311,844 $1,419,764 $1.460,010 $1.501.061 $1,619,241 $1,663,476 $1,708.596 
~ n s  from City $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 
' 
zone impact $780,291 $796,777 $81 1,532 $825,563 $839,874 $854,472 $869,361 $884,549 $900,040 

ccupancy tax $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 
Ire borrowing $2,018,186 $2,071.280 $2,123,376 $2,245,327 $2,299,884 $2,355,533 $2,488,602 $2,548,025 $2,608,636 
tes proceeds $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 
eiptsforyear $2,018,186 $2,071,280 $2,123,376 $2,245,327 $2,299,884 $2,355,533 $2,488,602 $2,548,025 $2,608,636 
~revious year $28,689 $13,421 $50,990 $141,412 $355,579 $628,550 $962,544 $1,436,180 $1,978,579 
n all sources $2,046,875 $2,084,701 $2,174,366 $2,386,740 $2,655,463 $2,984,083 $3,451,146 $3,984,204 $4,587,215 

debt service 
~agement fee $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

debtservice $2,046,875 $2,084,701 $2,174,366 $2,386,740 $2,655,463 $2,984,083 $3,451,146 $3,984,204 $4,587,215 

)f obligation 
Interest $955,821 $898,476 $838,080 $774,472 $707,480 $636,926 $562,618 $484,359 $401,936 

$1 , I  35,493 Principal $1,078,147 $1 , I  95,889 $1,259,497 $1,326.488 $1,397,043 $1,471,350 $1,549,610 $1,632,032 
Total $2,033,969 $2,033,969 $2,033,969 $2,033,969 $2,033.969 $2,033,969 $2,033,969 $2,033,969 $2,033,969 

VICE 
rest this year $12,906 $50,732 $140,398 $352,771 $621,495 $950,114 $1,417,177 $1,950,236 $2,553,247 
nce this year $51 5 $258 $1,015 $2,808 $7,055 $12,430 $19,002 $28,344 $39,005 
~rnedinterest $13,421 $50,990 $141,412 $355,579 $628,550 $962,544 $1,436,180 $1,978,579 $2,592,251 

ns from City $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Page 2 of 3 

261



Fiscal year begi 
and endel 

SOURCES 
From C 

From Cour 
Annual real property tax i 

Cash conti 
Hotel occupancy tax fron 

Other hc 
Annual receipts 

Plus City cer 
Tot; 

Plus cash carried from en1 
Total cash availablm 

USES 
Project costs, ex( 

City TI F 
Public imp~oven 

Total fees a 
Net cash available b~ 

Debt service on certifica 

CASHBALANCEAFTERDEBT: 
Cash before earned 

Earned interest on cash 
Balance aft 

Debt coverage ratio from listed 

Reimbursement of cash contrib 

Schedule 5: 

= Fund Sources and Uses of Cash (Debt Service Schedule) 

ing October 1, 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 
ieptember 30, 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031 Cumulative 

tax increments $982,768 $1,008,761 $1,035,274 $1,062,317 $1,089,900 $0 $0 $0 $1 5.21 6,972 
tax increments $855,235 $877,853 $900.923 $924,454 $948,457 $0 $0 $0 $13,236,868 
sment receipts $1,838,003 $1,886,614 $1,936,197 $1,986,771 $2,038,357 $0 $0 $0 $28,453.839 
ltions from City $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $4,400,000 
'IF zone impact $915,840 $931,957 $948,396 $965,164 $0 $0 $0 $0 $15.122,113 
occupancy tax $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,300,000 

)t debt service 
anagement fee $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 
~t expenditures $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $25,000,000 
improvements $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

 re debt service $5,346,095 $6.1 81,762 $7,098,628 $8,099,551 $4,822,217 $0 $0 $0 

j of obligation 
Interest $315,130 $223,707 $127,421 $26,013 $0 $0 $0 $0 $15,679,372 

Principal $1,718,839 $1,810,262 $1,906,548 $990,971 $0 $0 $0 $0 $25,000,000 
Total $2,033,969 $2,033,969 $2,033,969 $1,016,984 $0 $0 $0 $0 $40,679,372 

terest this year 
 lance this year 
earned interest 

urces 2.63 3.04 3.49 7.96 

ions from City $0 $0 $0 $4,400,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $4,400,000 

Page 3 of 3 

262



Schedule 6: 

Estimated City Hotel Occupancy Tax 
Assumptions: 

Average daily rate itFrl annual for 4 ears, then, F a n n u a l l y  
Occupancy increases annually until reaching 

I I Room Sales, I Room Sales. I Tax irom. 1 ~e ia ted Citv Hotel 

(a) (b) (c) (d) (e) (9 (9) (h ) (i) (J ) (k) (I) (m) (n) (0) 

Fiscal Year 
Program Ended 

Year Sept. 30, 

Total 
lm~act-  

Ful lSewice Hotel in  TIF Zone 

Cumulative 
New 

Hotel Keys 
Base 2006 0 

Second Hotel in TIF Zone 

$0 0% $0 $0 0 $0 0% $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Less 
15% ( City Hotel 

Average Exempt from Occupancy 
Daily Annual Occupancy Tax 
Rate Occupancy Tax 1 7.00% 

Plus 
Annual I Annual Occu~ancv 

Less 
-15% City Hotel 

Cumulative Average Exempt from Occupancy 
New Daily Annual Occupancy Tax 

Hotel Keys Rate Occupancy Tax 1 7.00% 

Outside 
Zone 

Attributed to 
Convention 

Center 

Hotel 0c;upancy 
Occupancy Tax 

Tax From Zone 
to Convention for Other 

Center Purposes 

263



Schedule 7: 

Estimated Business Personal Property Tax 
From New Development in the TIF Zone 

in this schedule are shown with the year levied. Receipts will lag appraisal dates by approximately 13 months. 
from "general development" identified in separate schedule of anticipated de4velopment is credited in this schedule. 

I city County ISD 
Business Personal Business personal Business Personal 

1 
2 
3 
4 
5 
6 
7 
8 
9 
10 
11 
12 
13 
14 
15 
16 
17 
18 
19 
20 
21 
22 
23 
24 
25 
26 
27 
28 
29 

Total 

264



Schedule 8: 

Estimated Sales Tax 
From New Development in the TIF Zone 

Assumptions: 
Sales include beverages. City receives 1.5% tax on beverages (10.7143% of 14% State tax.) 
Sales tax rates are constant. 

(a) (b) (c) (d) (e) (9 (9) I Retail and Restaurants, Except Hotel I (h) 

Average Annual Plus Taxable Hotel 

1 
2 
3 
4 
5 
6 
7 
8 
9 
10 
11 
12 
13 
14 
15 
16 
17 
18 
19 
20 
21 
22 
23 
24 
25 
26 
27 
28 
cln 

Total 

Taxable Sales @ Food and Beverage Sales Tax 
Cumulative SFI $175 Revenue @ from New Development @ 

Total 1 $0.0150 1 $0.0050 1 Fiscal Year in New per SF, Plus 

Base 2006 0 $0 $0 $0 

40% 

265



Schedule 9-City: 

Summary of Estimated City Taxes 
From Northgate TIF Zone 

for 30 Years 

Property tax receipts are shown with calendar year of appraisal and levy. Most property tax receipts lag appraisal by a year. 
Actual cash flow may be more or less than this pro forma. 

Pro forma is not adjusted for potential refunds to City and County of any balance in the TIF fund at dissolution. 
Revenue to TIF fund or convent n center excludes $4,400,000 from City (to be repaid) and approximately $3,275,000 from municipal hotel occupancy tax from outside the zone 

Year 
Base 

Appraisal 
or Sales New 

Year Real Business 
Ended 

Sept. 30, 
2006 

Totals 1 To TIF Fund or Convention Center Fund I Retained for General Use I 
New 

New Hotel Real New New Hotel Real Business New Hotel 
Property Persona 

Property Tax 
$31 6.877 

Sales Occupancy 
Tax Tax 

$0 $0 
$0 $0 

$1 72,105 $0 
$265,792 $343.408 
$641,374 $477,701 
$663,327 $531,586 
$686,245 $591.549 
$708,880 $642,982 
$729,708 $661.070 
$751,153 $674,291 
$773.231 $687,777 
$795,963 $701,532 
$819,368 $715,563 
$843,465 $729,874 
$868.275 $744,472 
$893,820 $759,361 
$920.121 $774,549 
$947,201 $790,040 
$975.083 $805,840 

$1,003,790 $821.957 
$1.033.348 $838,396 
$1,063,782 $855,164 
$1,095,117 $872.267 
$1 .I 27,381 $889,713 
$1,160,600 $907,507 
$1,194,805 $925,657 
$1,230,023 $944,170 
$1,266,285 $963,054 
$1,303,623 $982,315 
$1,342,067 $1,001,961 

$25,275,934 $20,633,758 

All 
$316,877 
$323.21 4 
$719,930 

$1,372,276 
$2,032,975 
$2,126,679 
$2,227,778 
$2,320,425 
$2,412,457 
$2,467,127 
$2,523,092 
$2.61 7,722 
$2,677,119 
$2,737,925 
$2,840.974 
$2,905,517 
$2.971.592 
$3,083,820 
$3,753,965 
$3,225,776 
$3,299,295 
$3,374,564 
$3,451,626 
$3,530,527 
$3,611.31 1 
$3,694.027 
$3,778.721 
$3,865,444 
$3,954.246 

Pro~ertv BPP Sales . , 
Tax Tax Tax 

$0 $0 $0 

Occupancy 
Tax 

$0 
All 

$0 

Property Personal 
Tax Property Tax 

$316,877 $0 
$316,877 $0 
$31 6,877 $8,149 
$316,877 $22,633 
$316,877 $41,240 
$316,877 $41,652 
$316.877 $42,069 
$316,877 $42.490 
$316,877 $42,914 
$316,877 $43.344 
$31 6,877 $43,777 
$316.877 $44,215 
$316,877 $44,657 
$316,877 $45,104 
$316,877 $45.555 
$316,877 $46,010 
$316,877 $46,470 
$316,877 $46,935 
$316.877 $47,404 
$31 6,877 $47,878 
$31 6,877 $48.357 
$316,877 $48,841 

$1,434,913 $49,329 
$1,463.61 1 $49,822 
$1,492,883 $50,321 
$1,522,741 $50.824 
$1,553,196 $51.332 
$1,584,260 $51,845 
$1.615.945 $52.364 

Sales Occupancy 
Tax Tax 

$0 $0 
All 

$316,877 
$316.877 
$497,130 
$605,302 
$999,491 

$1,021,857 
$1,045,191 
$1,068,247 
$1,089.500 
$1,111,373 
$1.133.885 
$1,157,055 
$1,180,901 
$1,205.445 
$1,230,707 
$1,256,707 
$1,283,468 
$1 -31 1,013 
$1,339,364 
$1,368.545 
$1,398,582 
$1.429.499 
$3.451.626 
$3,530.527 
$3,611.31 1 
$3,694.027 
$3,778,721 
$3,865,444 
$3,954.246 
$4,045,179 

$53,298,097 

266



Year 
Base 

1 
2 
3 
4 
5 
6 
7 
8 
9 
10 
11 
12 
13 
14 
15 
16 
17 
18 
19 
20 
21 
22 
23 
24 
25 
26 
27 
28 

Schedule 9-County: 

Summary of Estimated Brazos County Taxes 
From Northgate TIF Zone 

for 30 Years 
perty tax receipts are shown with calendar year of appraisal and levy. Most property tax receipts lag appraisal by a year. 

Actual cash flow may be more or less than this pro forma. 
Pro forrna is not adjusted for potential refunds to City and County of any balance in the TIF fund at dissolution. 

I 

I Totals I To TIF Fund or Convention Center Fund I Retained for General Use I 
New New 

New 
Sales 
Tax 

$0 
$0 

$57.368 
$88.597 

$213,791 
$221.109 
$228,748 
$236,293 
$243,236 
$250,384 
$257,744 
$265,321 
$273,123 
$281,155 
$289.425 
$297.940 
$306,707 
$315,734 
$325,028 
$334,597 
$344,449 
$354,594 
$365,039 
$375,794 
$386,867 
$398,268 
$410,008 
$422,095 
$434,541 

All 
$335,198 
$341,902 
$636.965 
$895,983 

$1,180,785 
$1,207,006 
$1,233,922 
$1,261,125 
$1,324,276 
$1,352,590 
$1,381,535 
$1,450,639 
$1,481,679 
$1,513.410 
$1,589.025 
$1,623,050 
$1,657,832 
$1,740,571 
$1,777,865 
$1,815,989 
$1,854,963 
$1,894,806 
$1,935,538 
$1,977,181 
$2,019,755 
$2,063,281 
$2,107,783 
$2,153,283 
$2.1 99,804 

Real Real 
Property BPP 

Tax Tax 
$0 $0 
$0 $0 

$193,893 $0 
$368.613 $0 
$483,676 $0 
$498,863 $0 
$514,353 $0 
$530,153 $0 
$576,007 $0 
$593,040 $0 
$610,414 $0 
$660,630 $0 
$679,355 $0 
$698,456 $0 
$753,445 $0 
$774,028 $0 
$795.021 $0 
$855,235 $0 
$877,853 $0 
$900,923 $0 
$924.454 $0 
$948,457 $0 

$0 $0 
$0 $0 
$0 $0 
$0 $0 
$0 $0 
$0 $0 
$0 $0 

New 
Sales 
Tax 

$0 
$0 
$0 
$0 
$0 
$0 
$0 
$0 
$0 
$0 
$0 
$0 
$0 
$0 
$0 
$0 
$0 
$0 
$0 
$0 
$0 
$0 
$0 
$0 
$0 
$0 
$0 
$0 
$0 

Real Business 
Property Personal 

All Tax Property Tax 
$0 $335,198 $0 
$0 $341,902 $0 

$1 93,893 $377,080 $8,624 
$368.613 $414,820 $23.952 
$483,676 $439,674 $43,643 
$498,863 $442.955 $44,079 
$514,353 $446.301 $44.520 
$530,153 $449,714 $44,965 
$576,007 $459,618 $45,415 
$593,040 $463,297 $45,869 
$610,414 $467,050 $46,328 
$660,630 $477,897 $46,791 
$679,355 $481,942 $47,259 
$698,456 $486,068 $47.731 
$753,445 $497,946 $48,209 
$774.028 $502,392 $48,691 
$795.021 $506,926 $49,178 
$855,235 $51 9.933 $49.669 
$877,853 $524.818 $50,166 
$900,923 $529,802 $50,668 
$924,454 $534,884 $51,174 
$948,457 $540,069 $51,686 

$0 $1,518,296 $52,203 
$0 $1,548,662 $52.725 
$0 $1,579,635 $53.252 
$0 $1,611,228 $53,785 
$0 $1,643,453 $54,323 
$0 $1,676.322 $54,866 
$0 $1,709.848 $55,415 

New 
Sales 
Tax 

$0 
$0 

$57,368 
$88,597 

$213,791 
$221.109 
$228.748 
$236.293 
$243,236 
$250,384 
$257,744 
$265,321 
$273,123 
$281,155 
$289,425 
$297,940 
$306,707 
$31 5,734 
$325,028 
$334.597 
$344,449 
$354,594 
$365,039 
$375,794 
$386,867 
$398,268 
$410,008 
$422,095 
$434,541 

All 
$335,198 
$341.902 
$443.072 
$527.370 
$697.108 
$708,143 
$719,569 
$730,972 
$748,269 
$759,551 
$771,122 
$790,009 
$802.323 
$814,954 
$835.580 
$849,022 
$862,811 
$885,336 
$900,012 
$915,066 
$930,508 
$946,349 

$1,935,538 
$1,977,181 
$2,019,755 
$2,063.281 
$2,107,783 
$2.1 53.283 
$2.1 99,804 

267



Year 
Base 

1 
2 
3 
4 
5 
6 
7 
8 
9 
10 
11 
12 
13 
14 
15 
16 
17 
18 
19 
20 
2 1 
22 
23 
24 
25 
26 
27 
28 
29 

Total 

Schedule 9-ISD: 

Summary of Estimated College Station ISD Taxes 
From Northgate TIF Zone 

for 30 Years 
tax receipts are shown with calendar year of appraisal and levy. Most property tax receipts lag appraisal by a year. 

Actual cash flow may be more or less than this pro forma. 

Year 
2006 

Appraisal 
or Sales 

Property Tax Property Tax All Property Tax Property Tax All Property Tax Property Tax All 
$1,205.377 $0 $1,205,377 $0 $0 $0 $1,205,377 $0 $1,205,377 

Totals [To  TIF Fund or Convention Center ~ u n d l  Retained for General Use I 
New New New 

Business Business Business 
Real Personal Real Personal Real Personal 

268



m cv m o m  
CV cu c o m b  
C9 (4 ? k c q  
cv cv m o m  
cv m  v c u w  
CV 

269



EXHIBIT “E” 
VOLUNTARY PETITION 

270



A PETITION TO THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COLLEGE STATION 
FOR THE DESIGNATION OF REINVESTMENT ZONE NUMBER SIXTEEN, 

CITY OF COLLEGE STATION, TEXAS 
UNDER CHAPTER 311, TAX CODE 

TO THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COLLEGE STATION, TEXAS: 

Pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 3 1 1, of the Texas Tax Code as amended (the 
"Code"), the undersigned Petitioners hereby request the City Council of the City of College 
Stztion, Texas (the "City"), to establish within the City a reir~vesiment zone (the "Zone") over 
an area of land described by metes and bounds in Exhibit "A" and shown as Exhibit "B" (the 
"College Station Reinvestment Zone Number 16 Area"). Petitioners are the owners of 
property constituting at least 50 percent of the appraised value of the property in the College 
Station Reinvestment Zone Number 16 Area according to most recent certified appraisal roll 
for the County of Brazos, Texas. 

Petitioners represent to the City Council that: 

1. The area proposed to be included in the Zone is entirely within the corporate 
limits of the City. The area proposed to be included in the Zone in its present 
condition substantially impairs the city's growth. 

2. The Area substantially impairs the city's growth because of a substantial 
number of substandard or deteriorating structures. 

3. Unless the zone is created as requested by Petitioners, the development of the 
College Station Reinvestment Zone Number 16 Area will be impeded because 
the area is predominantly underdeveloped, unproductive, open, and other 
factors. 

The Petitioners would respectfully request the City Council as follows: 

1. To create the proposed Zone pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 3 1 1 of the 
Code and name it the "Reinvestment Zone Number 16, City of College 
Station, Texas." 

2. To provide that the Zone contain the area described by metes and bounds in 
"Exhibit A" and as shown hereto as "Exhibit B", both of which are 
incorporated herein for all purposes. 

3. To provide that the Zone have all the powers of a reinvestment zone created 
pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 3 1 1 of the Code. 

271



4. To appoint a Board of Directors for the Zone to exercise the authority granted 
by Chapter 3 1 1 for administration, management, and operation of the Zone 
and implementation of the Zone project plan and Zone financing plan. 

5. To provide such other action and assistance as the City Council may deem 
necessary and appropriate to assist in the development of the College Station 
Reinvestment Zone Number 16 Area. 

Respectfully submitted to the City Council of the City of College Station by and 
through its City Secretary this Z/i day of Ou/,2005, by the undersigned Petitioners. 

PETITIONERS : 

John N. & Elizabeth H. Raney 

By: 
~lizabeth H. Raney 

(1) Address of property: 1 13-1 1 5 College Main 
Boyett, Block 1, Lot 6 

App Dist Prop ID# R18486 
Total Assessed Value $121,630 

By executing this Petition, the foregoing persons represent and warrant that they are duly authorized to 
execute this Petition on behalf of the respective entity named above. 

272



A PETITION TO THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COLLEGE STATION 
FOR THE DESIGNATION OF REINVESTMENT ZONE NUMBER SIXTEEN, 

CITY OF COLLEGE STATION, TEXAS 
UNDER CHAPTER 311, TAX CODE 

TO THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COLLEGE STATION, TEXAS: 

Pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 3 11, of the Texas Tax 6- ode darnended (the 
"Code"), the undersigned Petitioners hereby request the City Council of the City of College 
Station, Texas (the "City"), to establish within the City a reinvestment zone (the "Zone") over 
an area of land described by metes and bounds in Exhibit "A" and shown as Exhibit "B" (the 
"College Station Reinvestment Zone Number 16 Area"). Petitioners are the owners of 
property constituting at least 50 percent of the appraised value of the property in the College 
Station Reinvestment Zone Number 16 Area according to most recent certified appraisal roll 
for the County of Brazos, Texas. 

Petitioners represent to the City Council that: 

1. The area proposed to be included in the Zone is entirely within the corporate 
limits of the City. The area proposed to be included in the Zone in its present 
condition substantially impairs the city's growth. 

2. The Area substantially impairs the city's growth because of a substantial 
number of substandard or deteriorating structures. 

3. Unless the zone is created as requested by Petitioners, the development of the 
College Station Reinvestment Zone Number 16 Area will be impeded because 
the area is predominantly underdeveloped, unproductive, open, and other 
factors. 

The Petitioners would respectfully request the City Council as follows: 

1. To create the proposed Zone pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 3 1 1 of the 
Code and name it the "Reinvestment Zone Number 16, City of College 
Station, Texas." 

2. To provide that the Zone contain the area described by metes and bounds in 
"Exhibit A" and as shown hereto as "Exhibit B", both of which are 
incorporated herein for all purposes. 

3. To provide that the Zone have all the powers of a reinvestment zone created 
pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 3 11 of the Code. 

273



4. To appoint a Board of Directors for the Zone to exercise the authority granted 
by Chapter 3 1 1 for administration, management, and operation of the Zone 
and implementation of the Zone project plan and Zone financing plan. 

5. To provide such other action and assistance as the City Council may deem 
necessary and appropriate to assist in the development of the College Station 
Reinvestment Zone Number 16 Area. 

Respectfully submitted to th City Council of the City of College Station by and ..; M/ through its City Secretary this 9 ay of &:2005, by the undersigned Petitioners. 

PETITIONERS : 

Charles H. Szabuniewicz 

By: 
Charles H. ~zabunie* 

(1) Address of property: 321 First St.. 
Boyett, Block 1 1, Lot 12 

App Dist Prop ID# R18595 
Total Assessed Value $52,000 

(2) Address of property: 3 10 First St. 
Boyett, Block 12, Lot 6 

App Dist Prop ID# R18611 
Total Assessed Value $55,290 

(3) Address of property: 3 12 First St. 
Boyett, Block 12, Lot 7 

App Dist Prop ID# R18612 
Total Assessed Value $54,570 

(4) Address of property: 403 Second 
Boyett, Block 20, Lot 7 

App Dist Prop ID# R18716 
Total Assessed Value $42,320 

(5) Address of property: 401 Second 
Boyett, Block 20, Lot 8 

App Dist Prop ID# R18717 
Total Assessed Value $42,190 

274



(6) Address of property: 4 16-4 18 Tauber 
Tauber, Block 2, Lot 7 

App Dist Prop ID# R44949 
Total Assessed Value $59,030 

(7) Address of property: 420-424 Tauber 
Tauber, Block 2, Lot 8 & Pt. of 9 

App Dist Prop ID# R44950 
Total Assessed Value $72,450 

(8) Address of property: 500 Cherry St. 
Tauber, Block 2, Lot 10 &Pt.of 9 

App Dist Prop ID# R4495 1 
Total Assessed Value $72,720 

PETITIONERS: 

C. H. Szabuniewicz Individual & as 
Trustee of M. A Szabuniewicz 

By: 
C. H. ~aadbdewicz 

(1) Address of property: 509 First St. 
Boyett, Block 15, Lot 16 

App Dist Prop ID# R18673 
Total Assessed Value $49,230 

(2) Address of property: 507 First St. 
Boyett, Block 15, Lot 17 

App Dist Prop ID# R18674 
Total Assessed Value $50,630 

PETITIONERS: 

Izabella M. Szqbuniewicz 

By: 
C. ~d%&dniewicz 

(1) Address of property: 308 First St. 
Boyett, Block 12, Lot 05 

App Dist Prop ID# R18610 
Total Assessed Value $56,120 

275



(2) Address of property: 3 17 First St. 
Boyett, Block 1 1, Lot 14 

App Dist Prop ID# R18597 
Total Assessed Value $54,190 

PETITIONERS: 

Michael Szabuniewicz 

By: 
C. H. Szkdniewicz 

(1) Address of property: 3 19 First St. 
Boyett, Block 1 1, Lot 13 

App Dist Prop ID# R18596 
Total Assessed Value $54,150 

PETITIONERS : 

Michael and Izabella M. Szabuniewicz 

By: 
C. &uniewicz 

(1) Address of property: 4 14 Tauber 
Tauber, Block 2, Lot 6 

App Dist Prop ID# R44948 
Total Assessed Value $60,110 

By executing this Petition, the foregoing persons represent and warrant that they are duly authorized to 
execute this Petition on behalf of the respective entity named above. 

276



Exhibi t  A 

Joe Orf, IHBC: 
Suweyors &Engineers 

21 67 Post Oak Circle 
College Station, Texas 77845 

(409) 690-3378 

Nortll Gate  ax Increment Finance District . . .  

J.E. Scott League 
College station, Texas 
August 26,2005 

All that certain tract or parcel of land lying and being situated in the J.E. Scott League in College 
Station, Brazos County, Texas, being all of the W.C. Boyett Subdivision according to plat of record 
in Volume 100, Page 440 of the Deed Records of Brazos County, Texas, all of the Tauber Addition 
according to plat of record in Volume 133, Page 182 of the Deed Records of Brazos County, Texas, 
all of the Second Revision of Oak Terrace Addition according to plat of record in Volume 1.52, Page 
237 of the Deed Records of Brazos County, Texas, all of The Ramparts addition according to plat of 
record m Volume 477, Page 145 of the Deed Records of Brazos County, Texas, all of that tract 
described in "Exhibit By', "Exhibit C" and "Exhibit D" in deed to John Cecil Chlpepper III recorded 
in Volurne 1190, Page 466 of the Official Records of Brazos County, Texas, that tract conveyed to 
Franchise Realty Interstate Cop. by deed recorded in Volume 3 18, Page 53 1 of the Deed Records of 
Brazos County, Texas, that tract conveyed to Don D. Dabbs by deed recorded in Volume 464, Page 
395 of the Deed Records of Brazos County, Texas, that tract conveyed to MB Development Company 
by deed recorded in Volume 1302, Page 4 of the Official Records of Brazos County? Texas, that h-act 
conveyed to Cornunity Savings and Loan Association by deed recorded in Volume 198, Page 541 of 
the Deed Records of Brazos County, Texas, that tract conveyed to College Staton State Bank by deed 
recorded in Volume 189, Page 403 of the Deed Records of Brazos County, Texas, and that tract 
conveyed to M.L. Cashion by deed recorded in Volume 202, Page 323 of the Deed Records of Rrazos 
County, Texas, and being more particularly described as follows: 

Beginning at the most westerly c o r n  of the said W.C. Boyett Subdivision in the northeast line of 
Wellborn ~ o a d  (FM 21 $4), which point is on the northwest city limits line ofthe City qf College 
Station, Texas, 

Thence W 43" 13' 29" E - 1373.36 feet along the nortl~west Line of the W.C. Boyetl Subdivision and 
a e  northwest city limits line of.the City of College Station, at 248.70 feet pass a 1" jlon bar in 
concrete found at the north end df First Street, to the most northerly corner of the said W.C. -Boyett 
Subdivision; 

. . 

Thence N 40" 47' 35" B 546.89 feet continuing along the northwest: city limits line of the City of 
College Station to a %" irob rod found at the most northerly corner of the said Tauber Addition in the 
southwest line of Nagle Sh-eet; 

277



Exhibit B 
Northy ate 

PI-oposed TIF Reinvestment Zone 

278



i f .  ~ x h i b i t  A 279



A PETITION TO THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COLLEGE STATION 
FOR THE DESIGNATION OF REINVESTMENT ZONE NUMBER SIXTEEN, 

CITY OF COLLEGE STATION, TEXAS 
UNDER CHAPTER 311, TAX CODE 

TO THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COLLEGE STATION, TEXAS: 

Pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 3 1 1, of the Texas Tax Code as amended (the 
"Code"), the undersigned Petitioners hereby request the City Council of the City of College 
Station, Texas (the "City"), to establish within the City a reinvestment zone (the "Zone") over 
an area of land described by metes and bounds in Exhibit "A" and shown as Exhibit "B" (the 
"College Station Reinvestment Zone Number 16 Area"). Petitioners are the owners of 
property constituting at least 50 percent of the appraised value of the property in the College 
Station Reinvestment Zone Number 16 Area according to most recent certified appraisal roll 
for the County of Brazos, Texas. 

Petitioners represent to the City Council that: 

1. The area proposed to be included in the Zone is entirely within the corporate 
limits of the City. The area proposed to be included in the Zone in its present 
condition substantially impairs the city's growth. 

2. The Area substantially impairs the city's growth because of a substantial 
number of substandard or deteriorating structures. 

3. Unless the zone is created as requested by Petitioners, the development of the 
College Station Reinvestment Zone Number 16 Area will be impeded because 
the area is predominantly underdeveloped, unproductive, open, and other 
factors. 

The Petitioners would respectfully request the City Council as follows: 

1. To create the proposed Zone pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 3 1 1 of the 
Code and name it the "Reinvestment Zone Number 16, City of College 
Station, Texas." 

2. To provide that the Zone contain the area described by metes and bounds in 
"Exhibit A" and as shown hereto as "Exhibit B", both of which are 
incorporated herein for all purposes. 

3. To provide that the Zone have all the powers of a reinvestment zone created 
pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 3 1 1 of the Code. 

280



A PETITION TO THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COLLEGE STATION 
FOR THE DESIGNATION OF REINVESTMENT ZONE NUMBER SIXTEEN, 

CITY OF COLLEGE STATION, TEXAS 
UNDER CHAPTER 31 1, TAX CODE 

TO THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COLLEGE STATION, TEXAS: 

Pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 3 1 1, of the Texas Tax Code as amended 
(the "Code"), the undersigned Petitioners hereby request the City Council of the City of 
College Station, Texas (the "City"), to establish within the City a reinvestment zone (the 
"Zone") over an area of land described by metes and bounds in Exhibit "A" and shown as 
Exhibit "B" (the "College Station Reinvestment Zone Number 16 Area"). Petitioners are 
the owners of property constituting at least 50 percent of the appraised value of the 
property in the College Station Reinvestment Zone Number 16 Area according to most 
recent certified appraisal roll for the County of Brazos, Texas. 

Petitioners represent to the City Council that: 

1. The area proposed to be included in the Zone is entirely within the 
corporate limits of the City. The area proposed to be included in the Zone 
in its present condition substantially impairs the city's growth. 

2. The Area substantially impairs the city's growth because of a substantial 
number of substandard or deteriorating structures. 

3. Unless the zone is created as requested by Petitioners, the development of 
the College Station Reinvestment Zone Number 16 Area will be impeded 
because the area is predominantly underdeveloped, unproductive, open, 
and other factors. 

The Petitioners would respectfully request the City Council as follows: 

1. To create the proposed Zone pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 3 11 of 
the Code and name it the "Reinvestment Zone Number 16, City of College 
Station, Texas." 

2. To provide that the Zone contain the area described by metes and bounds 
in "Exhibit A" and as shown hereto as "Exhibit B", both of which are 
incorporated herein for all purposes. 

3. To provide that the Zone have all the powers of a reinvestment zone 
created pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 3 1 1 of the Code. 

281



4. To appoint a Board of Directors for the Zone to exercise the authority 
granted by Chapter 3 11 for administration, management, and operation of 
the Zone and implementation of the Zone project plan and Zone financing 
plan. 

5. To provide such other action and assistance as the City Council may deem 
necessary and appropriate to assist in the development of the College 
Station Reinvestment Zone Number 16 Area. 

Respectfully submitted to the City Council of the City of College Station by and 
through its City Secretary this & day of O c t  ,2005, by the undersigned Petitioners. 

PETITIONERS: 

By: 

(1) Address of property: 301 College Main 
Boyett, Block 6,7 Lot 27 

App Dist Prop ID# R18568 
Total Assessed Value $61 1,790 

(2) Address of property: 303 College Main 
Boyett, Block 6,7 Lot 26 

App Dist Prop ID# R18567 
Total Assessed Value $193,180 

By executing this Petition, the foregoing persons represent and warrant that they are duly 
authorized to execute this Petition on behalf of the respective entity named above. 

2 

282



A PETITION TO THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COLLEGE STATION 
FOR THE DESIGNATION OF REINVESTMENT ZONE NUMBER SIXTEEN, 

CITY OF COLLEGE STATION, TEXAS 
UNDER CHAPTER 311, TAX CODE 

TO THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COLLEGE STATION, TEXAS: 

Pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 3 1 1, of the Texas Tax Code as amended (the 
"Code"), the undersigned Petitioners hereby request the City Council of the City of College 
Station, Texas (the "City"), to establish within the City a reinvestment zone (the "Zone") over 
an area of land described by metes and bounds in Exhibit "A" and shown as Exhibit "B" (the 
"College Station Reinvestment Zone Number 16 Area"). Petitioners are the owners of 
property constituting at least 50 percent of the appraised value of the property in the College 
Station Reinvestment Zone Number 16 Area according to most recent certified appraisal roll 
for the County of Brazos, Texas. 

Petitioners represent to the City Council that: 

1. The area proposed to be included in the Zone is entirely within the corporate 
limits of the City. The area proposed to be included in the Zone in its present 
condition substantially impairs the city's growth. 

2. The Area substantially impairs the city's growth because of a substantial 
number of substandard or deteriorating structures. 

3. Unless the zone is created as requested by Petitioners, the development of the 
College Station Reinvestment Zone Number 16 Area will be impeded because 
the area is predominantly underdeveloped, unproductive, open, and other 
factors. 

The Petitioners would respectfully request the City Council as follows: 

1. To create the proposed Zone pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 3 1 1 of the 
Code and name it the "Reinvestment Zone Number 16, City of College 
Station, Texas." 

2. To provide that the Zone contain the area described by metes and bounds in 
"Exhibit A" and as shown hereto as "Exhibit B", both of which are 
incorporated herein for all purposes. 

3. To provide that the Zone have all the powers of a reinvestment zone created 
pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 3 1 1 of the Code. 

283



To appoint a Board of Directors for the Zone to exercise the authority granted 
by Chapter 3 11 for administration, management, and operation of the Zone 
and implementation of the Zone project plan and Zone financing plan. 

To provide such other action and assistance as the City Council may deem 
necessary and appropriate to assist in the development of the College Station 
Reinvestment Zone Number 16 Area. 

Respectfully submitted to the City Council of the City of College Station by and 
through its City Secretary thisr'&fhay of a5 2005, by the undersigned Petitioners. 

PETITIONERS: 

Culpepper Family LP. 

By: 

1 R35680 1 701 Cherry I OAK TERRACE (CS), BLOCK 11, LOT 26 1 $73,140 1 

RAMPARTS, LOT 1 R, ACRES 3.049 
A005001 J E SCOTT (ICL), TRACT 100.4, 

ACRES 2.71, "PT OF LlNlVERSlTY SQUARE 
(AGGIELAND TO LAZER AREA)" 

A005001 J E SCOTT (ICL), TRACT 100.3, 
ACRES 2.1 1, "PT OF UNIVERSITY SQUARE 

(ROTHER'S & HAIVCOCK'S SECTION)" 
A005001 J E SCOTT (ICL), TRACT 900, "PT OF 

UlVlVERSlTY SQUARE (ATM BLDG)" 
A005001 J E SCOTT (ICL), TRACT 100.2, "PT 
OF UNIVERSITY SQUARE(ALIC1A'S BLDGY 

R38611 

R13580 

R13579 

R13591 

R13578 

1 R35675 1 704 Cherry I OAK TERRACE (CS), BLOCK 11, LOT 21 1 $62,750 1 

71 1 Church 

31 1-315 S. Colleg Ave 

303-309 S. College Ave 

817 University Dr. 

317 S' College 

R35680 

1 R35678 

1 R35679 1 703 Cherrv 1 OAK TERRACE (CS), BLOCK 11, LOT 25 1 $60.770 1 
1 R35659 1 708 lnlow Blvd I OAK TERRACE (CS). BLOCK 11. LOT 5 1 $59.680 1 

701 Cherry 

705 Cherry 

1 R35673 1 700 Cherry I OAK TERRACE (CS), BLOCK 11, LOT 19 1 $59,570 1 
1 R35676 1 706 Cherrv 1 OAK TERRACE (CS), BLOCK 11, LOT 22 1 $55,210 1 

OAK TERRACE (CS), BLOCK 11, LOT 26 

OAK TERRACE (CS), BLOCK 1 1, LOT 24 

1 ~ 3 5 6 6 1  1 507 Dogwood OAK TERRACE (CS), BLOCK 1 1, LOT 7 $54,100 

$73,140 

$63,620 

1 R35669 1 707 Cross I OAK TERRACE (CS), BLOCK 11, LOT 15 1 $51,950 1 
1 R35670 1 705 Cross I OAK TERRACE (CS), BLOCK 11, LOT 16 1 $51,910 1 
1 G5662 1 505 Dogwood OAK TERRACE (CS), BLOCK 1 1, LOT 8 $51,880 

1 R35668 1 709 Cross 1 OAK TERRACE (CS), BLOCK 11, LOT 14 1 $51,690 1 
1 R35677 1 707 Cherrv I OAK TERRACE (CS), BLOCK 11, LOT 23 1 $51,310 1 
1 R35674 1 702 Cherrv I OAK TERRACE (CS). BLOCK 11. LOT 20 1 $51.070 1 

284



PETITIONERS : 

John C. Culpepper I11 

' John C. Culpepper 111 

A005001 J E SCOTT (ICL), TRACT 100.5, 
301 S. College Ave ACRES 4.7663, "PT OF UNIVERSITY 1 $2.106.950 - 

SQUARE (GROCERY STORE SECTION)" I 
A005001 .I E SCOTT (ICL). TRACT 700, "PT I 

107 S. College Ave OF UNIVERSITY SQUARE (SCHLOTZSKY 1 $208,130 
BLDG)" 

A005001 J E SCOTT (ICL), TRACT 100, "PT 1 

By executing this Petition, the foregoing persons represent and warrant that they are duly authorized to 
execute this Petition on behalf of the respective entity named above. 

725 University Dr. OF UNIVERSITY SQUARE (SMALL STRIP 
BLDG)" 

A005001 J E SCOTT (ICL), TRACT 700.1, 
103 S. College Ave "PT OF LlNlVERSlTY SQUARE (IHOP 

$1 91,620 

$1 59,690 

285



-, 

U c t  26 Ub U4:b4p lhomas Kirkland 

.7 

A PETITION TO THE CITY COUNCIL OF THlE CITY OF COLLEGE STATION 
FOR THE DESIGNATION OF RETNVESTMENT ZONE NUMBER SIXTEEN, 

CITY OF COLLEGE STATION, TEXAS 
UNDER CHAPTER 311, TAX CODE 

TO THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COLLEGE STATION, TEXAS: 

Pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 3 1 1, of the Texas Tax Code as amended (the 
"Code"), the undersigned Petitioners hereby request the City Council of the City of College 
Station, Texas (the "City"), to establish within the City a reinvestment zone (the "Zone") over 
an area of land described by metes and bounds in Exhibit "A" and shown as Exhibit "B" (the 
"College Station Reinvestment Zone Number 16 Area"). Petitioners are the odners of 
property constituting at least 50 percent of the appraised value of the property in the College 
Station Reinvestment Zone Number 16 Area according to most recent certified appraisal roll 
for the County of Brazos, Texas. 

Petitioners represent to the City Com~il  that: 

1. The area proposed to be included in the Zone is entirely within the corporate 
limits of the City. The area proposed to be included in the Zone in its present 
condition substautially impairs the city's growth. 

2. The Area substantially impaim the city's growth because of a substatid 
number of substandard or deteriorating structures. 

3. Unless the zone is created as requested by Petitioners, the development of the 
College Station Reinvestment Zone Number 16 Area will be irnpcded because 
the area is predominantly underdeveloped, unproductive, open, and other 
factors. 

The Petitioners would respectfully request the City Council as follows: 

1. To create the proposed Zone pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 3 1 1 of the 
Code and name it the "Reinvestment Zone Number 16, City of College 
Station, Texas." 

2. To provide that the Zone contain the area described by metes aod bounds in 
"Exhibit A" and as shown hereto as "Exbibit B", both of which are 
incorporated herein for all purposes. 

3. To provide that the Zone have all the powers of a reinvestment zone created 
pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 3 1 1 of the Code. 

286



4. To appoint a Board of Directors for the Zone to exercise the authority granted 
by Chapter 3 1 1 for administration, management, and operation of the Zone 
and implementation of the Zone project plan and Zone financing plan. 

5. To provide such other action and assistance as the City Council may deem 
necessary and appropriate to assist in the development of the College Station 
Reinvestment Zone Number 16 Area. 

Respectfully submitted to the City Co cil of the City of College Station by and 
through its City Secretary this eclay o f g ,  2005, by the undersigned Petitioners. 

PETITIONERS: 

30 1 Church Avenue, LP 

(1) Address of property: 30 1 Church Ave. 
Boyett, Block 6,7 Lot 1 Replat 

App Dist Prop LD# R18555 
Total Assessed Value $15,929,160 

PETITIONERS: 

Vigilant Enterprises, LLC 

Thomas irkland r 
(2) Address of property: 3 15 Boyett 

Boyett, Block 12, Lot 12 thru 15 
App Dist Prop ID# R18616 
Total Assesscd Value $220,760 

By executing this Petition, the foregoing persons represent and warrant that they are duly authorized to 
execute this Petition on behalf of the respective entity named above. 

287



Uct  zti U 3  u4:34p lhomas Klrkland 

288



A PETITION TO THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COLLEGE STATION 
FOR THE DESIGNATION OF REINVESTMENT ZONE NUMBER SIXTEEN, 

CITY OF COLLEGE STATION, TEXAS 
UNDER CHAPTER 311, TAX CODE 

TO THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COLLEGE STATION, TEXAS: 

Pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 3 1 1, of the Texas Tax Code as amended 
(the "Code"), the undersigned Petitioners hereby request the City Council of the City of 
College Station, Texas (the "City"), to establish within the City a reinvestment zone (the 
"Zone") over an area of land described by metes and bounds in Exhibit "A" and shown as 
Exhbit "B" (the "College Station Reinvestment Zone Number 16 Area"). Petitioners are 
the owners of property constituting at least 50 percent of the appraised value of the 
property in the College Station Reinvestment Zone Number 16 Area according to most 
recent certified appraisal roll for the County of Brazos, Texas. 

Petitioners represent to the City Council that: 

1. The area proposed to be included in the Zone is entirely within the 
corporate limits of the City. The area proposed to be included in the Zone 
in its present condition substantially impairs the city's growth. 

2. The Area substantially impairs the city's growth because of a substantial 
number of substandard or deteriorating structures. 

3. Unless the zone is created as requested by Petitioners, the development of 
the College Station Reinvestment Zone Number 16 Area will be impeded 
because the area is predominantly underdeveloped, unproductive, open, 
and other factors. 

The Petitioners would respectfully request the City Council as follows: 

1. To create the proposed Zone pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 3 11 of 
the Code and name it the "Reinvestment Zone Number 16, City of College 
Station, Texas." 

2. To provide that the Zone contain the area described by metes and bounds 
in "Exhibit A" and as shown hereto as "Exhibit B", both of which are 
incorporated herein for all purposes. 

3. To provide that the Zone have all the powers of a reinvestment zone 
created pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 3 11 of the Code. 

289



4. To appoint a Board of Directors for the Zone to exercise the authority 
granted by Chapter 3 11 for administration, management, and operation of 
the Zone and implementation of the Zone project plan and Zone financing 
plan. 

5.  To provide such other action and assistance as the City Council may deem 
necessary and appropriate to assist in the development of the College 
Station Reinvestment Zone Number 16 Area. 

Respectfully submitted to the City of the City of College Station by and 
through its City Secretary this a day by the undersigned Petitioners. 

PETITIONERS : 

AGGIE INNS LTD 

By: 

(1) Address of property: 501 Nagle Street, Ste. #1 
Normandy Square Condos, 
Bldg A, Unit 1 

App Dist Prop ID# R33923 

(2) Address of property: 501 Nagle Street, Ste. #2 
Normandy Square Condos, 
Bldg A, Unit 2 

App Dist Prop ID# R33 924 

(3) Address of property: n/a 
Normandy Square Condos, 
Bldg A, Unit 3 

App Dist Prop ID# R33925 

(4)Address of property: n/a 
Normandy Square Condos, 
Bldg A, Unit 4 

App Dist Prop ID# R33926 

290



(5) Address of property: d a  
Normandy Square Condos, 
Bldg B, Unit 5 

App Dist Prop ID# R33927 

(6) Address of property: d a  
Normandy Square Condos, 
Bldg B, Unit 6 

App Dist Prop ID# R33928 

(7) Address of property: d a  
Normandy Square Condos, 
Bldg B, Unit 7 

App Dist Prop ID# R33929 

(8) Address of property: 503 Nagle Street, Ste. #3 
Normandy Square Condos, 
Bldg B, Unit 8 

App Dist Prop ID# R33930 

(9) Address of property: d a  
Normandy Square Condos, 
Bldg C, Unit 9 

App Dist Prop ID# R3393 1 

(10) Address of property: d a  
Normandy Square Condos, 
Bldg C, Unit 10 

App Dist Prop ID# R33932 

(1 1) Address of property: d a  
Normandy Square Condos, 
Bldg C, Unit 11 

App Dist Prop ID# R33933 

(12) Address of property: d a  
Normandy Square Condos, 
Bldg C, Unit 12 

App Dist Prop ID# R33934 

291



(1 3) Address of property: n/a 
Normandy Square Condos, 
Bldg D, Unit 13 

App Dist Prop ID# R33935 

(14) Address of property: n/a 
Normandy Square Condos, 
Bldg D, Unit 14 

App Dist Prop ID# R33936 

(1 5) Address of property: n/a 
Normandy Square Condos, 
Bldg D, Unit 15 

App Dist Prop ID# R33937 

(16) Address of property: n/a 
Normandy Square Condos, 
Bldg D, Unit 16 

App Dist Prop ID# R33938 

(1 7) Address of property: n/a 
Normandy Square Condos, 
Bldg E, Unit 18 

App Dist Prop ID# R33940 

(1 8) Address of property: n/a 
Normandy Square Condos, 
Bldg E, Unit 19 

App Dist Prop ID# R3 3 94.1 

(19) Address of property: n/a 
Normandy Square Condos, 
Bldg E, Unit 20 

App Dist Prop ID# R3 3 942 

(20) Address of property: n/a 
Normandy Square Condos, 
Bldg F, Unit 21 

App Dist Prop ID# R33943 

292



(2 1) Address of property: n/a 
Normandy Square Condos, 
Bldg F, Unit 22 

App Dist Prop ID# R33944 

(22) Address of property: n/a 
Normandy Square Condos, 
Bldg F, Unit 23 

App Dist Prop ID# R33945 

(23) Address of property: n/a 
Normandy Square Condos, 
Bldg F, Unit 24 

App Dist Prop ID# R33946 

(24) Address of property: n/a 
Normandy Square Condos, 
Bldg G, Unit 25 

App Dist Prop ID# R33947 

(25) Address of property: nla 
Normandy Square Condos, 
Bldg G, Unit 26 

App Dist Prop ID# R33948 

(26) Address of property: n/a 
Normandy Square Condos, 
Bldg G, Unit 27 

App Dist Prop ID# R33949 

(27) Address of property: 503 Cherry Street 
Tauber, Block C & D, Acres 
2.493 

App Dist Prop ID# R44957 

293



AGGIE INNS I1 LTD 

By: 
Aggie Inns I1 LTD 

C / r i m  MoCullough 

(1) Address of property: 3 1 1 Stasney Street 
Tauber, Block 1, Lot 4 Thru 
9, Pt. of Casa Del Sol Apts. 
(Ph#2) 

App Dist Prop ID# R44945 

(2) Address of property: 401 Stasney Street 
Tauber, Block 2, Lot 1 Thru 
5 & 16 Thru 20, Pt. of Casa 
Del Sol Apts. (Ph#l) 

App Dist Prop ID# R44947 

By executing this Petition, the foregoing persons represent and warrant that they are duly 
authorized to execute this Petition on behalf of the respective entity named above. 

294



A PETITION TO THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COLLEGE STATION 
FOR THE DESIGNATION OF REINVESTMENT ZONE NUMBER SIXTEEN, 

CITY OF COLLEGE STATION, TEXAS 
UNDER CHAPTER 31 1, TAX CODE 

TO THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COLLEGE STATION, TEXAS: 

Pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 3 1 1, of the Texas Tax Code as amended (the 
"Code"), the undersigned Petitioners hereby request the City Council of the City of College 
Station, Texas (the "City"), to establish within the City a reinvestment zone (the "Zone") over 
an area of land described by metes and bounds in Exhibit "A" and shown as Exhibit "B" (the 
"College Station Reinvestment Zone Number 16 Area"). Petitioners are the owners of 
property constituting at least 50 percent of the appraised value of the property in thqcollege 
Station Reinvestment Zone Number 16 Area according to most recent certified app&isal roll 
for the County of Brazos, Texas. 

. . 

Petitioners represent to the City Council that: .- ... 

1. The area proposed to be included in the Zone is entirely within the c'o.rporate 
limits of the City. The area proposed to be included in the Zone in 'lts present 
condition substantially impairs the city's growth. 

2. The Area substantially impairs the city's growth because of a substantial 
number of substandard or deteriorating structures. 

3. Unless the zone is created as requested by Petitioners, the development of the 
College Station Reinvestment Zone Number 16 Area will be impeded because 
the area is predominantly underdeveloped, unproductive, open, and other 
factors. 

The Petitioners would respectfully request the City Council as follows: 

1. To create the proposed Zone pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 3 1 1 of the 
Code and name it the "Reinvestment Zon,e N.umber 16, City of College 
Station, Texas." 

2. To provide that the Zone contain the area described by metes and bounds in 
"Exhibit A" and as shown hereto as "Exhibit B", both of which are 
incorporated herein for all purposes. 

3. To provide that the Zone have all the powers of a reinvestment zone created 
pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 3 1 1 of the Code. 

295



NOV-03-2005 THU 11 : 40 AM 78383 FAX NO, 7857763805 

A P E ~ ~ O N  TO THE CITY COUNCIL, OB THJl CITY OF COLLEGE, STATTON 
FOR THE DESIGNATION OF REN'ESTMENT ZONE NUMBER SIXTEEN, 

CITY QF CQLLEGIE STATION, TEXAS 
UNDER CMAPTlCR 311, TAX CODE 

TO TEE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COLLEGJ3 STATION, TEXAS: 

, . <',, < Pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 3 1 1, of the Texas Tax Code as amended : ::. .',,. 

(the llCod.e"), the undersigned Petitioners hereby request the City Council of the City of . .,.,, A?j: ! . . - . . . ,  :$$!:': 
College Station, Texas (the "City"), to establish w i t h  the City a reinvestment zone (#=.':! .,,. I!.?:",.:. ,:, ;.,:,.,, . 

tlZonell) over an area of land described by metes and bounds in Exhibit r r ~ i l  and shown sis' . , 

Exhibit "B" (the "College Station Reinvesbient Zone Number 16 Area"). Petitioners arb . :.:'.:". . .  " 
. . .  

the owners of property constituting at least !iO percent of the appraised value of the :, ::, : 
property in the College Station Reinvestment Zone Number 16 Area according to most ':i ''. : ':. :, 

., .,.I . . 

recent certified appraisal roll for the County of Brazos, Texas. .. . . . . . . .  . , .. . 

: .  

Petitioners represent to the City Council . - that: 

1. The area proposed to be iachlded in the Zone is entirely within the 
corporate limits of the City. 'The area proposed to be included in the Zone . 

in its present condition subst:mtially impairs the city's growth. 

2. The Area substantially impairs tbe city's growth because of:a substantial 
number of substandard or deteriorating structures. 

3, Unless the zone is created as requested by Petitioners, the development of 
the College Station Reinvestment Zone Number 16 Area will be impeded ." 

becau.se the area is predominimtly underdeveloped, unproductive, open, . . 

and other factors. 

The Petitioners would respectfidly request the City Council as follows: 

1. To create the proposed Zone pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 3 11 of 
the Code and name it the "Re.investment Zone Number 16, City of College 
Station, Texas." 

2. To provide that the Zone contain the m a  described by metes and bounds 
in "Exhibit A" and as shown hereto as "Exhibit B", both of which are 
incorporated herein for all purposes. 

3. To provide that the Zone have all the powers of a reinvestment zone 
created pursuant to the provitiions of Chapter 3 11 of the Code, 

296



NOV-03-2005 THU 1 1 : 4 1 AM 78383 
' _  

FAX NO, 7857763805 Pa 04 

4. To appoint a Board of Directtxs for the Zone to exercise the authority 
granted by Chapter 3 1 1 for ulministration, management, and operation of 
the Zone and implementation of the Zone project plan and Zone financing 
plan. 

5. To provide such other action and assistance as the City Council may deem 
necessary and appropriate to assist in the development of the College 
Station Reinvestment Zone Slumber 16 Area. 

. . . . .  . 
.:.: . , 1 

Respectfully submitted to the City of the City of College S,tation by d , , f i , j . :  .I, 

bough its City Secretary this & day .- 005, by the undersigned P~titionersl~~~~~$;?:~!~:[: . .+.,. , , : 
., . . 

AGGIE INNS1 LTD . . . .  . 

* .  

gie Inns LTD 

(1) Address of property: 501 Nagle Street, Ste. #1 
Normandy Square Condos, 
Bldg A, Unit 1 

App Dist Pro]? ID# R33923 

(2) Address of property: 501 Nagle Street, Ste. #2 
' . Normandy Square Condos, 

Bldg A, Unit 2 
App Dist Pro:p ID# R33924 

(3) Address of property: nla 
Normandy Square Condos, . 
Bldg A, Unit 3 

App DisE Prap ID# , R33925 

(4)Address of property: n/a 
Normandy Square Condos, 
Bldg A, Unit 4 

App Dist Prc~p ID# R33926 

297



NOV-03-2005 THU 11 : 41 AM 78383 FAX NO, 7857763805 

(5) Address uf property: n/a 
Normandy Square Condos, 
Bldg B, Unit S 

App Dist Prqp ID# R33927 

(6) Address o,f property: d a  
Normandy Square Condos, 
Bldg B, Unit 6 ..j. ,;.,. 

, , ,  . 
App Dist Prop EM R33928 ,. m v ; .  .. : . ,  , .  i . ; 

, !' .. 

. .. , . I  ' 

Normandy square Condos, .. ..: ', '., . ,:. . 
. . ,. 

Bldg B, Unit 7 . . a  . .. . . .  . ,. , . .  ,. . . "., . ::>. . ,.; 

App Dist Pm:p ID# ' R33929 ,; . , .  . 
,... .:_ ..:. 

, 
' . ... ' , . .  . , .  . . . .  . . : . . , . .  

(8) Address of property: 503 Nagle Street, Ste. #3 . ".' ' . '  " ' : ' 

Normandy Square Condos, 
Bldg B, Unit 8 

App Dist Ro:p R33930 

(9) Address of property: - n/a 
Normandy Square Condos, 
Bldg C, Unit 9 

App Dist Prop ID# R.33931 

(10) Address of property: d a  . ' .  , ' 
. . 

Normandy Square Condos, 
Bldg C, Unit 10 

App Disl Prop ID# R33932 

(1 1) Address of property: d a  
Normandy Square Condos, 
Bldg C, Unit 11 

App Dist Prop 113# R33933 

(12) Address of property: n/a ' 

Nonnandy Square Condos, , 

Bldg C, Unit 12 
App Dist Pra,p ID# R33934 

298



NOV-03-2005 THU 11 : 42 AM 78383 FAX NO, 7857763805 

(13) Address I~j!~ro~erty: n/a 
Normandy Square Condos, 
Bldg D, Unit 13 

App Dist Prop ID# R33935 

(14) Address of property: da 
Normandy Square Condos, 
Bldg D, Unit 14 . . 

App Dist Prop ID# R33936 . ' . :  .. . . , . . ,  . . + . . . . .  . 
. . . .... . , . .  . .  , , ' !  
' . .,: .I '.. 

.. . . . ,::\ .' , , 
(1 5) Address I P ~  property: d a  . . 

~ormandy Sqwe condos, , . 

Bldg D, Unit 15 , . . . . . . .  
: ;. . .  . ,  : . 

App Dist Prop II)# R33937 . . 

(1 6) Address ~af property: nla 
Normandy Sqilare Condos, 
Bldg D, Unit 16 

App Dist Prop ID# R33938 

(17) Address [of  property: n/a 
Nonnandy S q w e  Condos, 
Bldg E, Unit 18. 

App Disl hall ID# R 3  3 940 

(1 8) Address of property: ' n/i ;. . 

Normandy Square Condos, 
Bldg E, Unit 19 
R33941 App Dist Prop ID# 

(1 9) Address of property: n/a 
Normandy Square Condos, 
Bldg E, Unit 20 

App Dist Pmp ID# R33942 

(20) Address of property: nla 
Normandy Square Condos, 
Bldg P, Unit 21 

App Dist Psolp ID#$ W3943 

299



NOV-03-2005 THU 11 : 42 AM 78383 
L - '  

FAX NO, 7857763805 

(2 1) Address of ppaty: n/a 
Normandy Sqwe Condos, 
Bldg F, Unit 22 

App Dist Prql ID# R33944 

(22) Address of property: d a  
Normandy Square Condos, 

. . Bldg I?, Unit 23 . . .  
, .  . App Dist Prql ID# . ' R33 945 

, , , , 
, ' , ,, , , , ,. :. ;,.:'.:..:":. < .  , ,, 

. . . , 
. . 

: :. : : . . .  . . , .  ' . : t , ';.: . . .  , . . .  . , , ,  . 
' .  , . , :., . ' .  .,. . .: . . 

(23) Address of pioierty: nla . . 
. . 

. .  . 
Normandy Square Condos, ' . . . . 

, ,. . 
, . 

. . .  Bldg F, Unit 24 .. . . . . . . 
. ,  . . . . .  . . . 

App Dik Prop ID# ' R33946 

(24) Address of property: da  
Nommdy Square Condos, 
Bldg G, Unit 25 

App Disl Prop ID.# R33947 

(25) Address of property: d a  
Normandy Square Condos, 
Bldg G, Unit 26 

App Dist Prop ID# R33948 

(26) Address of  property: nla 
Normandy Square Condos, 
Bldg G, Unit 27 

App Dist Prop ID# R33949 

(27) Address of property: 503 Cherry Street 
Tauber, Block C & D, Acres 
2,493 

App Dist hop ID# R44957 

300



NOV-03-2005 THU 11  : 43 AM 78383 
. - 3  

I * 

FAX NO, 7857763805 

AGGE INNS II LTD 

By? 
Aggie Inns IT LTD 
Jim N.[cCullough 

(I) Address of property: 3 11 Stasney Street 
Tauber, Block I ,  Lot 4 'Shru 
9, Pt: of Casa Del Sol Apfs, 
(Ph#2) I 

R44945 App Dist Prolp ID# 

, 
I .  

(2) Address o f  property: 401 Stamey Street 
T ~ U ~ U ,  B I O G ~  2,  LO^ i ~ h r u  
5 & 16 Thru 20, Pt, of Casa , 

Del Sol 'Apts. iPh#l) 
App Dist Projp ID# R44947 

By executing this Petitian, the fon:goidg persons represcpt.and wamnt that they are duly 
autbobed to execute this Petition on behalf of the respective e&ty named above, 

301



A PETITION TO THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COLLEGE STATION 
FOR THE DESIGNATION OF REINVESTMENT ZONE NUMBER SIXTEEN, 

CITY OF COLLEGE STATION, TEXAS 
UNDER CHAPTER 311, TAX CODE 

TO THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COLLEGE STATION, TEXAS: 

Pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 3 1 1, of the Texas Tax Code as amended 
(the "Code"), the undersigned Petitioners hereby request the City Council of the City of 
College Station, Texas (the "City"), to establish within the City a reinvestment zone (the 
"Zone") over an area of land described by metes and bounds in Exhibit "A" and shown as 
Exhibit "B" (the "College Station Reinvestment Zone Number 16 Area"). Petitioners are 
the owners of property constituting at least 50 percent of the appraised value of the 
property in the College Station Reinvestment Zone 1Vumber 16 Area according to most 
recent certified appraisal roll for the County of Brazos, Texas. 

Petitioners represent to the City Council that: 

1. The area proposed to be included in the Zone is entirely within the 
corporate limits of the City. The area proposed to be included in the Zone 
in its present condition substantially impairs the city's growth. 

2. The Area substantially impairs the city's growth because of a substantial 
number of substandard or deteriorating structures. 

3. Unless the zone is created as requested by Petitioners, the development of 
the College Station Reinvestment Zone Number 16 Area will be impeded 
because the area is predominantly underdeveloped, unproductive, open, 
and other factors. 

The Petitioners would respectfully request the City Council as follows: 

1. To create the proposed Zone pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 3 1 1 of 
the Code and name it the "Reinvestment Zone Number 16, City of College 
Station, Texas." 

2. To provide that the Zone contain the area described by metes and bounds 
in "Exhibit A" and as shown hereto as "Exhibit B", both of which are 
incorporated herein for all purposes. 

3. To provide that the Zone have all the powers of a reinvestment zone 
created pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 3 11 of the Code. 

302



4. To appoint a Board of Directors for the Zone to exercise the authority 
granted by Chapter 3 1 1 for administration, management, and operation of 
the Zone and implementation of the Zone project plan and Zone financing 
plan. 

5. To provide such other action and assistance as the City Council may deem 
necessary and appropriate to assist in the development of the College 
Station Reinvestment Zone Number 16 Area. 

Respectfully submitted to the City Council of the City of College Station by and 
through its City Secretary this dOdC day of 8 < 2005, by the undersigned Petitioners. 

PETITIONERS: 

CROSS ST& I, LP 

< 

By: , cross ~treeth, LP 
Randy ~ l e i n  

Address of property: 405 Cross Street. 
Boyett, Block 4, Lot 1-3 & 
14-16 

App Dist Prop ID# R18526 

By: -w 
Radakor, @C 
Randy Klein 

Address of property: 405 College Main 
Boyett, Block 5, Lot 8 

App Dist Prop ID# R18547 

By executing this Petition, the foregoing persons represent and warrant that they are duly 
authorized to execute this Petition on behalf of the respective entity named above. 

303



A PETITION TO THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COLLEGE STATION 
FOR THE DESIGNATION OF REINVESTMENT ZONE NUMBER SIXTEEN, 

CITY OF COLLEGE STATION, TEXAS 
UNDER CHAPTER 311, TAX CODE 

TO THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COLLEGE STATION, TEXAS: 

Pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 3 1 1, of the Texas Tax Code as amended 
(the "Code"), the undersigned Petitioners hereby request the City Council of the City of 
College Station, Texas (the "City"), to establish within the City a reinvestment zone (the 
"Zone") over an area of land described by metes and bounds in Exhibit "A" and shown as 
Exhibit "B" (the "College Station Reinvestment Zone Number 16 Area"). Petitioners are 
the owners of property constituting at least 50 percent of the appraised value of the 
property in the College Station Reinvestment Zone Number 16 Area according to most 
recent certified appraisal roll for the County of Brazos, Texas. 

Petitioners represent to the City Council that: 

1. The area proposed to be included in the Zone is entirely within the 
corporate limits of the City. The area proposed to be included in the Zone 
in its present condition substantially impairs the city's growth. 

2. The Area substantially impairs the city's growth because of a substantial 
number of substandard or deteriorating structures. 

3. Unless the zone is created as requested by Petitioners, the development of 
the College Station Reinvestment Zone Number 16 Area will be impeded 
because the area is predominantly underdeveloped, unproductive, open, 
and other factors. 

The Petitioners would respectfully request the City Council as follows: 

1. To create the proposed Zone pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 3 11 of 
the Code and name it the "Reinvestment Zone Number 16, City of College 
Station, Texas.'' 

2. To provide that the Zone contain the area described by metes and bounds 
in "Exhibit A" and as shown hereto as "Exhibit B", both of which are 
incorporated herein for all purposes. 

3. To provide that the Zone have all the powers of a reinvestment zone 
created pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 3 11 of the Code. 

304



4. To appoint a Board of Directors for the Zone to exercise the authority 
granted by Chapter 3 11 for administration, management, and operation of 
the Zone and implementation of the Zone project plan and Zone financing 
plan. 

5. To provide such other action and assistance as the City Council may deem 
necessary and appropriate to assist in the development of the College 
Station Reinvestment Zone Number 1 6 Area. 

Respectfully submitted tq the City Council of the City of College Station by and 
through its City Secretary this /Zqy o8&,2005, by the undersigned Petitioners. 

PETITIONER: 

(1) Address of property: 107-1 13 Boyett St. 
Boyett, Block 8, Lot 9,10,11 

App Dist Prop ID# R18577 

(2) Address of property: Behind Campus Theater 
Boyett, Block 8, Lot 12,13,14 

App Dist Prop ID# R18578 

(3) Address of property: 401 First St. 
Boyett, Block 13, Lot 13, 14 
(East Half of Both) 

App Dist Prop ID# R18636 

(4) Address of property: 105 Louise Ave. 
Boyett, Block 13, Lot 13, 14. 
(West Half of Both) 

App Dist Prop ID# R18637 

(5) Address of property: 404 First St. 
Boyett, Block 14, Lot 3 

305



App Dist Prop ID# R18640 
(6) Address of property: 406 First St. 

Boyett, Block 14, Lot 4 
App Dist Prop ID# R1864 1 

(7) Address of property: 408 First St. 
Boyett, Block 14, Lot 5 

App Dist Prop ID# R18642 

(8) Address of property: 41 0 First St. 
Boyett, Block 14, Lot 6 

App Dist Prop ID# R18643 

(9) Address of property: 400 Nagle St. Unit #I13 
North Ramparts Condos, 
Bldg. A, Unit 11 3 

App Dist Prop ID# R38627 

By executing this Petition, the foregoing persons represent and warrant that they are duly 
authorized to execute this Petition on behalf of the respective entity named above. 

306



A PETITION TO THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COLLEGE STATION 
FOR THE DESIGNATION OF REINVESTMENT ZONE NUMBER SIXTEEN, 

CITY OF COLLEGE STATION, TEXAS 
UNDER CHAPTER 31 1, TAX CODE 

TO THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COLLEGE STATION, TEXAS: 

Pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 3 1 1, of the Texas Tax Code as amended 
(the "Code"), the undersigned Petitioners hereby request the City Council of the City of 
College Station, Texas (the "City"), to establish within the City a reinvestment zone (the 
"Zone") over an area of land described by metes and bounds in Exhibit "A" and shown as 
Exhibit "B" (the "College Station Reinvestment Zone Number 16 Area"). Petitioners are 
the owners of property constituting at least 50 percent of the appraised value of the 
property in the College Station Reinvestment Zone Number 16 Area according to most 
recent certified appraisal roll for the County of Brazos, Texas. 

Petitioners represent to the City Council that: 

1. The area proposed to be included in the Zone is entirely within the 
corporate limits of the City. The area proposed to be included in the Zone 
in its present condition substantially impairs the city's growth. 

2. The Area substantially impairs the city's growth because of a substantial 
number of substandard or deteriorating structures. 

3. Unless the zone is created as requested by Petitioners, the development of 
the College Station Reinvestment Zone Number 16 Area will be impeded 
because the area is predominantly underdeveloped, unproductive, open, 
and other factors. 

The Petitioners would respectfully request the City Council as follows: 

1. To create the proposed Zone pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 3 11 of 
the Code and name it the "Reinvestment Zone Number 16, City of College 
Station, Texas. " 

2. To provide that the Zone contain the area described by metes and bounds 
in "Exhibit A" and as shown hereto as "Exhibit B", both of which are 
incorporated herein for all purposes. 

3. To provide that the Zone have all the powers of a reinvestment zone 
created pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 3 1 1 of the Code. 

307



4. To appoint a Board of Directors for the Zone to exercise the authority 
granted by Chapter 3 11 for administration, management, and operation of 
the Zone and implementation of the Zone project plan and Zone financing 
plan. 

5. To provide such other action and assistance as the City Council may deem 
necessary and appropriate to assist in the development of the College 
Station Reinvestment Zone Number 16 Area. 

Respectfully submitted to 
through its City Secretary this 

PETITIONERS : 

BILL J. AND FRANCES COOLEY 

(1) Address of property: 409 Tauber St. I 
Boyett, Block 4, Lot 12 & 13 

App Dist Prop ID# R18535 

(2) Address of property: 304 Tauber St. 
Tauber, Block 1, Lot 3 

App Dist Prop ID# R44944 

(3)Address of property: 509 University Dr. 
Tauber, Block 5, Lot 2 

App Dist Prop ID# R44967 

By executing this Petition, the foregoing persons represent and warrant that they are duly 
authorized to execute this Petition on behalf of the respective entity named above. 

308



A PETITION TO THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COLLEGE STATION 
FOR THE DESIGNATION OF REINVESTMENT ZONE NUMBER SIXTEEN, 

CITY OF COLLEGE STATION, TEXAS 
UNDER CHAPTER 31 1, TAX CODE 

TO THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COLLEGE STATION, TEXAS: 

Pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 3 1 1, of the Texas Tax Code as amended (the 
"Code"), the undersigned Petitioners hereby request the City Council of the City of College 
Station, Texas (the "City"), to establish within the City a reinvestment zone (the "Zone") over 
an area of land described by metes and bounds in Exhibit "A" and shown as Exhibit "B" (the 
"College Station Reinvestment Zone Number 16 Area"). Petitioners are the owners of 
property constituting at least 50 percent of the appraised value of the property in the College 
Station Reinvestment Zone IVumber 16 Area according to most recent certified appraisal roll 
for the County of Brazos, Texas. 

Petitioners represent to the City Council that: 

1. The area proposed to be included in the Zone is entirely within the corporate 
limits of the City. The area proposed to be included in the Zone in its present 
condition substantially impairs the city's growth. 

2. The Area substantially impairs the city's growth because of a substantial 
number of substandard or deteriorating structures. 

3. Unless the zone is created as requested by Petitioners, the development of the 
College Station Reinvestment Zone Number 16 Area will be impeded because 
the area is predominantly upderdeveloped, unproductive, open, and other 
factors. 

The Petitioners would respectfully request the City Council as follows: 

1. To create the proposed Zone pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 3 11 of the 
Code and name it the "Reinvestment Zone Number 16, City of College 
Station, Texas." 

2. To provide that the Zone contain the area described by metes and bounds in 
"Exhibit A" and as shown hereto as "Exhibit B", both of which are 
incorporated herein for all purposes. 

3. To provide that the Zone have all the powers of a reinvestment zone created 
pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 3 11 of the Code. 

309



4. To appoint a Board of Directors for the Zone to exercise the authority granted 
by Chapter 3 11 for administration, management, and operation of the Zone 
and implementation of the Zone project plan and Zone financing plan. 

5. To provide such other action and assistance as the City Council may deem 
necessary and appropriate to assist in the development of the College Station 
Reinvestment Zone Number 1 6 Area. 

Respectfully submitted to the City Co cil of the City of College Station by and 
through its City Secretary this @day of 2 , 2 0 0 5 ,  by the undersigned Petitioners. 

PETITIONERS: 

30 1 Church Avenue, LP 

(1) Address of property: 301 Church Ave. 
Boyett, Block 6,7 Lot 1 Replat 

App Dist Prop ID# R18555 
Total Assessed Value $15,929,160 

PETITIONERS : 

Vigilant Enterprises, LLC 

(2) Address of property: 3 15 Boyett 
Boyett, Block 12, Lot 12 thru 1 5 

App Dist Prop ID# R18616 
Total Assessed Value $220,760 

By executing this Petition, the foregoing persons represent and warrant that they are duly authorized to 
execute this Petition on behalf of the respective entity named above. 

310



311



Application for City 
BoardslCommissionsl 
Committees for Year 2005-2006 

P M S E  TYPE OR PRINT CLEARLY 

Home Address 110 1 2 ~  Man Ct. 
Telephone: 690 71 17 & 412 51 71 
Fax: 680 7118 
E-mail: benchmarkhomesbcs@hotmail.com 
College Station Resident for-30-years 

(Must be a resident of the City to serve) 

Subdivision-Pebble Creek 
Voter Registration # 

Business Owner? Yes 
Business Name: Benchmark Homes 
Occupation: Home Builder1 Developer 
(If retired, please indicate former occupation) 

Address: 11 10 I 2th Man Court 
Telephone: 690 71 17 
Fax: 690 71 18: 
E-Mail: benchmarkhomesbcs@hotmail.com 
Education(optional)_College Graduate 
Stephen F. Austin in Nacogdoches 

POSITION SOUGHT: (Please indicate choice with 7,2 or 3 - where 7 is most preferable and 3 being 
least preferable.) CHOOSE NO MORE THAN 3 

Brazos County Ap Committee 
Cemetery Committee Parks and Recreation Board 
Construction Board of Planning and Zoning Commission 
Adjustments & Appeals 

El 
Research Valley Partnership 

Design Review Board 
Fagade Improvement Board 

Wolf Pen Creek TIF Board . 

Joint Relief Funding Review Zoning Board of Adjustments 

Historic Preservation Committee W Convention Center TlF Board 

Parks Board Committees 

Conference Center Advisory Committee 
Lincoln Center Advisory Committee 
Senior Advisory Committee 

If you currently serve on any other boards/commissions/committees, please list them here: 

Please list any experience or interests that qualifies you to serve in the positions indicated: 

Signature of Applic L 
Mail completed application to: City Secretary's Office, City of College Station, P.O. Bo 

312



Application for City 
BoardslCommissionsl 
Committees for Year 2005-2006 

PLEASE TYPE OR PRINT CLEARLY 

Home Address c)% 6 r a d  (3db 
Telephone: q/7q- 61~3~) - 5/ 18 Business Name- 
Fax: @'q-775-,9-5g - Occupation: 
E-mail: ~a~4dB~avmvi40&c&. C C f i  ( ~ f  retired, please rndicate former occupat~on) 

College Station Resident for years Address: Ro. q7+779 61% 7a( - 
LC5M 

( ~ u s t  be a resident of the City to serve) Telephone: 75' 
Subdivision Fax: q7q -77,5-,5459 A 

Voter Registration # E-Mail: I ~ v t d ~ S a ~ r n r r ~ d o ~ ~ ~ C o . ~  
Ed ucation(optiona/) 

POSITION SOUGHT: (Please indicate choice with 1,2 or 3 - where 1 is most preferable and 3 being 
leasf preferable.) CHOOSE NO MORE THAN 3 

B Brazos County Appraisal Dist. 
Cemetery Committee 
Construction Board of 
Adjustments & Appeals 

B Design Review Board 
Fa~ade Improvement Board 
Joint Relief Funding Review 
Historic Preservation Committee 

Library Committee 
Parks and Recreation Board 
Planning and Zoning Commission 
Research Valley Partnership 
Wolf Pen Creek TIF Board . 
Zoning Board of Adjustments .w Convention Center TlF Board 

Parks Board Committees 

Conference Center Advisory Committee 
Lincoln Center Advisory Committee 
Senior Advisory Committee 

If you currently serve on any other boards/commissions/committees, please list them here: 

Please list any experience or interests that qualifies you to serve in the positions indicated: 

/ /  

Signature of Applicant Date 

313



reu ua uu 1 r i  ~ 3 4  r r r l u e r - 3 n e e r e r - 3  J I J D T D  I J O U  

Application for City 
BoardslCommissionsl 
Committees for Year 2005-2006 

PLEASE TYPE OR PRINT CLEARLY 
1 

NAME nne. \ ) ak~o0  
CITY OF COLLEGE S T A ~ N  

HomeAddress q3V.3 CjGik L t k ~  Dr.- 

Telephone: 0'7 9 - 69b -3 '/ 4 / 
Fax: 

E-Mail: qa i @ C o X  - 1 ,~+c-n  C )  8 t! *n 
1 -a 

College Station Resident for years 
(Must be a resident of the City to serve) 

Subdivision 

Voter Registration 

Business Owner? (&$ No 

Business Name: 6 AefsKep pe r 5 

{If mlired, please indicate formegccup 

t occu pation: I*;L\ CS&&C Lh \ Z ~ L  ~b 

Address: 3 i 3 urch , 0 5 a 
1 

Telephone: q? 9- n h  1 8x7 
Fax: 974- RYlp-7389 
E-mail: F i n A  kiep  Q Cn ul - int~f ie- I ,  corn 

Education (~pticnd] / j 3 f ~ \  &k+c&o k z (  

POSITION SOUGHT: (Please indicate choice with 1,2 or 3 - where 1 is most preferable and 3 being 
/east preferable.) CHOOSE NO MORE THAN 3 

Brazos County Appraisal Dist 
Cemetery Committee Library Committee 
Construction Board of 0 Parks and Recreation Board 
Adjustments & Appeals Planning and Zoning Commission 
Design Review Board 0 Research Valley Partnership Board 
Faqade Improvement Wolf Pen Creek TIF Board 
Joint Relief Funding Review Zoning Board of Adjustments 
Historic Preservation Committee Convention Center TIF Board 

Parks Board Committees 
Conference Center Advisory Committee 
Lincoln Center Advisory Committee 
Senior Advisory Committee 

If you currently serve on any other boards/commissionslcommittees, please list them here: 

ualifies you to serve in the positions indicated: 
, .L%r, mtnn r\r u- , iIiDmnf-\ & I ~L'W (h,.,~.d 

314



Application for City 
Boards/Commissions/ 
Committees for Year 2005-2006 

PLEASE TYPE OR PRINT CLEARLY 

Home Address 3 b O i  bo~h(?s*t.r I',k. Business 0 w n e r m N o  
Telephone: 97 Cl- 71 lo -+ \S  00 Business N a r n e : S v o h k  .Mur~hu .e 8mv\ln,LL 
Fax: 974 - 71b-0900 Occupation: A ftlo'r w,i/ 
E-mail: SBSuofa~ 1 SOW ( I f  retired, please indicate former occupatfon) 

Kmqfs3ny b<DWn'm~ddress: 3\3\ BY-\QTW College Station Resident for years st ,5te.\ \ \ ,  B 
( ~ u s t  be a resident of the city to serve) Telephone: (31 - 17b a Oq \Y 
Subdivision  ax: 914-?1b-040(3 
Voter Registration # E-Mail: 305 u&4k/3 s~r>~akm~\r~\c\~\own.~u7 

Education(optionar) T h c h ;  & ~ w ~ s ~ T & - u c ~  

POSITION SOUGHT: (Please indicate choice with 1,2 or 3 - where 1 is most preferable and 3 being 
least preferable.) CHOOSE NO MORE THAN 3 

Brazos County Ap 
Cemetery Committee Parks and Recreation Board 
Construction Board of Planning and Zoning Commission 
Adjustments & Appeals 

B 
Research Valley Partnership 

Design Review Board 
Fa~ade Improvement Board Wolf Pen Creek TIF Board . 

[7 Joint Relief Funding Review [7 Zoning Board of Adjustments 
[7 Historic Preservation Committee f l  Convention Center TIF Board 

Parks Board Committees 

Conference Center Advisory Committee 
Lincoln Center Advisory Committee 
Senior Advisory Committee 

If you currently serve on any other boards/commissions/committees, please list them here: 
\n C M\&\on B D N ~  & D ~ W a r s  ,Qrvs\~ent: P,~%os ln\\tu VIb a w p s  b AS LOG. 

Please listlany experience or interests that qualifies you to seJrve in the positidns'in%ated: 
e2Yr.y and ~ M I P ,  

a\ m*-te !am \n?,yv, -h 
f I 

Signature of Applican Date 4 I ( ~ / o b  
Mail completed application to: city(TScretary's Office, City of College Station, P.O. Box 9960, College stabon, TX 77842. 

315



Application for City 
BoardslCommissionsl 
Committees for Year 2005-2006 

PLEASE TYPE OR PRINT CLEARLY 

CITY OF COLLEGE STATION 

Home Address Business Owner? No 

Telephone: Business Name: ~d 1 J M ~ & x H  k 

Fax: Occupation : 

E-Mail: 

College Station Resident for years 
(Must be a resident of the City to serve) 

Address: 

Telephone: 7 1 3 -  8PI-+7'2+ 
Fax: 

Subdivision 

Voter Registration # 
E-mail: 

Education (optional) 

POSI'TION SOUGHT: (Please indicate choice with 1,2 or 3 - where I is most preferable and 3 being 
least preferable.) CHOOSE NO MORE THAN 3 

Brazos County Appraisal Dist. 
Cemetery Committee [7 - Library Committee 
Construction Board of Parks and Recreation Board 
Adjustments & Appeals [7 Planning and Zoning Commission 
Design Review Board [7 Research Valley Partnership Board 
Faqade Improvement El Wolf Pen Creek TIF Board 
Joint Relief Funding Review Zoning Board of Adjustments 
Historic Preservation Committee [7 Convention Center TIF Board 

Parks Board Committees 
Conference Center Advisory Committee 
Lincoln Center Advisory Committee 
Senior Advisory Committee 

If you currently serve on any other boardslcommissionslcommittees, please list them here: 

Please list any experience or interests that qualifies you to serve in the positions indicated: 

. 
Signature of Applicant 
Mail completed applicat'n to: City secretary\ office, City of College Station, P.O. 

316



Application for City 
BoardslCommissions/ 
Committees for Year 2005-2006 

PLEASE TYPE OR PRINT CLEARLY 

Business Owner? Yes No 
Telephone: TV-  223- O#U' 
Fax: 7 7 9 - ~ 2 . 3 -  O&/J 

/ 

E-mail: 
College ~tat iod~esident  for 32 years 

-   MEI IS^ b e  m s i & m ~ e ~  lo ~ 8 -  - - -  - . . 

Subdivision 
Voter Registration # 

POSITION SOUGHT: (Please indicate choice with 1,2 or 3 - where 1 is most preferable and 3 being 
/east preferable.) CHOOSE NO MORE THAN 3 

Brazos County Ap Committee 
U Cemetery Committee 

Construction Board of 
Adjustments & Appeals 

El Design Review Board 
Fa~ade Improvement Board 
Joint Relief Fundins Review 
Historic preservation Committee 

Parks and Recreation Board 
Planning and Zoning Commission 
Research Valley Partnership 
Wolf Pen Creek TIF Board . 
Zoning Board of Adjustments 

d] Convention Center TlF Board 

Conference Center Advisory Committee 
Lincoln Center Advisory Committee 
Senior Advisory Committee 

If you currently serve on any other boards/commissions/committees, please list them here: 

Please list any experience or interests that qualifies you to serve in the positions indicated: 

Signature of Applicant Date ke/&0 L 
Mail completed app ce, City of College Station, P.O. Box 9960, College Station, TX 77842. 

317



 

 

June 22, 2006 
Regular Agenda 

Consider Ordinance issuing General Obligation Bonds 
 
To: Glenn Brown, City Manager 
 
From: Jeff Kersten, Chief Financial Officer 
 
 
Agenda Caption: Presentation, possible action and discussion to approve an ordinance 
by the City Council of the City of College Station, Texas, issuing $7,375,000 City of College 
Station General Obligation Bonds, Series 2006. 
 
 
Recommendation(s): Council move to approve the attached ordinance issuing 
general obligation bonds. 
 
 
Summary:  The City Council is authorized to approve the issuance of general obligation 
bonds which have been authorized by a vote of the citizens.   The Citizens approved a total 
of $38,405,000 on November 4, 2003.  By approving the ordinance, the Council will issue a 
total of $7,375,000 from the 2003 authorization.  This is the third bond sale from the 2003 
bond authorization.   
 
The City of College Station typically issues debt to fund various capital projects identified 
and approved as a part of the annual budget. The City primarily uses three types of debt 
instruments to fulfill those requirements: 
 

1. General Obligation Bonds (GOBs) are based on the full faith and credit of the City 
and are paid primarily through the debt service portion of the ad valorem tax 
rate.  GOBs are authorized by the voters and therefore the notice is provided in 
the election process. 

 
2. Utility Revenue Bonds (URBs) are backed by the revenues of the City's various 

utilities and are issued as a business activity.  These are typically only issued for 
utility capital projects. 

 
3. Certificates of Obligation (COs) normally include at least one additional revenue 

stream such as utility revenues, but are considered to be much like GOBs and 
therefore normally receive a rating similar to GOBs.  Our policy for issuing CO's 
allows more flexibility in their issue than GOBs, particularly when other revenues 
are anticipated to assist in debt service. 

 
This particular debt issue is planned to provide resources for street projects, traffic signal 
projects, sidewalk improvements, hike and bike trails, and parks and recreation projects. 
 
Budget & Financial Summary:   Staff reviewed the impact of the general obligation bonds 
City's ability to meet debt service requirements and the effect they may have on the ad 
valorem tax rate.  The recommendation to move forward with this issue will not impact the 
ad valorem tax rate. 
 
 
Attachments: 
 

318



 

 

1. Ordinance by the City Council of the City of College Station issuing general obligation 
bonds. 

2. Debt Issuance 2006 
3. GO Capital Project Schedule 

319



320



321



322



323



324



325



326



327



328



329



330



331



332



333



334



335



336



337



338



339



340



341



342



343



344



Proposed 2006 Debt Issue

General Obligation Bonds

Parks
5,735,000$          Veterans Park Phase II

100,000               New Forestry Shop
Parks Total 5,835,000$          

Streets 1,000,000$          Barron Road Improvements
100,000               Sidewalk Improvements
200,000               Hike and Bike Trails
140,000               Traffic Signals
100,000               Traffic System Safety Improvements

Streets Total 1,540,000$          

GOB Total 7,375,000$          

345



 

 

June 22, 2006 
Regular Agenda 

Consider Ordinance Issuing of Certificates of Obligation 
 
To: Glenn Brown, City Manager 
 
From: Jeff Kersten, Chief Financial Officer 
 
 
Agenda Caption: Presentation, possible action, and discussion to approve an ordinance 
by the City Council of the City of College Station, Texas, issuing $8,325,000 City of College 
Station Certificates of Obligation, Series 2006. 
 
Recommendation(s): Council move to approve the attached ordinance to issue 
certificates of obligation. 
 
Summary:  The City Council is authorized to approve the issuance of certificates of 
obligation (COs) after approving a resolution directing notice to be published of the intent to 
issue the COs.  On May 25, 2006, Council approved a resolution directing staff to advertise 
the issuance of COs.  On June 7 and 14 such notice was published.   
 
The City of College Station typically issues debt to fund various capital projects identified 
and approved as a part of the annual budget. The City primarily uses three types of debt 
instruments to fulfill those requirements: 
 

1. General Obligation Bonds (GOBs) are based on the full faith and credit of the City 
and are paid primarily through the debt service portion of the ad valorem tax 
rate.  GOBs are authorized by the voters and therefore the notice is provided in 
the election process. 

 
2. Utility Revenue Bonds (URBs) are backed by the revenues of the City's various 

utilities and are issued as a business activity.  These are typically only issued for 
utility capital projects. 

 
3. Certificates of Obligation (COs) normally include at least one additional revenue 

stream such as utility revenues, but are considered to be much like GOBs and 
therefore normally receive a rating similar to GOBs.  Our policy for issuing CO's 
allows more flexibility in their issue than GOBs, particularly when other revenues 
are anticipated to assist in debt service. 

 
This particular issue will provide resources for street projects, parks projects, Wolf Pen 
Creek projects, cemetery development projects, and debt issuance costs totaling 
$8,325,000. 
 
Budget & Financial Summary:   Staff reviewed the impact of the Certificates on the City's 
ability to meet debt service requirements and the effect they may have either on ad 
valorem tax.  The recommendation to move forward with this issue will not affect the ad 
valorem tax rate. 
 
Attachments: 
 

1. Ordinance by the City Council of the City of College Station to issue Certificates of 
Obligation. 

2. Debt Issuance 2006 

346



347



348



349



350



351



352



353



354



355



356



357



358



359



360



361



362



363



364



365



366



367



368



369



370



371



372



373



374



Proposed 2006 Debt Issue

Certificates of Obligation

General Government
1,000,000            New Cemetery Development

300,000               Wolf Pen Creek Projects
300,000               Police Station Additions/Renovation

General Govt Total 1,600,000            

Parks
400,000$             University Park Development

Parks Total 400,000$             

Streets
1,200,000$          Southside Street Rehabilitation
4,000,000            Arrington/Decatur Extension
1,000,000            Street Extension Projects

Streets Total 6,200,000$          

Debt Issuance Costs 125,000$             

CO Total 8,325,000$          

375



 

 

June 22, 2006 
Regular Agenda 

Consider Ordinance issuing Utility Revenue Bonds 
 
To: Glenn Brown, City Manager 
 
From: Jeff Kersten, Chief Financial Officer 
 
 
Agenda Caption: Presentation, possible action, and discussion to approve an ordinance 
by the City Council of the City of College Station, Texas, issuing $16,950,000 City of College 
Station Utility Revenue Bonds, Series 2006. 
 
 
Recommendation(s): Council move to approve the attached ordinance issuing utility 
revenue bonds. 
 
 
Summary:  Utility revenue bonds are special obligations of the City of College Station 
payable solely from and secured by a first lien on and pledge of the Net Revenues of the 
City's Utility System. 
 
The City of College Station typically issues debt to fund various capital projects identified 
and approved as a part of the annual budget. The City primarily uses three types of debt 
instruments to fulfill those requirements: 
 

1. General Obligation Bonds (GOBs) are based on the full faith and credit of the City 
and are paid primarily through the debt service portion of the ad valorem tax 
rate.  GOBs are authorized by the voters and therefore the notice is provided in 
the election process. 

 
2. Utility Revenue Bonds (URBs) are backed by the revenues of the City's various 

utilities and are issued as a business activity.  These are typically only issued for 
utility capital projects. 

 
3. Certificates of Obligation (COs) normally include at least one additional revenue 

stream such as utility revenues, but are considered to be much like GOBs and 
therefore normally receive a rating similar to GOBs.  Our policy for issuing CO's 
allows more flexibility in their issue than GOBs, particularly when other revenues 
are anticipated to assist in debt service. 

 
The Utility Revenue Bond debt issue is planned to provide resources for Electric and Water 
capital projects, and debt issuance costs totaling $16,950,000. 
 
Budget & Financial Summary:   Staff reviewed the impact of the utility revenue bonds on 
the Electric and Water Utility rates. 
 
 
Attachments: 
 

1. Ordinance by the City Council of the City of College Station issuing utility revenue 
bonds. 

2. Debt Issuance 2006 

376



377



378



379



380



381



382



383



384



385



386



387



388



389



390



391



392



393



394



395



396



397



398



399



400



401



402



403



404



405



406



407



408



409



410



Proposed 2006 Debt Issue

Utility Revenue Bonds

Electric
500,000$             Underground System Improvements
500,000               Overhead System Improvements

4,350,000            Substation Transmission
2,500,000            Substation Distribution

Electric Total 7,850,000$          

Water
2,625,000$          Water Supply Projects
1,275,000            Water Pumping and Treatment Plant Projects

500,000               Water General Plant
1,600,000            Water Transmission and Distribution Projects

Water Projects 6,000,000$          

Wastewater Projects
1,575,000$          Collection Plant Projects
1,220,000            Treatment and Disposal Projects

205,000               Rehabilitation Projects
Wastewater Projects 3,000,000$          

Issuance Costs 100,000               

URB Total 16,950,000$        

411



 

 

June 22, 2006 
Regular Agenda  

BRW Change Order No. 2 – Police Station Additions Project 
 
To: Glenn Brown, City Manager 
 
From: Mark Smith, Interim Assistant City Manager                       
 
 
Agenda Caption: Presentation, possible action, and discussion regarding design change 
order no. 2 to BRW in the amount of $128,153.00 for the Police Station Addition Project  
(GG-0402).  
 
 
Recommendation(s): Staff recommends approval of design change order no. 2 in the 
amount of $128,153.00. 
 
 
Summary:  This change order is required to bring the project scope of work within the 
project budget.  
 
As this project developed in early 2004, a scope of work was determined and a professional 
services contract with BRW was awarded. In July of 2005, preliminary cost estimates were 
received based upon the preliminary design. At this point, the decision was made to proceed 
with final design even though the preliminary estimate was over the project budget. It was 
thought that additional funds coupled with a reduction in project scope, namely; the 
removal of the outbuilding facility, would bring the project back to budget. In early 2006, it 
was determined that the removal of the outbuilding facility would not meet the project’s 
goals. In order to complete the project and include the outbuilding facility, significant design 
changes are required in the proposed main building floor plan design. This change order will 
authorize the re-design. 
 
This project provides for expansion into the vacated Municipal Courts area, remodeled space 
for the Police Department, increased parking areas, and a 9,500 S.F. outbuilding facility. No 
significant new space is created in the main building and a new, larger police building may 
be needed in the future.  
 
 
Budget & Financial Summary:  The project budget is $3,610,000.00. 
 
 
Attachments: 
 

1. Change Order No. 2 
2. Project Location Map 

 
 
 

412



413



414


	Agenda
	Item No. 2 - Financial Forecast
	Coversheet

	Item No. 3 - Review of Annexation Policy
	Coversheet
	Item Background
	Annexation Plan
	ETJ Map
	Existing Water CCN Map
	Proposed Sewer CCN Map
	ETJ development trends

	Item No. 4 - Discussion of Neighborhood Preservation Options
	Coversheet

	Item No. 5 - Dartmouth Status
	coversheet
	Location Map

	Item No. 13.1 - Construction Contract for the Multi-purpose Support Facility at Wolf Pen Creek Amphitheater
	Coversheet
	Resolution
	Bid Tabulation
	Project Location Map
	Project Site Plan

	Item No. 13.2 - Shenandoah Phases 12 & 13 Oversized Participation Agreement
	Coversheet
	Oversized Participation Agreement
	Exhibit A  Vicinity Map
	Exhibit B  Utility Location Map
	Exhibit C  Engineer’s Estimate and Request Letter

	Item No. 13.3 - Interlocal Agreement With City of Round Rock
	Coversheet
	Interlocal Agreement

	Item No. 13.4 - Audit Services
	Coversheet
	Letter Agreement

	Item No. 13.5 - Bush Library Funding Agreement
	Coversheet
	Bush Library Budget
	Funding Agreement

	Item No. 13.6 - Litter Abatement Grant Resolution
	Coversheet
	Resolution

	Item No. 13.7 - Resolution to Dissolve the Façade Improvement Program and Committee
	Coversheet
	FIP Ending Resolution
	FIP Recommendation Memorandum
	FIP Committee Minutes April 2006

	Item No. 13.8 - Dove Crossing Subdivision Phase 1 Oversize Participation Request
	Coversheet
	Oversized Participation Agreement
	Exhibit A Vicinity Map
	Exhibit B Utility Location
	Exhibit C Engineer’s Estimate and Request Letter

	Item No. 13.9 - Design of Utilities Serving Annexation Areas 5 and 6
	Coversheet
	Resolution
	Location Map

	Item No. 13.10 - Holleman Drive West Parking Restrictions
	Coversheet
	Ordinance
	Location Map
	Public Notification

	Item No. 13.11 - Approval of Minutes
	May 25 Minutes
	May 24 Minutes

	Item No. 13.12 - Resolution Requesting the Approval for Condemnation of Property for the Brazos to College Station Switch Station Transmission Line Tie Project
	Coversheet
	Condemnation Resolution
	Exhibit A
	Location Map

	Item No. 14.1 - Harvey Hillsides Rezoning
	Coversheet
	Small Area Map and Aerial Map
	Item Background
	Infrastructure and Facilities
	Zoning Summaries 
	Ordinance

	Item No. 14.2 - Sign Ordinance
	Coversheet
	4 May P&Z Minutes
	Ordinance

	Item No. 14.3 - Specific Notice Requirements Ordinance
	Coversheet
	Ordinance

	Item No. 14.4 - Traffic Impact Analysis
	Coversheet
	18 May P&Z Minutes 
	Ordinance

	Item No. 14.5 - Resolution Denying Gas Rate Increase
	Coversheet
	Resolution

	Item No. 14.6 - Public Hearing and Ordinance for Creation of TIRZ #16
	Coversheet
	Ordinance
	Exhibits
	Board Applicants

	Item No. 14.7 - General Obligation Bonds
	Coversheet
	Ordinance
	2006 Debt Issue

	Item No. 14.8 - Certificates of Obligation
	Coversheet
	Ordinance
	2006 Debt Issue

	Item No. 14.9 - Utility Revenue Bonds
	Coversheet
	Ordinance
	2006 Debt Issue

	Item No. 14.10 - BRW Change Order No. 2 – Police Station Additions Project
	Coversheet
	Change Order No. 2
	Project Location Map


